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While the new methods and machines have had a marked effect on information processing in the day -to -day activities, in the near future more attention
will be given to the applications in long -range budgeting and profit planning.
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This article demonstrates that profit can be increased and worker satisfaction
improved by providing variable time allowances based upon the human improvement phenomenon rather than by using fixed time standards to determine bonus pay in wage incentive systems.

C O P I N G W I T H UNCE RTAINTY IN T HE MA KE OR BUY DE CISION
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Instead of relying on the fictitious certainty, this technique brings to the analysis an approach that recognizes the uncertainty and brings to light the role of
varying levels of activity.
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Variations in labor and overhead efficiency, material usage, volume, etc., are
caused by chance factors. Since probability statistics evaluates Patterns of
chance occurrences, its use in accounting variance control is logical. Statistical
techniques are also more economical and effective.
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By Daniel F. Fallon
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What is needed to ensure improved inventory quantity control is a combination of the cycle and physical approaches. It is shown here how the periodic
sampling can evolve into a computerized system of inventory control.
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INDUSTRY
By George E. Manners, Jr.
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Each function in the life insurance company should be viewed as a distinct
cost center. The article demonstrates application of predetermined costs on
a "per policy" basis. The author believes that use of the amount share is as
valuable in evaluating current results as it is in appraising long -run effects on
surplus.
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By John L. Davis
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Procedures and methods outlined here are quite simple. They are flexible and
can be adjusted to meet most situations.
MULT IPLE CORPORAT IONS: A COMPARISON OF T AX
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There is no general formula or rule that could be used to decide what tax
status is the best. However, a tax Plan is essential if a multiple corporation is
to minimize its income tax burden. The author examines five alternatives.
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Comment
In a long- anticipated action, the Securities and Exchange Commission has
proposed new rules requiring greater
disclosure by "conglomerates" of the
relative contributions of their various
lines of business to the overall results.
In developing the proposed rules, the
SEC considered the Financial Executives Research Foundation study, Financial Reporting by Diversified Companies, and the publications and suggestions of the National Association of
Accountants, in addition to those of
the American Institute of CPA's.
Earlier this year, an NAA research
study, External Reporting for Segments
of a Business, was published. Written
by Dr. Morton Backer and Dr. Walter
B. McFarland, the study explored the
issue of segment reporting through
depth interviews with financial analysts,
commercial bankers and corporate executives. A second report growing out
of the research into the topic, "Financial Reporting for Security Investment
and Credit Decisions," will be published early in 1969.
Under the proposed new rules, a
company with several lines of business
would be required to report on securities
registration forms the approximate
amount or percentage of sales of each
segment of the business which contributed 10% or more to the total of
sales and revenues. In addition, the
proposals, if adopted, would require
conglomerates to state "if practicable,
the amount of assets employed in each
segment of the business for which
operating results are reported."
Companies with foreign operations
would also be required to disclose additional financial information. "Where
10% or more of total sales and'revenues
or net income as stated above are derived from operations outside the United
States and Canada or from Government procurement or any single customer, similar information with respect
to each such source shall be set forth
and for any categories of products or
services within each source which contributed 10 percent of the total company sales and revenues or net income."
The SEC made the new proposals in
response to a growing trend toward
diversification by American corporations
in unrelated lines of business. The
stated purpose of the proposed rules is

to "supply information on the basis of
which existing security holders and new
investors may be able to determine the
approximate contribution which the
various lines of business make to a
company's overall profitability, or lack
of it."
The proposed rules are almost sure
to meet with opposition from some
conglomerates which claim that such
data would not be meaningful to investors, might be misused to a company's disadvantage by competitors,
and, in the hands of investors, might
have adverse effects on management's
decisions. The NAA research study disclosed, however, that those companies
currently disclosing such information
have generally found "that such disclosure has been beneficial while no
serious unfavorable reactions have occurred." The study estimates that some
two dozen major concerns report product line profits today. The authors concluded that "Experience of these companies seems to suggest that segment
reports must be carefully designed to
present the individual company's operations in a useful way while avoiding
potential dangers from disclosing sensitive information."
In contrast to the SEC proposals,
the Financial Executives Research
Foundation study recommended that
diversified companies which "to a material degree" have activity in more than
one broadly defined industry should
make disclosures of the relative contributions to profits. According to the
study, a "material degree" means 15%
or more of a company's gross revenue.
It warned that "to require reporting on
some rigid basis might fractionalize a
company into unnatural parts which
could not fairly reflect the results of its
operations."
The SEC will consider comments
and criticisms of the proposed rules submitted on or before October 4. The
normal procedure of the Commission,
according to SEC Secretary Orval L.
DuBois, is not to hold hearings on such
proposals unless broad opposition is
expressed. On the basis of comments
received from interested parties, the
SEC staff will advise the Commission
whether to abandon or adopt the proposed rules, adapt them, or hold hearings in connection with their adoption.
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S h e e t O C TO B E R

S t e el Co mp a n y Ch an g es Ac cou n t i n g
Armco Steel Corp. has announced two
changes in its accounting methods which
may signal a growing trend. Retroactive
to last January 1, the company has adopted
the straightline method of computing
depreciation and has also inaugurated
world -wide reporting of financial results.
The company said it had adopted the
straightline depreciation method because
it would reflect the company's performance
more closely under current business
conditions.

Pla n Asso ci a ti on Role i n Poverty War
A task group has been formed by the
Chamber of Commerce of the United States
to seek ways by which associations and
Chambers of Commerce can play a more
effective role in helping employers hire
and train the hard -core unemployed. The
Association and Chamber Task Group on
Hard -Core Unemployment is meeting with the
National Alliance of Businessmen and
representatives of the Labor and Commerce
Departments to discuss ways to permit a
greater role for associations to play in
some of the programs.

1968

National Industrial Conference Board.
Money earmarked for plant and equipment
comes to approximately $5.76 billion, a
4% increase from the first quarter.
Prospects are even brighter for the third
quarter. Manufacturers reported they
plan to appropriate more for capital
spending during the second half of this
year than they did in both the first
half of 1968 and the final half of 1967.

Two A cc ou n t an t s G et T op P os t s
Recent promotions of two accountants in
industry: Keith G. Dalglish, former
auditor of the company, was named president
of George Weston, Ltd., a large Canadian
holding company. . . . Ralph B. Cole is
treasurer of E. I. du Pont de Nemours & Co.

NAA O ff i c i a l Na me d t o T ax F oru m
Robert H. Sommer, managing director of
NAA, has been appointed a member of the
Tax Forum of the U.S. Chamber of Commerce.
Mr. Sommer joined the national staff
earlier this year.

Prob lems B eset Fo rei gn O p erat i on s

Rising nationalism and increased
government controls are hampering
operations of U.S. companies with foreign
affiliates, according to a survey
Pe rso n a l L o a n F i rms Pl a n
released by the National Industrial
Compu ter Services
Conference Board. Many of the 166
Personal loan companies are planning to
executives
interviewed criticized the
sell computer services to other finance
Administration's
crackdown on investment,
companies, savings and loan associations
saying
that
it
had
already created
and retailers. Household Finance Corp.
recently announced that it was considering financing problems. The executives also
complained that foreign governments are
such a diversification. Other finance
companies are also considering such moves. demanding local manufacture and local
ownership, moving for increased government
regulation
of business, and maintaining
P. O. Dep t. H ires CPA Firm
barriers
against
imports despite the
Plagued by rising costs for years, the
Kennedy
round.
Other
worries of companies
U.S. Post Office Dept. has hired Touche,
with
foreign
operations
include greater
Ross, Bailey & Smart to develop an
competition in world markets, tight money
incremental cost accounting system for
and a shortage of skilled manpower, and
the department.
inadequate corporate organization. Some
Ca pi t al S p en di n g Up , S ays NICB
believe the U.S. company must grow into
Capital appropriations rose in the second
what one executive calls "a world - oriented
quarter, according to a survey of the
corporation." The report is titled "The
1,000 largest manufacturers made by the
Problems Facing International Management."
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before you move forward tomorrow,
know where you stand today
Almost any move in business requires sound knowledge of current
values. Experienced valuation counsel suggests the proper steps
for: buy -sell situations, settling tax questions or decisions regarding
merger, allocation of purchase price, insurance, condemnation,
cost accounting, depreciation; and other corporate requirements
involving tangible and intangible property values.
Consultants in Valuation since 1896.
The American Appraisal Company, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53201
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CVP Analysis and Absorption
Costing Are Compatible
To the Editor:
The basic points to which Gerald R.
Crowningshield and George L. Battista
seek to direct attention in their article,
"Is Conventional Accounting Adequate
for a Cost Reduction Program ?" ( January 1968 ), are worthy of careful consideration. Unfortunately, they dilute the
value of their presentation by returning
to their favorite thesis, the superiority
of direct costing over absorption costing.
However, all they really demonstrate is
that direct costing is better than bad
management and /or bad accounting.
Their illustration of the shortcomings
of t he vol ume and spending variances
produced under absorption costing is
unfairly rigged. Wh e n t h ey sh ow h ow
the conventional approach works, they
use a single amount for fixed costs.
When they convert the illustration to
their recommended approach, that single fixed cost has been separated into
two components (committed and programmed ) , one of which is actually a
semivariable cost. Th e obvious lesson
from this illustration is that inaccurate
information is less useful than correct
data. There is no reason to presume,
however, that absorption costing will be
accompanied by inaccurate information.
Later they attempt to show how management could be misled by faulty communication under absorption costing.
Specifically, they illustrate how a comparison of actual income under absorption costing with budgeted income under direct costing may lead management
to conclude that performance had been
better than expected when, in fact, the
opposite was true. Now, why would
management that had chosen initially
to use absorption costing decide subsequently that the appropriate profit criterion is to be found in direct costing?
Such analysis simply makes no sense.
Contrary to Crowningshield and Bat tista's contention, absorption costing
and cost-volume-profit (CVP ) analysis
are always compatible if both are employed properly. CVP analysis is incidental to absorption costing, of course,
while it is inherent in direct costing.
Nevertheless, the basic purpose of CVP
analysis is to depict relationships among
key variables, not t o determine inventory values and income. And it is in this
latter connection that absorption and
direct costing differ fundamentally. Attempting to relate CVP analysis to gross
profit data from an absorption costing
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they committed? Whe re an d wh y ar e
they being incurred? By whom are they
being committed and spent?
Knowing this reveals the amount, the
purpose and function of the expenditure
and responsibility for it. Improvements
are reflected in comparison with the
bases of measurement regardless of their
form.
Knowing this, also, provides for con
trol at the source where truly before -thefact planning can be achieved. Management is then constantly honoring its
stewardship responsibilities in striving
to meet its overall, long -term objectives.

income statement (as Crowningshield
and Battista suggest in their illustration ) is simply bad management. It is
not a defect in absorption costing.
James M. Fremgen
Visiting Professor of Accounting
University of Hawaii
Honolulu, Hawaii

Keith J.Bowman
Manager — System Planning
Dresser Industries, Inc.
Olean, N.Y.

Conversions from Direct to
Absorption Costing
To the Editor:

Adequacy of Absorption Costing
To the Editor:
The article, " Is Conventional Accounting Adequate for a Cost Reduction Program?" by Gerald R. Crowningshield and George L. Battista (January
1968 ) is certainly a timely and interesting dissertation. The authors feel that
direct costing is a better, more useful
tool for cost analysis and, in fact, is essential to "an adequate cost reduction
program" while conventional accounting does not fulfill this requirement.
It should also be noted that absorption costing can provide the basis for an
adequate and effective cost reduction
program. For the implementation and
success of such a program begins at the

I read with interest two excellent articles on direct costing in the January
1968 issue, "Decision Making Applications of Direct Cost Information" by
John R. Patterson and "Converting to a
Direct Costing System" by Richard E.
Williams.
Both articles deal strictly with conversion from traditional absorption costing.
It should be noted, however, that conversion from direct to absorption costing
for external reporting purposes is one of
the chief problems resulting from the
use of direct costing. Therefore, companies which use direct costing for internal
reporting purposes must adjust their
closing inventories to include fixed
manufacturing costs.
There are several methods which can

so u r c e o f t h e c o st c y c l e — n o t fr o m t h e

b e u s e d i n a d j u st i n g c l o s i n g i n v e n t o r i e s

summary of results.

so that they may be reflected on an ab-

Most firms subscribe to the basic corporate objective of maximizing return
on investment over the long term. The
key to achieving this objective is planning— planning and controlling the use
of corporate capital (encompassing all
facets of its sources, allocation and use).
Th e financial plan must project commitments which may or may not be
modified— but must anticipate and indeed provide for varying conditions.
In all instances, however, costs are a
function of spending— past, present or
future. Therefore, an essential ingredient of the financial plan and a cost reduction program is knowledge of the
costs : what are the costs? Wh e n are

sorption costing basis for external reporting purposes. Statistical records of
the fixed manufacturing overhead excluded from inventories can be maintained and adjusted either monthly or
quarterly. The change in the total of
such fixed manufacturing overhead between periods can then be added to or
subtracted from the direct costing profit
in order to arrive at the profit which
would have been realized under absorption costing.
Some companies price physical inventories semi - annually using both the direct costing and absorption costing
(Continued on Page 48)
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Recent Publications
BASIC A C C O U N T I N G
FOR MANAGERIAL AND
FINANCIAL CONT ROL
Albert Salvin, Isaac N. Reynolds and
Lawrence H. Malchman
Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 383
Madison Ave., New York, N.Y. 10017,
1968, 847pp., $10.95.
This introductory textbook blends exposition of basic accounting procedures
with explanation of management uses
for accounting data.

CHARACTERISTICS OF AN
EFFECTIVE MANAG EMENT
CO NTRO L SY STEM IN AN
IN D U S T R I A L
O R G AN I ZA T IO N
Robert H. Deming
Harvard Business School, Division of
Research, Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass.
02163, 1968, 222pp., $5.00.
This book presents results of a study
which aimed to identify those characteristics of a management control system which are essential to the effective
operation of that system in a multidivision manufacturing company.

FINANCIAL DECISION
M AK ING
Edward J. Mock
International Textbook Company, P.O.
Box 30, College Dept. Scranton, Pa.
18515, 1967, 952pp. $11.00.
This book of readings covering a wide
variety of topics in financial management constitutes a handy source book
for both financial managers and students of the subject.

B USINESS F I N A N C I A L
MANAGEMENT
G. W. Cooke and E. C. Bonneli
Houghton Mifflin Company, 110 Tremont St., Boston, Mass., 02107, 1967,
465pp., $7.95.
MA N A G E M E N T ACCO UNTING / OC TOB ER, 1968

In this textbook, the financial manager's
viewpoint is adapted with the material
presented at a level intended for an undergraduate college course.

TH E M ANAG EM ENT
OF B USINESS FINANCE
Paul G. Hastings
D. Van Nostrand Company, Inc., 120
Alexander St., Princeton, N.J. 08540,
1966, 527 pp., $9.50.
This text is intended for a first course
in business finance.

FINANCIAL RESEARCH
AND M ANAG EM ENT
DECISIO NS
Alexander A. Robichek
John Wiley 6 Sons, Inc., 605 Third
Ave., New York, N.Y. 10016, 1967,
232pp., $8.95.
Papers collected in this book provide the
reader with a broad view of recent academic studies in financial management
with, in addition, interesting commentary by executives responsible for financial management decisions.

IN F O R M A TI O N S Y S TE M S
FOR M ANAGE ME NT
PL ANNING AND CONT RO L
Thomas R. Prince
Richard D. Irwin, Inc., 1818 Ridge Rd.,
Homewood, Ill. 60430, 1966, 416pp.,
$8.50.
The academic orientation of this treatment of management information systems will have greater appeal to the
reader with analytic interests, than to
the reader interested in practical applications.

M A N AG E M EN T ,
INFO RM AT IO N AND
SY STEM S
A. G. Donald

Pergamon Press Ltd., 44 -01 21st St.,
Long Island City, N.Y. 11101, 1967,
paperbound, 169¢¢., $3.50, (hardcover
$5.00.)
This book is recommended for a clearly
written and largely non - technical exposition of its subject. Relationships between the newer systems technologies
and the older management information
sources such as the accounting system
are described.

THE FINANCING OF
SM AL L B US IN ES S
A Current Assessment
The Free Press, A Division of the Macmillan Co., 866 Third Ave., New York,
N.Y. 10022, 1967, 356pp., $8.50.
Edited by Irving Pfeffer. This collection
of writings by a number of authors presents a helpful assessment of current
ideas and methods relevant to financing
the small business.

DE C I S I O N R U L E S F O R
INVENTORY
MANAG EMENT
Robert G. Brown
Holt, Rinehart and Winston, Inc., 383
Madison Ave., New York, N.Y. 10017,
1967, 398pp., $9.95.
Practical aspects of applying decision
rules for managing inventory as well as
the rules themselves are presented in
this book.

PRO DUCT IO N PL ANNING
AND CO NTRO L
Donald E. Ramlow and
Eugene H. Wall
Prentice -Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs,
N.J. 07632, 1967, 209pp., $17.95.
This is a how- to -do -it book by two experienced practitioners in the field.
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LO NG -LIVED ASSETS
Thomas R. Dyckman
Wadsworth Publishing Company, Inc.,
Belmont, Calif. 94002, 1967, paperbound, 120pp., $2.95.
This paperback volume contains a brief
treatment of accounting for all types of
long -lived assets, including investments.
LO NG -R ANG E PL ANN ING
IN 4 5 I N DU S T R I A L
CO M P AN I E S
Harold W. Henry
Prentice -Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs,
N.J. 07632, 1967, 162 pp., $19.95.
Brevity and coverage of major topics
commend this book to the executive
who wishes to obtain some knowledge
of planning practice with a minimum of
reading.
MANAGEM ENT CO NTROLS
FO R P R O FE S S I O N AL F I R M S
Reginald L. Jones and
H. George Trentin
American Management Association,
Inc., 135 West 50th St., New York,
N.Y. 10020, 1968, 206 pp., $6.00
(nonmember $9.00).
The application of good management
methods to operations of a professional
firm has been largely neglected by writers. This book, which is clearly written
and illustrated with cases drawn from
the authors' experience, fills a genuine
void in management literature.
FOREIGN T RADE
ACCOUNTING AND
MANAGEMENT HANDBOOK
Jack Goldner
Commerce Clearing House, Inc., 4025
W. Peterson Ave., Chicago, I11. 60646,
1967, 512 pp., $22.50.
American importers and exporters will
find that this is a comprehensive source
book covering procedural aspects of
foreign trade.
FR O M S E L L I N G T O
MANAGING
Guidelines for the Newly Appointed
Field Sales Manager
Ronald Brown
American Management Association, 135
W. 50th Street, New York, N.Y. 10020,
1968, 143pp., $5.00, (nonmember
$7.50).
8

Practical help in making the transition
from salesman to sales manager is offered in this publication.

TEQ UILAP
Ten Quantitative Illusions of Administrative Practices
Clifford J. Maloney
The William- Frederick Press, 55 E.
86th St., New York, N.Y. 10028,
1968, paperbound, 76pp., $3.00.
This spoofing of quantitative approaches to management practice contains
both amusement and useful advice.

PR IC E P O L I C I E S A N D
PR A CT I CE S
A Source of Readings
John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 605 Third
Ave., New York, N.Y. 10016, 1967, 333
pp., $7.50.
Edited by Donald F. Mulvihill and
Stephen Paranka. This collection of
readings on pricing policy and practice
is designed to serve both as a text for
college students and as background for
business executives.

MANAGEMENT USES OF
TH E CO M PUTER
Irving I. Solomon and
Laurence O. Weingart
Harper & Row Publishers, Inc., 49 East
33rd St., New York, N.Y. 10016, 1966,
225 pp., $5.95.
As a "nontechnical book on a technical
subject," this work provides useful view
of the subject for managers who have
not yet been exposed to computers.

THE MANAGEMENT OF
COMPUTER
PR O G R A M M I N G P RO J EC T S
Charles Philip Lecht
American Management Association,
Inc., 135 West 50th St., New York,
N.Y. 10020, 1967, paperbound, 224pp.,
$11.00, (nonmembers $16.50).
This is a plainly written how- to -do -it
manual on the management of computer -based systems programming projects.
The language and descriptions of methods are semi - technical, yet straightforward, and are designed for the practical
user.

CLA RI FY ING T HE
COMP UT E R
Kevin McLoughlin
Fairchild Publications, Inc. 7 E. 12th
St., New York, N.Y. 10003, 1967, 257
pp., $12.50.
The author deals with his subject from
the standpoint of the general executive
rather than from that of an information
systems specialist.

MAG NETIC RECORDING IN
SCIENCE AND INDUSTRY
Reinhold Publishing Corp., 430 Park
Ave., New York, N.Y. 10022, 1967,
453pp., $19.50.
Edited by Charles B. Pear, Jr. Rapidly
increasing usage of magnetic equipment
for many kinds of business records
makes this handbook on capabilities
and limitations of magnetic recording
useful to accountants.

EMPLOY EE B E NEFIT
COST CONTROL
American Management Association, 135
W. 50th St., New York, N.Y. 10020,
1968, paperbound, 31 pp., $2.00, (nonmembers $3.00).
Issued as No. 113 in the series of AMA
Management Bulletins. This publication
contains a series of six short papers on
the general topic.

FINANCIAL REPORT ING
IN CANADA
The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants, 69 Bloor St. E., Toronto
5, Canada, seventh edition, 1967, paperbound, 149pp., $7.00.
This is a compendium of public financial reporting practices in Canada, comparable to the AICPA's Accounting
Trends and Techniques in the U.S.

IN T E R CO L L E G I A T E
B IB LIO G RAPH Y
Grace V. Lind f ors
Intercollegiate Case Clearing House,
Soldiers Field, Boston, Mass. 02163,
1967, paperbound, 784pp., $10.00.
This index is designed for finding cases
available from the Intercollegiate Case
Clearing House in six areas of business
administration, viz.: Control, Finance,
General, Human, Marketing and Ploduction.
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Meeting the Government's
Information Needs
The Congress in considering such legislation requires a management information system. The General Accounting
Office is an important part of that system. GAO is responsible, with limited
exceptions, for auditing all programs,
activities, operations and financial transactions of the Federal Government, and
for making reports to the Congress containing recommendations for greater
economy and efficiency in Government
operations.
GAO assists in drafting legislation,
makes factual investigations for Congressional committees, testifies before
committees, and handles numerous inquiries from Members of Congress as
well as from committees. At the same
time, GAO has far - reaching responsibilities for prescribing accounting principles and standards and assisting the
Federal departments and agencies to develop improved management information systems.
These responsibilities will be increased if the proposed "Legislative Reorganization Act of 1967" becomes law.
The Senate report on the bill reflects
the concern of the Congress for an even
more modern information system than
is now available, one that would provide
each Member of Congress with data
necessary to making informed judgments
particularly in connection with budget
and appropriation questions.
If enacted, this bill would require
GAO to provide information to any
Member or committee on the location
and nature of data available in the various agencies on their programs, activities, receipts and expenditures. In addition, GAO would be required to provide
experts in analyzing or conducting cost effectiveness studies of Government programs.
Another concern of the Congress, as
well as of the public, has been for a
clearer, more informative presentation
of the Federal budget. The President's
Commission on Budget Concepts was
established in March 1967 in recognition of this need. Its sixteen members
included leaders in accounting, corporate finance, investment banking, journalism, education and government.
The President approved the Commission's report. All of the changes which
the Commission recommended that
could be undertaken within the time
available were incorporated in the
budget submitted to the Congress in
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January this year.
The most significant change was the
presentation of a unified budget to replace the three different budgets that
had been used in the past —the administrative budget, the consolidated cash
budget, and the national income accounts budget. These three budgets had
often served as competing measures of
the total scope of Federal financial activity. They could be used together only
with a fairly elaborate reconciliation that
tended to confuse more than enlighten.
The now unified budget is an integrated, comprehensive financial plan designed to serve the several different purposes of a national budget. It places
greater emphasis on the amount of new
appropriations requested of the Congress and the amount becoming available through prior congressional action.
This comprehensive financial plan
presents the receipts, expenditures, and
direct lending activity for the coming
year. Its expenditure account, composed
of the receipts and expenditures, produces in simple form the figures needed
for an analysis of the economic impact
of the budget. Loan disbursements and
repayments are shown separately because they have a different impact on
the economy.
The expenditure account includes the
activities of the social security, highway,
and other trust funds, previously excluded from one of the three budgets.
Trust fund receipts are estimated at $54
billion and trust fund expenditures are
estimated at $47 billion for fiscal year
1969.

A Commission recommendation of
particular interest to accountants is that
budget expenditures and receipts be reported on an accrual rather than a cash
basis. Accrued expenditures — created
when the Government incurs liabilities
to pay for goods and services — represent
a much more accurate measure of the
impact of Government purchasing activities on the economy than obligations
or cash disbursements. The accrual basis will result in expenditures such as
those for construction and hard goods
procurement being reported at the time
of constructive delivery; that is, as the
work actually is performed, rather than
at the time advance, progress, or final
payment is made. In some cases, however, expenditures will be recorded at
the time of physical delivery.
The plan calls for the accrual basis
to be used in the Monthly Treasury
Statement as well as in the budget, thus

providing frequent current reports on
actual expenditures.
Government agencies have been instructed to use accruals on a trial basis
in their overall financial reporting, beginning July 1, 1968. The objective is
to eliminate such impediments as may
arise before the 1971 budget is presented to the Congress in January 1970.
Special groups, including members of
my staff, have been studying the problems that may be encountered in obtaining information on accrued expenditures by Government contractors and
grantees.
The Commission expressed the belief
that it would be highly desirable to have
both the Federal budget and the Federal
sector of the national income accounts
on an accrued expenditure basis. The
Federal sector is used in compiling the
Gross National Product and other economic indicators.
The Commission noted that in a period of rapid defense build -up such as
occurred during fiscal year 1966, the accrual basis would have provided more
timely and accurate information for assessing the economic impact of the
budget than either cash disbursements
as reflected in the budget or deliveries
as recorded in the national income accounts. The Commission recommended
that conversion of the national income
accounts to the accrued expenditure basis be pursued at the same time that
conversion of the budget is being developed.
The implications of the President's
approval of the Commission's recommendations are far - reaching. For those
of us who have worked in the field of
budgeting for a long time, this is an almost unbelievable accomplishment. The
fact that a Commission made up of
members with such diverse backgrounds
agreed almost unanimously on each of
its major recommendations makes the
accomplishment exceptionally remarkable. The changes make the budget a
more meaningful document, one that
will invite more intelligent public debate and congressional review.
Information Needed in Contract
Negotiation
Better information is needed also to
provide greater assurance that prices
paid by the Government for goods and
services are fair and reasonable. The
Government will spend more than $50
billion for goods and services in fiscal
year 1968. A large part will be spent
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Information Needs
In an Era of Change
PLANNING A MODERN MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM IS A FORMIDABLE UNDERTAKING. AS THE RESULT OF
EXPERIENCES —SOME PLEASANT, SOME UNPLEASANT —A BODY OF PRINCIPLES IS BEGINNING TO EMERGE.

Note. Thi s arti cle is based on the author's address
before the 49th Annual International Conference
of the National Association of Accountants in New
Orleans, La., June 17, 1968.
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With today's increasing costs as well
as growing apprehension over the size
and direction of governmental programs
— government and industry more than
ever need to cooperate and to learn from
each other. This need has been expressed by many people and in many
different ways. I will focus here upon
the role which the accounting profession
can play in providing the management
information needed for effective government and for a growing economy.
Management information requirements have risen sharply and will continue to rise as the pace of change accelerates. These requirements must be
met if business enterprises are to remain
competitive and if government is to provide the public services increasingly demanded.
In order for businesses to remain
competitive and to progress, or even, in
some cases, to survive, more information is needed about the environment
in which they operate. More information is also needed on day - to-day operations— internally generated information.
Accurate, complete information —effectively communicated —is the lifeblood of any organization, the basis on
which management must make decisions.
Developments in science and technology are in the forefront of our era of
change. Most industries, notably those
dealing in chemicals, pharmaceuticals

and electronics, are constantly searching
for new products, new discoveries, and
new applications. New products displace
older products. New industries compete
with older industries. Through diversification and mergers, industries intermingle.
In addition to developments in science and technology, other factors have
affected the manner in which business
is conducted and its direction of effort.
Among these are:
—ever- increasing population
-- concentration of people in metropolitan areas
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— better educated people
—more affluence in society
—more leisure time and more discretionary income
— demand for better products and more
services
— increased foreign competition
—new markets and expanded foreign
markets
— growth in government functions and
services
These factors have presented opportunities and problems.
Along with these developments, congestion in metropolitan areas has intensified such problems as urban housing,
job opportunities, transportation, and
air and water pollution.
In the last several years, Congress has
enacted far - ranging legislation designed
to attack these and other social problems, such as:
—the Economic Opportunity Act
—the Housing and Urban Development
Act
— Medicare
—the Elementary and Secondary Education Act
—the Higher Education Act
Industry as well as Government must
have more information to make effective management decisions on the problems which these laws were designed to
attack. To provide effective solutions,
we must know the causes of the problems. We must determine the results
that can be attained by various proffered
solutions, and the relative costs. Benefits measured in terms of social values as
well as in dollars must be included in
the traditional "cost- benefit" formula.
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Meeting the Government's
Information Needs
The Congress in considering such legislation requires a management information system. The General Accounting
Office is an important part of that system. GAO is responsible, with limited
exceptions, for auditing all programs,
activities, operations and financial transactions of the Federal Government, and
for making reports to the Congress containing recommendations for greater
economy and efficiency in Government
operations.
GAO assists in drafting legislation,
makes factual investigations for Congressional committees, testifies before
committees, and handles numerous inquiries from Members of Congress as
well as from committees. At the same
time, GAO has far - reaching responsibilities for prescribing accounting principles and standards and assisting the
Federal departments and agencies to develop improved management information systems.
These responsibilities will be increased if the proposed "Legislative Reorganization Act of 1967' becomes law.
The Senate report on the bill reflects
the concern of the Congress for an even
more modem information system than
is now available, one that would provide
each Member of Congress with data
necessary to making informed judgments
particularly in connection with budget
and appropriation questions.
If enacted, this bill would require
GAO to provide information to any
Member or committee on the location
and nature of data available in the various agencies on their programs, activities, receipts and expenditures. In addition, GAO would be required to provide
experts in analyzing or conducting cost effectiveness studies of Government programs.
Another concern of the Congress, as
well as of the public, has been for a
clearer, more informative presentation
of the Federal budget. The President's
Commission on Budget Concepts was
established in March 1967 in recognition of this need. Its sixteen members
included leaders in accounting, corporate finance, investment banking, journalism, education and government.
The President approved the Commission's report. All of the changes which
the Commission recommended that
could be undertaken within the time
available were incorporated in the
budget submitted to the Congress in
12

January this year.
The most significant change was the
presentation of a unified budget to replace the three different budgets that
had been used in the past —the administrative budget, the consolidated cash
budget, and the national income accounts budget. These three budgets had
often served as competing measures of
the total scope of Federal financial activity. They could be used together only
with a fairly elaborate reconciliation that
tended to confuse more than enlighten.
The now unified budget is an integrated, comprehensive financial plan designed to serve the several different purposes of a national budget. It places
greater emphasis on the amount of new
appropriations requested of the Congress and the amount becoming available through prior congressional action.
This comprehensive financial plan
presents the receipts, expenditures, and
direct lending activity for the coming
year. Its expenditure account, composed
of the receipts and expenditures, produces in simple form the figures needed
for an analysis of the economic impact
of the budget. Loan disbursements and
repayments are shown separately because they have a different impact on
the economy.
The expenditure account includes the
activities of the social security, highway,
and other trust funds, previously excluded from one of the three budgets.
Trust fund receipts are estimated at $ 54
billion and trust fund expenditures are
estimated at $47 billion for fiscal year
1969.
A Commission recommendation of
particular interest to accountants is that
budget expenditures and receipts be reported on an accrual rather than a cash
basis. Accrued expenditures — created
when the Government incurs liabilities
to pay for goods and services — represent
a much more accurate measure of the
impact of Government purchasing activities on the economy than obligations
or cash disbursements. The accrual basis will result in expenditures such as
those for construction and hard goods
procurement being reported at the time
of constructive delivery; that is, as the
work actually is performed, rather than
at the time advance, progress, or final
payment is made. In some cases, however, expenditures will be recorded at
the time of physical delivery.
The plan calls for the accrual basis
to be used in the Monthly Treasury
Statement as well as in the budget, thus

providing frequent current reports on
actual expenditures.
Government agencies have been instructed to use accruals on a trial basis
in their overall financial reporting, beginning July 1, 1968. The objective is
to eliminate such impediments as may
arise before the 1971 budget is presented to the Congress in January 1970.
Special groups, including members of
my staff, have been studying the problems that may be encountered in obtaining information on accrued expenditures by Government contractors and
grantees.
The Commission expressed the belief
that it would be highly desirable to have
both the Federal budget and the Federal
sector of the national income accounts
on an accrued expenditure basis. The
Federal sector is used in compiling the
Gross National Product and other economic indicators.
The Commission noted that in a period of rapid defense build -up such as
occurred during fiscal year 1966, the accrual basis would have provided more
timely and accurate information for assessing the economic impact of the
budget than either cash disbursements
as reflected in the budget or deliveries
as recorded in the national income accounts. The Commission recommended
that conversion of the national income
accounts to the accrued expenditure basis be pursued at the same time that
conversion of the budget is being developed.
The implications of the President's
approval of the Commission's recommendations are far- reaching. For those
of us who have worked in the field of
budgeting for a long time, this is an almost unbelievable accomplishment. The
fact that a Commission made up of
members with such diverse backgrounds
agreed almost unanimously on each of
its major recommendations makes the
accomplishment exceptionally remarkable. The changes make the budget a
more meaningful document, one that
will invite more intelligent public debate and congressional review.
Information Needed in Contract
Negotiation
Better information is needed also to
provide greater assurance that prices
paid by the Government for goods and
services are fair and reasonable. The
Government will spend more than $50
billion for goods and services in fiscal
year 1968. A large part will be spent
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/OCTOBER, 1968

under negotiated contracts where assurance of fair and reasonable prices is
more difficult to obtain than through
competitive procurement procedures.
GAO reports to the Congress on defense contract pricing were instrumental in the adoption of Public Law 87653, better known as the Truth in Negotiations Act of 1962. The GAO had
found numerous instances of increased
costs to the Government because contracting officials had not obtained accurate, complete and current cost or pricing
data while negotiating prices. Subsequently, in reviewing compliance with
the act, GAO found that, although considerable progress had been made, deficiencies continued to exist.
Several changes were recently made
by the Department of Defense in an
effort to overcome these deficiencies.
These changes require:
—that written identification be obtained
from contractors of cost or pricing
data submitted in their proposals,
—that post -award contract audits be requested by the contracting officer if
he has reason to believe that cost or
pricing data used in negotiations may
not have been accurate, complete or
current or may not have been adequately verified, and
—that a clause be included in all noncompetitive firm fixed -price contracts
involving certified cost or pricing
data, granting to Department of Defense representatives access to contractors' records of performance.
To obtain effective compliance with
these regulations, it is necessary that
there be effective cooperation between
Government and industry and that the
regulations be fair to both parties. GAO
plans to make further reviews later this
year at contractors' plants and at various
Government procurement offices to obtain firsthand knowledge of any problems that may be encountered.
Another area, in our opinion, where
improvement in procurement can be
made is in the use of formal estimating
procedures by Government contractors.
In a recent study by the Logistics Management Institute, 19 out of 23 large
defense contractors indicated that their
profits on firm fixed -price contracts —
particularly those negotiated on a competitive basis —were not as satisfactory
as their returns on other types of contracts. Reasons cited were inadequacies
and over - optimism in their cost estimatMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968

ing which, in some cases, resulted in
substantial losses.
The benefits to contractors of having
accurate estimating systems are obvious.
The Government is concerned not only
because of the possible effect on the
prices it pays but also because it has a
major stake in the financial stability of
its contractors.
Impetus for Modern
Information Systems
Business management in the United
States today is looking increasingly to
formalized systems to produce the information necessary to offer alternative
choices as a basis for decision- making,
to operate economically and efficiently,
and to plan for the future. Business
management, of course, always has had
information systems of some type; but
the systems more often than not were
apt to produce reports both fragmented
and untimely as measured by today's
standards. To a large extent, control
was based on personal observations and
intuition.
The development of modern information systems received its impetus
from the capability of communications
systems to transmit large volumes of
data and from the ability of the modern
computer to process that data.
Better information to control expenditures for computers becomes increasingly important as improvements in
computer and communications technology are put to use. The General Accounting Office is currently engaged in
two Government -wide studies relating
to the management and use of the Government's 4,000 computers.
One relates to the use of various concepts ranging from simple batch -type
processing to real -time, multiprogrammed, or time - shared systems which
serve many users. We believe that as
"third generation" and communications
systems grow, the concept of sharing
large data bases and programs should
develop to a significant degree. Only
through the greatest coordination of effort on a Government -wide basis or, at
least, on an inter - agency basis will we
avoid extensive duplication of effort in
designing and redesigning; systems.
In the other study, we are looking
toward ways and means of providing
automatic interchange of data and programs between computer systems, concentrating on specific problems that
have arisen because of a lack of standardization or compatibility.

Use of "Systems Analysis"
The computer, while being an important element of a modern management
information system, is not an exclusive
element. Neither are day -to -day operations the exclusive concern. "Systems
analysis," which may be conducted both
with and without help from the computer, is another essential ingredient.
Systems analysis is intended to provide a basis for choosing between alternative courses of action. It is directed
toward solving specific problems and requires deliberate attention to the nature
of the problem and the objectives to be
achieved. The process involves predictions of results and measurement of performance against plans. It uses "cost benefit" or "cost- effectiveness" comparisons and frequently calls for the use of
mathematical techniques such as model
building, simulation, linear programming and statistical inference. Where
appropriate, it marshals the talents of
all relevant disciplines, which may include engineers, scientists, mathematicians, psychologists, sociologists, economists and accountants.
Experience gained in systems analysis has prompted some firms having an
abundance of managerial skills to apply
this know -how to the development of
management information systems for
others and to the solution of a wide
range of governmental problems. Several companies have made studies for
the State of California on such matters
as a statewide information system, waste
disposal, mass transportation, criminal
justice, and welfare operations.
Role of Business in Solving
Social Problems
These examples point to a subject on
which much discussion is taking place.
That is the proper contribution of private enterprise toward solving the problems of society. More and more, as business magazines are currently reporting,
private enterprise is leaning toward the
conviction that it must assume wider
responsibilities.
The Government is encouraging industry to become involved through its
programs for job training, its Model
Cities program and others, and its attack on air and water pollution. Many
examples could be cited of the manner
in which business has accepted the challenge to participate in the resolution of
these and other problems. What is
needed is acceptance of the challenge.
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One of the greatest contributions that
a good management information system
can make is to provide business management with the time to direct more
of its energies to the unsolved human
and social problems prevalent today.
Staggering Prospects for
Information Technology
Prospects for the future growth of information technology stagger the imagination. Computer speeds are continuing
to increase. Storage capacity has been
enlarged. Processing costs are being reduced, although an organization's capital investment is likely to increase as
the computer's increased capabilities are
put to use. Time - sharing is on the rise.
Moreover, simultaneous use of computers through remote, direct - access terminals is on the rise. Thus, computer facilities are becoming economically
available to an ever - increasing number
of users.
Improvements in communications
technology will further extend their use.
The new generation of satellites expected to be launched in the near future will make channels far cheaper.
Also, the so- called communications pipeline, capable of carrying thousands of
channels, will be able to carry millions
of channels when the communications
laser is finally developed.
But our immediate concern is with
the effect that these and related developments will have on management information systems.
— Reduction in the cost of long- distance
data transmission will make it economically feasible to enter data into
the system at its point of origin,
wherever this may be.
— Improvement in optical character recognition will reduce high input costs,
now a major deterrent to effective use
of information systems as a management tool.
—Lower transmission costs, more use of
random - access files, and increased
computer storage capacity will facilitate development of central information storage files from which data can
be disseminated instantly to any point
in the organization.
—Data will be integrated; i.e., data obtained on a uniform basis from the
same sources will be substituted for
data obtained from various disparate
files.
— "Real time" systems, reflecting transactions as they occur, will become
more prevalent.
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— Direct interrogation of the system
will be possible.
— Output will be printed, displayed, or
oral.
— Technical, legal, economic, and other
information may be stored in the system, although a major obstacle to this
development lies in the difficulty of
classifying the data for recall.
In the words of H. I. Romnes, President of the American Telephone and
Telegraph Company, "The `information
revolution,' if such it be, signifies not
only our new -found capacities to generate, store and retrieve information but
our growing ability to deliver it instantly
where we please."
Management must be prepared to
benefit from these developments. Progressive management will be prepared.
Deficiencies in Present
Information Systems
Much can be done to achieve more
effective use of information technology
in its present state. The two complaints
most frequently heard are that reports
are received too late to be of any real
value and that the information is not
tailored to the users' needs. These complaints indicate that management information systems are not presently meeting the prime reason for their existence
—to provide timely, accurate and reliable information.
Sometimes this inadequacy stems
from failure to ascertain specific information needs of the managers who make
the decisions. Sometimes too much information is provided because of a tendency to include all the data that any onE might need.
It is difficult to generalize. We know
that accountants have devised many
techniques for producing pertinent information to aid in decision making
and control. Consider, for example, the
development of profitability accounting,
responsibility accounting, direct costing,
flexible budgets, cash flow statements,
analyses of return on investment, exception reporting, and many other useful
tools. Opportunities for improvement
can still be found through constructively
analyzing facts, with or without the use
of third - generation computers or advanced communications technology.
A management information system
cannot be forced on people. Team participation will overcome ingrained resistance to change. Managers who perceive the opportunities become strong

advocates for extending the new techniques to their own areas of operations.
Some companies have made progress
in applying advanced information technology to various segments of their operations. For them, the challenge is to
find the key to using the new techniques
effectively across a much wider segment
of their business.
Planning an Action- Oriented
System
Planning a modern management information system is a formidable undertaking. Stakes are high and responsibilities are comparable. As the result of
experiences —some pleasant, some unpleasant—a body of principles is beginning to emerge. Let me list some of the
principles that appear to be most significant:
— Management's needs must be ascertained.
—A knowledge of the environment in
which the business operates, as well
as a knowledge of internal operations,
is required to meet management's
needs.
—All levels of management must be
served and reports must be tailor made to suit the needs of each level.
— Reports must be designed for measuring progress against planned performance.
—Data must be provided to assist in
examining the expected effects of alternative courses of action.
— Reports of "exceptions" or "out -ofline" conditions should be used to
the fullest extent appropriate.
— Reports must be timely for effective
action. Some may be required daily;
others, weekly, monthly or quarterly.
—The information system should be
planned centrally to avoid fragmented, disparate systems that will ultimately have to be redesigned.
If these principles are followed, the
term "action- oriented" can truly be applied.
Planning an information system must
be a concerted effort, reflecting balanced
consideration of the needs of the entire
organization. The team approach is recommended. Dreamers, planners and doers —those concerned with the future as
well as those concerned with the present
—must all be represented.
The Role of the Accountant
Much thought has been given to the
role the accountant can and will play in
directing and operating management inM A N A G E M E N T A C C O U N TIN G /OC TO BE R, 19 6 8

formation systems. My belief is that
management - oriented accountants are
the logical choice to direct and operate
such systems, whether the responsibility
is placed in the controller's organization
or in another group.
But accountants must dedicate themselves to a program of continuous education. What the President said of those
in public service is equally applicable to
us here: "The public servant today
moves along paths of adventure where
he is helpless without the tools of advanced learning."
For the accountant, these tools include a knowledge of how the computer
works; a knowledge of its potential; a
knowledge of communications facilities
and techniques; a knowledge of economics; and a knowledge of systems analysis and the theory of the related mathematical techniques. A knowledge of
psychology and sociology also will help,
particularly as the full potential of a

modern management information system comes to be realized.
I strongly urge management accountants, controllers and financial executives
to take the lead in fostering the development of modern management information systems. The new techniques
are here to stay. Their capabilities and
potentialities cannot be ignored. Competitors, suppliers, customers, labor
unions, and others will benefit from
their use. Consequently, there is no
choice. We must keep pace. We must
learn to use these techniques as a powerful force for effective management and
intelligent planning.
Government, as well as industry, must
use these tools. While government does
not measure results in terms of profit,
it does have a measuring stick- -effectiveness in accomplishing the purposes
for which it exists. And, not unlike industry, cost of operations and effective
use of resources are important factors.

The accountant, with his experience
in traditional information systems, his
aptitude for information analysis and
interpretation, and the opportunity he
has had to obtain a broad picture of his
organization's operations, has many
things in his favor. Unless he takes the
initiative, however, and develops competence in the new tools, he will lose
his opportunity to direct a service that
may become one of the most important
in his organization. Otherwise his role
will diminish in significance.
Those who have attempted to cope
with the challenge posed by the advancements in information technology
have shown a gratifying capacity to do
so. The successful ones have been those
who not only have recognized the necessity to keep abreast, but who also have
been willing to pay the price. While
hard work is required, hard work is to
be expected in any position of responsibility.

Accounting for Exchange Variation
In Local Currency
IT IS JUST AS EASY TO USE LOCAL CURRENCY STANDPOINT. UPDATE YOUR BALANCE SHEET IN LOCAL CURRENCY AND
IF YOUR REPORTS SHOW PROFIT YOU KNOW THAT YOU ARE REALLY MAKING MONEY.

By Robert M. Everett
U.S. and European companies who
maintain subsidiaries or branches in
some countries of Latin America must
generally reflect an additional factor of
cost in their operations prior to entering the results of these subsidiaries in
headquarters books and statements. This
results from the decline of local currency net worth in terms of parent currency, commonly called exchange variation.
The parent company (or the subsidiary working in the parent's currency)
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968

may determine and account for this loss
of value with varying degrees of sophistication. The simplest would be to take
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the net worth as it had been converted
into parent's currency at the beginning
of the accounting period, add the local
currency profit converted into parent's
currency (usually at the average- rate),
and deduct the ending net worth converted at the new exchange rate. Such a
difference would be regarded as unfavorable exchange variation, as in Table 1.
However, if the subsidiary had fixed
assets or hard currency assets or liabilities these must be: (1) deducted from
the ending net worth expressed in local
currency prior to conversion and then
added back to net worth at their actual
15

edict a sudden increase in net worth is
seen
and we see that interim reporting
Table 1
was
meaningless.
Secondly although this
Local
Exchange
Parent
corrects
to
some
extent the balance
rate
currency
currency
1,000,000
sheet (and subsequent allowable depre200 : 1.00
Net worth at 1 / 1
5,000
Plus profit
200,000
250 : 1.00
800
ciation) , the profit and loss statement
in local currency has reflected neither
1,200,000
Total
5,800
the devaluations of net worth due to
12/31
1,200,000
Less net worth at
300 : 1.00
4,000
currency deterioration nor the partial
Exchange variation - unfavorable
1,800
offset of this in local currency appreciation of fixed and other "hard" net
assets. In fact the local currency statehard currency value or (2) updated to
Latin American inflationary countries ments may and do continue showing
current value in local currency before have at times allowed revaluation of profits while the net worth of its individing the ending net worth by the fixed and other "hard" assets and lia- vestment in parent's currency is declinnew exchange rate, as shown below.
bilities in local currency statements, ab- ing. In our example the subsidiary made
Method 1 is commonly used primarily sorbing into capital the net increase in 200,000 L.C. equal to 800 P.C. but the
because it leaves the local currency value, thus decreasing the distortion pro- net worth declined from 5,000 PC to
books undisturbed and consistent with duced by converting local currency net 4,667 PC. On the parent's books they
local reporting customs and legal re- worth into hard currencies. (This also had to record a loss of 333 PC (+ 800
quirements. Either method requires, of allows higher depreciation expense and - 1,133).
course, the maintenance of some sort thus a better chance of recovering reFor the company whose primary reof extra record of the present real value placement cost before taxable income). porting for management is in parent's
of fixed assets and other accounts that However, few have adopted a regular currency this may still be acceptable, for
do not devalue in terms of parent's cur- annual revaluation. In most countries it the management looks only at the parrency with the decline in the exchange is sporadic or non - existent. When a re- ent currency statement to guide his
valuation is called for by government operation. Here it sees exchange loss
rate.
reflected and deducted from profit, and
its pricing policies, buying policies, cusLocal
Exchange
tomer terms, credit policies, etc., can
Parent
rate
currency
currency be formed in the orientation of its parMethod 1:
ent currency statements.
Net worth at 1 / 1
In other subsidiaries where manage400,000
200 : 1.00
Fixed assets
2,000
ment is primarily local or in acquisi600,000
200 : 1.00
Other -net
3,000
tions where it may be entirely local or
1,000,000
Total
200 : 1.00
5,000
most important of all in local compaPlus Profit
200,000
250 : 1.00
800
nies without a hard currency reference
point at all in their accounting practices,
1,200,000
Total
5,800
400,000
Less: Fixed assets
it is imperative that this phenomenon of
exchange variation be recognized. The
800,000
Exposed net worth
3 0 0 : 1.00
2,667
foreign company may note with some
Plus: Fixed assets
2,000
degree of surprise the pricing of the local company reporting local currency
Total
4,667
profits while it unknowingly decapitalExchange variation
1,133
izes itself and eventually cannot replenish either its inventory or its fixed plant.
Method 2:
The
local company may recognize its
Net worth at 1 / 1
decapitalization and try various partial
400,000
200 : 1.00
Fixed assets
2,000
600,000
200 : 1.00
means to include in its costs a factor for
Other -net
3,000
devaluation. Or it may, if really astute,
1,000,000
200 : 1.00
Total
5,000
conclude
that it takes a 15% or 20%
Plus: Profit
200,000
250 : 1.00
800
or 25% return on investment during the
year (in local currency) just to end up
1,200,000
Total
5,800
Less: Net worth at 12/31
the year with the same net worth in
400,000
Fixed assets
real
terms. The managers of local and
Plus: Revaluation
subsidiary companies are not unaware.
100 x 400,000
200,000
But they are less than adequately served
200
by the accounting profession in this
600,000
Total
300 : 1.00
2,000
Other net
800,000
300 : 1.00
2,667
awareness.
It is possible to account for exchange
1,400,000
Total
4,667
variation in local currency without ever
Exchange variation
1,133
preparing a parent currency statement.
It is possible to enter in the cost account
16
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of exchange variation on local currency
statements the loss suffered due to currency devaluation and arrive at net income in local currency exactly equivalent to that which the parent would arrive through its net worth conversion
and reconciliation in parent's currency.
And it is not even necessary to have a
parent to do this. But it is necessary to
choose a (relatively) hard currency. To
make this more broadly applicable then
we will change from PC (parent's currency) to HC (hard currency).
Looked at from the standpoint of the
parent, the subsidiary lost money because its net worth (in H.C.) declined
during the period. Looked at from the
local point of view then the company
must charge profit with an amount sufficient to maintain the value of its net
worth (in H.C.) and then enter only
the remaining profit, or loss if thus be
so, into its net worth.
This would be a charge to profit
equivalent to the exchange variation
suffered or in our example 10000 x the

the revaluation directly to the profit itself (rather than the net worth) in order to arrive at the correct net income.
Profit before exchange variation is
then convertible to hard currency at the
average rate before its revaluation, and
at the closing rate after its revaluation.
The profit after exchange variation
then passes to net worth, and the net
worth reconciliation in local currency is
as follows:
Net worth at 1 / 1
Revaluation of N.W.
Profit

1,000,000
500,000
(300,000)

Net worth at 12/31

1,200,000

Now the example must be broadened
to include the refinement of recognizing,
as we did in hard currency, the fact that
the entire net worth does not really devalue, only the part not covered by fixed
assets or other net hard currency assets.
Returning to the parent company's
selection of Method 1 or Method 2 in
handling fixed assets, we see that it is
necessary to select Method 2; fixed and
HO
other hard net assets must be revalued
x the in local currency to maintain their
beginning net worth plus
5
value despite currency devaluation. For
profit.
Following this first example (where this purpose it is an acceptable conventhere were no fixed or other hard net tion to assign an equivalent hard (paassets) this is easily shown in Table 2. rent) currency value to each fixed asset
The exchange variation thus calcu- as it is purchased. Memorandum books
lated converted at the ending rate will on fixed assets are then maintained and
give us the same result as our exchange depreciation in hard currency amounts
calculated against hard currency first
variation is H.C., i.e. L.C. 540,000
cost. Both hard currency first cost and
300 = H.C. 1,800:
hard currency prior years' depreciation
are converted to local currency for bal200,000
Profit before exchange variation
Revaluation of profit before E. V. 40,000 ance sheet purposes and exchange varia(540,000)
Exchange variation
tion calculation. In addition, the excess
of
current year depreciatiori, as con(300,000)
Profit after exchange variation
verted from hard currency, and the reguThis loss of L.C. 300,000 would be lar local depreciation must be charged
the same as our loss in H. C. of 800- to operations.
Considering the 400,000 fixed asset
1,800 or H.C. (1,000), i.e. (300,000)
value in our previous example as net
300 = (1,000).
As is seen, it is necessary to revalue book value and disregarding for the
the profit from average to closing rate moment the current period depreciain order to arrive at the correct exchange tion, we refine our exchange variation
variation, and it is necessary to credit as follows:

0
Z

Table

2
LOCAL

CURRENCY

Rate change

Profit

1/ 1

1,000,000

200,000
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=

Net worth at

1 / 1 to 12/31
300 - 200
200
300 - 250
250

=

Unadjusted

Exchange
variation
500,000

40,000
540,000

fixed assets ( 300 — 200 x 400,000)
200
200,000; and as before:
Net worth
Profit before exchange variation

500,000
40,000

Total
Fixed assets E.W.

540,000
200,000

Net exchange variation

340,000

Net exchange variation of 340,000
divided by 300 equals 1,133 which, as
we saw, was the correct exchange variation in hard currency considering fixed
assets.
Hard currency receivables and pay ables are revalued in the same manner
in local currency with the offset to exchange variation. Thus both the balance
sheet and the profit and loss statement
reflect real values.
The revaluation of fixed assets viewed
as a net book revaluation must be accomplished in two parts to maintain correct first cost values for depreciation
purposes. The first cost and the depreciation must be revalued separately.
As said before, after having revalued
prior years depreciation reserve we must
create a current year reserve in addition
to that provided by normal local currency depreciation. This is done by calculating hard currency depreciation on
hard currency first cost, converting it to
local currency, deducting normal local
currency depreciation and charging the
excess to depreciation expense with a
credit to current year's depreciation reserve.
Thus we have updated our balance
sheet in local currency, have correctly
shown our real profit in local currency
and have provided for equipment replacement in local currency.
Now if our reports show that we are
making money, we are really making
money. And the parent can convert (at
the closing rate) exchange variation as
shown on local reports and net income
as shown on local reports, and come out
to exactly the same figure as those calculated in hard currency.
Why does it work? Because it is
arithmetically the same to make your
calculations from the hard currency
viewpoint that the value of the exposed
net worth declined as it is to look at it
from the local currency standpoint and
charge profit with the amount necessary
to maintain the net worth value. Net
worth at the beginning of the period
and profits earned during the period are
viewed as hard currency debts.
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Integrated Information Systems
and the Corporate
Controllership Function
THE ACCOUNTING ORIENTED EXECUTIVE IS A LEADING CONTENDER FOR DIRECTOR OF MANAGEMENT INFORMATION.
TODAY'S CONTROLLER NEEDS MASTER OPERATIONS RESEARCH TO RETAIN HIS EFFECTIVENESS.

In the typical industrial corporation
operating in the business environment
existing in this country today, the controller has headed the only corporate
function that regards the generation of
useful and valuable information as its
primary goal. The controller has achieved
his present status in the industrial
hierarchy by serving as the manager of
the accounting and financial information system. In supplying pertinent accounting and financial information, the
controller has become an important and
respected member of the management
team.
During recent years, however, improvements and innovations in information technology, namely, electronic
data processing, have challeged this role
of the corporate controller as the provider of management information.
These new technical innovations have
made possible the development of a
computerized integrated information system. This integrated system is designed
to include financial as well as non -financial information and thus would serve
to satisfy all the information needs of
the firm. As a result of the implementation of a system of this nature, the accounting information system would
cease to exist as a separate entity.
This article considers the potential
impact of this system on the corporate
controllership function and whether or
not a proposed new "information department" which would satisfy all information needs of management should
be headed by the controller.
The general purpose of this article is
18

to examine the concept of a computerized, integrated information system, its
impact on the organizational structure
of a typical industrial firm, and its potential effect on the corporate controllership function.
The Concept of
Modern Controllership
In today's industrial concern, a broad
concept of the controllership function
requires the modern controller to assume
a wide range of activities and responsibilities. He is responsible for the design
and implementation of a sound accounting and financial information sys-

i
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tem which incorporates profit planning,
responsibility accounting, exception reporting and profit contribution accounting as integral and essential components.
The system should also employ various
accounting techniques such as standard
costs, flexible budgets, and return on
investment analysis —all of which play
important roles in meeting the informational needs of management.
The integration of all these concepts
and techniques into an accounting and
financial information system make possible the performance of traditional
custodial or financial accounting, decision accounting and performance accounting.' The financial information
system administered by the controller is
perhaps the oldest, best developed and
most important of the various information systems that currently exist within
the corporate framework? In the development of his financial information
system, the controller has come to rely
more and more on the use of the computer.
Information Needs
of Management
It is readily conceded that the controller, in most instances, has been successful
in the design and implementation of the
financial information system. However,
it is now becoming more and more apparent, that management's overall informational needs cannot be satisfied by the
output of this system alone. Certainly,
'Ro be rt Beyer, Profitability Accorntinp for Planning and Control, Ronald Pre ss, New York, 1963,
pp. 23 -24.
s John Dearden and F. Warre n McFarlan, Management Information Systems, Richard D. Irwi n,
Homewood, Illinois, 1966, p. 45.
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financial information is vital to the successful operation of the enterprise, but
there is also need for pertinent information concerned with personnel and
logistics. Harvard's John Dearden, a
recognized authority on information systems, maintains that there are three
major information systems in a typical
company, namely, financial, personnel
logistics, and a varying, indefinite number of minor systems —where a minor
system is one that is confirmed to a
limited part of the organization .3
Thus, it can readily be seen that these
systems must satisfy a broad spectrum
of management needs — financial and
non - financial, current and futuristic as
well as historic —that are needed for
planning and controlling the enterprise.
These systems must provide information
on not only the financial aspects of a
company's operation, but also on the
social, economic, political and technical
climate in which plans must operate, as
well as information on competitors and
non - financial information on internal
operations.4
In addition, many professionally
trained managers have a tendency to
utilize the analytical procedures of operations research. As one author has
stated:
"OR's ability to furnish new types of
valuable information through mathematical and statistical techniques are
increasing our ability to abstract, analyze, and summarize information in a
meaningful fashion. OR is not only
furnishing new types of information
but also is demanding new types of information. The operations researcher
often needs data not readily available in
most businesses today, and this lack of
what he considers pertinent data triggers frequent complaints." 5
Thus, it seems apparent that the time
when accounting and finance was "the
information system" of a company is
fast becoming history. Every indication
points to a trend toward "an integrated
information system," of which finance
is only one segment. Accounting data
are fast becoming a by- product of or at
least a joint product of information
generated for other than accounting
purposes.6
John Dearden, "H ow to Organize Information
Syst ems.' Harvard Business Review, March — April,
1965, p 69.
6 Harold Koontz and Cyril O'Donnell, Principles
of Management, McGraw -Hill, New York 1964,
p. 561.
5 T . W. McRae, "T he I nformat i on M an: The Accountant and Information Technology," The Accountant, June 22, 1963, p. 811.
K. E. Tiltges. "U se of Accounting Dat a i n Decision M aking." Management Services, November —
December, 1966, p. 26.
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Concept of an Integrated
Information System
In the past, the rapid collection and
dissemination of relevant information
has been extremely difficult to achieve.
Because of this, corporations have had to
decentralize the information gathering,
collection, calculation and utilization
processes, and to place these activities
as close as possible to the point of ultimate utilization?
Due to recent innovations in computer utilization and information technology, the concept of a decentralized
information system is fast becoming
obsolete. As a result of the new capability, "The entire information system of a
corporation, regardless of its size, can be
integrated or combined into one giant
system from which each person or each
level of management and supervision in
each function can get all the information he could possibly want when he
wants it." 8
This total information system has
often been referred to as the "total system concept." Many authors have attempted to define this concept in many
different ways, so many, in fact, that
the term has become almost meaningless.
Be that as it may, the concept does
recognize the crucial interrelationships
between the information system, the
decision system, and the organizational
structure of the firm. Due to this interrelationship an overall information system would unite all existing subsystems
in the company into a single integrated
system that would provide all data for
all the needs of management and operations.
In this article, "total systems" will
refer to an integrated information system, one in which
"...the business is considered as one
unit and all basic information from all
departments of the business is processed
in as many ways as is practical and is
then used by all levels of management." 9
The underlying concept applicable to
this type system is the utilization of a
"data bank" —many files of information
which contain both current and historical data. These data elements will enter
the system only once, simultaneously
with their creation.
Gerald G. Fisch, "T he Integrated Management
Organiz ation," Financial Executive, May, 1964,
p. 13.
6
Fisch, op. cit., p. 14.
E. Jerome McCarthy and J. A. McCarthy, Integrated Data Processing Syst ems, John Wiley &
Sons, Inc., New York, 1966, p. 10.
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Mr. Dearden of Harvard, scoffs at the
total system concept, but favors the development of a "data base," which he
would use to store data that will be used
in the three major information systems
in a typical company and an indefinite
number of minor systems. Mr. Dearden
believes that the total information system of a company is just too large and
all- encompassing to be welded into a
single unit.lo
Having discussed the concept of an
integrated information system, let us
now consider a proposed "information
department."
The Information Department
The concept of the single, integrated,
computerized information system is very
closely associated with the need for a
separate information department.
The establishment of a separate and
distinct information department would
signify the emergence of a new management function in the business. This new
function consisting of the design and
operation of the business information
system would rank equally with the traditional functions of production, sales
and finance.
Proposed Structure. As to the proposed structure of this new department,
considerable conjecture is necessary.
In the past few years, several articles
have considered this question, however,
it is the opinion of this writer that they
are inconclusive because they are really
considering an EDP department, instead
of the all— embracing concept of a department responsible for "all information." However, two authors, namely,
W . Thomas Porter and Dennis E.
Mulvihill, writing in Management Services, do consider a possible organization
structure for the implementation of the
"all- inclusive" information system concept. 11
These authors suggest an organization
structure which would provide for three
major areas within the department,
namely systems design and development,
data processing, and control. The manager of each of these groups would report to a top executive who might be
designated director of information systems. He, in turn, should report to the
chief executive officer.
Staffing the Department. The staffing
of the information department will have
ro Dearden, Harvard Business Review, p. 68.
rl W. Thomas Porter and Dennis E. Mulvihill
"Organization for Effective Information Flow,"
Management Services, November — December, 1965,
pp. 16 -17.
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to embrace a wide range of disciplines
in order to perform the tasks assigned
to it. It appears that considerable technical talent will be required, particularly
operations researchers and systems and
procedures specialists.
The systems men will have a crucial
role in the development and continued
improvement of the information system.
The programmers and computer specialists will play a vital role in the operation
of the system. Thus, these three groups
of specialists will certainly be a part of
the information department.
The operations researcher's ability to
provide valuable information for planning and control, his demands for new
types of data and his concern with information flows indicate that he will be
an important part of the department.
Since accounting information will be
provided by means of the integrated
system, it seems assured that controllership personnel will be utilized in staffing
the new department.
T. W. McRae is a foremost advocate
of merging OR, systems and procedures,
EDP and accounting:
"Since the Second World War three
departments have been groping, quite
independently, towards a common goal.
The goal is an efficient management information service and the departments
concerned are the accounting department, the organization and methods
department, and the OR department. It
is my proposition that we should consolidate these three departments into a
single "information department." Each
of these three disciplines could benefit
greatly by a closer contact with the
other two." 12
In addition to the above mentioned
disciplines, mathematicians, statisticians,
and industrial engineers will probably be
included in the group. Likewise, economists would seem necessary, to analyze
and forecast the external economic environment, and to perform internal
economic analysis of the business.
The Information Department's
Place in the Corporate
Organization
As of the present time there is a
trend in corporate organization toward
the separation of EDP from the controllership function. This trend is empha.sized by the adoption of the "administrative services" organization
concept in a number of large companies.
If the present trend continues, there
39

M c R a e , The Accountant, p. 811.
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is every likelihood that the administrative services division will probably include the information department.
Certainly, most of the talent needed
to staff the new department is already
included in the administrative group.
The chances for the new information
department being located in the accounting function under the aegis of
the controller seem slight. The factors
that resulted in the placing of initial
EDP installations under the controller
are not present in the case of an integrated system. "Justification" of the system cannot be accomplished in terms
of clerical savings.
All the facts indicate that the development of an integrated system will be
a tremendously expensive endeavor.
Management will have to decide if the
prospect of improved information is
worth the huge cost involved. Certainly,
the controller can and should be of
assistance; however, the planning and
development of the system is primarily
a technical effort which will be spearheaded by the systems men and the OR
personnel. Therefore, the activity in all
probability will be performed outside
the controllership function.
In 1961 the American Management
Association issued a report which considered the question of organizing for
a new corporate information function
in terms of the "administrative services"
concept. One of the authors in this report summed up the report's position
in this way:
"As we consider the requirements of
data handling and information development in terms of organization structure,
systems, and tools, I believe that we will
recognize conditions which... call for
radical changes in organization structure— changes which will ultimately lead
to the establishment of a corporate
function, headed by a top management
official, with clearly defined responsibility for the management and control of
all data - handling and information development activities throughout the
company —the vice president /director of
administration." 1 3
Richard Sprague, in his book, Electronic Business Systems, refers to the above
cited report and stresses the potential
of the proposed new function. He gives
his endorsement to its independent
status. In rendering -his opinion, Mr.
is L io ne l E . Griff ith , " A n O u t l in e of O r g a n iz a t io n
f o r t h e V ic e P r e s id e n t / D i r e c t o r o f A d m in is t r a t io n , "

Shaping a New Concept of Administrative Management ( A M A M a n a g e m e n t Report No. 56 ),
A m e r ic a n M a n a g e m e n t
1961, p . 30 .

As so ciat io n ,

New

Yo r k ,

Sprague presents various arguments
favoring the placing of the information
system under the controller or financial
vice president such as the fact that he
is already responsible for an accounting
information system and is near the top
executive. However, he discounts all
arguments in favor of this alignment
with the following statement:
"The vice president for finance has
one bias, and that is financial bias. His
job and that of the controller under him
calls for tight purse strings and budgetary control. The major focus of his
attention probably should not be quite
the same as the chief executive officer's.
This is not to say that all financial vice
presidents have too narrow a viewpoint
The point is that the information
...
system in the corporate structure in
which the financial vice - president is interested is only part of the overall OLRT
system. A new vice - president of administrative services will design systems and
provide information services for the
financial vice president equally as well
as for the vice president of operations
or sales or chief executive officer." 1 4
Based on the above analysis, the most
probably development is that more and
more companies will create an administrative services division in their organization. The technical personnel assigned
to this division will plan and develop
the system, and the new information
department will evolve within the administrative services division. The new
department head, in all probability, will
be called the "director of management
information," and will report to the
vice president of administration who, in
turn, will report to the chief executive.
Speculation as to the future would tend
to indicate that the director of management information will exercise more influence and enjoy more prestige than
the controller devoid of his information
providing role.
Future of the
Corporat e Controller
It seems to be fairly evident that the
trend will be toward the development
of an information department, separate
and apart from the financial function.
This is not to say, however, that the
accounting- oriented executive should
not be considered as a leading contender
for the post of director of management
information. There are several reasons
for this. First, an individual trained in
R ic h a r d E . S p r a g u e , Electronic Business Sy s.
tems, R o n a ld P r e s s C o . , N e w Yo r k , 1 9 6 2 , p . 15 7 .
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the controller's department in all prob- ment, the accountant may be bewildered
ability has acquired a broad knowledge by OR models and engineering studies.
of all phases of the business activity. In addition, the technical specialists
Second, he has gained wide experience tend to view accounting as a necessary
in the process of gathering, interpreting evil and its practitioners with condescenand presentation of both financial and sion.
Therefore, it seems that the attributes
non - financial information to management. Third, he has been responsible of the accountant for heading the infor, and closely associated with the most formation department and for assuming
highly developed information system in other important and responsible roles
the company, namely the accounting in the new information function are offinformation system. Fourth, he has be- set by these problems.
come familiar with EDP and even
though his technical training is limited, Observations and Conclusions
The development of an integrated inhe does have some understanding of the
capabilities, methods and problems as- formation system administered by an
sociated with this new technology. information department separate from
Therefore, it would appear that this the accounting function will be a draaccounting - oriented individual would be matic organizational change. This will
very likely cause repercussions throughgiven a high priority.
In making a closer analysis, however, out the entire structure of the enterprise.
certain problems seem to be apparent. However, it will not mark the beginning
Due to a lack of training in operations of the end of the controllership function.
research, there is the possibility of a It is not necessary for controllers to pull
breakdown in communications. In dis- the new information department into
cussions with operating research person- the financial wing of the business in
nel, statisticians, and industrial engin- order to assure the survival of their
eers who comprise a significant number function, as has been suggested by some
of the staff in the information depart- writers. If this were so, the future would

indeed look dark to management accountants, in view of the probability
that the information department will be
separate from the controllership function.
It does seem likely that the controller's status will decline somewhat
as managers are able to shift their dependence on him for information to the
new department. His prestige will probably decline further as he inevitably is
forced into greater financial and accounting specialization. Offsetting this, however, as far as the accountant in industry
is concerned, will be the development of
new opportunities for "management information specialists" in the new information department. If the management
accountant can grasp the challenge and
opportunity of operations research and
combine the power of the OR approach
with his own special insight and experience, he can perhaps rise to the position
of "Director of Management Information," and achieve a degree of status
and prestige in the corporate hierarchy
never achieved by even the most aggressive, knowledgeable and powerful
controller.

A Computer Dilemma
TO RETAIN LEADERSHIP, ACCOUNTANTS SHOULD RELEARN THEIR SKILL AS APPLIED TO COMPUTER OPERATIONS.

By James J. Molinelli
A new group or class of specialists is invading the management team. The
computer with its unlimited processing
capabilities is the incubator for the new
breed. This group is approaching managerial problems with higher mathematics, statistics and simulation, and are
using a host of modern devices in an
attempt to bridge the extremes and nucleus of a new science in management.
They would like to replace accounting
with an electron and the science of costing with highly sophisticated mathematical techniques. It is questionable
whether they are trying to help manageMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968
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nlent or themselves, for they are widening the gap of communication between
the scientist and the business executive
by the use of modern processing techniques.
Many of our accounting executives
attained their positions through acumen
and skill, and with an understanding of
the potential of these modern devices,
could do a better job than their would be successors. These executives have accepted the computer with enthusiasm,
but they cannot fully support what they
do not understand. To refuse to accept
a computer today is to adopt a label of
retrogression.
Continued on Page 25
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Information Technology Applied to
Profit Planning
IMPROVED TECHNIQUES, UPDATED WITH INNOVATIONS IN METHODOLOGY, EFFECTIVELY INTERACT WITH AND
SUPPORT LONG -RANGE PLANNING FUNCTIONS.

By Frank M. Mastromano
Needs for more comprehensive reporting on the projected and actual results
of management decisions have created
the demand for more sophisticated and
effective financial information and planning systems. There recently has been
evidence of the introduction of both
new techniques and equipment.
Two distinct classifications can be
made of the functions within the financial management area in regard to information processing. The first includes
operations such as accounts receivable,
accounts payable, payroll, and general
ledger accounting. The second pertains
to long -range budgeting and profit planning activities. In the day to day activities, the application of new methods
and machines have had a marked effect,
and methods have materially changed
since the advent of information technology. Relatively speaking, the same
information technology has had little
impact on the long -range financial activities.
In the near future more attention
will be given to the place that information technology will have in the financial planning functions. Modeling has
been a widely used tool in many specializcd business activities.
A planning model accomplishes the
manipulation of the total body of information, once it is organized and quantified. It consists of the mathematical relationships which describe, to a sufficient
degree of approximation, the behavior
of the physical enterprise. The model
does not need to be mathematically sophisticated. It can effectively fulfill its
22

purpose through basic algebraic expressions. Structuring the relationships into
mathematical terms requires an analytical review of the functions and operations of the business in conceptual
terms which otherwise might not be
considered or attempted.
The intent in this article is not to
delve into the intricacies of specific
techniques on the mathematics of a financial system. Rather the concepts,
nature and potential of a technological
development are reviewed in broad perspectives for its potential application as
a tool available for the execution of the
financial function of profit planning.
Text books and trade periodicals are
available as excellent sources for technical specifications and descriptions.
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Evaluating Alternatives
Planning the operation of a business
enterprise implies the implementation
of executive decisions to achieve the
goals established. This implementation
ultimately takes place in the face of
considerable future uncertainty and in
the presence of enormously complex interrelationships among the many factors
which affect the conduct of the business. It, therefore, becomes increasingly
necessary for the financial function to
put at the disposal of management a
means of assessing the consequences of
possible strategic and tactical decisions
on the profits and financial position of
the organization before they are put into
effect.
Increasing in importance to the financial members of a company is the
ability to develop improved means to
facilitate the evaluation of alternatives
in establishing the profit plan. This consideration is compounded as business
becomes more diversified. A problem
with most actual profit planning decisions making is that the decisions are
often based on data gathered from the
past while the decisions relate to the
future.
Effective financial planning also implies the possibility of measuring whether or not the defined goals have been
achieved. If the goals have not been
achieved, it is then necessary and important to determine in which major
area or areas of the business the breakdown has occurred.
Operations research techniques existing outside financial activities have a
high potential for payout in the financial planning area. Techniques as modMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /OCTOBER, 1968

eling, long thought to be the tool of the
physical scientist, should receive greater
acceptance by financial management of
business concerns.
Financial Planning Objectives
A company's financial planning effort
is a dynamic operation. Presenting the effect of the proposed operating decisions
on both the income statements and balance sheet provides a comprehensive
preview of the financial position of the
organization. The interrelationship between the financial results of operations
shown on the income statement and the
financial position as reflected on the balance sheet require extensive clerical effort and management evaluation to reconstruct projected results for a change
in one or more elements.
It may be well to compare what financial planning should attempt to accomplish and the improved effectiveness
possible by utilizing a planning model.
The majority of the definitions posed
can be reduced to six basic objectives as
follows:
1. Developed the financial and profit
objectives.
2. Projected economic conditions and
their effect.
3. Posing alternative courses of action
to achieve the goals established.
4. Analyzing the consequences of the
alternatives.
5. Deciding on the programs which are
most feasible within the corporate
resources.
6. Establishing the measurement methods to evaluate progress achieved.
Timely Evaluation
A prerequisite necessary to providing
timely information for evaluation is predetermining the relationships which exist in the organization and operations.
While this is basic requirement for programming a model for a computer, the
principles to some degree can be functionally applied by manual methods.
Besides the capability of experimenting before the fact with decisions which
will affect the profitability of the business, it is essential that this experimentation be feasible on a time scale whereby the executive can be appraised of the
projected results before he is required
to take action. While manual methods
cannot attempt to match the speed or
sophistication of computer systems, the
basic concepts can be employed effectively.
It is quite possible to underestimate
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968

Important in establishing the quantithe results which can be achieved
tative
structure of a planning model is
through innovations in manual meththe
objective
analysis of the relationods. In a company's training program of
business simulation, the decisions of the ships of goals and proven abilities, politeams participating in a business game cies and desires of management, methwere submitted to the administrative ods and operations. If they are not
group, processed manually, and the re- realistic and carefully defined, the results returned to the teams in a matter sults, projections, and evaluations of alof minutes. Many of the participants ternatives will not be of any real value
assumed a computer was employed to to the profit planning function.
process the data. This illusion was the
result of a well- organized and efficient Flexibility
sequential calculation of the decisions
In order to achieve maximum effecsubmitted.
tiveness of the planning system, it is esStructuring mathematical formulas
sential that it be flexible. The feature of
and testing their reliability can result
flexibility assures that the system is cain a significant lower investment when pable of handling a wide range of cirthe computer is employed and the decumstances without requiring expensive
velopment of more sophisticated methrestructuring when the circumstances
ods to evaluate alternative decisions bechange. The submission and creation
come possible. The time scale can be
of object- oriented plans should be recompressed so that the accountant can quired so that each plan to achieve a
see within a matter of minutes the re- particular objective becomes an altersults of experimental alternatives. The
relationship between the computer and nate.
The flexibility of the systems extends
financial analyst or decision maker is the into several areas. The functional relalink representing the interplay of man tionships, which reflect the behavior of
and machine which is the ultimate goal
the business, should be described in as
of management information systems.
many terms as are relative or practical.
For example, warehousing costs could
Quantitative Evaluation
be related to sales, cost of sales or the
A formal quantitative approach to finished -goods inventory. In this way,
evaluate alternatives and the relation- the combined net effect of the interactships of various elements, as they affect ing relationships and the results of a
the profit plan, enhances the reliability number of alternative actions can be
factor. Relationships between the vari- assessed.
The process by which the variables,
ous factors structured in the model and
considered relevant when the model was their relationships and the effect of the
formulated are not overlooked in sub- profit plan are formulated, specified,
sequent evaluation of specific decisions. collected and put into the planning
The emotional bias which could be in- model covers the entire span of certitroduced at the moment of decision is tude.
Established facts relate to the data
virtually eliminated. Rather, the relevant factors introduced by human judg- which can be defined and measured with
ment are brought into perspective with reasonable accuracy. The costs of maone another through the pre - established terials and labor are values which can
relationships. The model assumes the be stated in precise amounts for the
nature of an efficient tool containing re- most part.
Intangibles, although they cannot be
lationships structured by the analyst
through management evaluation and measured or easily quantified, can be ininto which the judgment variables are cluded. The relationships which fall
into the intangibles category can be deintroduced.
The development of the meaningful scribed quantitatively so long as they
set of relationships among a carefully are very closely related or similar to
selected set of variables is the major those which management establishes in
step. The model should not be allowed the traditional development of a decito develop into an unmanageable struc- sion. Inferences can be drawn from past
ture. The designer must not get carried experience such as customer attitudes
away with the esoteric aspects of model- and buying habits.
Unknown elements, where past expeing, seeking mathematical elegance in a
situation essentially based on estimating rience provides very little information,
and projecting the uncertainties and as- can be introduced for evaluation to provide the means to determine the probasumptions.
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ble range of effect. An unknown is just
that, and while it is true that a financial
analyst cannot make a known out of an
unknown, it is possible for the experienced accountant to generally assess the
limits or ranges within which the unknown may have an effect on the
planned profits. This will not give any
assurance that the results will take
place, but does allow the analysis to be
projected which is the best that can be
attempted or expected under the circumstances.
Establishing the Relationships
and Variables
Structuring a profit planning model
requires the determination of and the
provision for considering independently
the variables upon which the calculations will be performed and the information projected. The variables which
management will be permitted to enter
into the model and the manner of expressing the variables when assigning
the values to the variables must be established. Variables can be specified either in absolute amounts or as related to
other variables. The relationships and
their formats should be documented.
Management, aware of these relationships, is able to apply experience and intuition in the specification of the input
to the model.
The development of the long -range
planning model is the attempt to formalize some of the intricate relationships for incorporation into the system.
This process requires operational experience that may or may not be available.
If it is not available it can be developed
gradually. The system is planned for the
time when management can specify to

the system only the values of those operational variables which are under their
direct control. This means that management will make the basic decision of
how its resources shall be allocated to
the various business functions. The system will then respond by computing the
most likely outcome of the decisions in
terns such as sales market share, profitability, cash position, and other pertinent elements.
On e of t h e important contributions
of t he system is the determination of
the sensitivity of the business to changes
in the values of various operational variables. It is vital that management be

informed of the possible consequences
which might arise from a particular operational variable departing significantly
from its expected value. This knowledge
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can effectively assist in assessing the risk
in achieving the profit plan.
The development of this long -range
profit planning model concept is concerned with direct analysis of the behavior and effect of outside factors such
as competition, population, and the economic climate. The main requirement
for an effective planning tool is that the
relationships possess the maximum degree of realism possible. As a greater degree of realism is achieved, the reliability
of the analysis and strategic projections
is increased, and the planning model
can become more effective in evaluating
the expected results under a given set
of circumstances.
Constructing the Equations
The sample equations described are
simplified examples of the way in which
the formulas can be structured in the
model. The actual mathematical equations can be as complex as necessary or
as sophisticated as the operations demand.
After the relationships are established
and the formulas constructed, the values
of the variables as determined by management are arranged in a specific order. The accumulation of the values for
each variable which need to be entered
only once is referred to as a data matrix.
All formulas which require the value of
a particular variable will obtain it from
the one location in the matrix where
that value has been placed. The description includes consideration of the degree
of detail structured in the equations.
The first formula discussed will calculate the value of total sales dollars by
using the values for total units and average selling price. In this formula the
analysis of alternatives allows only a
change in the total units or the average
selling price.
S = UP
Sales = Units sold x Selling price

To obtain greater ability to evaluate
alternatives, it may be desirable to enter
the values for the variables by product
line. The evaluation of alternatives can
now consider various mixes of units by
product line, and changes in the selling
price of one or several product lines:
Sp =

U PPP

Sa l e s b y p r o d u c t = U n i t s so l d b y p r o d u c t
X Se l l i ng pr i c e b y p r o d u c t

In the summation of the dollar sales
to arrive at total sales dollars, the effect
of a change in one or several product

lines on the total sales would be provided:
S = Spl +

Sp2 + � S p 3 • � . . . . � .

Total sales = Sales of produ ct line 1 +
Sa le s o f p rod u ct lin e 2 + Sa le s o f p rod u ct
line 3, etc.

The units by individual product line
and the respective selling price could be
further defined by period when entered
into the matrix. Wh en the values for
the variables are entered by period, a
change can be made in any time period
and an indication obtained of the effect
of the change on the individual period
and the total plan. The evaluations now
can take into consideration seasonal
changes and normal cycles. The calculations of the sales for each individual
period and in total are entered into the
data matrix and are available for projecting other values which are related to
the sales dollars as determined in subsequent equations. Requirements by period of various elements necessary to
support a particular sales level such as
cash, labor, materials, and inventory can
be projected.
In a sophisticated model the inclusion of a percentage trend variable or a
percentage change by period variable can
provide the values for individual periods
as determined from a base value or a
previously calculated value without the
detailed effort of entering or calculating
the individual values for each period:
Spi = Upi Ppi

Sales by produ ct in time period = Units
sold by pr od u c t by t im e pe ri od X Selling
price by product by time period

The model should enable management to override the normal relationships structured in the formulas. The
designation of a fixed percentage, quantity or amount can be entered into the
matrix and the calculations of the variable deferred when the value already exists in the matrix as a fixed input:
Spli(o) = $25,000
Sa les for product line 1 in the pe riod will
be $25,000

Several relationships could be employed in projecting, for example, the
transportation expense by period. The
values for the variables calculated by the
model are available for calculating the
transportation expense without having
to repeat all the values for the variables
involved:
T i = T p P ) . + Tpi( F ) F ' p i +
Tpils) S p i +
Tpi� U)Upi
T ra nsp ort a ti on for th e p eri od = the fixed
transporta tion costs -+ the tra nsporta tion
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costs as a percentage of the standard product factory cost determined by the units
produced X the unit factory standard cost
+ the transportation costs as a percentage
of product sales determined by units sold
X unit selling price + the transportation
cost in dollars per unit X the number of
units sold.
It is evident that if all the information were available with the utmost in
reliability, the task of evaluating the interactions alone without the facility of
a formal model would still be an exercise beyond the realm of mental capability. Hence, lack of such a tool would
require dependence on historical data.
This dependence could result in failure
to disclose that the plan to be put into
effect is unattainable.
A formal quantitative approach makes
it possible to specify the information to
be evaluated, and to manipulate and interpret this information. The degree of
complexity and the effort to perform
the calculations become the determinants for employing the use of computer facilities.
Output Documents
While it is possible to provide various
reports in varying degrees of detail,
there are several basic reports which
should be considered. The requirements
for information as well as the planning
and effort invested will have a bearing
on the extent of reports and detail provided by the model. The basic reports
could be an income statement, a balance sheet, and a cash flow report.
The system can be an effective tool
at long, medium and short range plan-

A COMPUTER DILEMMA

Continued from Page 21
As management accountants we not
only must accept but fully support the
computer by bridging the language barrier. This is not an insurmountable obstacle. We use a language in accounting
that can be classified as esoteric, and it
may be necessary to embrace a new language to meet this formidable challenge.
The hardware manufacturers offer
courses in programming that are only of
two to three weeks duration. Thereafter,
it is not unlike playing a piano —the
more we practice the better we become.
We need not aspire to be programmers,
but proficiency is essential to embrace
an art, and if we should get the bug, the
relationship between manual and comMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968

Summary
The future application of new information processing technology will be in
the planning methods of the financial
function rather than in the day to day

financial activities. The use of models
can be effectively employed in evaluating alternatives in the long -range profit
Planning functions. The potential of the
use of models should be assessed by financial management for possible application to increase their effectiveness.
One of the important considerations
of the use of models is in determining
the sensitivity of the business to changes
in the values of the operational variables. The management will demand
more in the way of information to assess the consequences of alternative
strategic and tactical decisions before
they order their execution.
One of the needs which will take on
more and more significance in the future information technological methods
will be the financial data base. Financial
information which does exist usually is
not in a form whereby it is easily accessible or capable of being manipulated for
proper use in evaluating.alternatives.
The sole function of a model is the
calculation of the inputs established for
the variables to determine the projected
resulting values for analysis. The human
mind and the system should complement each other rather than displace
one another. The financial analyst is
better able to formulate the evaluations
required. The use of a model is superior
in organizing the calculations of the
complex relationships. The use of a
quantitative approach, and where feasible, the use of a computer will give financial management improved techniques for evaluation and interpretation
of profit plans.

puter applications will be exposed.
We will recognize errors that are tolerated in manual operations, but not
permitted by the computer. Eventually,
we will acquire some highly sophisticated techniques and possibly improve the
manufacturers' software. During the
educational process, we will, also, encounter some startling revelations of inefficiencies. We will find programs that
are not properly documented, patches
inserted, and old routines now redundant are being branched around like unused railroad sidings, and pencil notes
made on the original documents indicating a change. We will be cognizant
of the various levels of change to be
considered, and also whether reprogramming is more advantageous. Time
permitting, we will probably choose the

latter since it offers a better opportunity
to establish responsibility for maintenance of the documentation.
Future growth in computer applications will definitely affect accounting
principles and techniques. The computer adds depth and breadth to accounting applications. Programming stimulates a desire to improve the system and
generates alternatives for measure and
control.
The time to start training is now. If
we are using a computer, or have one on
order, in -house training with assistance
by the hardware manufacturer is the
most popular and convenient approach.
After we write and successfully test a
few programs, we will gain a confidence
that can generate an enthusiasm about
our new and expanded environment.

ning. The projections can be shown by
year for several years. In addition, one
or more of the earlier years can be
shown by month, quarter, or half. Specific or separate reports for individual
businesses, groups of products or products can be presented or requested when
necessary. The data generated by the
model can be retained and the actual
results entered when available for comparison and analysis of variations from
plan.
The model can serve as an experimental device which will pretest, at low
cost, operational decisions prior to execution for planning and controlling the
operations of the business.
There are two ways of approaching
the problem of implementing a financial planning model. The first is to have
the implementation performed by an
expert in model building but perhaps
not familiar with finance. The alternative is to have financial personnel become more familiar with models and
their structure in order that they may
substantially undertake the implementation of the system. The latter method
not only familiarizes members in the
financial activity with the detail structure and workings of the model to realize its full potential but also saves the
tedious task of transferring knowledge
of the business to the model expert.
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Profit by Using
Variable Time Allowances
NEW OPPORTUNITIES FOR OUTSTANDING PERFORMERS WITHOUT PENALIZING THE OTHER ONES.

By James A. Broadston
This article demonstrates that profits
can be increased and worker satisfactions improved by providing variable
time allowances based upon the human
improvement phenomenon rather than
by using fixed time standards to determine bonus pay in wage incentive
systems. Fixed time standards for work
performance, no matter how scientifically computed, exhibit a tendency to
deter and stifle human performance. In
spite of these considerations, however,
it is normal for current wage incentive
plans to use fixed time standards as
the basis for rewarding individual performance through bonus payment.
In a previous article,' the author
described the learning curve concept
and showed how a break occurs in the
learning rate of the operator as soon
as the "learning period" is completed
and the fixed standard time and shop
standards begin to reduce the operators
rate and speed.
Constancy in Human
Learning Rates
Exhibit 1 shows the "probable" production rate that might have been expected of a well - motivated operator if a
variable learning curve time allowance
had been used rather than the outdated
fixed standard time. Here, an operator
shows only a 94% improvement factor
during the production period, although
he has already shown he is capable of
an 82.5% improvement factor during
the learning period.
While the concept of variable learn'Jame' A. Broadston, "Learning Curve Wage Incentives," Man ag em e nt Acc oun tin g, August 1968.
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ing curve time allowances may be new
and theoretical, some illustrations of its
possible benefits could be of advantage
to those who have not been able to
explore its potential. Exhibit 2 presents
an analysis of the information given in
Exhibit 1 supplemented by additional
pertinent data taken from Ref. 2.
Losses From Using Fixed
Time Standards
Exhibit 2 shows the benefits of the
learning curve time allowance as compared with the old fixed standard time
Ralph M. Barnes, Mo t i o n a n d T i m e S t u d y ,
fourth edition, John Wiley & Sons, New York,
1961, p. 560.
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allowance. Certain areas are delineated
to show the estimated time donated
(incentive pay lost) by the operator
(91 hours) , the time for which a bonus
was paid to the operator by the company (174 hours) , and the hidden idle
time paid for by the company ( 261
hours) . These amounts can be calculated from the "areas" on the graph as
follows.
It appears from the reference that the
"standard time" line was crossed by the
operator on the 21,200th assembly.3
The "break" in the 82.5% learning
rate curve came at 28,500 units when
the operator became aware of his progress. From that point, following the
slower learning rate (94 %) curve, it
can be seen that 371,500 more units
were produced, bringing the total to
400,000 units. After this total production, the average assembly time had
dropped to 0.140 minute per unit.
An estimate of the hours may be
determined by measuring the areas involved. One dimension of each area is
the time per unit, the other, total number of units; therefore, the product of
these two is the time required to produce the quantity of units noted.
During the learning period, for example, the area "A" under the learning
curve can be closely approximated by a
triangle with an apex at 0.335 minutes
and a base as the standard time of 0.175
minutes. This results in an average
extra learning time per unit of 0.80
minute

0.335 — 0.175
2

C
\

1
J

As 28,500 units were assembled, the
s I b i d ., p . 560.
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(0.175�—�0.140)�X�28,500

Exhibit 1
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units, additional learning occurred. An
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Area C =

OLD FIXED STANDARD TIME

_

2X60
36.45 hours donated by the operator

94%

OLD PRODUCTION RATE

PROBABLE NEW PRODUCTION RATE
.06

1

If the operator had been able to
perform the job at the rate later attained, of 0.140 minutes per assembly,
the donation of time represented by
Area "B " would not have been made
by the operator. This rectangular area

28,500 X 0.080

—
60
38 hou rs dona ted by the opera tor
Ar e a A =

_

Summing up, the total time donated
by the operator (time during which no
bonus pay was earned) equals Areas

A + B + C = 38 +16.6 +36.4 = 91

_

0
time spent by the operator in learning
the operation, for which be received
no extra pay, was therefore:

(0.175�—�0.140)�X�121,500

hours.
It can also be seen that the company paid a bonus t o the operator for
the hours saved over what the hours
might have been if the standard 0.175
minutes had been required for each
unit of the total production. This area,
estimated by a triangle " D " between

the 28,500 cycle point and the 150,000
cycle p o i n t , plu s a tra pez oid " E " be-

Of loss is:

Exhibit 2
OPERATOR LOSS, OPERATOR BONUS, AND HIDDEN IDLE TIME UNDER OLD
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tween the 150,000 and 400,000 cycle
points of Exhibit 2 as follows:

nize fellow workers by competing with
them, (3) the loss of take home pay
due to a job reassignment, (4) encouragement of mediocrity, and (5) indirectly penalizing outstanding performance.
Exhibit 3 presumes that a learning
curve time allowance has been established, in preference to the old fixed
standard time. The purpose is to illustrate calculations of operator bonus,
time savings, and productivity. It should
be noted that under such a plan at no
time during the learning period or
thereafter does the operator fail to earn
a "bonus" as his production rate improves. The time allowance is based on
an 82.5% learning curve, which this
operator has already shown to be his
learning rate for similar jobs and for
which he is already being paid a suitable
base rate.
In using the learning curve time allowance, the operator must be shown
that this new method works to his
advantage. He must be shown that (1)
he can now change to a new job without loss of take -home pay if he applies
himself diligently to the learning task,
(2) there will always be an incentive
for him to continue to improve his
performance, (3) there will be a negative incentive for him not to continue
to improve, and (4) his performance
will have absolutely no influence on pay
rates or time allowances established for
anyone else on the work force. He is
on his own, the company will reimburse him exclusively on his own

0.036 X 121,500
Area D +E=

+
2 X60

(0.031 + 0.35) X 250,000
2X60
— 36.45 + 137.5
- 1 7 4 hou r s of bonu s time
pa id by the company

Because of the tendency of a fixed
standard time to stifle and deter production, the actual production rate did not
begin to equal the possible production
rate that might have been attained if a
learning curve time allowance had been
used. If it had been used, the operator
could have been compensated accordingly and would have had no concern
about the possibility of spoiling the job
for other operators.
An estimate of this "hiddle" idle
time paid for by the company and
foregone by the operator in not attaining his possible accomplishment is
re- presented by the triangle 'T" and the
trapezoid "G ":
0.052 X 121,500
Area F +G=

+
2 X60

(0.037 + 0.063) X 250,000
2X60
— 52.65 + 208.33
— 261 hours hidden idle time

This supports the belief that "Voluntary restriction of output, practiced on
an enormous scale, is common knowledge in industry.1 4 This 261 -hour time
difference between the actual production
rate (restricted by a fixed [inhuman]
time standard with the "informal group
notion of a fair day's work"-' and a
desire not to antagonize fellow workers)
and the possible production rate appears to verify the opinion that such
jobs level off at a "satisfactory" pace.

60
24 0 hou rs total opera tor bonu s

This bonus exceeds the operator's
bonus of Exhibit 2 under the old plan
by 66 hours (174 to 240), which, while
not much in actual hours, is spread
over the entire job period (there being
no no -bonus pay learning period) and
can be paid by the company at a
greater base rate because productivity

OPERATOR BONUS, TIME SAVINGS, AND PRODUCTIVITY UNDER NEW "LEARNING CURVE TIME ALLOWANCE" SYSTEM
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H =

LEARNING PERIOD

®

B O N U OPERATOR
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I

+ 1 =

®

-2 4 0 Mrs

BYSAVED
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TIME

\
(212 +41 -253)
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U

It is possible that wage incentives
based on learning curves will overcome,
to some degree, five basic problems
previously noted: (1) voluntary restriction of output, (2) desire not to antago-

0.036 X 400,000

Area H —

Exhibit 3

w
v

Be n e fi t s of Va r i a b l e T i me
Al l o w a n ce s

individual performance, there Will no
longer be such a thing as a shop standard of performance nor a fixed standard
time to run the danger of breaking, and
there will be absolutely no competition
between workers. Both high and low
producers will be compensated proportionately. Rate - busters will become
a memory of the past because there
will be no "rate" to break. Each worker
is on his own to set his own pace,
established his own learning rate, and
be paid accordingly.
Exhibit 3 shows that the operator
can earn bonus pay for the time difference between the variable learning
curve time allowance and his new
higher production rate. The operator's
productive ability is assumed to follow
the 82.5% learning curve he has already
demonstrated during the difficult learning period. In the past, no bonus would
have been paid as it was under the old
fixed standard time system, where the
operator was competitive with the
others. This operator bonus is estimated
by:

z
a

.175

F^

.1 4 5

3= 212 Hrs
(2 5 0 , 0 0 0 x. 0 5 1 )
OLD FIXED STANDARD TIME
II

.043

.0 4 3

94%

H- 240 Hrs
(4 0 0 , 0 0 0 x. 0 3 3 )

6

+��\

Nom' HIGH PRODUCTION

INCREASE IN PRODUCTIO

.055
I

OLD PRODUCTION RATE
\

\

RATE

.08
102,725

250,000

0

' F r e d e r i c k H e r z b e r g , Be r n a r d M a u s n e r a n d Ba r b a r a S n y d e r m a n , Mot i v at i o n t o Wo r k ( W il e y , N e w
York, 1959), P. 118.
6 Hi d ., p . 8 .
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Exhibit 4
COMPARISON OF LEARNING CURVE AND "STANDARD TIME PERFORMANCE"
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Total Cycles Produced Under Old Fixed Standard Time

is so much higher. Also, the operator
can now earn incentive pay from the
beginning of the job.
Because the learning curve time
allowance is geared to greater productivity, the company does not have to
pay the difference between the learning
curve time allowance and the old fixed
time standard previously used for bonus
determination. This saving to the company is represented by triangle "I" and
trapezoid "J ", their areas being:
0.048 X 102,725
Ar e a s I + J =

+
2 X60

(0.043 + 0.059) X 250,000
2X60
- 4 1 + 2 1 2 = 2 5 3 h ou rs o f ti me
sa ved by the company
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968

Note that under these conditions there
is no idle -time loss by operator or company.
A direct benefit to a company is the
increase in production resulting from
establishing the 82.5% learning curve
production rate goal as compared with
the old 95% production rite that prevailed when the old fixed standard
time applied. From such a calculation,
the company can determine how much
additional money it can spend to compensate the operator fairly for his continued improved learning rate and the
subsequent increase in productive performance and /or reduced costs.
The benefit to the company, in terms
of units produced at the higher production rate, can be determined by estimating probable productive performance
totals based on actual time requirements

per unit. The original lower scale, the
abscissa, indicates total cycles or units
originally produced and is not linear
with respect to quantity produced. It is
linear with respect to time as it was
so plotted by Ref. 4. To permit greater
accuracy in calculation, Exhibit 4 is
provided, showing 20 -hour divisions on
the abscissa.
P r o d u c t i on G a i n s T h r ou g h
Co n t i n u e d L e a r n i n g
For the total production possible in
the twenty -seven 40 -hour weeks at the
82.5% learning curve production rate,
it is seen that all gains will be made beyond the end of the 28,500 -cycle point
where the operator became aware that
he had learned enough to produce within the fixed standard time. Beyond that
29

point, the fixed standard time effect
caused him to reduce his learning rate
sharply, which resulted in the "break"
in the learning curve. Estimates of
average weekly production rates were
made by carefully scaling the 82.5
learning curve ordinates of Exhibit 4.
The total production in the additional weeks is then computed in Table 1.
It appears that production of the
400,000th unit might occur during the
23rd week under the learning curve
time allowance instead of the 27th
week under the fixed time standard. At
the end of 27 weeks, the total production might be 518,080 units as compared with 412,400 units produced
under the less optimum conditions imposed by the fixed standard time system.
This represents a 26% increase in
production from the same operator,
equipment, and work station.
The example shown represents only
an academic study of the factors involved from a theoretical standpoint.
The graphical approach, while theoretical and somewhat inaccurate, serves
only as a medium to illustrate the basic
concepts. It is recognized that a worker
has good and bad days, as well as good
and bad weeks. Conditions change, as
do materials and part tolerances; therefore, actual performance does not follow
the smooth learning curves used herein
for purposes of illustration and comparison.
In considering human values and the
negative influence of the fixed time
standard, two periods of actual operator
performance are compared in Exhibit
5. A normal human variance in performance occurred during the period
of the third through the eleventh week.
This plot shows the normal random
peaks and valleys that are almost equal
in amplitude and frequency, which
would be expected of a human operator. The normalcy of these variances is
illustrated by replotting the points at
the right end of a mean line* drawn
through the actual performance graph.
When collected they fall under an
envelope curve which approximates a
normal bell curve (gaussian) distribution. This is because any person, unless
coerced in some way, will do better
than average just as often as he will do
poorer than average. This characteristic
is shown to the right of the plot where
the performance points are summarized
under a small bell curve.

Other Factors Degrade
peared. This indicates that occasional
Perform a nce
overproduction just does not occur and
An examination of a similar plot of that, even though the same human
actual performance during the nine- frailties do exist during this latter period,
teenth through the twenty- seventh they always result in delays (represented
week, in Exhibit 6, exhibits a distinctly by peaks) rather than improved prodifferent character. In appears that duction ( represented by valleys) . In a
other factors are now influencing per- similar plot of performance during
formance as the valleys have disap- latter weeks, the deviations from the
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points that is so positioned that the "areas" above
and below the curve are equal.
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mean do not show a normal distribution
but are distinctly skewed; therefore,
other factors must have influenced the
results.
Is it that the shop standard for an
acceptable production level influenced
this operator? Is it possible that, if
greater production than the accepted
standard did occur, the extra assemblies
would not be declared? Is it that, if
they were "accidentally" produced, it
would be undesirable to turn them in
and run the risk of having the time
allowance of 0.175 minutes per assembly reduced by the time study man;
thus "spoiling" the job for others? It
it purely coincidental that the apparent
0.140 cutoff time happens to be exactly 80% of the fixed time standard of
0.175 minutes? Can it be that the
accepted "safe" standard of perform-

ance set by the shop code is 80% of
the fixed time standard?
All of these are possibilities. In his
study, Barnes" reported that, after only
7 weeks, the operator could readily
produce the last 50 cycles on a. given
day at 0.110 minutes each. This performance was much better than ever
attained or reported on the job, even
after 590,000 cycles. Could it be that
the fixed time standard has held the
time per unit up to 80% of the standard? If the fixed standard were higher
or lower, would the production rate
level off at 80% of it?
Conclusion
Whether the learning curve approach
to establishing time standards and
wage incentives will prove to be ad6

Op. cit., p. 568.

vantageous in practice remains to be
determined by experience under actual
working conditions. By adapting this
approach to established wage incentive
systems, it is possible that existing wage
incentive systems may be modified to
overcome some of their traditional disadvantages and that new opportunities
for outstanding performers will appear
without penalizing the poorer performers.
By such an approach, the operator
may be motivated to increase his earnings without in any way compromising
or influencing the earning ability of his
fellow workers. If the company also
makes a suitable gain through his
greater productivity, the concept may
have some merit. Certainly, the company would be able to pay more for
such performance.

Coping with Uncertainty in the
Make or Buy Decision
THIS TECHNIQUE BRINGS THE ANALYSIS MORE CLOSELY INTO LINE WITH THE REAL WORLD.

The make or buy decision analysis is
usually presented in an oversimplified
manner in order that full attention may
be given to the significant fact that decision- making most often requires a collection of figures that differ from those
that are appropriate for purposes of income determination and inventory valuation. In pursuing this line of emphasis, the circumstances of the make or
buy decision under consideration are
usually void of any consideration of the
uncertainty that typically surrounds the
decision- making process in real situations.
The purpose of this investigation is
to add an uncertainty dimension to the
typical make or buy decision analysis.
In order that this extension of the make
or buy decision analysis might be demMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968
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onstrated, the following hypothetical
situation is given as an example:
The company is contemplating the
manufacturing of a part that it has
been buying at a unit cost of $2.00.
Last year the company produced 10,000 units of its finished product, each
of which contains one of the purchased units, at costs shown in Table 1.
At the 10,000 unit level of production, the company is operating at a capacity level such that the manufacturing
of the part will not entail any increase
or decrease in the fixed manufacturing
cost. Under these circumstances, the
estimated manufacturing costs for the
purchased part are as in Table 1.
On the basis of these figures, one observes that the unit cost of the part, if
it were manufactured, would exceed the
purchase price, and one might
ously conclude that the decision should
errone-

By Lloyd D. Doney
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changes at the activity levels indicated
below:

1

Direct materials
Direct labor
Manufacturing overhead:
Variable (and direct)
Fixed (allocated)
Totals

Total cost

Activity level

Change in fixed costs

$2.00
1.00
2.50

$20,000
10,000
25,000

8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

no change
no change

1.25
2.25
$9.00

12,500
22,500
$90,000

PURCHASED PART
Unit cost

be in favor of buying the part. As it is
so vigorously pointed out in the typical
discussion of make or buy decisions,
however, the allocated fixed costs should
be excluded from the "decision cost" of
the make alternative, since the fixed element of the manufacturing overhead
will not be affected by the decision to
make -at least at the 10,000 unit level
of activity. The appropriate decision,
therefore, is to make the part since the
purchase price of $2.00 per unit is in
excess of this "decision cost" to make,
$1.50 ($2.20- $.70), by $50 per unit.
In view of this typical example, one's
attention should be called to the fact
that the entire decision rests upon estimates, with the possible exception of
the future purchase price. Yet, the
analysis is undertaken as though all the
items that enter into the analvsis are
firm and certain. Since production even tually must relate to sales, and since
few, if any, firms enjoy the luxury of a
certain sales forecast, the level of activity
which must be assumed to be at a certain fixed amount in the typical make
or buy analysis is, perhaps, the most
extremely guilty of being simplified in
that approach.'
' I n this illustration, in order to avoid the problems of balancing sales with inventories and pro duc t i on- an activity which has no bearing upon
the problem at hand, production is assumed to be
equal to sales in any period.

Total cost

.60
.50

$

Direct materials:
Purchased part
Other materials
Direct labor
Manufacturing overhead:
Variable
Fixed
Totals

FINISHED PRODUCT
Unit cost

$

Table

.40
.70
$2,20

6,000
5,000

4,000
7,000
$22,000

To supply further facts for the extension of the analysis, assume that the
level of production attained in any given
period would have at least the following
effects:
1. The $2.00 per unit purchase price,
while appropriate for 10,000 units
would be subject to modification at
other quantity levels due to quantity
discounts.
2. At certain points in the level of operations, there would be increments
or decrements to the total of fixed
costs since facilities would necessarily have to be expanded or contracted.
More specifically, assume that the
purchase price would vary in accordance with the following schedule of
quantity discounts:
Units purchased

Unit price

8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

$2.10
2.05
2.00
1.90
1.80

Note: It is assumed here that at the
various levels of purchases, the unit
price quoted for that level would apply
to all units purchased.
In addition, assume that while there
would be no change in fixed costs over
a given span of activity levels, there
would be the following fixed cost

Table 2
Activity level

Fixed -cost change

8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

no change
no change
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$ -3,000

+3,000
-{-8,000

Buy

Make
unit cost

unit cost

$1.125
1.50
1.50
1.773
2.167

$2.10
2.05
2.00
1.90
1.80

Decision
Make
Make
Make
Make
Buy

$ -3,000

+3,000
+8,000

With the added variability of price
and fixed cost due to the uncertainty
surrounding the number of units to be
either purchased or produced in the
coming period, one now must consider
the decision to make or buy, following
the usual approach, as five separate alternatives, one for each level of operations. Applying the appropriate analysis
to each of the activity levels, separately,
reveals the following per unit decision
figures and results shown in Table 2.
At an activity level of 8,000 units, the
greatest advantage in manufacturing is
realized. With no change in the total
fixed costs at the 9,000 or 10,000 unit
levels of activity, the cost to manufacture merely excludes any portion of the
allocated fixed costs as previously. The
decision is still in favor of manufacturing, though the advantage is diminished
in each instance.
At 11,000 units, with a reduced price
due to quantity discounts of $0.10 per
unit, the cost to manufacture is increased by the amount of the increase
in total fixed costs that are entailed in
the decision to manufacture. This is
$0.273 per unit, rounded, ($3,000/
11,000 units). At this level of operations the advantage still lies in the manufacturing alternative.
At the 12,000 unit level of operations,
however, the effect of the discount overcomes the increase in the total of the
fixed costs of $0.667 per unit ( $8,000/
12,000 units). The decision shifts in
favor of buying. If this level of activity
were to be attained, the total advantage
to the company in buying rather than
making would be $4,404.
In Table 3, the total costs, rather than
the unit costs, are provided to further
demonstrate the effect of the activity
level upon the decision.
Clearly, now, the decision must depend upon the projected level of activity
for the coming period. With the uncertainty that typically surrounds a projection of future activity levels and the
absence of a "perfect" crystal ball, how,
then, does the manager, confronted with
the necessity of making a decision at the
present time, proceed?
M AN AG E M E N T ACCOUNT ING /OC TOBER, 19 68

Table 3
Total cost
to make
9,000
13,500
15,000
19,503
26,004
$

Activity level
8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

Total cost
to buy
$16,800
18,450
20,000
20,900
21,600

Probability Weighing
Assuming that the possible levels of
future activity for the coming period are
limited to those included in the illustration to this point, the decision maker
may proceed by weighing each of the
possible activity levels in accordance
with his view of the possibility of each
of the given levels of activity occurring.
The ultimate objective, as it will be re
vealed, is to synthesize all of the possibilities for the future into a single comprehensive decision figure that takes into
account the uncertainty surrounding the
future level of activity. Let us say, for
example, that while there is a chance
that 8,000 units will be produced and
sold in the coming period, the manager
feels that there is only a small chance
that this will occur. Thus, he might, for
example, assign a weight of 1 to the
possibility of this event occurring. In a
similar manner, the manager could assign the following weights to the possible levels of activity previously enumerated:
Activity level
8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

Weight
1
1
4
3
1
10

Proper
decision
Make
Make
Make
Make
Buy

Net
advantage
$7,800
4,950
5,000
397
4,404

which ultimately occurs is included in
the set and, therefore, has been considered in the weighing process.
In the example, only five possibilities
are under consideration. This limitation
is imposed merely to facilitate the discussion. In practice it is quite likely that
the set of mutually exclusive and collectively exhaustive events would include
dozens or, perhaps, even hundreds of
possibilities.2
The list of weights which reflects the
decision maker's best appraisal of the
possibility of each of the events occurring must be converted to ;subjective
probabilities in this instance by dividing
each of the weights by 10. While any
magnitude of weights is permissible, it
is most convenient to structure them in
such a way that they add to 10 or a
power of 10.
This facilitates the conversion to subjective probabilities which are: obtained
by dividing each of the weights by the
total of the weights assigned. One is also
reminded, at this point, that the probabilities assigned to a set of mutually
T h e in c lu s io n o f a c o n s id e r a b le n u m b e r o f e v e n t s
in no way a lt e r s the ap p ro a ch h e r ein ex a m in e d
with resp ect to the five po ssib le le ve ls of a c t iv it y .
A s the nu m be r of po ss ib ilit ies is in c r e as e d , t h e r e
is m e r ely the nec ess ity of as s ig n in g a we igh t to
ea c h, as ab o ve .

8

exclusive and collectively exhaustive
events must add to 1.0.
The probabilities obtained in the
manner described above are said to be
subjective probabilities since they would
defy either proof or verification. This is
in contrast to objective probabilities
which are capable of demonstration.
The subjective probabilities are merely
a quantification of the decision maker's
view of the future -based upon his previous experiences and any other information that he may be able to assemble
that is relevant to the estimate of the
future level of operations. In a given decision- making situation of this kind,
therefore, it is quite possible that two
different managers, viewing the future
level of operations, would assign different weights to the various possibilities.
For this reason, subjective probabilities
are sometimes said to be personal probabilities.
The Decision Matrix
Having arrived at these probabilities,
the decision maker may now use them
in connection with the monetary consequences of each alternative in the following decision matrix.3 ( Table 4) .
Given the above decision matrix, the
decision maker may now proceed by
multiplying each of the costs for each
of the alternatives by the probability
that occupies the same row in the matrix. This results in the following decision analysis (Table 5) .
I th is tab le, th e to tal co st asso cia ted wit h m a k e
o r b u y fo r e a c h p o s s ib le le v e l o f o p e ra t io n s is u s e d .
Th e s e w e r e p r e s e n t e d p r e v io u s ly . A s a n a lt e r n a t iv e ,
o n e m igh t also u se th e ap p r o p r ia t e u n it co st asso ciat ed with each a lt e r n a t iv e a t each lev el of activ it y .

8

Table 4
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Subjective
probability
.1
.1
.4
.3
.1

Total cost
to make
9,000
13,500
15,000
19,503
26,004

Total-cost
to buy
$16,800
18,450
20,000
20,900
21,600

Subjective
probability
.1
1
.4
,3
.1

Decision
cost to buy
900
1,350
6,000
5,851
2,600
$16,701

Decision
cost to buy
1,680
1,845
8,000
6,270
2,160
$19,955

$

Activity level
8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

Activity level
8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

$

Table 5

$

Statistically speaking, the assignment
of these weights might be said to be the
attaching of subjective probabilities to
a set of mutually exclusive and collectively exhaustive events. In brief, mutual exclusiveness requires that there be
no overlapping of possible outcomes that the occurrence of one of the events
precludes the simultaneous occurrence
of any one of the other events in the
collection of events. Thus, in the problem at hand, it is impossible for the future level of operations to be both 9,000
units and 10,000 units at the same time.
The characteristic that the events be
collectively exhaustive requires that the
set of events include all of the possibilities -this ensures that the event
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An Alternative Example
To illustrate the operation of the decision process under a different set of
weights, consider the following. Suppose, now, that with reason to believe
that higher levels of activity are more
likely to occur, the decision maker assigns the following weights to the possible activity levels previously enumerated:
Activity level
8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

Weight
1
1
1
1
6
10

In view of this set of circumstances,
the decision matrix, again using the total costs, would appear as in Table 6.
Multiplying across the rows and summing the make and the buy decision
alternative columns, as previously, leads
to the decision analysis ( Table 7) .
With the expectation of higher activity levels in the future on the part of
the decision maker, the decision now
favors a buy decision since the decision
cost to buy is $20,575 as compared to
521,302, the decision cost to make.
The Decision TechniqueSummary
In view of the previous illustrations of
the make or buy decision under conditions of uncertainty surrounding the
future level of activity, one may enu-
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Table 6
Subjective
probability
.1
.1
.1
.1
.6

Total cost
to make
9,000
13,500
15,000
19,503
26,004

Total cost
to buy
$16,800
18,450
20,000
20,900
21,600

Decision
cost to make
900
1,350
1,500
1,950
15,602
$21,302

Decision
cost to buy
1,680
1,845
2,000
2,090
12,960
$20,575

$

Activity level
8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

Activity level
8,000
9,000
10,000
11,000
12,000

Subjective
probability
.1
.1
.1
.1
,6

merate the following steps that are necessary in the design and the solution of
the problem:
1. Establish a set of mutually exclusive
and collectively exhaustive activity
levels which are likely to occur.
2. Calculate the total cost associated
with each of the alternatives (make
or buy) for each of the activity levels established above. ( Give appropriate attention to any changes in
total fixed cost at the different activity levels that are identified with
the decision, and to any purchase
price changes that may result due to
quantity discounts.)
3. Assign weights to each of the activity levels and convert these
weights to probabilities. (The probabilities must sum to 1.0. )
4. Set up the decision matrix, associating the proper weights and costs
for each of the decision alternatives
at the different activity levels.
5. Multiply across the rows of the matrix and sum the alternative columns, giving a decision cost for each
of the alternatives.
6. Select the least cost alternative,
based upon the decision costs obtained.
The decision technique above brings
an uncertainty dimension to the typical
make or buy decision analysis which
brings the analysis more closely into line
with the circumstances that typically
surround the make or buy decision in
the real world. In this particular example, attention was given to the uncer-

$

Table 7

$

x

Example computation: For the 10,000
units level of operations, for example:
0.4 X 15,000 = 6,000, associated with
a decision to make; and 0.4 20,000 =
8,000, associated with a decision to buy.
The solution of the decision matrix
above provides the appropriate decision
costs in view of the uncertainty surrounding the future level of activity by
summing the total column costs associated with each of the alternatives, after
the multiplications have been accomplished for each row. In this instance,
using the weights previously assigned,
the decision is in favor of making the
part since the decision cost associated
with the make alternative, $16,701, is
less than the decision cost associated
with the buy alternative, $19,955.

tainty that typically surrounds the estimate of the future level of operations
since this variable, it is felt, is the must
subject to variation, and the least likely
of all of the decision variables included
in the analysis to be constant. Extensions of this kind of uncertainty analysis might include a distribution or spread
of cost and price - encompassing these
variables, too, with an uncertainty dimension that is usually present in their
estimation. Further, the decision matrix
is easily expanded to include multiple
make or buy choices, not only the single choice of one make alternative and
one buy alternative as illustrated herein.
There may, for example, be the following alternatives: (1) make, (2) buy
from supplier A, (3) buy from supplier
B, and (4) buy from supplier C.
The decision made in accordance with
this scheme of analysis may prove to be
incorrect. However, at the time the decision must be made -the present -the
analysis encompasses the best available
information for making the decision that is, a projection of possible future
activity levels based upon the manager's
past experience and any other information that may be available to him that
would have an impact upon the future
level of operations. The technique brings
to the analysis an approach that recognizes the uncertainty rather than the
fictitious certainty that is incorporated
in the more simplified case and brings
to light the significant role of varying
levels of activity in the make or buy decision.
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The Relevance of Probability
Statistics to Accounting
Variance Control
IT SEEMS IRONIC TO INVESTIGATE VARIANCES IN DETAIL WITHOUT AN ORGANIZED FRAMEWORK FOR EVALUATING
THE RELEVANT FACTORS.

It is generally agreed that the primary
objective of the widely used standard
cost accounting systems is to indicate
areas where some follow -up is desirable.
To accomplish this objective great effort
is typically expended in developing realistic standards. Periodically, detailed
procedures are employed to report actual
performance so that the variances can
be determined. Often these variances
are then classified by source into one of
the following components: materials
price, materials usage, labor rate, labor
efficiency, fixed overhead budget, volume, and variable overhead efficiency.'
After all this precision, it seems ironic
that decisions relative to which variances to investigate are made without
an organized framework for evaluating
the relevant factors pertaining to the decision. The variances are termed significant if they exceed some subjectively
determined dollar amount or percentage
of the standard. Such a procedure does
not give enough attention to the concepts of chance and probability which
are inherent in performance standards.
Over the last 15 years utilization of
statistical tools to analyze the significance of variances has been recommended in several books2 and numerous articles. These recommendations have gone
unheeded. In some general inquiry from
some prominent corporations I was unable to find a single use of statistical
procedures for variance control.
Different breakdowns or further refinements may
be used.

1

s See the Bibliography at the end of this article.
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Note. The author expresses his appreciation to Dr.
William L. Fe rrara, Profe ssor of Accounting at the
Pennsylvania St ate University, for his many helpful suggestions during the preparation
this manuscript.
or

By Robert W. Koehler

From this almost total lack of response, it would appear that these writings either contained some fundamental
fallacies or that accountants are so uninformed about statistical procedures that
they have been unable to implement
them. While some have questioned the
applicability of statistical procedures for
accounting problems, no basic fallacies
of statistical methods of variance control have been noted. In general, accountants are not as statistically sophisticated as they should be. This situation

DR. ROBERT W. KOEHI.ER

Williamsport Chapter 1967, is Assistant Professor of Accounting, The
Pennsylvania State University, University Park, Pa. He received his B.S.
and M.S. degrees from the Pennsylvania State University, and a Ph.D.
degree from Michigan State University, East Lansing, Mich. Professor
Koehler was awarded an NAA Certificate of Merit for this paper in the
1967 -68 chapter competition year.

is, however, improving as more rigorous
mathematics and statistics requirements
are being introduced into college accounting curricula. Currently there are
many accountants equipped to instigate
such procedures. The fact that this is
not being done implies that the reasons
for applying statistical procedures to
variance control are not sufficiently compelling. As a result, the statistical talents
of the accountants are being utilized in
other areas.
One difficulty in developing a concept for variance control hinges on the
fact that accountants have not recognized a conceptual distinction between
a significant and an insignificant variance.
The Notion of Chance
The literature in the field of quality
contro13 recognizes that performance
varies due to a host of unexplainable
reasons which are identified as chance.
In other words, there is an omnipresent
non - uniformity which cannot be eliminated. This non - uniformity is a natural
phenomenon —even plants or animals experimentally developed under the same
conditions are not identical. Likewise,
tasks performed by the same worker under the same conditions are not identical. The reasons for such variation are
unknown to man and have been identified by quality control engineers and statisticians as chance. Formally, chance is
defined as "the absence of any known
See for example, Frank M. Gryna, Jr., Chapter
13, Quality Control Handbook, Ed., J. M. Juran,
McGraw -Hill Book Company, Inc., New York,
1962. Also, W. A. Shewhart, Chapter 1, Economic
Control of Manufactured Product. D. Van Nos trand and Company, Inc., New York, 1931.

8

35

reason why an event should turn out
one way rather than another. "4
This concept of chance can be visualized by assuming that you record the
number of seconds it takes you to shave
for some period of time�—say three
months. You will soon discover that
your performance varies. On some days
you may explain that the blade in the
razor was dull. Hence, you required
more time than normal. On other days,
cold water may cause your performance
to vary. Occasionally, you may cut yourself and require extra time to sear the
cut. The dull blade, cold water, and cut
are known as assignable causes. If these
are eliminated from your record, you
would still find some variability in the
number of seconds it takes you to shave.
This is referred to as chance variability;
its causes cannot be identified.

concept. Whether chance is relevant
must be decided on an individual basis.
However, chance will not affect the materials price variance for materials which
involve administered prices. Likewise for
companies which have rigid job classifications with a specific wage rate for each
classification and which do not normally
use overtime, chance would not appear
to affect the actual results for labor
rates. In the short run, it may occasionally be wise to use a worker with a different job classification than that established for a job or to use overtime; but
if these situations are not usual, they
should be explained as the reason for
the rate variance.
In general, chance is expected to
cause variation in labor and overhead
efficiency, material usage and overhead
volume variances. It also causes varia-

Ch a n ce i n Acc ou n t i n g V a r i a n c e

tion in certain non - manufacturing costs
such as clerical efficiency. There is a

At this point, the reader may argue
"Chance does not affect all variance
classifications." Such an argument is
quite convincing in that chance would
not usually affect the materials price or
labor rate variances and neither would
it normally affect many components of
the fixed overhead budget variance.
There are, however, some exceptions to
these generalizations. Chance may affect
the materials price variance in situations
where materials prices adjust rapidly to
reflect the changing conditions of supply and demand. The labor rate variance
may be affected in cases where workers
with only slightly different wage rates
perform a number of different functions
depending upon a current need. Th e
worker performing a given task at a
given time depends upon the aggregate
of other current needs. These needs at
a given time may be influenced by
chance. The wage rate for the task will
depend upon the worker performing it.
Therefore, the wage rate and corresponding rate variance is influenced by
chance.
Chance may also affect the labor rate
variance in firms which normally use
some overtime. Since workers get a premium for overtime, the average wage
rate depends upon the actual amount of
overtime used and also upon the tasks
(with their corresponding worker classifications) which are to be performed
during overtime.
These are just a few examples; other
situations may also introduce the chance

fundamental difference between these
variance classifications and the ones discussed in the preceding paragraphs. Efficiency cannot be predetermined like a
wage rate, the price of material, the
amount of depreciation, or the property
taxes. The human element with its inherent non - uniformity enters the picture
for all variance classifications which involve efficiency of one kind or another.
After all known causes are eliminated,
the above items would vary for reasons
which cannot be explained. To reiterate, chance variation is attributed to an
inherent non - uniformity which also accounts for differences in the sizes of
plants and animals developed under the
same conditions.
At this point, it is important for the
reader to understand the difference that
the recognition of chance makes to vari-

C . L . Ba r n h a r t , E d . , T h e A m e r i c a n College Di ct i o nar y, Ra n d o m H o u s e , N e w Yo r k, 1960, p. 200.
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Logi c Be hi n d S t a ti s t i ca l
Appl i ca t i ons

With the establishment of this conceptual base, it would now seem like a
fairly simple procedure to observe actual
performance under established conditions for the purpose of determining the

a n c e co n t ro l . W e ex p ec t a ct u a l resu lts

l i m i t s wi t h i n wh i c h c h a n c e i s o p e r a t i v e .

to equal standard only for variance classifications which are not influenced by
chance. Th e materials price and labor
rate variances, along with many components of the overhead budget variance, will frequently be included in this
group. For these we would often want
to kn ow t he reason for any deviation.
Only for these is the typical accounting
definition of control ( "The method and
manner by which a person, or an organization, operation, or other activity is
conformed to a desired plan of action"')
a realistic explanation of the control
process.

The difficulty is that the distribution of
values due to chance overlaps the distribution of values due to assignable
causes. That is, chance is also operative
when assignable causes are present.
Overlapping distributions can be visualized by referring again to the shaving
anology. Assume that it takes you an
average of five minutes to shave when
only chance causes are present. Suppose,
however, that it takes you an average of
six minutes to shave with cold water.
Wh e n you look at the distributions
upon which these averages are based,
you find that 95 percent of the time it

E . L . K o h le r , A Di ct i o n a ry for Ac co u n t a n t s ,
t hlif
ir df s , N
ede itio
c .p, h a sEngle�
� ood
C
w J ne ,r s e yP,r e1n9t6i 3c ,e -H
p. a1l 2l,7 . [IEnm
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e.]
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For variance classifications which are
influenced by chance, we do not expect
the actual results to equal standard.
Some variances are expected to occur
even when no assignable causes are
present. These chance variances should
fall within predictable patterns so that
variances not falling within the pattern
could be identified as pertaining to an
assignable cause giving rise to further
inquiry.
It is suggested here that accountants
give formal recognition to the chance
concept in their definition of control.
As a noun, control or variance control
could then be defined as Koehler defined statistical quality control: "t he
state of equilibrium reached when deviations from a given norm (such as
the process average) are only random
in character and without assignable
ca u s e . " It is informative to note that
Koehler does not recognize the relevance
of chance or random concepts in his
definition of control 7 but he does include them in his definition of statistical quality control.
The verb control would then be defined as consisting of those procedures
designed to maintain the results within
limits due to chance. Only those variances outside the limits due to chance
would have to be subjected to analysis
and investigation. Analysis and investigation of variances due to chance would
obviously be wasteful.

I bi d ., p . 12 7 .

7 1bid., p. 127.
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Problem of Overlapping
Distributions
The shaving analogy was used above
to illustrate how the distribution of values due to chance overlaps the distribution of values due to assignable causes.
This phenomenon results in the dilemma of where to place the control limits
and establishes the need for statistical
techniques.
To elaborate further upon this, I will
return again to the shaving analogy.
This example is independent of the last
one. To facilitate the use of greater detail, the unit of measurement will be
seconds rather than minutes.
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968

Table

1
PROBABILITY DISTRIBUTION OF CHANCE PERFORMANCES

"

at least

"

"
"
"

"
"

Seconds
but less than

270
280
290
300
310
320
330

"

"

at least

"

takes you four to six minutes to shave
when no assignable causes are present
(i.e., only chance is present) and five to
seven minutes to shave with cold water
(an assignable cause plus chance). Thus
you cannot tell whether chance alone or
chance and cold water are present simply by looking at a performance value
between five and six minutes. The dilemma remains: where should the control limits be placed?
Recognition of chance factors provides the clue for confronting this problem and for utilizing more objective criteria for significance determination.
Since probability statistics is an area
concerned with procedures for evaluating the patterns of chance influences,
its use is a logical extension from the
recognition that chance factors distinguish between significant and insignificant variances.
Thus, statistical applications to variance control are not just some tools that
are pulled out of the air and applied to
satisfy someone's academic fancy. There
is a logical and compelling reason for
their use. Stated succinctly, chance affects some variance classifications; probability statistics evaluates patterns of
chance occurrences; therefore, probability statistics is useful to analyze those
variances affected by chance.
Some may think that the relationships between chance and variances on
one hand and between chance and statistics on the other are so obvious as to
be unworthy of mention. Yet it is my
belief that failure to recognize these relationships has caused accountants to
overlook or ignore statistical applications to variance control. Once the importance of these applications is established, experimentation with various
statistical models will almost certainly
enhance their usefulness.

but less than

Probability
280
290
300
310
320
330
340

.05
.10
.15
.40
.15
.10
.05
1.00

Table

2
PROBABILITY DISTRIBUTION OF COLD WATER PERFORMANCES

at least
"
"
"
"

at least

Seconds
but less than

290
300
310
320
330
340
350

but less than

Probability
300
310
320
330
340
350
360

.02
.10
.20
.35
.20
.10
.03
1.00

Suppose that Table 1 represents the
probability distribution of the number
of seconds it takes you to shave when
only chance is operating.
The mean of this frequency distribution is 305 seconds, as calculated by the
formula YXoP, where Xo = each respective class mark and P = the corresponding probability for each class. The
calculation is illustrated below:
Xo
275
285
295
305
315
325
335

P
.05
.10
.15
.40
.15
.10
.05

XoP
13.75
28.50
44.25
122.00
47.25
32.50
16.75
305.00

Notice that you have been able to
complete the task in as few as 270 seconds without a permanent increase in
your speed. On the other hand, it has
taken you as long as 340 seconds without discerning an unfavorable assignable
cause. This variation is attributed to
chance.
Now suppose that Table 2 represents
the number of seconds it takes you to
shave with cold water. The mean time
is now 325 seconds. This table shows
that chance factors also prevail when an
assignable cause (cold water) is operative. That is, performance also varies
for cold water performances. The task
has been completed in as few as 290

seconds; but it has, on occasion, taken
as long as 360 seconds. The difference
between the two distributions is that
performance varies about a mean of 305
when only chance is operative, whereas
it varies about a mean of 325 when cold
water in addition to chance affects performance.
A comparison of Tables 1 and 2
shows an overlap between values 290
and 340. Only for results between 270
and 290 is there assurance that only
chance has affected the variation. Similarly, it is clear that factors other than
chance alone are attributed only to results higher than 340 seconds.
It is not possible, however, to identify the cause frorn mere knowledge of
the number of seconds in the range
from 290 to 340. Exhibit 1 illustrates
these overlapping populations diagrammatically. The solid curve shows the
distribution of chance performances
alone and the dotted one shows the cold
water and chance distribution.
In the range from 290 to 340, the
cause can be determined only by an investigation. In industrial situations investigations for each occurrence in this
interval would be too costly. Hence, decisions to investigate are made under
uncertainty. These decisions introduce
the possibility of two different kinds of
error.
First, for any upper control limit less
than 340 there is the risk of investigat37

ing a chance performance. These unwarranted investigations are known as
Type I errors. Assume that the upper
control limit is set at 330. Now all performances over 330 will be investigated.
Since 5 percent of the chance performances are over 330 (shown on Table 1),
the probability of committing a Type I
error is .05.
The other kind of statistical error involves failure to investigate when an assignable cause is present. This is identified as a Type II error. With an upper
control limit of 330, the probability of
committing a Type II error is .67.8 (Table 2 shows that 67 percent of the cold
water performances have values less
than 330.)
After a cursory glance, an accountant
might observe that the probability of
committing a Type I error could be reduced to zero by increasing the upper
control limit to 340. The difficulty is
that this would raise the probability of
committing a Type II error to .87. It is
always true that the probability of committing a Type II error is increased if
the probability of committing a Type I
error is reduced by altering the control
limits. Likewise, the converse is true.
The problem to be resolved involves
striking the best balance between committing these two types of error.
Comparison of Conventional and
Statistical Applications

in

An example will serve to contrast a
statistical approach with the approach
to variance control conventionally used
by accountants. Bower Company manufactures classroom tables for colleges
and universities. One of the standard
sizes requires a standard time of 40
minutes for one man to assemble. When
a worker acquires the skill to perform
an average time of 35 minthe task
utes, he is given a raise and moved to a
more complex assembly job. If a worker
takes significantly longer than 40 minutes, an investigation is undertaken to
determine the difficulty.
Initially, then, we can think in terms
of three distinct populations. The values
of individual performances can come
from a population of values attributed
to standard times, improved times, or
s This probability assumes, of course, that cold wa.
ter is the only other alternative to chance. The
probability of committing a T ype I I error i s conventionally calculated for a specified mean (325 in
this case) other than the standard. Complications
would arise in calculating this probability if we
wanted to conside r the probabilityp distributions of
more than one assignable cause. In such an e xample I have used an averaging procedure for the
computation. This procedure is not difficult; but
since it is not ce ntral to the inte nt of thi s paper,
it is not illustrated here.
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Exhibit 1
OVERLAPPING DISTRIBUTIONS

270

290

305

unfavorable significant times. As the
foreman receives the results of individual performances, he has the task of
deciding which population each performance comes from and taking or
recommending action accordingly. The
worker may also be charged to make a
decision relative to these populations
and report to his foreman performance
which does not fall into the standard
population.
The accountant is in a position to be
helpful in this aspect of control by providing guidelines in the form of control
limits for the worker and his foreman.
Now let us see what kinds of guidelines might result from applying conventional and statistical control methods. As previously indicated, accountants commonly define control as "The
method and manner by which a person,
or an organization, operation, or other
activity is conformed to a desired plan
of action." 9 Strict adherence to this definition would require that all performances less than 40 minutes be classified
as coming from the improvement population and that all performances over
40 minutes be identified as unfavorably
significant. In practice, however, some
variation from standard is allowed before a performance is classified as out of
line and an investigation is undertaken.
For this reason, this definition of control is not operationally meaningful. It
does not explain the application of the
control process.
The amount of variation allowed in
practice is subjectively determined.
What factors the analyst considers have
not been set forth in the literature. In
talking with cost accountants, I have
been unable to identify any criteria they
9

Kohler, p. 127. (Emphasis Mine.]

340

apply when they determine significance.
From a methodological standpoint, they
most frequently seem to identify a variance in excess of 10 percent of standard
as significant although 5 or 7 percent
may also be used as cut-off points.
For our example, let us assume that
the 10 percent cut -off point is used.
Therefore, performance is followed up
if a worker completes his task in less
than 36 minutes or .if he takes longer
than 44 minutes (40 ± 10% of 40) .
Statistical procedures with various degrees of sophistication may also be used
with various control limits resulting.
The simplest of these procedures just
makes use of the chance concept. Two
ingredients are necessary. A probability
distribution of chance performances
must be constructed and the analyst
must specify the probability that he is
willing to run of incurring a Type I error. The probability distribution would
be prepared from performance observation with intuition used to cast out performances resulting from non - chance
causes. At the margin some investigations may be undertaken to substantiate
intuition. Assume that the distribution
shown in Table 3 (opposite) results.
Now the analyst chooses a control
limit which corresponds to the probability that he is willing to risk committing a Type I error. Probabilities
between .01 and .05 are most commonly
designated. A .05 probability would result in control limits of 34 and 46,
whereas 33 and 47 would be the control
limits with a .01 probability. The reasoning behind this is that 5 percent of
the chance performances are completed
in less than 34 minutes and 5 percent
take longer than 46 minutes. ( See Table 3.)
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Table 3
CHANCE PROBABILIT Y DIST RIBUT ION OF T IMES TAKEN TO ASSEMBLE
A CERT AIN LIN E OF TABLES
Probability

Minut es
"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

at least 32 but less than 33
34
33
35
34
36
35
38
36
40
38
42
40
44
42
45
44
46
45
47
46
at least 47 but less than 48

. 01
.04
.05
.06
.14
.20
.20
.14
.06
.05
.04
. 01
1.00

Given that a performance is completed in 34 minutes, 5 percent of the
time an investigation would fail to
reveal an assignable cause because only
chance would be affecting performance.
Thus, the probability of committing a
Type I error (making an unwarranted
investigation) is .05.10 The same logic
can be used to substantiate 46 as an
upper control limit associated with a
.05 probability of committing a Type I
error and also to verify 33 and 47 as
to This discussion involves separate consideration
of e ach hal f of t he di st ri but ion. That is, if a ce rtain performance takes 34 minutes, concern is
whether or not improvement has occurred —not
whether an unfavorable assignable cause has occurred. Similarly, whe n a val ue of 46 occurs, concern involves whether an unfavorable assignable
cause is pre se nt and not whether improvement occurs. Despite the fact that 10 percent of the chance
values fall outside of the control li mi ts of 34 and
46, (5 percent less than 34 plus 5 percent over 46),
the probabil it y of commit ti ng a Type I error may
be stated at .05 if for a given variance concern
rests with either unfavorable siggnnificance or favorable significance but not both. In stat istical terminology this is called a one - tailed test. If t he overlap between favorable and unfavorable populations
is so great that, with the occurrence of a given
variance, concern is over both favorable and unfavorable significance a two-tailed test should be
used. If a two-tailed test were used in conjunction
with Table 3 the probability of a Type I error
would be .10, corresponding to control limits 34
and 46.

control limits for the .01 probability of
committing a Type I error.
This procedure of selecting control
limits is called statistical because it involves explicit consideration of chance
factors. It is very elementary, however,
because the probability of committing a
Type I error is arbitrarily chosen. Some
accountants have associated this with
the control chart because quality control engineers frequently portray on such
a chart performance results along with
control limits determined in this simple
manner.
The control chart is simply a visual
representation of results. An example is
shown in Exhibit 2. Performances which
fall outside of the control limits would
signal the need for a follow -up.
Let us assume that the analyst designates a .05 probability of committing
a Type I error so that the control limits
are 34 and 46. These contrast with the
control limits of 36 and 44 that would
result from the application of the accountant's conventional 10 percent cut-

off point. One may now ask, "Is this
difference between 34 and 36 and between 44 and 46 really enough to affect
control ?" Well, reference to Table 3
indicates that 16 percent of the chance
performances are completed in less than
36 minutes and another 16 percent have
taken longer than 44 minutes. This
means that 32 percent of all chance
performances would be investigated under the conventional 10 percent rule in
contrast with 10 percent investigated
under the statistical method (with the
.05 level of significance considering both
tails) . Which method is superior dependsupon:
1. How often an assignable cause
would be detected under the accountant's conventional approach
(with tighter control limits in this
case) that would not be detected
until later under the statistical approach."
2. How costly the delay in detection of
an assignable cause is.
3. How much more costly the additional investigations under the accountant's conventional approach
would be.12
These factors were considered in a
simulated model designed to test variations of several statistical approaches
against the accountant's conventional
approach.13 The approaches were tested
under several different conditions. In
seven out of eight situations, each statistical approach was more economical
than the conventional approach.14 In
the other situation, only one of the six
statistical approaches yielded poorer control than the accountant's conventional
approach. By far the most significant
conclusion of this study is that the accountant's conventional method produced the poorest control results.

Exh i b i t 2

CONTROL CHART

Deficiencies of Foregoing
Statistical Application
The foregoing statistical procedure' is
the one most frequently used by those
considering the use of statistics for variIn some cases the statistical approach could yield
tighter control limits than the conventional approach. For these cases, the statistical approach
would detect assignable causes earlier than the conventional approach.

11

Time

40

For t hose circumst ance s in which the statistical
approach yields tighter control limits, the statistic
not the accountant 's approach, would
produce greater investigation cost.

1Y

Robert W. Koehler 'An Evaluation of Conventional and Statistical 'Methods of Accounting Variance Control," (Unpublished Doctoral Thesis, Department of Accounti ng and Fi nanci al Administration, Michigan State University, 1967), Chapter
Six.

13

11
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ance control. The reader will recall that most feared. One might also use an
the procedure is statistical because it average. Should it be a simple average
considers the probability distribution of or a weighted average? Progress on these
chance performances. This distribution problems will require additional reenables the analyst to select the proba- search.17
bility of committing a Type I error that
Difficulties also arise in estimating the
he is willing to risk. This particular pro- cost of an investigation and the losses
cedure appears to be incomplete because that would result from delays in detecit does not consider the probability of tion of an assignable cause. For example,
committing a Type II error. Moreover, the cost of an investigation will vary
it does not consider relevant economic depending upon the cause of the varifactors such as the cost of making an ance. Some assignable causes will be deinvestigation or losses that would result tected before others, depending upon
from delays in detection of an assignable the ordering of the steps in the investigative procedure. If only chance is prescause.
The reasons for these omissions seem ent, the cost is higher than it would be
clear even though they are not generally for an assignable cause because the inidentified. General acceptance of statis- vestigation must eliminate all other
tical procedures for variance control can causes before it can be known that a
be gained more quickly by recommend- Type I error has been made. Considering simple procedures that can be easily ing this, which estimate of costs should
applied. This simple procedure has been be used to incorporate the cost of an
used for quality control for at least 20 investigation into the model? Here
years. From all indications it has pro- again, additional study is needed.
vided satisfactory results and has cerIn summary, more advanced statistitainly been more effective than arbitrary cal procedures can accommodate estiintuition. There is little evidence to sug- mates of the:
gest that more advanced techniques
have been widely adopted for quality 1. Probability of committing a Type I
control.16
error.
A further deterrent to the use of more 2. Probability of committing a Type II
sophisticated procedures is that there is
error.
no clear -cut way of applying them. For 3. Cost of an investigation.
example, a Type II error is unique to 4. Cost of delay in detection of an assome particular alternative non - chance
signable cause.
population1 ' with a specified distribution and mean. Certainly there are dif- It is even possible to conceive of using
ficulties inherent in estimating such dis- such additional factors as:
tributions.
1. The prior probability that a given
In addition to this problem, there are
assignable cause is present.
always several alternatives to a chance
2. The probability that a given variance
population. That is, assignable causes
is associated With a given assignable
may result from improvement, faulty
cause.
equipment, faulty materials, illness, laziness, poor attitude, etc. Each of these
After the estimated value for these
populations has a separate distribution factors are obtained, there is the addiand each has a separate probability of tional problem of developing a model
committing a Type II error in conjunc- capable of organizing the factors to give
tion with the specified probability of the desired control limits. Of the several
committing a Type I error. The amount possible models one may yield more efof work is now substantially increased fective control limits in one case while
because estimates of the distributions as- another model may be better for ansociated with each assignable cause must other situation.
now be made. But what distribution do
we use in determining the probability The Way Toward Progress
of committing a Type II error? It would
The fact that the above factors all rebe possible to use the one associated
quire
estimation and that they are not
With the assignable cause considered
conclusive should not mitigate against
most likely to occur or to use the one
's This is the author's belief based upon reading
articles in Industrial Quality Control.

1

The non - chance populations used in this manus =ript were cold water in the shaving example and
improvement in the assembly example.

1"
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One possibility was used in my Ph.D. dissertation. Robert W. Koehler, "An Evaluation of Conventional and Statistical Methods of Accounting
Variance Control," (Unpublished Doctoral Thesis,
Department of Accounting and Financi al Administration, Michigan State University, 1967), Chapter
Six.
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their use in the statistical techniques.
Most information18 obtained for decision- making is estimated. We concentrate on determining what information
is relevant and on how to best estimate
this information. We certainly do not
eliminate techniques just because they
involve the use of estimates. If we did,
we would be left With very few tools or
perhaps with no field of accounting.
Considerable thought, much research,
some experimentation, and reports of
experiences will be needed to select the
best combination of factors to improve
on the estimates, and to develop the
best model. Better control limits are
bound to result by increasing the number of factors to be incorporated into
the model, but one must always determine whether the utility of this increased information is worth its cost of
acquirement. Now is the time to begin
researching, experimenting and reporting on the use of more advanced statistical procedures. Those firms which do not
have the necessary expertise to develop
and experiment with the more advanced
techniques can use the simple statistical
application that was outlined above.
Availability of Qualified
Accountants
In a telephone conversation on July 21,
1967, Mr. Justin Davidson 19 estimated
that 25 percent of the companies that
employ standard cost accounting have
internal talent capable of working with
statistical models. The remainder would
need outside help. Mr. Davidson thinks
that all of the big eight Certified Public
Accounting firms have staff skilled in
statistical applications. Some of the
smaller national firms also have personnel proficient in this field.
There is a growing awareness in the
business community of the advantages
of statistical and mathematical applications. Accordingly, at the college level,
business curricula are requiring heavier
emphasis in these areas. At the postgraduate level, there have been an increasing number of mathematics and
statistics seminars to better acquaint
professional people with the advantages
of applications in these areas. There are,
then, at least a sufficient number of per18

Even reported periodic income is an inconclusive
figure. Financial accounting theory is concerned
with how to best measure or estimate periodic income. It is even concerned with criteria for income
recognition. We are all fami liar wit h t he many acceptable alternatives.
rs Mr. Davidson is a partner with Touche, Ross,
Bailey, and Smart. He has long be en act ive in applying statistical techniques to auditing and accounting problems.
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sonnel available to begin establishing
systems for statistical variance control
and others are being educated for such
work.
Recommendations
It is, therefore, recommended that statistical control limits be established at
the performance level. Perhaps it would
be wise to begin with a few of the more
important operations. If the savings
from more effective control readily compensate for the set -up costs as Mr. Davidson and this writer feel they will,
these procedures would logically be extended to include more operations.
Conclusions
The purpose of this paper has been to
set forth the compelling reason for using statistical applications for accounting variance control. This reason emanates from the fact that chance factors

cause variation in labor and overhead
efficiency, material usage, volume, and
in some non - manufacturing expenses.
Since probability statistics evaluates patterns of chance occurrences, its use in
variance control is logical. A sin.iulation
model referred to in this paper indicated
that statistical techniques also yield
more economical and effective control.
One simple statistical application was
outlined. The use of more advanced applications poses a host of problems which
should be resolved through additional
research and experimentation.
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Reliability Cycle Sampling
for Control of Investories
CONTINUAL SAMPLING BRINGS OUT DEFICIENCIES MORE RELIABLY THAN THE COMPLETE COUNT.

By Daniel F. Fallon
Many techniques are available for the
control ' of investment in inventories.
Great savings can be gained with the
installation of these controls but, unfortunately, most of these controls are
expensive. Their use is thus limited to
businesses which can afford this degree
of sophistication.
The purpose of this paper is to show
how the periodic sampling approach
can evolve into a computerized system
of inventory control or also be beneficial
to companies who wish better control
of quantities, fewer losses and possible
reduction of time spent on 100% periodic or physical inventories, with the
attendant demand for stopping production and the need for overtime.
Even though our technological progMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968
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ress in inventory control has advanced
to a remarkable degree, we find that today in many businesses no fundamental
advancement has taken place beyond
the periodic or physical inventories. Periodic inventories are a necessary part
of inventory control but they are of
little help in solving problems developing from flows of materials and since
the inventory count is important what
is needed is a new approach to ensure
an accurate, effective and economic inventory count control.
The approach to improved inventory
quantity control and for further development of control techniques is a combination of cycle inventory reliability
sampling techniques and the adaptation and modification of quality control type techniques for the development of critical values and confidence
41

levels in random or block sampling
checks.

Methods for Sampling
In the implementation of a system for
developing improved quantity control
and further development of control techniques there are three alternative methods for cycle sampling inventory control:
1. Block system.
2. Recorder system.
3. Receiver system.
The suitability of the particular system to be employed would be dependent upon individual requirements.
Block system. Sampling under this
method is conducted on a straight sequential basis according to the arrangement of inventory records. An arbitrary
goal is established for the completion of
the population during a given time. Little consideration can be given to relative usage - values of the items in each
grouping. This system is relatively easy
to establish and, from the standpoint of
controlling the program, personnel and
record - keeping, it is the easiest to maintain.
It is rather astonishing that a relatively simple block sampling can reveal
additional items not considered in the
inventory. In large inventories scanning
by the computer reveals many items
not considered even though the most
simple of approaches from beginning to
end is utilized.
Since all sampling is on a straight sequential basis, it is possible to prearrange the sampling of the entire population in advance, and thus facilitate
and give time for any advance physical
movement preparations that may be required by inventory personnel. The
most important advantage to the use
of the block system is that from an introductory and organizational standpoint. This system, easy to control and
administer, offers a practical way to begin the program and gain the confidence
of the people involved.
Reorder system. This system is established on a random basis. It is more
sophisticated than the block system but
offers the most opportunity for excellent results. Its employment on an effective basis could transcend the advantage of accurate inventory control to a
technique and inventory tool which
would make possible the better use of
capital, improved turnover, and, most
important perhaps, the best possible
approach toward scientific inventory
42

management available.
Each item reaching the reorder point
is compared to the physical inventory
position at that particular time. Reorder
points based on economical order points,
safety factors, and order quantities are
regulated and categorized to match a
usage - value.
Receiver system. This system is the
least complicated of the three systems.
It is relatively simple to operate and
unlike the block and reorder systems requires no special listing of materials to
be sampled. Counting is done at its
lowest level so that the work is kept to
a minimum. The receiving document is
used and, in addition to the current
receipt, the on -hand balance is confirmed and reported as the new material is received.
If economical ordering methods are
utilized, we have a maximum economy
of counting relative to usage - value. The
receiver system is by far the easiest to
install, use and supervise. However, it
does not give the high degree of safety
inherent in the reorder system.

The Cycle Sampling Approach
Two advantages to be gained in pursuing the sampling program on a cycle
basis are:
1. Little or no extra cost is incurred
because regular personnel works on
the program during regular hours.
2. Possible complete or partial elimination of the loss of production days.
A combination of economical ordering methods with the reorder or receiver
system seems to be the best approach to
setting up an efficient control system.
O R D E R I N G P A T T E R N S . The use of economical lot -size and reorder points will
indicate reordered items relative to particular usage - value. High usage value
items will be ordered frequently and the
book records will be checked an equal
number of times through cycle counting. Low usage value items will be ordered infrequently and the book records
reviewed an equal number of times. In
effect, an inventory record review on an
"ABC" material classification will be established without any additional work.
It is apparent that a small business
could have essentially the same basic application in this respect as larger companies. The system developed could
work on a computerized basis or manual
basis.
Some of the steps involved in starting
the program are enumerated below:

1. Set up Inventory Groupings. Groupings may be geographic, by storage
locations, or by family. A good deal
of thought must be given to grouping; unless it is properly determined
it will affect the efficiency of the
program to a large degree.
2. Decide on Sampling Frequency. In
addition to frequency determination
we would also decide on whether to
employ the block, reorder or receiver
system.
3. Define Allowable Limits for Units,
Short or Over. The definition is dependent upon value ranges in inventory. Here we can make use also
of all historical information regarding previous experience with losses.
4. Evaluate and Determine the Critical
Values. Since our sampling may produce results which will require judgment and interpretation to measure
results, it is necessary that management decide upon levels of confidence— overage or shortage —that
will be acceptable or unacceptable,
making samplings atypical or defective.
5. Review Entire Group When Necessary. In a group when too many sample poorly it is necessary to review
the entire group and in particular
the records and procedures.
A summarization of the procedure involved in a program directed toward inventory sampling cycle counting follows:
a. Select items to be cycled.
b. Prearrange items if block system.
c. Prepare working materials for personnel.
d. Control paperwork and cutoff of
transactions.
e. Organize personnel.
f. Schedule specific times for sampling.
g. Print out sampling.
h. Compare balances.
i. Review samples and recheck defective samples.
j. Indicate new balances.
k. Adjust perpetual balances.
1. Adjust accounting records in general ledger.
m. Summarize results in report form indicating extent of population covered and the net adjustment required to bring records into agreement.
n. Summarize results by items of significant value to determine why variance resulted.
M A N A G E M E N T ACC OU NTING /O CTOBE R, 1968

4. A product is being confused with
material that has been written off.
Table 1
SAMPLING OF A RAW MAT ERIAL ACCOUNT
TR

U/M

T
1
T
2
T
3
T
3
T
3
T
3
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
2
T
3
TOTALS ACCOUNT 109 -2

Cost
73.80
15.30
14.60
17.90
17.90
36.36
30.58
20.14
24.46
22.58
16.14
21.17
16.48
21. 01
14.53
16.62
14.97
7.00

Table 1 above is an example of an
inventory sampling which has exceeded
the prescribed limits. The indication is
that in the overall account sampling
22,2051bs. were lost.
This sampling indicates a condition
beyond the limits of acceptability because it apears that the paperwork procedures have in some cases broken down
to the extent that usage is not being reported accurately. Not present in this
report is an extended analysis checked
to year -to -date usage and on -hand balances.
The dollar adjustment of $5,028.57
would be made at this time in the accounting records and be reflected against
reserves for this kind of loss situation.
The important consideration here is not
the dollar amount but rather how do
the individual losses rank in significance.
Since this account is a raw material type
account, the likelihood of a loss rather
than a gain is more apt to be present.
There are four .items comprising the
bulk of this loss, and since the total
check exceeded $125,000 the loss sustained exceeded the expected result of
about 1 % by an addition 3 % in this
particular sample.
From an accounting standpoint the
areas of investigation are evident and
any revision of practices and procedures
would be beneficial to future samplings
and control. It would be virtually impossible to expect this kind of pin- pointing of problem areas under a system of
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Quantity

Extended

1567 CR
745
579 CR
675
675
998
2586 CR
5301 CR
1324 CR
1178
1648
1025 CR
1996 CR
6121 CR
1762 CR
2984 CR
883 CR
1996 CR
22205 CR

1156.45
113.99
84.53
120.83
120.83
362.87
790.80
1067.62
323.85
265. 99
265.99
216.99
328.94
1286.02
256.02
495.94
132.19
139.72
5028.57

cost
CR
CR

CR
CR
CR

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

periodic inventory. When management
relies exclusively on perpetual records
and annual physical count, the problems always remain hidden or obscured
because the shortages in physical quantity may be balanced from faulty recording on the perpetual records. The
sampling figures illustrated above signal
management that something is wrong
today -not a year later. Corrective steps
can be taken. On the other hand in the
majority of cases where samples are
within limits we have the application of
the principle of management by exception.
Table 2 below is an interesting byproduct of the control to be gained from
the use of sampling because it demonstrates certain serious recording errors.
In the actual sample, which was a
great deal longer, there were 25 items
listed in this manner, indicating the
following failures:
1. Wrong accounts in the general ledger.
2. The finished product shipments but
no inventory receipts.
3. No standard cost has been developed
for a product.

The actual adjustment indicated here
was 2,312 units of product or about
$ 3,000.00 gain.
Practical Application
In the day - today application of the
cycle sampling approach most important statistics are those that are readily
understandable to management, such as
the unit loss indicated on the current
sample and the dollar adjustments required to correct this deficiency.. Comparison of perpetual against physical
inventories and up- dating of the records give management the assurance
that there will be fewer "surprises" or
interruptions in production which
might prove costly. Sales from stock are
less difficult because the adjustments
correct the specific item balances.
Summary
The approach to improved inventory
control and overall better management
is a continuous periodic sampling on a
weekly basis covering the entire population as many times as it is economically feasible. Off -count conditions are
discovered as they arise and not merely
at the end of the year. At physical inventory time it is usually too late to
find out what happened, much less to
try to take remedial action.
The best system is a combination of
the cycle and physical approaches. Some
inventories can be managed effectively
enough to obviate the necessity of
physical inventories. Inventories such
as work -in- process lend themselves more
toward the physical approach because
of the extreme care that must be exercised in transfers between inventories
on the ledgers.
It should be emphasized that sampling will bring out deficiencies even
more reliably than the complete count.
The periodic sampling of items can
be performed more carefully and accurately than would be possible under
the pressure of the total annual count.

Table 2
TR

U/M
1
1
2

Cost
-

Extended cost

Qty.

No cost in record

310 CR
780 CR
644
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Use of Predetermined Costs in the
Life Insurance Industry
IF APPLIED ON A PER POLICY BASIS, PREDETERMINED COSTS OFFER AN IMPORTANT TOOL IN DEVELOPING THE
OVERALL REPORTING SYSTEM.

Standard costing is certainly not a new
area in cost accounting —but the use
of predetermined costs is usually restricted to manufacturing concerns.
What about the use of predetermined
costs in a life insurance company? Can
management follow the principles applicable to a manufacturing concern?
The answer is, of course, no. But the
principle of management by exception
through the use of established costs
can be applied to a life insurance
company.
With regard to the manufacture of a
product, the life insurance company
can be viewed as the producer of a
"risk prevention" package. Cost accumulation can be traced from policy
creation through underwriting and
issue, service and various forms of
termination. So we can see that when
management analyzes operations, much
more than mortality experience should
be taken into consideration.
The need for predetermined costs
is obvious. But creation of and application of such figures is more difficult. One reason is the presence of
generally accepted accounting principles. The "matching" principle of
traditional accounting is not fully applicable to life insurance revenues;
profits, which emerge slowly per policy,
are covered by a mass of figures.
Does there exist an accounting
method of fixing cost performance?
The actuary has a tool to fit the need
"like a glove " — the asset share. And
as architect and keeper of the information system, the accountant should not
44

only be aware of the existence of asset
shares, but should use the asset share
to aid in his overall reporting.
Through standard costing in the
true accounting sense is not used in
an insurance company, the preliminaries of standard costing (expense allocation, budget preparation, etc.) are
used. After the budget has been prepared, we can introduce a method of
determining the effect of our predetermined costs on profit —enter the
asset share.
Asset Shares
The asset share is a per policy measure
of worth. It has been defined as:
. . . The expected amount of money
per $1,000 of insurance held by
the company at the end of each

GEORGE E. MANNERS, JR.
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degree at Georgia State College, Atlanta. He holds an B.B.A. degree in
Actuarial Science from Georgia State
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policy year (usually the test is for a
maximum of twenty or thirty years)
after payment of death claims, expenses, dividends, and surrender values
and allowance for actual interest earnings . . . The accumulated "fund" at
the end of any policy year is divided
by the number of surviving and persisting policyholders to obtain the
"asset share" allocable to each policy
of $1,000 . . . based on anticipated,
actual experience rather than tabular
experience.'
Through the use of the asset share,
management can view the "anticipated
results of anticipated costs ". This is,
of course, very important to top management of any going concern —but
particularly important to insurance
management. If costs become too high
in a manufacturing firm, management
can resort to raising product price. On
the other hand, the level premium
contract issued by an insurance company means that "product price" cannot be raised throughout the life of
the policy.
The next step should be the development of a general formula:
Let x = insured's issue age.
t = policy year.
P. = gross premium.
DBt = death benefit (usually $1,000) during the tth policy year.
q,t = probability of death of an insured
(issue age x) at the end of the tth
policy year.
CV +t = the tth year's cash value of a policy
issued at age x.
wt = probability of withdrawal (lapse) at
end of the tth policy year.
x

By George E. Manners, Jr

S . S . H u e b n e r a n d K e n n e t h Bla c k , J r . , L i f e I n su r a xc e , M e r e d it h P u b lis h i n g C o m p a n y , N e w Yo r k ,
19 64 , p p . 357 -58.
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tAex = the per policy asset share at the end
of the tth policy year, issue age x.
i = assumed "actual" interest rate.
EP
t x = the effective premium at the beginning of the tth policy year (tE P x =
Px
— tth year expenses).
tDx = the tth year coupon or dividend on a
policy issued at age x. (Not always
present).
The tth asset share is defined as:
A8
(t — IAeX+ tE P X) (l + 1 ) —
t x = (D&) qx + t — (tcvx)wt —tDx
1 — qx+t — wt

never

given

In order to transform the formula
into a verbal statement, keep in mind
the tth policy year. At the beginning of
the tth policy year, the policy in question has "accumulated" an asset share
Of t- J A S x . The tth premium is then
paid. Policy expenses are subtracted
to get the effective premium and this
is added to the fund. This amount is
then accumulated at the assumed interest rate for one year. At the end of
the year, a dividend (t D X ) is paid and
subtracted from the "fund ". This
would equal our tth asset share if there
was no death, surrender or lapse;
therefore, we must further subtract the
probable death payments (DBt . q.+t )
and probable termination payments
(tcvx . wt).
Because we are dealing in probabilities, our "fund" must be on hand
survival and persistence.
with
Therefore, our above "fund" is divided
by the probability of survival and persistence (1- qa +t-wt) to give us the
expected per policy contribution at end
of the tth policy year (tA S x) ?
As one can see from the asset share
formula discussion, the basic component parts in the determination of asset
share are: (1) mortality, (2) persistency, (3)' interest and (4) expenses. An
actuary will also include mortality, interest, expenses in the gross premium
charged and dividends paid, as well
as mortality and interest in the policy
cash values.
Are the assumptions as to the four
basic component parts of an asset share
the same as the assumptions used in
the original calculations involved in
policy values? They do not have to be
the same —as a matter of fact, they
almost
are. Experience shows, for
instance, that expenses have probably
grown and actual interest is usually
much larger than the conservative figure
used in basic policy values.
2

I
may be apparent that, on the grounds of expediency, it is assumed in our asset share formula
that expenses occur at the beginning of the year,
and deaths and termination at the end of the year.
Actually, all are incurred throughout the policy
year.
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The most controllable element of
an asset share (and of the company
itself) is expense. This is why the
asset share should be a tool of every
insurance executive.
The actuary has historically used the
asset share only at the time of policy
creation in order to determine the
long -range effect upon surplus. This
primary use is very important and
should not be disregarded. But, as
managerial accountants, we should also
be concerned with "current" operating
performance. It is the opinion here
that the asset share is just as valuable
in evaluating current, budgeted experience as it is in evaluating long -run
effects on surplus. If a certain line of
business is several years old, the original
estimates involved in asset share studies
may be completely unreasonable, and
a comparison of current estimates
against actual experience may be a
more effective presentation to management. This is not overlooking the fact
that the long -run analysis is just as
effective in certain respects.
The Cost Study
After the budget has been prepared
with expenses allocated by departments
or function, they should be further
allocated so that they can be used on
a "per policy" basis. As is true of any
other cost study, this will require a
complete understanding of cost behavior.
First, costs should be studied in
relation to "time "; that is, what time
in the life of an insurance policy costs
can be assumed to occur. Second, costs
should be studied in relation to "movement"; that is, how do costs fluctuate
in relation to, say, size of premium or
amount of insurance —are they variable
or nonvariable?
With respect to the time at which
costs are incurred, a distinction is
made between the first policy year and
all remaining years ( first year and renewal) . Heavy first year per policy costs
are naturally assumed to occur in any
insurance company: the agent's commission the tist year is usually at least
fifty percent of the gross premium;
heavy underwriting expenses per policy
are involved; the majority of per policy
clerical expense is experienced in the
first year (policy information must be
assembled to be forwarded to various
departments and a mass of data processing costs incurred in placing the
policy on a "master file ") . Of course,

many expenses are incurred in the
renewal years as well: premium notices
must be run and premiums collected,
policyholder correspondence must be
carried on, etc. The job of allocating
these costs between first year and renewal is no easy task; therefore, an
accounting system which separates
these costs for future study is of
paramount importance!
The allocation of costs between the
variable and nonvariable elements is
also difficult —but here again, a responsible information system can do
much to ease the difficulty. Variable
expenses can be applied to both
amount of premium and amount of
insurance. The major variable cost
with respect to premium size is, of
course, the agent's commission. There
are also ancillary expenses involved
with each agent which usually vary in
proportion to premium size. When we
consider variable expenses that react
to policy size, we think of the care
exercised over large policies (especially
the first year) . Also, the greater the
policy, usually the greater the underwriting expense.
Fixed expenses are usually clerical
expenses incurred in the functions of
policy issue and service mentioned
previously, as well as depreciation, etc.
Of course, some so- called fixed expenses may, in fact, be closer to semi variable in nature. In the company
study of expenses involved in this
paper, first year dollar expenses per
policy did take on a semi - variable
characteristic. It was found that these
expenses showed a base of twenty-five
dollars plus sixty percent of the age
of the insured. This is easily justified
when one considers the additional
underwriting costs associated with the
applicant's age.
After the preliminary cost study has
been completed, the next step should
be the application of these expenses
on a per policy basis. Table 1 illustrates
this expense application.
First, notice how expenses have been
divided into the following categories:
(1) dollar expenses and (2) percentage
of premium expenses. First -year expenses per policy were budgeted at $25
plus 60% of age 35, or $46 (Notice
that the $46 per policy expense will be
$1.84 per $1,000 for a $25,000 policy).
First -year expenses per $1,000 were
assumed to be $2.25, giving a total of
$4.09 per $1,000 for a policy of
$25,000. All renewal dollar expenses
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1. Federal income tax
2. Extent of immediate payment of
claims
3. Frequency of premium payments
4. Average policy sizes, etc.
The lack of data is not only present
here, but is common to many life insurance companies. Most life insurance accounting systems only break
down costs by lines of business (ordinary, group, credit, investments, etc.)
and not by function. The Life Office
Management Association has done
much to foster functional costing, but
only a small percentage of the country's
insurance companies have adopted this
organization's recommendations.
T h e Asset Share and Expected
Profit
Before going into an extended illustration of asset share calculations,
let us look at an asset share's relation to
profit. At the end of each policy year,
the "fund" created by each policy must
be used to provide a "contingency"
reserve which must be large enough to
pay all expected death claims. These
reserves, known as "terminal reserves,"
are defined as the present value of
future benefits less the present value
46

Table 1
EST IMATED PER $1,000 EXPENSES
Plan— Ordinary Life
Is s ue ag e- 35
Amount of insurance — $25,000
Gross premium per $1,000 — $24.54
A. Dollar expenses:
Per policy
First year
Renewal

Per $1,000

$46. 00 ( 1.84/1,000)
3.60 ( .14/1, 000)

T otal per $1,000

$2.25
.20

$4.09
. 34

Total Commission

1
2
3
4
5 -10
After

Other

60 %
12
7
7
7
2

33%
03
01
01
01
00

Other

Total

%

Policy Year

07%
03
01
03
03
03

%

B. % Expenses
%

were estimated to be $3.60 per policy
plus $ZO per $1,000. In this $25,000
policy, this would prove to be $34
per $1,000 in all renewal years.
Considering the percentage of premium expenses, the major factor is
agent's commission: first -year commission in the policy illustrated is sixty
percent of the gross premium; second
year is .twelve percent; years three
through ten require seven percent; all
remaining years require two percent. In
addition, it was believed that each
agent would incur extra expenses of
fifty -five percent of the first -year commission, twenty -five percent of the
second -year commission, and seven
percent of each remaining commission.
Other percentages of premium expenses
allocated were seven percent the first
year and three percent in all renewal
years.
Separation of policy years in Table
1 was done so that a general computer
program could be written to include all
combinations of agency commissions.
However, much more elaborate expense analysis should be undertaken;
only a lack of available data prevents
further discussion here. Other considerations and refinements would be:

100%
18
11
11
11
05

C. Total expenses: (Per $1,000)
Policy year
% of prem ium
$
Total

1
100
4.09

2
18
.34

3
11
.34

4
11
.34

5 -10
11
.34

After
05
.34

$28.63

$4.76

$3.04

$3.04

$3.04

$1.57

of future premiums. Therefore, "profit"
will be the yearly increase in our "fund"
after deduction for contingency reserves.
Exhibits 1 and 2 demonstrate a
complete asset share and profit calculation (the interest rate is 5% death
benefit $1,000, policy size $15,000,
issue age 5, gross premium $13.20) .
Notice how slowly profit emerges and
the effect on first -year profit exercised
by first -year expenses. This may or may
not be a disturbing influence depending
on how management accepts first -year
expenses. Company policy may "demand" heavy selection costs. Management may view such costs as a necessary
ingredient in the control of mortality
costs.3
It may seem that the time and expense involved in such a cost study
far outweigh the usefulness of the
information received. Not so! Through
the use of a generalized computer
program, data can be processed at
micro - second speed. A company can
group its existing plans by age and
amount of insurance, and make expected profit calculations with little
effect on regular operations.
Henry H. Thling, "The Functions of Selection
and Issue," Proceedings of the Life Ofice Management Association; Life Office Management Association, 1962, p. 142.

The computer program written to
calculate asset shares must, for management's sake, be completely general.
If original calculations show a "poor"
profit based on budgeted expenses,
management must be able to see at
once how a different decision will affect
profit on future issues. Let us give
an example: Suppose the present value
of future profit on a certain plan proves
to be negative under the assumed expenses (and management believes
profit may never occur). If the program is general enough, premium or
dollar expense figures can be varied
and results viewed immediately. A
decision could be made to raise the
policy fee on future issues.
Applying Asset Shares
Now that the use of predetermined
costs and their effect on per policy
profit has been discussed, the principle of management by exception
should follow. The major goal of any
cost system in which standards are set
is the use of these standards in the
analysis of actual performance. Of
course, the idea of predetermined cost
as presented in this paper is not to
"apply" these costs throughout the
period as is done in "actual" standard
costing. Therefore, a method of life
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING!OCTOBER, 1968

Exhibit 1
ASSET SHARE AND PROFIT
DEATH
RATE Q

LAPSE
RATE W

1 -Q -W

1

.0 0 0 5 1
.00046
.00042
.00040
.00038
.00037
.00039
.00 043
.0 0 0 5 1
.00055
.0 0 0 6 1
.00067
.00075
.0 0 0 8 1
.00085
.00087
.00089
.00090
.00092

.1 60
.084
.0 60
.044
.0 32
.0 24
.024
.0 2 4
.0 24
.0 16
.016
.0 16
.016
.0 16
.0 16
.0 16
.016
.0 16
.0 16

.83949
.91554
.93958
.95560
.96762
.97563
.9 7 5 6 1
.97557
.97549
.98345
.98339
.98333
.98325
.98319
.98315
.98313
.9 8 3 1 1
.98 310
.98308

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

EFFECTIVE
PREMIUM

Q X DB

CASH
VALUE

W X CV

.51
.4 6
.42
.4 0
.3 8
.37
.3 9
.4 3
.51
.5 5
.61
.67
.75
.81
.85
.87
.8 9
.9 0
.92

.0 0
7. 1 8
14 .5 8
22 .2 0
30 .0 4
38 .0 9
46 .3 3
54 .7 6
72 .1 1
80 .2 4
88. 51
96 .9 2
10 5 .5 0
11 4. 26
12 3 . 2 1
132 .37
14 1. 75
15 1 .3 6
16 1 .2 0

.00
.60
.87
.98
.9 6
.91
1.11
1.31
1. 73
1.28
1.42
1.55
1.69
1.83
1.97
2. 1 2
2. 2 7
2.42
2.58

4. 1 2 10.38
11 . 3 1
11 . 3 1
11 . 3 1
11 . 3 1
11 .3 1
11 .3 1
11 . 3 1
12 . 1 0
12.10
12. 10
12 . 1 0
12.10
12.10
12.10
12.10
12 . 1 0
12.10

insurance policy organization must be
worked out so that actual performance
can be compared with estimated performance. This can be accomplished by
"grouping" insurance in force by
age and amount of insurance within
each plan and issue year. In this way,
expected profit (from predetermined
asset share calculations) can be shown
side by side with actual results. Moreover, not only can profit be studied,
but also each item involved in income
determination may be evaluated (expenses, death claims, premium income,
etc.) .
Exhibit 3 shows how the figures
involved in the calculation of estimated
profit can be applied and compared
with recorded amounts. When large
variances occur, further steps can be
taken to break down each individual
grouping.

COUPON OR TERMINAL
RESERVE
DIVIDEND
6. 3 2
12 . 8 6
19 .6 2
26 .5 7
33 .7 4
41 . 0 8
48 .6 1
56 . 3 0
72 .1 1
80 . 2 4
88 . 5 1
96 .9 2
10 5 .5 0
11 4 .2 6
123 .21
13 2 .3 7
14 1. 75
15 1. 36
16 1 .2 0

.55
.8 0
1.05
1.30
1.71
2. 1 2
2.54
2.94
3.78
4.50
5. 2 2
5.64
5.78
5.91
6.11
6.33
6.47
6.60
6.75

The "actual" premium income figure
may need further discussion (Exhibit
3) . The total premium figure should
include not only "received" premiums
but also due and unpaid premiums for
renewal policies. For first -year policies,
the figure should include deferred premiums as well as due and unpaid premiums.
Deferred premiums are the expected
premiums to be received in the coming
"calendar year" that are needed to
complete the current "policy year ".4
* Without an understanding of insurance principles,
the idea of de fe rred pre miums may be hard t o di gest , but the i dea of t ermi nal reserves has already
been discussed. Reserves are se t up under the assumption that all pre miums are paid annuall y and
are paid to the next policy annive rsary; this, of
course, is not true. Because of this assumption, the
reserve liability is overstated. Therefore, a deferred
premium is a corresponding overstatement of assets
equal to the amount of premiums expected to comple te t he poli cy year -this a "ne t" (before expense
loading) figure, the deferred premium included in
our cost comparison should be a gross (after ex.
pense loading) figure.

Exhibit 2
EXPENSES
POLICY YEAR EXPENSES
%
AND
$
TAXES
TOTAL

1
1.00
4. 1 2
17. 32

2
.1 8
.44
2. 8 2

3
.11
.44
1. 89

4
.11
.4 4
1. 8 9

5 -10
.11
.44
1.89

AFTER
.05
.4 4
1.10

A. DOLLAR EXPENSES PER POLICY
FIRST YEAR
RENEWAL

28 .0 0
3.60

PER 1000

TOTAL PER 1000 FOR AVERAGE POLICY OF
4. 1 2
.44

2. 25
.2 0

B. % EXPENSES -

2
3
4
5 -10

AFTER

TOTAL
COMMISSION
60.00
12 . 0 0
7. 0 0
7.00
7.00
2.00

OTHER
%

POLICY
YEAR
1

.3 3
.0 3
.01
.0 1
.01
.0 0

MA N A G EM E N T ACC OU NTING / O CTOBE R, 1968

OTHER

TOTAL

.07
.0 3
.03
.03
.03
.0 3

1.00
.1 8
.11
.11
.11
.05

15, 000

ASSET
SHARE
6.422.51
12 .9 5
23 .8 5
35 .0 0
46 . 3 6
57 .9 2
69. 71
93 .9 6
10 6 .8 0
11 9. 59
13 2. 62
14 6 .1 9
16 0 .3 5
17 5 .0 9
19 0 .4 4
20 6 .5 3
223 .42
24 1. 13

A.S.LESS
RESERVE
12 . 74 10 . 3 5 6.672.721.26
5.28
9.31
13 .4 1
21. 85
26 .5 6
31 .0 8
35 . 7 0
40.69
46 .0 9
51.88
58 .0 7
64 . 7 8
72 .0 6
79 .9 3

PROFIT
FOR YR
12 . 74 2.39
3.68
3. 9 5
3.98
4.02
4.03
4.10
4.27
4.71
4.52
4.62
4.99
5.40
5.79
6.19
6.71
7.28
7. 87

PRESENT VALUE OF
FUTURE PROFIT
4.2.36
57 . 8 6
58. 25
57 . 3 0
56 .0 3
54 . 6 3
53 .1 3
51 . 5 8
47. 97
45.88
43.23
40 . 6 4
37 .8 2
34 .4 8
30 .5 4
25 . 9 8
20 . 7 8
14 . 7 8
7. 87

that
These "accruals" are needed
expected premium income can be compared with actual premiums.
Expected premiums used in profit
calculations are all assumed to be annual (collected once a year) while
actual premiums are paid monthly,
quarterly, semi - annually, or annually.5
Of course, due and unpaid death claims
and surrender payments, as well as due
and uncollected investment income,
should be included in their respective
"actual" figures.
so

POLICY
YEAR

Analysis of Variance
As is true of any cost system which
establishes a predetermined set of figures, variance from the recorded figures
is naturally expected. Management's
analysis and use of these deviations
are the important end results. Variance
analysis in life insurance operations
(as presented in this paper) cannot be
treated in the usual "textbook" manner. Each segment of operations will
have to be studied with regard to its
controllable and noncontrollable elements.
An "unfavorable variance" in death
claims, for example, is certainly a noncontrollable item when actual operations are concerned. The company may
participate in industry risk prevention
programs and decide to exercise better
underwriting procedures in the future,
but the figure is still uncontrollable
with respect to current operations. The
same conclusion is "possible" when an
unfavorable variance occurs in surPremiums paid more than once a ye ar usually include a "made loading" or an addit ional charge for
interim premium collection. This will cause premium income figures to vary from the expected,
but management shoul d be aware of t hi s.

5
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Exhibit 3
ANALYSIS OF ACTUAL PERFORMANCE
P la n
gro u p

Is s u e
ye ar

I s s u e a ge
group

O. L.

66

05

$ 5,000

15

$ 82, 000

$xxxx

$xxx

$x xx

$x xx

$xxx

$xxx

O. L .

66

05

15,000

10

14 0 , 0 0 0

xx x x

xxx

xxx

xx x

xxx

xxx

o.L.

66

05

25,000

2

50,000

xxxx

xxx

xxx

xxx

xxx

xxx

O.L.

63

25

25,000

xx

xx x x

xx xx

xxx

xxx

xx x

xxx

xxx

O.L.

63

25

50,000

xx

xx xx

xx xx

xxx

xxx

xxx

xxx

xx x

O. L .

60

65

5,000

xx

xx xx

xx xx

xx x

xxx

xxx

xx x

xxx

O. L .

60

65

15,000

xx

xx xx

xxxx

xx x

xxx

xx x

xxx

xx x

$xxx xx

$xxxx

$xxxx

$xxxx

$xxxx

$xxxx

xx xx x

xx xx

xx xx

xx xx

xxxx

xx xx

Fa ce amount
group

Number
of p o l i c i e s

To t a l
am o un t

"Act u al" fi g u r e s

Premiu m
in co m e

In t e re s t
earn ed

Dea th S s u r r e n d e r
c l a im s

D iv id e n d Ex p en s es P r o f i t
p a id

1
" A c t u a l " f i g u r e s a r e no t used f o r l a c k of d a t a a v a i l a b l e t o t h e w r i t e r .
2
N o t ic e t h a t t h e t o t a l am ount i n ea ch " gr o u p " do e s no t h a ve t o c o i n c i d e w i t h t h e num ber of p o l i c i e s an d amo unt - - - b e c a u s e t h e d a t a h a s b een
gr o u p e d !

derwriting, policy service, claims, and
agency expense) . Additional separation
should be made between first -year and
renewal as well as assumed variable and
nonvariable accounts.
Conclusion
The level premium agreement in a
life insurance contract calls for management to exert maximum effort in
the cost control area. Each function
in the insurance company should be

viewed as a distinct cost center. This
paper has attempted to present application and analysis of predetermined
costs through the application and
analysis of "per policy" costs.
The ideas and theory behind the
asset share were developed and are
applied in the actuarial function of
life insurance. It has been our purpose
to help the management accountant
use this "cost" tool in developing his
overall reporting system.

Revenue Service have indicated that inventories valued using direct costing
procedures are not acceptable for external or tax reporting purposes, many
companies continue to eliminate more
and more fixed costs each year in the
valuation of their inventories for external purposes. Such companies are coming closer and closer to the use of full
direct costing for both internal and external reporting purposes.
Having spent fourteen years of my
professional life as a practising certified
public accountant, I feel that it is misleading to value inventories on a direct

costing basis for external reporting purposes. It does not appear that the American Institute of C.P.A.'s, the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Internal Revenue Service are going to
change their position very soon. Therefore, in conclusion, I say let's not fool
our stockholders with inventory values
which are ultraconservative. Let's use
direct costing where it is accepted and
understood — internally.
Charles T. Smith, Jr.
Vice President
Henderson Advertising Agency, Inc.
Greenville,S.C.

is

render payments, but better policyholder service (a controllable element)
could be a definite factor.
As previously stated, the major controllable element isolated by insurance
cost variance analysis expense. Any expense variance will be one of "spending". This spending variance will be difficult to examine unless the information
system separates expenses for future
analysis. Expense accounts should be
shown for all insurance functions (un-

FROM DIRECT TO ABSORPTION

in-

(Continued from Page 6)
methods. Ratios between the value of
the two inventories are then computed
and used during the next six -month period in adjusting the monthly book inventories, which are maintained on a
direct costing basis, to an absorption
costing basis for external reporting purposes. Provided that the mix of the inventories does not change materially,
this method appears acceptable for
terim reporting purposes.
Although both the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Internal
48
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Accounting for Electrolytic
Refining Copper
IF PRECISE YET FLEXIBLE, WOULD INDICATE PROCESS LOSS AREAS TO BE INVESTIGATED AND MINIMIZED OR ELIMINATED.

By John L. Davis
The accounting for metals going
through a process, by necessity, must
be as exact as possible. The following
material deals with a particular metal
(copper) in a specific process.
In the copper industry the metal is
extracted from ore. The copper content
in this ore represents less than 2 %.
Through a series of preliminary refining operations (i.e., milling, smelting,
etc.), the majority of the impurities
contained in the ore have been removed so that the metal arriving at an
electrolytic refinery is 98 -99% copper.
The purpose of the electrolytic refinery
is to further refine the metal to what
is commercially known as "100%
copper." It is that process that we are
to explore as it pertains to accounting.

molten metal is poured into anode
molds. These anodes are shaped with
two lugs at the top. These lugs are
used to suspend the anodes in the cells
in the tank house.
The tank house consists of a large
number of lead -lined cells. The anodes
are suspended in these cells, separated
from one another, but not touching,
by 100% copper starting sheets. A
blended acid solution is circulated
through the cells, into receiving tanks
where the solution is checked and
strengthened when necessary, then recirculated through the cells. Through
electrical connections a low ampere
current is applied to the anodes and
starting sheets. This action of the

The Flow through the Refinery
In order to understand the record keeping of the metals in their flow
through the refinery, it would be helpful if a brief description was given of
an electrolytic refinery.
An electrolytic copper refinery generally consists of the following operations:
1. Anode casting plant
2. Tank house
3. Fine casting plant
4. Impurities recovery
5. Quality control
The anode casting plant consists of
a reverberatory furnace in which certain impurities are removed while the
precious metals remain in the copper.
When the furnace is tapped, the
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968
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troller of Kenneeott Refining Corporation, Baltimore, Md. Mr. Davis previously served in the New York office
of Kenneeott as an Auditor. His prior
experience also includes six years with
the Federal Bureau of Investigation.
Mr. Davis holds a B.S. degree in
Business Administration from Catholic University of America, Washington, D.C.

solutions circulating and the current
being applied causes the copper to go
into solution and leave the anodes, and
be plated onto the starting sheets,
which become cathodes. The impurities fall to the bottom of the cell where
they are later recovered.
In the fine casting plant the cathodes from the tank house are melted
and cast into shapes that have been
ordered by customers. These shapes
generally consist of wire bars, ingots,
billets, etc.
The impurities recovery is the process in the plant that recovers the
impurities from the tank house and
prepares its end product "slimes" for
further processing. These slimes contain the precious metals which have
been recovered from the copper "pigs."
The slimes are a black mud -like bulk.
None of the metals contained therein
can be identified from a visual examination.
The quality control section is responsible for the weighing, sampling and
assaying of the metal when it is received and in its flow through the
refinery. Upon receipt of the "raw" or
unrefined copper in the refinery, certain tests or examinations are made to
determine the pure copper contents
and the amount of other metals
present.
When the copper pigs are received
at the refinery the shipment is weighed
and a piece count made. The shipment is then sampled. In the sampling
process a number of pigs (a predetermined scientifically agreed upon
number) are selected and these pieces
are drilled in a varying pattern for
49

each piece. The drillings are collected
by a vacuum process. These drillings
are ground up to a very fine consistency
and very thoroughly blended. This
batch is now split into three lots —one
lot is sent to the shipper, the second
is used by the refinery for assay purposes, the third is held in storage in
case there is a dispute on the outcome
of assays. The assays are made and
the results exchanged. Previously,
splitting limits are agreed upon. If the
results are outside their limits the third
lot of drillings will go to an umpire
for settlement. The loser in the assay
results will pay for the cost of the
umpire. A sample of the splitting limits
is as follows:

—

—

—

—

— 0.25%
1 ounce per ton
— I% of the average of assays at
variance
0.15 ounces per ton
Platinum
Palladium 0.20 ounces per ton
0.25%
Selenium
Copper
Gold
Silver

When the assays are finalized on the
shipment, the results are applied
against the pounds of copper pigs
entered on the customer's ledger sheet.
Periodically, samples from an incoming shipment will be tested for
moisture content. This process, in
brief, consists of weighing a number
of pieces, then placing the pieces of
copper in a special oven where a
temperature of 400° F. is maintained
for a period of 12 hours. The batch is
then reweighed and the results compared with the first weight.
This procedure is done periodically
in order to be sure there is not excess
moisture on the copper. If there is
some significant difference, a percentage is applied to the income copper
weight to compensate for such moisture.
Furthermore, a provisional process
loss is applied against the copper. It
is universally recognized that in the
refining process certain losses will be
suffered. These losses occur in the
following manner:
1. Certain amount that goes up the
stack is not caught in the dust
collectors.
2. Absorption of molten copper in the
refractories and bottoms of the
furnaces cannot be completely recovered.
3. Chips and nodules that become
detached are not completely recovered.
50

4. Copper contained in the slag that
is skimmed from the furnaces.
5. Other small undetermined losses.
It has been accepted but not completely proven that five pounds per ton
of copper is an adequate figure to be
used in accruing for such losses. The
actual loss will only be determined
when a metals inventory is taken, once
a year. The established losses are two
pounds per ton in the anode casting
plant, one pound in the tank house
and two pounds in the fine casting
plant.
The provisional process loss figures
are set up when each shipment is
received. When the results of the inventory are known, the provisional
figures will be adjusted to actual.
The metal is recorded by weight
and piece count receiving the ,metal
and in each one of the steps that it
passes in the refining process. To accommodate the record - keeping, a chart
of accounts has been established and
is used the same as any other accounts
except that we are dealing in pounds
of metal and not dollars. The documents for making entries in the various
accounts are weight tickets, certified
assay listings and those entries author-

ized by the comptroller or general
manager.
The weight ticket is used to record
the receipt of all metals into the refinery. The averaged weight ticket
(Exhibit 1) is then used to record the
number of pieces. The averaged weight
of blister is charged to the anode
furnace and anodes are charged to the
tank house.
Various other weight tickets are
used to record all production from the
anode casting section, the production
of cathodes and equivalents from the
tank house, the tank house production
( other than cathodes and equivalent
production, and slime production), the
production of all regular wire bars and
ingot bars, oversize wire bars, no -set
wire bars and billets, all residues in
the fine casting section, miscellaneous
items in the fine casting section (rejects, scalpings, flue dust, etc.) and long
billets.
A weight ticket correction advice
( Exhibit 2) is used to provide for
adjustment of errors discovered after
other weight tickets have been processed. These adjustments must have
approval of comptroller.
From the sources of entry, the in-

Exhibit 1
AVERAGED WEIGHT TICKET — UNREFINED MATERIAL
iW539
ASSAYS

BLI STER CHARGES

H2O2

ANODE CHARGES

CHARGE -ANODE CASTING
3.53 - 0 0 1

CU%

COMMERCIAI. ANODES
155 - 100

SHIPPED FROM INVENTORY
STRIPPER ANODEE
155 - 102

151 - 00 1
AV O . P . T.

COPPER CAKE CHARGES
REJECT COMMERCIAL ANODES
153 - I 0 0

CHARGE REF. MELT I I STG
253 - 003
AC O . P . T.

SHIPPED FROM INVENTORY
151 - 003

REJECT STRIPPER ANODES
153 - 104

Remar ks

NUMBER
OF
PIECES

AVERAGED
WEIGHT

COMMERCIAL ANODES FROM
154 - 100

Or l gi n , to

STRIPPER ANODES FROM
154 - 102

Exhibit 2
WEIGHT TICKET CORRECTION ADVICE
AD VI C E N O . OM03

O R I G I N A L TI C KE T N 0 ,

DATE

C ORREC TI ON NO .

ACCOUNT D EB I TED

LOT NO

D E SC RI PTI O N

ACC OUNT C RED I TED

COLOR

SI ZE

N O . OF

W EIGHT

PI EC ES

REPORTED AS

CORREC TED TO

REMARKS:

AUTHO RI ZED B Y :

PREPARED BY :
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REFINERY MET ALLURGICAL ACCOUNTING DATA
Date

Ending Inventory

Form 88R
Ledger Acc ount & Description

Copper Lb.

Gold Oz.

Silver Oz.

Net Ret urnable Met als
151— Unrefi ned Metals Inventory
152 — Unrefined Metals T reatment Inventory
153 —Anode Casting Metals In Process
154 —T ank House Unrefined Anode Inventory
155 —T ank House Metals In Process
156 — Slimes Inventory
157 — Slimes T reatment Inventory
158 — Residue Inventory
159 — Provisional Copper Losses
160— Measured Losses
161 — Contract Losses
163 — Returnable Metal /Contracts
165 —Other Losses
Allocated Metals
251— Refined Metals Inventory
253 — Refined Melting and Casting In Process
254 —Molds Inventory
261 — Refined Melting and Casting In Process /Other
3

Returned Met als

351 —Fine Shapes Inventory
4

Refinery Metal

400 — Capital

formation is posted to the proper accounts in the chart of accounts. From
such transactions, reports are made, as
necessary.
Accounting Data and Reports
Form CKRC 88 R is considered as
the metallurgical accounting ledger.
Monthly balances of copper, gold and
silver are shown under separate headings as illustrated above.
Form CKRC 90 is used by the
machine accounting department to
record month -to -date figures for the
metallurgical accounting transactions
as follows:
Receipts section describes the item
received, indicates the shipper and
records ledger account affected, specific
metal type, number of pieces, wet
weight, dry weight, copper, gold and
silver. In addition, totals are shown
for each ledger account with an overall
total for the page.
Production section describes the
production item, indicates ledger account and specific metal type affected,
and lists number of pieces, wet weight,
dry weight, copper, gold and silver. In
addition, production totals for each
department are shown with overall
production totals for month -to -date
shown at the end of the listing.
Shipments section describes the
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968

specific item shipped, indicates ledger
account and metal type affected, lists
number of pieces, wet weight, dry
weight, copper, gold and silver. Shipment totals are recorded for each ledger
account and the overall total for shipments to date is recorded at the end
of the listing.
Charges section describes the specific
item charged, indicates ledger account
and metal type affected, lists number
of pieces, wet weight, dry weight,
copper, gold and silver. In addition,
charge totals for each department are
shown with overall charges for the
month recorded in the totals at the
end of the listing.
Net Returnable Metal Inventory
section the current balance by ledger
account and metal type for all metals
other than in process metals carried
in our net returnable metals inventory
accounts. The listing describes the
metal, indicates ledger account and
metal type, number of pieces, wet
weight, dry weight, copper, gold and
silver, and shows an overall total at
the end of the listing.
Allocated Metals Inventory section
shows the current balance by ledger
account and metal type for all metals
other than in process metals carried
in our allocated metals inventory accounts. The listing describes the metal,

indicates ledger account and metal
type, number of pieces, wet weight,
dry weight, copper, gold and silver, and
shows an overall total at the end of the
listing.
Returned Metals Inventory section
shows the current balance by ledger
account and metal type for all metals
carried in our returned metals inventory
accounts. The listing describes the
metal, indicates ledger account and
metal type, number of pieces, wet
weight, dry weight, copper, gold and
silver, and shows an overall total at the
end of the listing.
Refinery Capital section shows the
current balance by ledger account and
metal type for all metals carried in the
equipment copper account. Overall
totals show number of pieces, wet
weight, dry weight and copper.
Net Returnable Metal Bulk Inventory section shows the current balance
by ledger account for all metals carried
in the "in process" accounts of our
net returnable inventory. The listing
describes the account and lists the account number, wet weight, dry weight,
copper, gold and silver. In addition,
overall totals are shown.
Allocated Metals Bulk Inventory
section shows the current balance by
ledger account for all metals carried in
the "in process" accounts of our allocated inventory. The listing describes
the account and lists the account
number, wet weight, dry weight, copper, gold and silver. In addition, overall
totals are shown.
Unrefined Materials:
a. Blister section lists in detail the
blister on hand by division and
specific lot number. Also shown is
average weight of each piece of
blister in each lot, ledger account,
metal type, number of pieces, wet
weight, dry weight, copper, gold
and silver. Division totals are shown
as well as the overall total of the
blister inventory.
Anodes section lists in detail the
anodes on hand by division or
others and specific lot number.
( Anodes produced at KRC are not
shown on this report.) Also shown
is average weight of each piece of
anode in each lot, ledger account,
metal type, number of pieces, wet
weight, dry weight, copper, gold
and silver. Division totals are shown
as well as the overall total of the
divisions anode inventory.
Refinery Daily Metals Advice (Ex51

Exhibit 3
REFINERY DAILY METALS ADVICE
DATE

PRODUCT
INV. TYPE

I

I

DATE
a
MO. DAY YR. H

LOC.

LOT
NUMBER

IDENTITY
NUMBER

NO. OF
PIECES

WET WEIGHT
POUNDS

DRY WEIGHT
POUNDS

COPPER
POUNDS

GOLD
OUNCES

SILVER
OUNCES

Sep r a t e sh e [ u ed f r [ e
f o lo w in g n f o a t i o

1.

Re c eip t
P r o d u c t #o n.

3.

Shipm en s ,

4.

C h a r ge s

.

2.

The p r o p e r

e a d i g i s plac ed

it

t h e t o p of e a c h s h e e t

TOTAL
MONTHTODATE

hibit 3) is used by the machine accounting department to record daily
figures for metallurgical accounting
transactions, as follows:
Receipts section heads up each page
by a description of the receipt and lists
ledger account, metal type, date received, our lot number, shipper's lot
member, number of pieces, wet weight,
copper, gold and silver. Each page
shows daily as well as month -to -date
totals.
Production section heads up each
page by a description of the production item and the ledger account from
which the production emanated. Listed
are the detail ledger account and metal
type into which the production will
flow, date, weight ticket number, number of pieces, wet weight, copper, gold
and silver. Each page shows daily as
well as month -to -date totals.
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Shipments section heads up each
page by a description of the item
being shipped. Listed are detail ledger
account, metal type, production lot
number, weight ticket number, number of pieces, wet weight, copper, gold
and silver. Each page shows daily as
well as month -to -date totals.
Charges section heads up each page
by a description of the item being
charged and the ledger account into
which the charge will flow. Listed are
the detail ledger account and metal
type being charged, date, lot number,
ticket number, pieces, wet weight,
copper, gold and silver. Each page
shows daily and month -to -date totals.
Summary
Accounting for copper requires very
exact procedures —from the time the
metal enters an electrolytic refinery

until the process is completed and the
finished shapes are ready to be shipped.
In order to know the amount of the
metal put into process requires proper
weighing, very careful sampling and
correct assaying. Knowing the correct
amount of copper going into the process and knowing the amount produced
may then be accounted for very accurately. The in- process accounting is
also very essential as this must be taken
into consideration when making a
physical inventory and to determine if
there is a process loss as well as to
pinpoint this loss in order to determine whether it can be minimized or
eliminated.
The procedures and methods outlined are really quite simple and can
be used in many operations. They are
flexible and can be adjusted to meet
most situations.
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Multiple Corporations:
A Comparison of Tax Alternatives*
AS A RESULT OF THE CHANGES IN THE AREA OF CONSOLIDATED TAX RETURNS, EACH MULTIPLE CORPORATION
SHOULD REEVALUATE ITS RESPECTIVE TAX SITUATION.

By D. Larry Crumbley
Significant changes have occurred in
the area of consolidated tax returns.
As a result of these changes, all multiple
corporations that form affiliated groups
should reevaluate their respective tax
situation. They should look back to
1965 and the intervening years to determine whether elections made in these
earlier years produced the best tax
results.
The purpose of this article is to examine the five alternatives open to multiple corporations and to suggest when
each alternative can be used most advantageously. Although there is no general formula or rule that can be used
to decide what tax status is the best, a
tax plan is essential if a corporation is
to minimize the income tax burden.
T h e Five Alternatives. An affiliated
group of corporations has five alternatives from which to choose. First, the
group may merge its separate entities
into a single entity and operate the
separate businesses as branches or divisions. Second, the members of the group
may file separate returns and apportion
a single surtax exemption among the
members. A group chooses this second
alternative when it does nothing. Third,
separate returns may be filed by the
members of the group and multiple
surtax exemptions may be elected at the
cost of an additional six percent tax.
• This manuscript was prepared, submitted, and
accepted before the passage of the Revenue and
Expenditure Control Act of 1968.
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Fourth, the group may file separate returns, apportion one surtax exemption,
and eliminate one hundred percent of
its intercorporate dividends. Fifth, the
affiliated group may elect to file consolidated returns.
In order to facilitate the organization
of this paper, the consolidated tax return election will be compared to the
four remaining alternatives. However, an
explanation of some of these alternatives
is necessary before they can be compared with the consolidated return election. Likewise, advantages of operating
a business through several corporations
rather than a single corporate entity is
presented in order to clarify certain
points and to provide a more complete
explanation.

1
DR. D. LARRY CRUMBLEY
is Assistant Professor of Accounting
at the Pennsylvania State University.
He received his Ph.D. and M.S. degrees from the Louisiana State University, B.S. degree from Pfeiffer College, Misenheimer, N.C. Professor
Crumbley authored a number of articles which have appeared in accounting periodicals.

Multiple Corporations—
Pro and Con Features
A firm may operate as a single corporate entity, but there are many tax and
nontax incentives that encourage operating in multi - corporate foram. One such
nontax motive is limited liability. Separate corporations protect assets from
torts, contracts, or mortgage liability.
Use of separate corporations also enables a group to segregate the diversified
activities of an enterprise along functional lines, according to geographic locations, or by type of customers served
in each location. Lower local advertising rates and exclusive franchises for
branded lines of merchandise are reasons
to operate in multi - corporate form. In
addition, closer identification with the
local community, avoidance of double
taxation under state laws, and ability to
bargain with the local labor establishment, encourage the formation of multiple entities.
The major tax motivation for small
affiliated corporations is the possibility
of obtaining additional surtax exemptions. If multiple surtax exemptions are
able to withstand the attacks of the
Commissioner, a maximum tax savings
of $5,000 (see Appendix A) for each
member will accrue to the group. Similarly, multiple corporations are each allowed to accumulate $100,000 of undistributed earnings without incurring a
tax on accumulated earnings. Thus, multiple entities afford a group of $100,000
credit for each corporation.
As in the case of the accumulated
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earnings credit, corporations with estimated tax in excess of $100,000 are required to file declarations of estimated
tax and prepay part of the tax during the
current year. Division of earnings among
a number of companies can eliminate
this prepayment and retain cash for
working capital purposes.
Each member of a group may make
a number of inconsistent elections in
order to obtain maximum tax advantage.
For example, treatment of foreign taxes,
choice of an accounting period or of
accounting methods, and write -off elections are situations where each corporation may make a decision independently of the other members of the group.
Likewise, certain types of income can be
concentrated in different entities to obtain Western Hemisphere trade corporations deductions. There are other tax
as well as nontax reasons for splitting
into separate corporations, but the aforementioned reasons are sufficient to indicate the desirability of a group of
companies as opposed to one large
corporation.
Single or Multiple Surtax
Exemptions
Component members of a controlled
group of corporations are entitled to
only a single $25,000 surtax exemption
if the group makes no special elections.
This single exemption (the second alternative) may be divided equally
among the members of the group or, if
the members consent to an apportionment plan, the single exemption can be
allocated under the terms of the plan.'
Any apportionment plan is effective for
succeeding taxable years unless the plan
is amended or terminated.
The members of a group of corporations may elect to have each member
claim a separate surtax exemption (the
third alternative) in lieu of dividing a
single exemption among the members
However, if the group elects multiple
surtax exemptions, the income tax of
each member is increased by six percent
on the first $25,000 of taxable income?
Election of multiple surtax exemptions is normally made when the tax
return is filed for the taxable year, but
the election may be made at any time
within three years after the original due
date of the corporate return. Consents
must be filed by all corporations which
are component members of the group
1

during the three year period following
the original due date of the tax return.
Once an election to use multiple surtax exemptions is made, it is effective
for all following years until the election
is terminated. Termination may occur
by the consent of the members, refusal
of a new member to consent, filing a
consolidated return, or demise of the
controlled group. If an election is terminated for any of these reasons, the group
or any other successor group is not eligible to make a new election for a period
of five years. 3
A general rule can be established to
determine at what level of taxable earnings it is more advantageous to elect
multiple surtax exemptions: a multiple
surtax exemptions election derives more
tax savings than a single surtax exemption whenever the total taxable income
of the group exceeds $32,500. This critical level of taxable income can be calculated by dividing the gross tax savings
resulting from a multiple surtax exemptions election by the net tax rate savings
from the same election.
Therefore, the numerator is $25,000
multiplied by the twenty-six percent surtax rate, or $6,500. The denominator,
the net tax rate savings, is calculated by
subtracting the normal tax rate of
twenty-two percent and the six percent
penalty tax from the total corporate tax
rate of forty-eight percent.
The calculation of the point of indifference is as follows:
$25,000 X .26
.48 — (.22 + .06)

Since such a small amount of earnings
is limited to a few affiliated groups, for
simplicity this alternative is omitted
from further comparison.
One Hundred Percent
Intercorporate Dividends
Received Deduction
The fourth alternative available to an
affiliated group is to elect the one hundred percent intercorporate dividends
received deduction under Section 243.
Corporations are normally allowed to
exclude only eighty-five percent of the
dividends received from other domestic
corporations, but an entire affiliated
group may join in an election to exclude one hundred percent of the inter corporate dividends for a taxable year.
However, the election applies only to
dividends paid out of earnings and

I R.C. , Sec. 156 1( a ) ( 1 ) .

a T.R.C., Se c . 156 2( b ) ( 1) .
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$6,500 _ $32,500
.20

profits accumulated during taxable years
in which the distributing corporation
was a member of the group for a full
year. In addition, this election applies
only to taxable years ending after
December 31, 1963.
The election under Section 243 is
made by the common parent, but the
component members of the group must
each consent to the election. Once the
election is made it is effective until
terminated by consent of the members
or failure of a new member to consent
to the election. If the election is terminated, a taxpayer is not barred from
making a new election at any time. But
the election may be costly in terms of
the benefits that the group must forego.
One of the benefits that an affiliated
group must forego if it elects the one
hundred percent dividends received deduction is the right to use multiple surtax exemptions.4 Thus, a corporation has
to decide which election is more advantageous tax -wise: the multiple surtax exemptions or the one hundred
percent dividends received deduction.
One wav to make a decision between
the two elections is to determine how
much intercorporate dividends must be
generated by the group in order to make
the one hundred percent dividends received alternative as attractive as the
multiple surtax exemptions election.
The critical level of intercorporate
dividend flow can be determined by dividing the net tax savings resulting from
a multiple surtax exemptions election by
the effective tax rate on intercorporate
dividends. Thus, to obtain the numerator of the fraction, multiply one less
than the number of "Above corporations" (companies having taxable income of at least $25,000) in the group
by $5,000 and then subtract $1,500.
However, the numerator has to be adjusted by adding twenty percent times
the summation of the taxable incomes
of corporations having income less than
$25,000 (Below companies). The denominator (the effective tax rate) can
be computed by multiplying the percentage of dividends excluded from
taxes, 15 %, (100 % -85 %), by the corporate tax rate. 5
To illustrate, assume that there are
eleven members in an affiliated group
and ten members have at least $25,000
of taxable income, but the eleventh
4

I . R . C . , Se c . 2 4 3 ( b ) ( 3 ) ( A ) .

5
3

I . R . C . , Se c. 1 5 6 2 ( d ) .

Co m p u t a tio n s a s s u m e t h a t ea c h co rp o ra t io n rec e iv i n g t h e d iv id e n d s h a s t a x a b le in c o m e o f a t l e a s t
$2 5 , 00 0 .
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Assume the salve facts as in the preceding example except ten of the corporations have tax liabilities of at least
$100,000 and the eleventh corporation
has taxable income of $15,000 with a
tax liability of $3,750. Also, the group
has total intercorporate dividends of
$600,000.
A formula can be established which
shows the tax savings of multiple surtax
exemptions on one side and the tax
[(n, - 1)$5,000] - $1,500 + .20(Eih)
savings of the tax -free intercorporate
.15 X .48
dividends received deduction on the
other side. A new factor is added, how[(10 - 1)$5,000] - $1,500 + .20($15,000)__
ever, to take into consideration the ac.15 X .48
celerated tax payments caused by the
46'500 = $645,833.33
100% dividends received election. The
.072
cost of a corporation paying out money
Of course, the above formula does not one year sooner than necessary can be
take into consideration the other dis- measured by what money is worth toadvantages or restrictions of this tax -free day.
dividend election. Other restrictions beAssume that money can produce six
sides the single surtax exemption are as percent as an investment return or it
cost about six percent to borrow it.
follows:
Paying taxes one year earlier, therefore,
The group, in the aggregate, must
costs about six percent, less the tax savelect either to claim deductions or
ings from an income tax deduction, for
credits for foreign taxes. If they
an assumed interest charge on borrowclaim foreign tax credits, each affiliing the amount of the accelerated tax for
ate must use the pre- country limia year. For a corporation in a fortytation or the overall limitation in
eight percent income tax bracket, the
computing the size of the limitation.
earlier tax payment would add about
2. Members are limited in the aggre- three percentage points in cost of money
gate to one $100,000 accumulated due to the accelerated tax payments.
earnings credit.
The loss of interest which results
from
accelerated tax payments can be
3. Only one $100,000 exploration expenditure deduction with respect to calculated by using the formula demineral deposits is allowed the en- veloped in Appendix B. The cost of
tire group during a taxable year, and working capital is assumed to be six
only a maximum of $400,000 is al- percent.
lowed for any number of years.

member has only $15,000 of taxable
income. Thus, the critical point of
$645,833 represents an average level of
intercorporate dividend distributions
which must be maintained over a period
of time before it will be profitable to
use the tax -free intercorporate dividends
received election.
The calculation of the break -even
point is as follows:

In all but special cases, the major disadvantages of the tax -free dividend
election are (1) the interest that is lost
due to the necessity of accelerated payments of estimating taxes on only one
$100,000 exemption and (2) the loss
of multiple surtax exemptions. Thus,
for all but special cases, the preceding
formula can be converted into another
formula to determine when the tax -free
dividend election is appropriate.

[(n, - 1 ) X $5, 000] - $ 1,500 +
.20(Ei6) + .03[$100,000(10) +
$3,750 - $100,0001 .60416675
7.2($600,000) - .26($25,000).15.
Therefore,
[( 1 0 - 1 X $5,000] - $1,500 +
[.20($15,000)] + .03[$100,000(10) +
$3,750 - $100,000] .60416675 $
7.2($600,000) - .26($25,000).15.
Thus,
$46,500 + $16,380 > $43,200 - $975.

With intercorporate dividends of
$600,000, the multiple surtax exemptions election is more economical than
the 100% dividends received deduction.
In fact, this same answer can be obtained by referring to Table 1. Look on
the line for eleven corporations. The
break -even level of dividends flow (considering only the loss of multiple surtax
exemptions) is $673,611. Since the
actual dividends flow of $600,000 is less
than the critical level, multiple surtax
exemptions should be elected.
Since the 100% dividends received
deduction is also one advantage offered
by the consolidated return election, a
corporation willing to forego the multiple surtax exemptions should probably
elect to file consolidated returns. But
there may be special cases where the
tax -free dividends deduction may be
chosen instead of consolidated returns.
These special situations are as follows:

Table 1
DIVIDEND FLOW REQUIRED TO OFFSET LOSS OF
MULTIPLE SURTAX EXEMPTIONS

4

7
8
9
10
11
13
15
17
20

$

Break -even
dividends flow
48,611
118,056
187,500
256,944
326,389
395,833
465,278
534 722
604,167
673,611
812,500
951,389
1,090,278
1,298,611
$

Number of
corporations
2
3
4
5

Cost of not
using multiple
surtax
exemptions*
3,500
8,500
13,500
18,500
23,500
28,500
33,500
38,500
43,500
48,500
58,500
68,500
78,500
93,500

The 10% surcharge for 1968 and 5% for 1969 will cause the cost
of loss of surtax exemptions to be slightly greater during the duration of the surcharge.
*

The group is allowed only one
$25,000 limitation on small business deduction of life insurance
companies.
5. The group is allowed only one
$100,000 exemption for estimating
taxes to determine if accelerated tax
payments are due .6

By combining the loss of interest
formula with the factors in the previous
formula, the following new formula is
obtained:

I.R.C., Sec. 243(b) (3).
MA N A G EM E N T ACC OU NTING / O CTOBE R, 1968

55

The definition of affiliation for purposes of the 100% dividends received deduction is more inclusive
than for consolidation? Groups
qualified for the tax -free dividends
received election but not qualified
for consolidation may also want to
eliminate 100% of intercorporate
dividends.
A group that has an insurance company with noninsurance companies
cannot elect consolidated returns . 8
Returning to separate return filing
from consolidated returns is difficult;
whereas the 100% dividends received deduction election can be
terminated easily8

turn, the group has prolonged use of
the funds which otherwise would have
been used to pay a greater tax liability.
The value of this postponement is equal
to the product of the postponed tax
times the sum of one plus the effective
cost of working capital, raised to the
power representing the number of years
the tax is postponed, i.e.,
A= P(1 + r)n.

Basic Features of the
Consolidated Tax Return
Election
The loss offset privilege is probably the
principal benefit of filing consolidated
returns. Corporations normally may utilize the carryover and carryback proVisions of the Code in order to salvage
losses. Congress incorporated this privilege in the statutes in order to recognize
the fact that any fiscal year is an arbitrary designation of time used to
measure the continuing earnings or
losses of an accounting or taxpaying
entity.1 0 However, there are two situations in which an affiliated group can
realize a net gain by filing consolidated
returns: (1) if the affiliate with the loss
does not have earnings in any years to
which it could carry a loss and thus
obtain a refund or reduction in taxes,
and (2) even if the loss affiliate has
income in a subsequent year to which
the loss could otherwise be carried, filing
consolidated returns may be more
beneficial because of the present value
of money.
In the first situation, there is no gain
or loss to the individual affiliate, but
there is a net gain to the group as a
whole. A loss, which otherwise is not
usable to absorb operating income of
the individual affiliate because it had no
earnings during the specified period, is
usable to offset earnings of other members if consolidated returns are filed.
In the second situation, the savings
is the value of delaying payment of the
income tax. When losses are applied to
earlier years in the consolidated tax re-

Under the new Separate Return Limitation Year (SRLY) rules, losses from
separate return years of a subsidiary
which was a member of the group for
each day of the loss year can be carried
back or forward to be absorbed by consolidated income (provided multiple
surtax exemptions were not elected
during the loss year).1 1 Likewise, losses
from unaffiliated or separate return years
of a parent company can be carried
back or over against consolidated income, provided that multiple surtax exemptions were not used during the loss
year.l2
The present Regulations correct the
inequality in the prior Regulations
which favored a loss group over a single
loss corporation. The old Regulations
stipulated that a consolidated net operating loss carryover of an affiliated group
could offset profits of a newly acquired
subsidiary. But an unaffiliated corporration with a carryover loss could not
offset its loss against the earnings of a
subsidiary it acquired by merely filing
consolidated returns. Now, an unaffiliated loss corporation can acquire profitable subsidiaries and offset its own loss
carryover against the current income of
the new subsidiaries.1 3
The consolidated offset privilege has
been diluted by the new Regulations.
Under the old Regulations the separate
return limitation year could be avoided
rather easily.14 Since the direct acquisition of a loss group would result in the
loss years of each member being treated
as a SRLY, the profit group would
acquire the stock of the loss group but
keep the parent of the loss group as the
common parent of the combined group.
Hence, consolidated losses of the loss
group could be carried over and offset
against the income of all members, including the new profit members. However, the new CRCO and reverse ac-

7

C f . I . R . C . , S e c . 2 43( b ) ( 5) ; I . R . C . , S e c . 15 0 4 ( a ) .

11

R e g. 1. 1502 - 21 (c ).

9

I . R . C . , S e c . 150 4( b ) ( 2) .

17

R e g. 1. 150 2 - 1 (f ) ( 2 ) ( i) .

' C f . R e g . 1. 1502- 75( c) ; I . R . C . , S e c . 2 43 ( b ) ( 4 ) .
10

13 .R . Re p . No . 1337, 83r d Co n gr e ss , 2n d Se s s . ,
p . 27 , 1954.
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quisition rules have closed this loop hole.1 5
The advantage derived from the consolidated offset privilege is diminished
to some degree by the fact that a current
use of the loss may produce a basis
adjustment or an excess loss account
even though the loss could have been
carried back to previous separate return
years with no adverse effect.1 8 A member disposing of stock of a subsidiary
must report as income (usually capital
gains) its excess loss account with respect to the stock. This restoration is
not so bad but the loss disappears under
consolidation although it may have been
ultimately utilized under the separate
return basis.17 Also, in applying the rules
of Section 382(a) to consolidated
groups, a more stringent test may limit
the utilization of the loss carryover of a
newly purchased loss group. The change of- business concept is applied on a
company -by- company basis, and if there
is a fifty percentage point change in
ownership of the parent and any affiliate
changes its trade or business, Section
382(a) will deny the loss carryover
arising with respect to the affiliate.
Furthermore, the parent is assumed to
own one hundred percent of the stock
of each subsidiary regardless of any
minority interest.1 8
Availability of a three -year carryback
and five -year carryover of net operating
losses and a five -year carryover of net
capital losses to unconsolidated loss
members of a group reduces the importance of the consolidated offset
privilege. In fact, if the loss member
had no earnings in the three preceding
years and prospects for earnings in the
next five years are doubtful, the losses
of an affiliate filing separate returns can
be salvaged by merging the loss member
with the parent or another member
with enough earnings to absorb the
losses. However, use of the loss on a
consolidated basis may be more advantageous in terms of present value than
its use as a carryover on a separate return since the group has the immediate
use of funds which would otherwise be
paid as taxes by the other members of
the group. If the use of investment
credits and foreign tax credits were also
deferred by filing separate returns and
then merging the subsidiary, the cost of
11

R e g . 1 . 1 5 0 2 - 2 1 ( d ) , 2 2 ( d ) , a n d 1 ( g ) ; R e g . 1.1502 75( d )( 3) and 1 ( f ) ( 3 ) .
16

R e g . 1.1502 -32.

17

R e g . 1.1502 -19.

18

" S e g . R e g . 1. 15 02 - 31 (b ) (3 ).

m R eg. 1. 15 02 - 2 1( e) ( 1) .
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postponing the tax benefits might be
prohibitive.
Where a business is organized on a
single entity basis or where all members
are merged into a single corporate structure the utilization of losses may be
more beneficial than under both the
separate return basis and the consolidated return basis. The current branch
losses may be absorbed by current earnings of other branches, and the combined losses of the single company may
be carried back and carried forward without the numerous limitations imposed
by the consolidated return Regulations.1 9 However, the merger of subsidiaries may create short taxable years and
cause loss carryovers to expire sooner.
Likewise, capital gains may be converted into ordinary income as a result
of an improper income mix.
Intercorporate Dividends
Another major advantage of consolidation is the ability to eliminate intercorporate dividends, and thereby save
an effective tax of 7.2 percent on the
dividends20 However, Table 1 shows the
amount of intercorporate dividends per
year that is necessary to overcome the
loss of multiple surtax exemptions. For
the tax -free dividends advantage to be
of value there must be large distributions of dividends. If only one surtax
exemption worth $ 5,000 is lost, the inter- company dividends must be about
$69,445 in order to break even.
If the dividend distribution is made
out of pre - affiliation earnings and profits,
any gain on the distribution is deferred
but the stock basis must be reduced.
Once the stock basis reaches zero, remaining distributions increase the excess loss account 21
The adjustment to the stock basis has
the effect of increasing a gain or reducing a loss upon the disposition of the
subsidiary's stock. Likewise, any balance
in the excess loss account is treated as
capital gains22 Thus, although the
original distribution avoided a 7.2 percent tax, the theoretical benefit was
obtained at an additional cost of twentyfive percent capital gains tax.
If an affiliated group files separate
returns, intercorporate dividends from
19

i.e., S R L Y L im it , C R C O L im it , re ve r s e acquisitio n s . a n d b uilt - in loss es.

9D

R e g . 1. 15 0 2 -14(a ) ( 1) . Th i s 7. 2% figu r e igno re s
th e s u r t a x ex em pt io n. A co rr ec tion for th is assu m p tio n would be to su b t r a c t $468. f r o m the
fig u r e co m p ut ed, i.e., 7. 2% (in t e r c or p o r a t e divid e n d s ) - 7 . 2 % ($25, 000) 26 %.

pre - affiliation or post - affiliation earnings
and profits cause no basis adjustment.
Therefore, the capital gains tax could
be avoided. Also, an affiliated group can
elect tax -free distribution of post- affiliated, post -1963 dividend, provided that
separate returns are filed and only one
surtax exemption is utilized.
A single entity operation may prove
even more advantageous. Property can
be transferred within the corporate
structure without being limited by the
earnings and profits of the subsidiaries.
However, there would be only one surtax exemption, which may be too high
a price to pay for tax -free distribution
of cash within a business.
Tax Credits
In a similar fashion to unused losses, a
consolidated return may permit current
use of an investment credit where the
credit would otherwise be limited to
fifty percent of the tax on the return of
the corporation that made the eligible
investment. Since the investment credit
and limitation are computed on a consolidated basis when consolidated returns are filed, this can be advantageous
where a loss member has a substantial
unused credit. However, if the member
with the credit is profitable and the
group as a whole has less earnings, the
tax credit would be less than on a
separate return basis.
The carryover and carryback of investment tax credits may be from separate
return years or from consolidated return years. Unused credits from separate
return years can be utilized on a consolidated basis unless multiple surtax exemptions were elected for the carryback
or carryover year or the subsidiary with
the unused credit was not a member of
the group for each day of the year2 3
Aside from the liberal utilization of carryovers and carrybacks members of an
affiliated group are able to transfer property among the members without causing the investment credit recapture rules
to apply.24
Another credit, the foreign tax credit,
is computed on a consolidated basis in
a consolidated return year. This consolidated basis provides a tax advantage that
does not exist under separate, filing. This
consequence arises from the difference
between the application of consolidated
limitations and the application of
separately computed limitations on the

credit. However, when a loss is incurred
by a member of the affiliated group,
the filing of consolidated returns may be
less advantageous than filing separate
returns.
Unused foreign tax credits of a newly
organized affiliate can be carried back
from a consolidated return year to a
previous separate return year of the
parent.25 In addition, if multiple surtax
exemptions were not elected and the
affiliate was a member of the group, any
unused credits from a separate return
year can be carried back or forward and
offset against consolidated taxes 26 If
the two previous circumstances are not
met, the carryover or carryback will be
limited by the SRLY, CRCO and reverse acquisition rules.
As far as loss of carryovers are concerned, separate filing is more beneficial
than consolidating or merging into one
corporate structure. Likewise, under the
new deferred accounting system, separate returns may be more advantageous.
The deferred profit does not become
foreign source income until recognized
as taxable income under the new Regulations27 Once recognized, the limitations may deny the use of a foreign tax
credit that could have been utilized if
the foreign source income was recognized as realized.
Intercompany Transactions
Another advantage of consolidation is
that gains are deferred on intercorporate
sales which are not realized outside the
group during the taxable year28 The
gains are not taxed but are deferred
until recognized to the transferor upon
the occurrence of certain events. The
gains are recognized: (1) when the
property is disposed of outside the
group, (2) as depreciation is claimed,
(3) when either party leaves the group,
(4) in the case of inventory when separate returns are filed, and (5) other
miscellaneous circumstances.
If there are substantial intercompany
transactions among the members of the
group, consolidation permits the group
an opportunity to defer the tax incidence. When the group's intercompany sales are increasing steadily, there
is a permanent deferral. This deferral is
even more advantageous since the gross
profit can be deferred and the adminza Reg. 1. 15 02 - 79 (d ).
sa Reg. 1 . 1 5 0 2 . 4 ( f ) an d 1 ( f ) .

" R e g . 1 . 1 5 0 2- 14( a ) ( 2) .

m R e g . 1.1502 -3(c) a n d 1 ( f ) .

n R e g . 1. 15 02 - 4( d ) ( 1) .

42

u R e g. 1. 1502-3 (f) (2).

se Reg. 1.1502 -13 (c).

Re g . 1. 1 50 2.19.
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istrative and selling expenses are immediately deductible against other incom e s
Again, however, a single entity
operating through branches can obtain
the same deferral advantages and avoid
several adverse consequences of consolidation. Since a consolidated group is
required to make an opening inventory
adjustment to avoid a large dip in in30
come, the group is only permitted to
defer the reporting of future increases in
intercompany sales. That is, gains on
preconsolidated intercompany sales cannot be deferred under the consolidated
return basis. However, by liquidating the
subsidiaries or merging the affiliates into
a single corporation, all intercompany
sales may be deferred and cause a large
decrease in income (which the inventory
adjustment attempts to overcome) .
Furthermore, deferrals on depreciable
property may almost be permanent since
the gains are not recognized until disposition outside the company31 Finally,
since the Commissioner will probably
no longer allow intercompany sales at
basis,32 branch operations will avoid the
complexities involved in determining
fair market value and will avoid the
close scrutiny of intercorporate sales by
zealous Revenue Agents.

g C f . Rag. 1. 1502- 13(d ).

operate at a loss for the taxable year, a tion produces a net operating loss for
greater Western Hemisphere trade cor- the taxable year, the limitation of eighty porations deduction can be obtained by five percent of taxable income is refiling separate returns since the full moved since the limitation does not
deduction is not decreased by losses of apply when there is a net operating
other separate corporations.
loss37
A number of limitations on deductions are applied on a consolidated basis. Costly Consolidated Return
Consolidation may have the effect of Election
lifting limitations which would otherAlthough the two percent penalty tax,
wise be applicable to some members of a permanent increase in income due
the group if they were applied sepa- to the opening inventory adjustment,
rately. For example, the charitable con- and a strict similar method of accounttributions deduction is limited to five ing have been eliminated by the new
percent of consolidated taxable in- consolidated return regulations, the loss
come 34 This consolidated limitation of multiple surtax exemptions and mulmay make it possible for charitable con- tiple estimated tax liability exemptions
tributions by a loss member to be de- may be too costly when electing to file
ductible although the member may have consolidated returns. In spite of the
been denied the deduction if separate additional six percent tax, each surtax
returns were filed.
exemption is worth approximately
Conversely, if the aggregate taxable $ 5,000 for each subsidiary earning more
income of the profitable members is than $25,000 of taxable income.
larger than consolidated income, the
Table 2 (Column 2) shows the cost
consolidated deduction may be less than of losing the benefits of multiple surthe aggregate of the separate return de- tax exemptions. For example, if an affiliductions. Since branch filing results in ated group has only six members, the
the same advantages and disadvantages loss in tax savings is $23,500 for one
as consolidation, the income mix of each year. Since a multiple exemption elecgroup determines whether separate filing tion may not be reinstated for a period
or consolidated filing is more advantag- of five years after termination, the surtax
eous. However, contributions carryovers exemption loss would amount to a total
from separate or consolidated return of $141,000 during the six year period.
years are treated as consolidated carry- Add to this the approximate interest on
35
overs, and this result is a clear ad- accelerated payments of income tax for
vantage of consolidation over separate four years in Column 4 ($36,250) and
return filing.
the total cost amounts to approximately
As in the case of charitable contribu- $175,000. Since the consolidated loss
tions, the income mix of the group offset privilege is the major advantage
determines whether consolidation or of consolidation, it would require a use
separate filing is more beneficial with of a $ 365,000 loss ($175,000 divided
respect to the dividends received de- by 48%) to offset this $175,000 tax loss
duction. The eighty -five percent divi- resulting from consolidating income.
dends received deduction applicable to
As indicated in the previous paradividends received from corporations graph, the loss of all but a single
which are not members of the group $100,000 exemption for the consoliis limited to eighty -five percent of con- dated declaration of estimated tax may
solidated income38 When the deduc- also be costly. An affiliated group electtion cannot be utilized on a separate ing to file consolidated returns is rereturn basis because a member does not quired to file a consolidated estimated
have enough income, consolidated re- tax return starting with the third conturns may allow the group to deduct solidated return year. Thus, for the first
the full amount if there is sufficient two consolidated return years each
consolidated income. On the other affiliate has to make current payments
hand, if consolidated taxable income is on its tax liability in excess of $100,000.
less than aggregate taxable income of However, for the third year and any
the members, the aggregate of the sep- subsequent years that the group files
arate return deductions may be larger consolidated returns the group must
than the consolidated dividends received make current payments on its combined
deduction. However, where consolida- tax liability in excess of $100,00038
This current estimated tax payable is
" R e g . 1. 1 50 2 . 2 4 ( a ) .

" C f . R e g. 1. 1502 - 89; I . R . C. S e c . 482.

" R e g . 1. 1502 - 2 4( b ) .

n I . R . C. , S e c . 2 4 6 ( b ) ( 2 ) .

" R e g . 1. 1502- 25( b ) .

" R e g . 1.1502 -26 (a).

' " R e g . 1. 15 0 2 -5 ( a) .

Deductions
There are a number of deductions that
may be advantageously used by a group
filing consolidated returns. A clear advantage of multiple corporations over a
branch operation is in the area of the
Western Hemisphere trade corporations.
By creating subsidiaries a group can obtain the benefits of a special deduction
of 29.17 percent (14/48) of the consolidated income attributable to Western Hemisphere trade corporations.
Groups filing consolidated returns can
also obtain this benefit since the Western Hemisphere income requirements
are tested on a separate corporation
basis33 The special income is determined by multiplying the consolidated
taxable income by a fraction, the denominator being the total income of
all members of the group having income
and the numerator being the total income of all the Western Hemisphere
trade corporations having income. Thus,
if any of the members of the group
" R e g . 1. 1502-13 (c) (2).
" R e g . 1. 150 2. 18 ( b ) .
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due in four installments on April 15,
June 15, September 15, and December
15. If the estimate is not paid, the group
is subject to a six percent penalty on
the under - payment.
Thus, a group filing consolidated returns for at least two years must file
a consolidated declaration of estimated
tax thereafter which limits the group
to a single $100,000 exemption. This
single exemption may be beneficial to
the group if an individual affiliate's
estimated tax exceeds $100,000, but the
consolidated estimated tax is less than
$100,000. However, the single exemption will normally cause accelerated payments of the tax liabilities of the members and have an adverse effect on the
cash position.
Table 2, Column 4 shows the approximate cost of making accelerated payments in a consolidated return year
(assuming a six percent cost of working
capital) . For example, an affiliated
group with ten members would lose
approximately $16,312 of interest on
accelerated payments of income tax if
they were filing consolidated returns in
1967. Over a four year period the cost
would amount to $65,250.
As in the case of estimated tax pay-

ments, the filing of consolidated returns
will limit a group to a single: $100,000
accumulated earnings tax credit 39 The
law generally frowns upon the retention
of earnings which are unrelated to the
business needs of a company. Thus, a
penalty tax is placed upon earnings
which are retained by the corporate
organization for the purpose of avoiding
the dividend tax that would have been
imposed if they had been distributed to
the shareholders.
Every corporation has a. $100,000
credit, even though a company is accumulating earnings for no worthwhile
business purpose. Moreover, a corporation can retain more than $100,000 accumulated earnings if the company can
show that the excess is necessary to meet
the reasonable needs of the business
year. By carefully building a record of
the reasonable business needs of a corporation, a business can possibly accumulate up to $300,000 of retained earnings.
Careful long -range planning is necessary in order to avoid the possible imposition of the penalty tax. For example,
if there are ten members in the affiliated

group and the more liberal $300,000
exemption is used, each member will
only be able to accumulate about
$30,000 in retained earnings. However,
if management makes judicious use of
two other techniques- reduction of
equity capital in favor of debt and conversion of earnings into compensation the disadvantage of the single accumulated earnings tax credit can be overcome. Besides, affiliated corporations filing separate returns may not necessarily
be protected from this same obstacle.
One court has held that resources of related companies may be considered in
judging whether earnings have been accumulated beyond the reasonable needs
of the business, even though separate
returns are filed 40

9°

"Reg. 1.1502 -76(a) (1).

Reg. 1.150242)(d).

Consolidated Confinement
The members of a group filing consolidated returns are not allowed to use
different accounting periods but must
adopt the accounting period of the parent.41 There are two exceptions: (I) a
member who is on a 52 -53 week year
may continue the different period and
0 Fine Realty, Inc. v. U.S., 209 F. Supp. 286
(D.C. Minn. 1962).

Table 2
FORBEARANCE OF MULTIPLE SURTAX EXEMPTIONS AIVD MULTIPLE $100,000 EXEMPTIONS
FOR DECLARATION OF ESTIMATED TAX IN ORDER TO ELECT
CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR SIX YEARS

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Interest on
accelerated
payments of
income tax
for four yearsa
7,250
14,500
21,750
29,000
36,250
43,500
50,750
58,000
65,250
72,500
87,000
101,500
116,000
137,750

Total cost
for six yearse
28,250
65,500
102,750
140,000
177,250
214,500
251,750
289,000
326,250
363,500
438,000
512,500
587,000
698,750
$

Cost of loss of
surtax exemptions
for six year periodb
21,000
51,000
81,000
111,000
141,000
171,000
201,000
231,000
261,000
291,000
351,000
411,000
471,000
561,000

Interest on
accelerated
payments of
income tax
for one yeare
1,812
3,625
5,438
7,250
9,063
10,875
12,688
14,500
16,312
'18,125
21,750
25,375
29,000
34,438

$

4

$

3*

$

Cost of loss of
surtax exemptions
for one yearn
3,500
8,500
13,500
18,500
23,500
28,500
33,500
38,500
43,500
48,500
58,500
68,500
78,500
93,500
$

Number of
Corporations
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
13
15
17
20

2

(No. of corporations -1) $5,000- $1,500.
Six times first column.
[(No. of corporations -1) $100,0001 X (.06 X .60416675 X 50 %).
Column 3 times 4.
Column 2 plus Column 4.

* Due to the phasing out of the $100,000 exemption from estimated tax, this interest column will decrease by approximately 20%
per year beginning with 1968 through 1972. By 1977 there will be no exemption for estimated tax; thereby, decreasing the cost of
electing consolidated tax returns.
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Miscellaneous Disadvantages of
Consolidation
The following disadvantages are briefly
listed in order to make this presentation
paper complete:
1. Intercompany transactions among
members of an affiliated group must
be priced at fair market value, which
may be difficult to accomplish 44 The
Commissioner will scrutinize the
pricing of intercompany sales of depreciable and depletable assets and
may use Section 482 to question the
price established by the members of
the group.
2. Deferred gain or loss accounts on
sale of Section 1231 Assets and capital assets may remain in existence
for years. A series of intercompany
sales of the same asset will result in a
number of deferred accounts which
must be revised as a result of each
succeeding transfer of the asset45
The record - keeping problems may
be a burden.
L A group filing consolidated returns
will lose the investment tax credit
on the profit element of an interu R e g . 1. 1 50 2 . 7 6 ( a ) ( 1 ) . Co n ve r s ely , th e m e m be r s
a r e riot re qu ire d to adopt co ns ist en t m eth ods of
ac c o u n t in g; s e e R e g. 1. 1502. 17.
" C f . Reg. 1. 1 50 2. 75 ( c ) ; R e g. 1. 15 02. 11A ( a ) 1955.
N

4.

5.

6.

7.

S.

company sale. The credit will be
allowed only on the seller's basis
and not the fair market value (or
selling price) 46
Filing consolidated returns for federal tax purposes may cause adverse
effects for state income or franchise
tax purposes.
A consolidated group is required to
make an opening inventory adjustment to avoid a sudden decrease in
the sales. Under the single entity
basis no adjustment is required and
all sales may be deferred, and thereby result in a large decrease in sales.
The parent corporation determines
the group's choice of crediting or
deducting foreign income taxes and
the choice between the per- country
limitation and the overall limitation
on foreign tax credit. Thus, if a subsidiary is required to change its
method of determining the foreign
tax credit limitation, an unused foreign tax credit may be lost.
When a corporation joins or leaves
a consolidated group a short tax
year may occur. This short tax year
may reduce the overall period for
the utilization of net operating loss
carryovers, unused foreign tax credits and investment tax credits, and
charitable contributions carryovers.
The deferment of unrealized intercompany losses by the new deferred
accounting system may delay the
tax benefits which can be derived
immediately on a separate return
basis or on a branch operation basis.

Suggested Tax Plan
Congress has eliminated the two percent penalty tax on consolidated returns
and has provided a specific six percent
additional levy on multiple surtax exemptions. Moreover, the Treasury
consistently attempting to limit multiple
corporations to one surtax exemption.
Consolidation should be encouraged by
these developments and most commentators have predicted an increase in the
use of consolidated returns. However,
an election is not a panacea for the
problems of multiple corporations and
the election should not be made unless
there are immediate distinct tax advantages.
The one hundred percent intercorporate dividends exclusion and the loss
offset privilege are the two major advantages of consolidation. Since mulis

(2) a parent may change to a calendar
year basis if one of the subsidairies is an
insurance company42
If an affiliated group terminates a
multiple surtax exemptions election in
order to file consolidated returns, the
surtax election cannot be reinstated for
,I period of five years. Furthermore, an
election to file consolidated returns in
one year may bind the group to file
consolidated returns in following years.
The new Regulations made drastic
changes in the rules under which an
affiliated group may shift from consolidated to separate returns. Shifts from
consolidation now require the permission of the Commissioner in all cases43
Another aspect of the confinement
effect caused by consolidation is that the
excess loss account, all deferred inventory profits, and certain other intercom pany transactions have to be taken into
income in the first separate return year.
This requirement is especially harsh
since the group may cease to exist but
all the members may be included in
some other group which does file a consolidated return.

R e g . 1. 1502-13 (c) (2).

" R e g . 1. 15 02 - 1 3( c ) ( 5 ) .
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" R e g . 1.1502 -3 (c) (5).

tiple surtax exemptions are lost during
consolidation, the most desirable procedure is to elect multiple surtax exemptions for a number of years so as to gain
the benefits of the multiple exemptions
and accumulate the dividends in the
individual affiliates. In a future year the
group can file a consolidated return so
as to draw down the accumulated earnings and thereby avoid the effective 7.2
percent tax on intercorporate dividends.
Since multiple surtax exemptions cannot be availed for a five -year period after
its termination, the earnings can be
passed through the tier of affiliates as
business considerations permit. Permission to revert to separate filing is rarely
granted, but substantial changes in the
tax laws usually result in blanket permission by the Commissioner to return
to separate filing. Since blanket permission occurs aproximately every three or
four years, a group will not be confined
indefinitely to consolidation.
As for the loss offset privilege, any
losses that occur during the years in
which a multiple surtax exemptions
election is in effect will be limited by
the SRLY limit. Thus, a group should
not elect consolidation when there are
large amounts of carryforwards available
but should make the election before any
affiliates begin having large amounts of
losses. Even here, however, the group
has to consider the liberal loss carryover
rules with respect to Section 322 liquidations or other Section 381(a) transactions. For example, the losses of an
affiliate can be salvaged if another member of the group generates enough taxable income and if it is possible to
merge the two members. By merging
the two members, both the loss offset
privilege and the benefits of multiple
surtax exemptions are obtained.
There are two ways, however, in
which the loss offset privilege is beneficial to a consolidated group: (1) if
the loss affiliate does not have earnings
in any years to which it can carry the
loss and (2) if the loss affiliate has income in a subsequent year to which the
loss could otherwise be tamed. The
merger plan will work in both instances,
but, if the merger is consummated in
the fourth or fifth year of the carryover
period, the group has overpaid its taxes.
When losses are applied to earlier years
in the consolidated tax return, the group
has prolonged use of the funds which
otherwise would have been used to pay
the greater tax liability. If the use of
foreign tax credits and investment credMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /OCTOBER, 1968

its is also postponed as the result of
filing separate returns and then merging
the members, the cost of postponing the
tax may be greater than the loss of surtax exemptions. However, the group also
has to consider both the loss of all but
one $100,000 accumulated earnings
credit and one $100,000 estimated tax
payments exemption when consolidated
returns are filed.
APPENDIX A
Tax Cost of the Loss of Multiple Surtax
Exemptions
This appendix determines the tax cost
of the loss of multiple surtax exemptions. In this proof two types of corporations are encountered. Below companies (b) are those corporations that
have taxable incomes less than or equal
to $25,000. Above companies (a) are
those corporations with taxable income
greater than $25,000. Any negative figures are construed as zero. Symbols used
in this proof are defined as follows:
e = ordinary income
n = number of affiliates

applies only if total taxable income is
at least $25,000.
For the total tax payable on an individual basis the formula is as follows:
(4) T = T. + T b
The total tax burden of consolidating
the income can be expressed as follows:
(5) D =

TI — T

Thus, by substituting into formula 5,
the following formula is obtained:
(6) D = .48(Ee. + 2;eb) — 6500 —
(T. + TO
D = .48Ee. + .48Eeb — 6500 —
(.48Ee. — 5000n. + .28Teb)
D = .48Ee. + .48Eeb — 6500 —
AM. + 5000n. — .28Ee b
By cancelling and combining the preceding formula, the tax cost of the loss
of multiple surtax exemptions for Above
companies and Below companies is obtained:
(7) D = 5000(n. — 1) + .20Eeb — 1500
When no Below corporations are included, the formula becomes:
(8) D = 5000(n — 1) — 1500

r = tax rate

D = total tax burden of consolidation
T1 = total Below and Above tax
eb = ordinary income of a Below company
e. = ordinary income of an Above company.
Formulas for Below companies' taxes
( first the individual company and then
for all such corporations) are as follows:
(1) .22eb = t b and .28eb = T b
The tax increases to .28 for "all such
corporations" because of the additional
six percent penalty tax.
Formulas for Above companies' taxes
(first the individual company and then
for all such corporations) are as follows:
(2) .48e. — 5000 = to and
.48Ee. — 5000n = T.
Formula for consolidation is as follows:
(3) Tl = .48(E

+ Ee b) — 6500

Formula (3) is not valid where
(Y,e6 = 0) and ( Y e ) is less than
$25,000. The minus $6500 represents
the maximum surtax exemption which

M A N A G E M E N T ACC OU NTIN G/ OC TO BE R, 19 68

APPENDIX B
Loss of Interest from Accelerated Tax
Payments
This appendix determines the tax cost
of accelerated payments of income taxes
when a group of corporations is allowed
only one $100,000 exemption. In the
proof of the loss of interest two types of
corporations are encountered. Upper
companies (u) are those companies that
have estimated tax liabilities greater
than $100,000; whereas, Lower companies (1) are those companies with
estimated tax liabilities less than or equal
to $100,000. Symbols used in this proof
are defined as follows:
i = interest burden.
n = number of affiliates.
ii = interest burden of a Lower company.
i„ = interest burden of an Upper company.
ni = number of Lower companies.
ti = tax liability of a Lower company.
For illustration purposes, the cost of
working capital is assumed to be six

percent and 1967 is chosen as the tax
year in question.
If a corporation loses its $100,000
exemption, the following percentages of
the tax liability will have to be paid the
stipulated months ahead of the normal
payment date:
25 % X 11/12 = .22916675
25% X 9/12 = .18750000
25% X 6/12 = .12500000
25% X 3/12 = .06250000
.60416677
The basic formula is the simple interest formula:
(1)I = P X R X T
Since the Upper companies normally
have to pay estimated tax on amounts
greater than $100,000, the interest burden of consolidation is the interest on
the accelerated payments of the first
$100,000. Formula for Upper companies' interest is as follows:
(2) i„ = .06(100,000N).60416675
The interest burden of consolidation
for Lower companies is the summation
of the tax liabilities of the individual
companies:
(3) ii = .06(Etl).60416675
Formula for consolidation is:
(4) I = .06(100,000N„ + Eta —
$100,000).60416675
Formula (4) is not val id whe re it,
is less than zero. The minus $100,000
represents the maximum estimated tax
credit which applies only when total estimated tax liability is at least $100,000.
Since there is an approximately 50%
tax savings from an income tax deduction for an assumed interest charge on
borrowing the amount of the accelerated
tax, the formula is reduced by approximately 50 %:
(5) I = .06000,000N„ + Et, — $100,000)
.60416675 X 50%
When no Lower corporations are included, the formula becomes:
(6) I = .06(100,000N. — $100,000)
.60416675 X 50%
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The Making
of an
Association
BUFFALO, N.Y., OCTOBER 1919: 37 ACCOUNTANTS MEET

Major J. Lee Nicholson: "... a man of strong personality ...
We didn't always agree with him . . . and many times he
bumped us but in our hearts we loved him and in our memories we shall long honor and respect that warm - hearted impulsive, generous warrior —The Old Roman —as we sometimes
called him."

When Major J. Lee Nicholson, often called the "father of
cost accounting," invited his colleagues to Buffalo, N.Y., for
the purpose of organizing a national association of individuals
engaged in cost accounting, 36 men and one woman responded. It was October 13, 1919, and the nation was still recovering from a world war.
According to the first Secretary, Stuart C. McLeod, Major
Nicholson "conceived the idea of a National Cost Association
before the war but the organization was postponed until after
he had returned from his duties in Washington." Major Nicholson was chosen temporary chairman of the meeting and
was later elected the first president when the National Association of Cost Accountants was formed. In an address before
the meeting, he said, "The speaker is optimistic enough to
believe that this organization is going to be one of the largest
and most successful organizations of this kind in the country,
especially because of the great need for the spreading of cost
accounting knowledge."
Five years later, in 1924, Major Nicholson died suddenly
on the West Coast where he had retired. The organization he
helped to form, however, was in good hands. Stuart C.
McLeod had been hired as secretary and that versatile Scotsman turned out to be exactly the right man for the job. The
rest is history.... In honor of the 50th Anniversary of the
Association some photographs of those early years are published on these pages. Quoted captions are from Dr. McLeod's
lively "Secretary's Corner," which he wrote for many years.

The earliest photograph of the Association, this picture
shows the original group which organized N.A.C.A. Major

Nicholson is the fourth man from the left in the front row. The
others cannot be identified.
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The first N.A.C.A. board of directors meeting held in Atlantic
City, September 1920. Major Nicholson is the third man from
the left in the front row; Secretary McLeod is the fifth man

Dr. McLeod at Atlantic City Annual Meeting in 1926. "Never did a tenderer tenderfoot venture into the wild and wool y"
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from left. William M. Lybrand, founding partner of Lybrand,
Ross Bros. & Montgomery and second president of the Association, stands between them.

On the road in 1936: L. to r., Past National Vice President Harrell H. Neel, J. J. Hastings, S. C. McLeod and Past National President C. Howard Knapp. "... A little golf
.. then another splendid chapter meeting.
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Consultants to Academia
BUSINESSMEN FROM FOUR NAA CHAPTERS ADVISE LOCAL SCHOOLS

For years large corporations have employed members of college faculties as
part-time consultants. The professors
lend their expertise to government and
industry and all parties benefit from the
exchange. Now at least four NAA chapters have reversed the trend and set up
committees to counsel colleges and vocational schools.
The businessmen who volunteered to
serve on these committees are doing
their bit to increase and improve the
lines of communication between industry and academia. They have accepted
the challenge presented by an increasingly complex technology and the need
for educational institutions to stay responsive to change.
This effort is by no means a radical
departure for Association chapters. For
many years chapters have worked closely
with local colleges and schools. They
have furnished speakers, invited students to NAA meetings, made career
presentations and counseled graduating
seniors on job opportunities in accounting and related fields.
In the last three years a different trend
has become apparent. In a new approach NAA chapters have been asked
to set up committees of management
accountants, CPA's and other businessmen, to advise community colleges and
vocational schools on accounting cur64

riculums, recruitment of competent
teachers, placement of graduates, and on
special projects.
Four chapters which are currently
conducting such projects are Raritan
Valley, St. Paul, Minneapolis, and
Charleston. Raritan Valley set up its
committee in support of a two -year community college recently opened in the
chapter's area. As Morris B. Kadin, educational activities director tells it, "The
Raritan Valley Chapter contacted Middlesex County College shortly before
classes commenced and offered to speak
to student groups about careers in accounting. This led to a meeting with
Dr. Sidney Simon, Chairman of the
Business Education Department. After
agreeing upon the accounting careers
lecture series, Dr. Simon pointed out
that management accountants who represented all of the employers and business leaders in the area were in the best
position to define the needs of the community in terms of the kinds of skilled
personnel required by its business concerns, and to guide the college in offering the proper training to its terminal
students to ensure their finding employment after two years of study —and so
the Management Accountants Advisory
Committee to Middlesex County College was born."
The committee outlined a number of

goals to achieve including the projection
of business and accounting skills needed
in the future, recommendations for curriculums to meet these needs, assistance
in the establishment of an accounting
and business library, and aid in the selection of a computer and other business
machine hardware by the college.
The committee also planned to offer
private counseling services to students,
to arrange field trips to area industries,
to establish a placement bureau service
for graduating students, and to promote
tuition - reimbursement plans among
community employers to enable terminal students to continue their education.
When the committee was originally
organized, twenty members volunteered
to serve. To make such a large committee more efficient, it was structured into
subcommittees and organized according
to the sections of the Business Education Department into accounting, business administration, finance, data processing, marketing and banking.
Industry's Needs
St. Paul Chapter was asked to help assist the St. Paul area vocational-technical school in a similar program to implement a nine - month, full -time program
for junior accountants at the post high
school level. Lloyd J. Buckwell, Jr.,
1966 -67 educational activities director,
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A business can be no better than
the combined abilities of its personnel.
When a company hires the wrong
person .... when an employee
selects the wrong position
... .
both are harmed.
We can assist you in avoiding
misfit situations in the Financial
and EDP fields. We concentrate
all of our energies in this specialization. We believe that the R-H
System makes the most placements of Financial and EDP
personnel. It's the largest source
of its kind in the world.
For the most efficient service in
the Financial and EDP field
....
contact your Robert Half specialist.
Mail resume to your nearest R -H office.

ROBERT
HAL F

9
PERSONNEL
OAGENCIES
Atlanta: 235 Peachtree St., NE
(404) 688 -2300
Baltimore:One Charles Center
(301) 837 -0313
Boston: 140 Federal St.
(617) 423 -6440
Chicago: 333 N. Michigan Ave.
(312) 782.6930
Cincinnati: 606 Terrace Hilton
(513) 621 -7711
Cleveland:1367 Fast 6thSt.
(216) 621-0670
Dallas: 1170 Hartford Bldg.
(214) 742 -9171
Detroit: 1114 Guardian Bldg.
(313) 961 -5430
GardenCity, N.Y. 585 Stewart Ave. (516) 248 -1234
Los Angeles: 3600 Wilshire Blvd. (213) 381 -7974
Miami: 1107 Northeast Airlines Bldg. (305) 377.8728
NewYork: 330 Madison Ave.
(212) 986 -1300
Newark: 570 Broad St.
(201) 623.3661
Philadelphia:2 Penn Center
(215) 5684580
Pittshorgk:429 Forbes Ave
(412) 471 -5946
Portland, Ore: 610 S.W. Alder St. (503) 222.9778
(314) 231 -0114
St. Louis: 1015 Locust St.
San Francine:111 Pine St.
(415) 434.1900
Stamford, Conn: One Atlantic St. (203) 3254158
_

_
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`Locked In'
The need for industry committees to
counsel the administration and faculty
on curriculum and textbooks is obvious
even to the professors. One man with
interests in both areas is Charleston
Chapter past president Kenneth H.
Foote, who is professor of business administration at Baptist College in
Charleston. "Schools get locked into a
particular concept," he explained, "and
suddenly they wake up to find the whole
world has changed."
Prof. Foote heads an NAA committee
formed to advise the college in the selection of textbooks for elementary accounting courses at Baptist College. To
guard against over- specialization in one
area to the detriment of others, the
committee includes representatives of
other accounting organizations and of
most of the major areas of accounting.
Baptist College, which was established only four years ago, has an enrollment of almost 2,000 students, according to Prof. Foote. He estimated
that 40% of this enrollment was majoring in business. In the past, he pointed out, accounting curriculums have
emphasized the public amounting area
and neglected industrial accounting.
But with the growth of business and
commerce in the Charleston area, the
need for more courses in industrial and
management accounting and data processing is widely recognized. This is why,
he said, the NAA committee's work is
so important.
It has been fashionable: to decry the
breakdown of communications between
educational institutions and industry.
Now it seems there is a grass roots effort on the part of local business schools
and NAA chapters to bridge this gap.
Their cooperative efforts offer some insurance that no educational institution
will become "locked in" in the future.

You can tell
about
a company
by the people
it keeps

_

forces were successfully placed in accounting jobs.
St. Paul's sister chapter, Minneapolis, also established a committee to meet
with faculty and administrative personnel of the Minneapolis Area Vocational
School to assist the school in administering its postgraduate program in accounting. NAA member Gerald Carlson
was named chairman of the committee
which met several times in 1967 to discuss the curriculum. He said that it
would be the responsibility of the committee to constantly evaluate the accounting courses to ensure that they
realistically reflected industry's needs.

_

noted "Our purpose was and is to provide a sounding board for the coordinator and his teachers relative to this program.
"Our committee was composed of
NAA members in banking, railroads, insurance, collegiate education, and industry. They reviewed the program which
is just completing its first year, gave advice on types of equipment which might
be added in the coming year, discussed
at great length the course content and
gave specific suggestions for added material which might be included in current and contemplated courses."
Richard D. Peters, 1967 -68 educational activities director, described how the
chapter, in the second year of the program, advised St. Paul Area Technical
Vocational Institute. He suggested that
where the chapter was most effective
was in telling school administrators and
faculty "what industry is looking for."
At one meeting a number of personnel men, who screen prospective accounting employees, were brought along
to discuss the skills and aptitudes that
employers need. Mr. Peters feels that
the meetings have been effective in helping to prepare students to become accounting clerks and junior accountants.
Some of the graduates, he noted, will
go on to a college while others will stay
in the positions taken after graduation.
There is "a terrifically dynamic situation" in the accounting field today and
the St. Paul Area Technical Vocational
Institute's "greatest strength is its liaison with business," says William L.
Becker, coordinator of business education at the vocational school. Mr. Becker, who contacted the St. Paul Chapter
and asked for its assistance, and later
joined the Association himself, thinks
the committee has worked well. One
year of accounting courses has been set
up; now the school is working on a second year.
"I think the committee is most valuable," he said, "because of its current
contact with changes taking place in the
field." Should we have auditing courses?
What should we do in data processing?
These are the areas where the committee
members with their widely diversified
backgrounds could be most valuable, he
explained.
In the first year that the school conducted its 12 -month program in accounting, seven or eight students went
on to a second year in Minneapolis.
Those who did not go into the armed

World's Largest Fi nanc i al &
E D P Personnel Specialists.
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Chapter /Member News

Milan Chapter Has Busy Year
Chartered on September 1, 1967, Milan
International Chapter has struck a fast
pace in its first year of existence. The
1968 -69 President Pio Bersani recently
reported on the activities of the European chapter in a letter to the national
office.
The Milan Chapter held eight dinner
meetings during a ten -month period
ended June 19, 1968, organized an employment service, and published a
monthly bulletin. The chapter is also
planning to publish selected articles
from MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING In
Italian.
Member attendance at meetings has
been very good, according to Mr. Bersani. "We estimate that monthly meetings have been attended by a percentage
of members ranging from 45% to 80%
of all registered members." Those attending the meetings reacted very favorably, he noted.
Looking ahead, the chapter plans to
organize a convention on the topic,
"How to improve cooperation between
universities and industry." It was also
planning to hold another series of meetings dealing with topics of special interest to accounting and financial executives.
Emeritus Life Associates
LOUIS F. ARNOLD, Baltimore.
JACK ASRAMS, Los Angeles.
URBAN J. ALBERS, St. Louis past president; Louisville.
EDWARD W. BERGIN, Bridgeport.
KURT A. BIEBER, Philadelphia.
ELLIS G. BOHON, Chicago.
HERBERT R. BROWN, Cincinnati.
GEORGE E. BUEHRIG, Cleveland.
MAYNARD F. CARTER, Worcester past
president; Stuart Cameron McLeod Society.
WALTER R. CATTON, Boston.
HANEY R. COOK, Birmingham.
GEORGE W. DELLINGER, York.
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ROBERT W. DUFF, Houston.

named controller of Columbus Bank

JOHN W. DUNLAY, Pittsburgh.

Book Co.... DONALD G. HAUSER is now
controller of Columbia National Corp.
and its subsidiaries, Columbia National
Life Insurance Co. and Columbia National Life Insurance Co. of Illinois.
... GEORGE C. LEHMKUHL was promoted
to controller of S. Robert Davis & Co.
and Davis Leasing Corp.... GERALD R.
SMITH was appointed chief accountant
of Buckcve Plastics Co.

HERMAN G. DUSCH, Trenton.
ALBERT R. EISENHAUER, Lehigh Valley
RUSSELL L. EKSTROM, Rockford.
JOSEPH E. FINNERTY, New York.
WILLARD S. GARRETSON, Newark.

Promotions and New Positions
PERRY COKER, Atlanta, was recently appointed executive controller of Graphic

Lours J. OLIVERIO, Dayton, has been

Industries, Inc.... DR. R. FRANK PAGE

Co. . . . RAY PICKLE Was promoted to
vice president and director of finance
for Roth Office Equipment Co. . . .
Louis VLASHO was named manager of
manufacturing accounting for The Hobart Mfg. Co.... DAVID WOODY has
been appointed controller of Kircher,
Helton & Collett.

has joined the University of Missouri,
St. Louis, as an associate professor of
accounting.
LLOYD W. MERRILL, Bangor - Waterville,

has been promoted to senior vice president of the Federal Trust Co.
DELMAR GOEDEKER, Beaver Valley, has

been promoted to controller with MeDanel Refractory Porcelain Co. . . .
JAMES A. JANZIG is now senior budget
analyst in main offices of Jones & Laughlin Steel Corp.

promoted to manager of accounting for
the Troy Sunshade Div., Hobart Mfg.

GLENN CLINEFELTER, Delaware, has

been promoted to Philadelphia district
manager for Burroughs Corp.

GEORGE P. BERGERON, Birmingham, is

FRANK GALLAS, Eugene, is now managing partner in the Los Angeles office of
Moss, Adams & Co.

now division controller in the Midwest

ELMER J. GARY, Evansville, has joined

Division of Vulcan Materials.... JOHN

Paragon Electric Co. as assistant treasurer and assistant secretary.

F. PARKER was named secretary- treasurer
of Oxmoor Press Div., Progressive
Fanner Co.
WILLIAM M. STOREY, Boise, has been
named president of Boise Southern Co.
JAMES E. RAUB, Canton, has been named

general manager of Service Cable Corp.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Merit
Plastics.
JOHN H. FREECHACK, Chicago,-was elect-

ed to the board of directors of Playskool
Mfg. Co. He is financial vice president.
. . . JOHN L. HANSON has recently been
promoted to controller of the Signal
Div., of Federal Sign & Signal Corp.
PATRICK J. RUDDEN, Cleveland past

president, has joined Arthur G. McKee
& Co., as management analyst.
STANLEY P. FAWCETT, Columbus, was

DAVID E. BODWELL, Fox River Valley,

has been named assistant controller -internal auditor of General Box Co.
MISs BARBARA DE GAETANI, GreenwichStamford, was elected treasurer of Chest nutt Corp.
WAYNE FLOOK, Hagerstown, was named

controller of Victor Cushwa & Sons.
THOMAS J. BAILEY, Hawaii, has been

elected assistant treasurer of Castle &
Cooke, Inc. . . . DONALD J. Ho was
named vice president of American SecuIIty Bank. . .. JOHN L. WITWER has
joined Touche, Ross, Bailey & Smart as
senior consultant.
MERLE JENKINS, Jacksonville, is now as-

sistant secretary, as well as general credit
manager, at Knight Paper Co.
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Two Johnstown members were recently
named by Pennsylvania Electric Co.
J. J. MICHEL has been promoted to
director of systems and data processing,
and F. P. MARRA was named southern
division office manager.
JACKSHERNIAN, Kalamazoo, was recently
named to the newly created position of
controller of Simpson Lee Paper Co.
DANIEL J. LEHANE, Kansas City, has
joined Helzberg's Diamond Shops Inc.,
as data processing manager.
JOHN P. MCDONALD, Lancaster,has been
promoted to special projects accountant
for the Floor, Carpet & Consumer Products Operations, Armstrong Cork Co.
WALTER J. GERRY, Lehigh Valley, has
joined Consolidated Packaging Corp. as
vice president- finance & administration
and secretary.
G. R. RossON, Longview -East Texas, has
been promoted to assistant vice president of the Southern USA Group of
U.S. Industries, Inc.

was named manager of cost and inventory accounting at Minneapolis - Moline,
Inc.... DONALD A. OLSON has been
named finance director for the Glenwood Hills Hospital Assn.
JANIEs A. AUSTIN, Mohawk Valley, has
been promoted to executive vice president of the Marine Midland Trust Co.
of Mohawk Valley.
DONALD E. MCGOVERN, Morristown,
has been appointed corporate controller
of The Slick Corp. He will continue to
serve as controller of Drew Chemical
Corp., a wholly -owned subsidiary.
EDWARD E. LEE, JR., Nashville past
president, has been named partner -incharge of the St. Louis office of Peat,
Marwick, Mitchell & Co. JOHN S.
GLENN, JR., succeeds him as partner -incharge of the Nashville office.

LAWRENCE W. WHALEN, JR., Member at- Large, was named executive vice president of The Berkline Corp.

Two Newark members were named by
Ciba Corp. ROBERT ROKOSE has been
appointed to a new post as budget administrator, and ABBAS DAHODWALA was
named economic analyst. . . . RUSSELL
MIDDLETON is corporate manager -cost
with Atlas Chemical Industries, Inc.

DAVID R. HOPPER, Memphis, has been
promoted to controller for the City of
Memphis.

J. PAUL GAVELL, New Haven, has been
promoted to director of purchasing for
Marlin Firearms Co.

ARTHUR C. MORROW, Merrimack Valley,
has been elected treasurer of Davis &
Furber Co.

PETER L. CONTI, New York, is now financial officer of Nuclear Fuel Services, Inc.,
a subsidiary of W. R. Grace & Co....
RICHARDHIENDLMAYR Is now corporate
vice president in the Chemicals Group
of Olin Mathieson Chemical Corp.

.'r
GERRY

SHERMAN

REx EASTERLING, Mid- Missouri, was recently appointed treasurer of A.P. Green
Firebrick Co. He will also continue as
controller.
JOHN B. BERGMANN, Milwaukee, is now
controller of the Writing Sales Div. of
Exton, Inc. . . . JERRY MACIF.JEWSKI
has been promoted to controller of KlauVan Pietersom- Dunlap, Inc.
FLOYD H. DAEHN, Minneapolis, is now
controller at Turnquist Paper Co... .
JOHN A. FOLEY has been appointed vice
president and treasurer of Conweb
Corp., St. Paul. . . . ROBERT GILSDORF
recently joined Toro Mfg. Co. as assistant controller.... THEODORE J. HALL
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Two North Central Indiana members
have been promoted by Bell Fibre
Products Corp. HOWARD EAST is now assistant secretary and controller, and
HUBERT TUCKER was named assistant
controller.
ALVIN D. REECE, North Central Ohio,
was promoted to manager of cost analysis at Ohio Brass Co.
ART D. SCHWARZ, North Jersey Shore,
is now controller, Monmouth Medical
Center.
DONALD G. SPRIGINGS, Norwich, has
been appointed vice president and general manager of the Kellems Div. of
Harvey Hubbell, Inc.
HARVEY R. REILICH, Oakland County,
has been named chief accountant for
the Ohio Div., Associate Spring Corp.
Roy BROOKS, Oklahoma. City, has been
promoted to data processing manager,

Fife Corp. . .. RICHARD BRADSHAW has
joined Mutual Federal Savings & Loan
Co. as controller.
Two Olean - Bradford members have
been named by Dresser - Clark. FRANK
ALOI is now general accountant, and
JOHN ROBERTSON was named division
financial analyst of the Gas Turbine
Div.
Two Omaha members were promoted at
the University of Nebraska in connection with the setting up of a new department of accounting. R. H. RAYNIOND was
named chairman of the new department,
and WAYNE M. HIGLEY was promoted to
professor of accounting.... WAYNE
PADRNOS is now office manager of the
United States Check Book Co. . . .
THONIAS PRICE was promoted to assistant
secretary- treasurer of Hawkins Construction Co.

HIENDLMAYR

MOCK

CHARLES V. BENSON, Orange County,
was named principal at Arthur Young
CO. . . . JANIES G. KARSATOS Is now division controller, Howmet Corp.
GENE CASTI, Peninsula -Palo Alto, was
appointed controller for Massey Temporary Service Inc.... DON W. IRVINE
has rejoined Utah Construction & Mining Co. as assistant controller of the
mining div.. . . NICK RADOYCIS is now
controller, Lawrence Brian & Co.
WILLIANi LEES, Pennsylvania Northeast,
was promoted to controller of Northeastern Pennsylvania National Bank &
Trust Co. . . . DONALD MAST is now
controller, Hendrick Mfg. Co. . . .
CHARLES E. PARENTE was promoted to a
principal at Haskins & Sells, Wilkes Barre office.
E. D. HARTZOG, Pensacola, is now business manager at Burwell Chevrolet....
J. A. HEAD has been promoted to vice
president at the First Bank & Trust Co.
JOHN J. KERN, Philadelphia, has been
elected treasurer of Key Chemicals, Inc.
Three Pittsburgh members have been
named by Pittsburgh Corning Corp.
JOHN H. PRICE, JR., was promoted to
vice president, sales; THONIAS H. DON67

ALDSON t o c o n t r o l l e r , a n d G u y

BAD -

WI LBUR A. WOOD,

San Antonio

JOHN

MAN was named assistant controller....

presi dent, has be e n

elected a

Gre e n' s D ai ry, I n c. , a s c on t ro l l e r.

CALV I N D . M C C RA C KE N h a s b e e n a p -

of t he Lone Star Brewing

pointed

Co. . . . V I CT OR

M A N T Z, a ss i s ta n t c o n tr o l le r , Al l e gh a -

n y L u d l u m Ste el Corp., h as ret ire d. . . .
CL AI R

past
director

B. M C C A L L

was named secretary -

t re a s ur e r o f H ol l e y, Ke n ne y, S c hot t , I nc.
. . . LAWRE N CE

E.

Royal Crown Col a

M OCK

Co. a s

has

joined

vice pre side nt -

f i n a n c e . . . . J . E D W A R D S CH U L T Z i s n o w

EV E RE T T

BR OW N E LL ,

W.

MUNN E LL,

York,

has

joined

Co.

m a n a g e r of ac c o u n t i n g, Pi t t s -

bu r gh A ct i v at e d C a r bo n s

H.

P.

has

San Diego,

Organization Service
JOHN L . M A RL E Y ,

jo i n e d D e l t a D e s i gn as c o n t r o l l e r .

Chicago

p as t pre si-

d e n t , wi l l p r e s e n t a s e m i n a r , " D o u b l e
HE R B E R T R . M O R S E ,

ley, h a s

San Fernando Val-

e s t ab l i s h e d t h e firm o f H e r b e r t

R. Morse

i n E n c i n c o , Cal i f., t o

& Co.

e ngage in ne w

fi nanci ngs , acqui s i t i ons

an d m e r ge r s pr i ma ri l y i n t h e f ra nc h i s i n g

Y o u r Effectiveness," co n d u ct e d b y t h e
D a t a Processing M a n a g e m e n t Ass n. o n
Octobe r

4 in

Los Angele s. M r. Marle y is

pre s i d e nt of J o h n L . M a r l e y

& Co.,

a

manage me nt consul t i ng fi rm.

and e l e c t r oni cs i n du s t r y.

as s i s t a n t t o t h e c o n t r o l l e r , P P G I n d u s t r i e s , I n c . . . . N O R M A N F . Y OU N T h a s

J O H N L . CHE SN U T T ,

b e e n a p p o i n t e d vi ce pr e s i de nt a n d ge n-

ass ist ant co ntroll er of the

e r al m a n a g e r o f t h e W i r e & C a b l e D i v .

Bank

o f C o p p e r w e l d Ste e l

h a s b e e n p r o m o t e d t o vi c e p r e s i d e n t o f

E . G. PRU N T Y ,

Co.

Princeton, i s

n o w co n t r o l -

RALPH A . RE HM E T ,

Queens p a s t p r e s i dent, is now a partner in the CP A firm

E L M O BU N N ,

& Co.

n o w f i n a n c i a l a n d a d m i n i s t r a t i v e as s i s t -

FR AN K M OL E N ,
promote d

to

Co.

KOVANEN

of T a -

Co.

mi ni st rati on

of

be en

payrol l

at

and

Economics

at

Fort

S t e i l a co om C o m m u n i t y C ol l e ge .

DI M ASCI O, South Jersey, w a s
W. Can-

app oin ted tr eas ur er of the H. &
tor

Enterprises,

MASUCCI

Raritan Valley, h a s

supe rvi sor

E.

fi nance of E d u c a t o r s M f g .

SALVATORE

Raleigh- Durham Area, is

ant wi th Henley Paper

Ore go n. . . . A.

c o m a . . . . ROY J . P O L L E Y i s n o w c h a i I man of the De partment of Business Ad-

l e r of S ys t e m e di cs , I n c .

of Al e x an de r G r a n t

of

Seattle, w a s n a m e d
U.S. N a t i o n a l

was

I n c . . . . ROB E RT

appointed

N.

cont rol ler

of

Ph il ad el ph ia P harm aceu ti cals & C os me tics.

O r t h o P h a r m a c e u t i c a l C o r p . . . . JOHN
O ' L E A R Y is n o w c o n t r o l l e r o f L a s e r D i ode Laboratori e s , I nc., affi l i at e of U ni t e d

L. R. M OR R E L L ,
budget

Mass ach us et ts .

Corp.
JOSE PH M . RE E CE ,

Richmond, h a s

be e n

Springfield, w a s

dire ctor

at
.

the
.

.

WAY N E K. GI L M AN ,
named

assistant

controller

of

Kodak

Park Works.
D E AN

FRE D

EIT EMAN,

Saginaw Valley, is

n o w profe s s or of a c c o u n t i n g a t

J. AB E L , Syracuse, is n o w

Fe rris

me mbers

named by Beck & Corbitt

have

been

Co. M R S .

LA-

VERNE BRIE SE w a s e l e c t e d a s s i s t a n t se c r e t a r y , a n d RO B E R T J . BR O C KM E I E R w a s
el ect ed vi ce p re si d en t .. . . J OHN

C. CAL HOUN w a s n a m e d a s s i s t a n t c o m p t r o l l e r ,
ge n e r a l a c c o u n t i n g , of Fals taff B r e w i n g
Corp.... EDWIN
Fluid

J. G E E R S

is now pres i Power P u m p

HE M M E R

Co. . . .

was

c o u n t i n g m a n a g e r of

Co. . .. H.

appointed

ac -

Pott

compPapers,

E m e r i t u s Life Associate.

I n c . . . . DAV ID B . SU T T ON h a s j o i n e d

S.

Wi ckwi re Bro th e rs as co m pt rol l er.

E mer itus Lif e As soci ate.

Technical

Toledo, w a s

recently named controller of the Schemenauer
M f g.

D OU CL As

Co. .. .

T. WE Y RA U C H

man age r - co rpo ra te

a n a l ys i s

and
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Paper
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has
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co n t r o l l e r , L i t h o c r a f t S t u d i o I n c .
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JAMI ESON ,

LI N COL N M . K E LLY ,

56, Hartford,

80, Salt Lake Area,

1952.
PAU L KE P P E L E R ,

1927.

71, Hawaii

Stuart

Cameron

W A L T E R F . KN I G HT ,
president,

past presiMcLeod

Tulsa,
T. D .
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William-
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WI LLI AM

a n as s i s t a n t
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Washington, IS n o w
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JAME S CARLSON ,
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past
Mc-

H.

KN OW LE S,

57, Bridgeport,

1955.
HE R M A N L E W I S ,

75, Memphis, 1950.
44, Akron, 1964.
H. POWE RS, 61, Houston,

OBE RD I E R,

W.

RAY M ON D

1965.
JOHN

ARLAND N . BE VY ,
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Carling Bre wing

Industries,

Phoenix.
66, Long Beach,

H E N R Y A . GI RARD I N ,

a l s o e l e c t e d a s s i s t a n t s e c r e t a r y- t r e a s u r e r
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W.

59, Niagara,

1943.

Schoeller

E . KRUE GER w a s a p p o i n t e d

controller, St. Lou is Sh ip b ui ld i ng, a n d

GI FFORD ,

JOHN

now

Two St. Louis

d e n t of

Co.

M.

RON ALD

State Col lege.

WE S LE E

E merit us Lif e Asso ciate.
RON ALD

of Wes tern Bank & Trust

CA R L G . B I L L M A I E R ,

S.

61, Morristown, 1964.
47, Cincinnati, 1964.
D E N N I S C. BRADY, 35, Chicago, 1962.
W I L L I A M F . BU N GE RT , 63, Fall River New Bedford, 1953.
JOHN L . CALAN O, 55, West Bergen Passaic County, 1948.
AN D RE W J . CO T H RA N , 67, Columbia,
1947.
JOSEPH W . CROSBY , 73, Syracuse, 1925.
CHA RL E S H. E P P E R T , JR ., 58, Southern
West Virginia, 1966.
EDGAR R . FOLKE RS, 52, Calumet, 1966.
R . G . FOSTE R, 75, Kalamazoo, 1928,
JOH N R . A LF,

WEC RZYN is no w con troll er an d aud it or

trol le r of
be en

R.

RI CHARD AE BY ,

1946.

E U GE N E

Rochester, h a s

of

THAD DE US

pro m o t e d to b ran ch co n t ro l l e r o f B ro wn
& Williamson Tobacco Corp.

named

University

In Memoriam

C.

SCHE U E R,

79, Scranton, 1925.

Emeri tus Life Associ ate.
LOH I S

P. SHRY N E , 64, Westchester, 1962.
BRU CE D . SNODGRASS, 67, Pittsburgh,
1946.
HARRY W . WO L K S T E I N , 59, Newark,
1945.
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When I was installed as President of the Association at the Annual International Conference in Denver in June of 1967, I ventured to hope that a number of goals would be attained during the year then to come. Events proved
that those hopes were not overly ambitious but ends that could be reached
through hard work, dedication and the cooperative efforts of many people.
A major accomplishment of the 1967 -68 year was the chartering of the first
two European chapters of the National Association of Accountants —in Paris,
France, and in Milan, Italy. Add to this action, the laying of the groundwork
for NAA expansion in South America and you'll agree that we have turned a
corner and have become a truly international organization.
There were equally significant developments in the United States. For the
first time we presented a two - week -long advanced management program in
cooperation with a major university. Its success has ensured the continuance
of such programs in the future. In presenting the first advanced management
program the Association was carrying out one of the recommendations made
by the Committee on Long -Range Objectives whose work was brought to
conclusion during the year. Its findings, published in the August issue of
MANAGEMENTACCOUNTING, will be carefully studied, appraised and reappraised, and evaluated by future National Boards. The guidelines have been
drawn. N o w w e must proceed to implementation. Such a task is not easily
executed; it will draw upon all of the resources, financial and human, of the
Association.
In June of 1967 I said, "I hope we shall sustain a membership growth of
5 %." This goal, it turns out, was somewhat conservative; at year's end our
membership stood at 64,998 —a gain of 60/,,.
Progress was also evident in the research and publication areas of Association activities. The first report developing from the NAA research project
entitled "Financial Reporting for Investment and Credit Decisions" received
excellent coverage in the accounting and business press. The publication,
External Reporting for Segments of a Business, was introduced at the first
press conference ever held by NAA. This was an initial step taken to acquaint
the press with the role the Association plays within the financial and business
world.
Planning continued to go forward on the development of the monthly
magazine, MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING. By the time you read this report the
first issue of the new magazine will have been published. In a bright new
M A N A G E M E N T A C C O U N TIN G /O CT OB ER , 19 6 8

package, MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING will continue to publish stimulating and
informative articles in our field. Thanks to the new format more of the many
worthy manuscripts submitted each year can now be published.
Two research monographs, based upon doctoral dissertations, were published. The Grants -in -Aid program unquestionably has stimulated interest in
research in accounting.
In summing up the year's activities of a large and diverse Association such
as ours, much of necessity has to be omitted. I feel, however, that I would
be remiss if I did not mention again the men and women —the individual
members —who stand at the base of this great Association. Their friendship,
their willingness to help, their optimism —all were warm reminders of what
makes this organization so exciting and so satisfying. It was my privilege, for
which I profoundly thank you, to meet and chat with hundreds of fellow
members during the year. I know that the many friendships developed during
my term of office will continue to grow through the years. I shall continue to
work with you to advance the goals of NAA.

(3&a4)
THOMASL.MORISON
President, 1967 -68

Member and Chapter Growth
The remarkable growth of the Association continued unabated during the
1967 -68 year. A 6% growth rate pushed the membership to 65,000 at June
30, and the number of chapters increased to 222. Much work and intensive
planning came to fruition when the first two European chapters were chartered during the year. The International Chapter of France and the Milan
International Chapter were presented charters personally by President Thomas
L. Morison and Executive Director Rawn Brinkley.
At the same time the Committee on Chapters and the Committee on
Membership turned their attention to expansion in South America. John C.
Freeman, manager of the NAA Membership Development Department,
toured South America to appraise the potential for growth in that part of the
world. He visited eight major cities in South America and spoke with top
financial men. Upon his return, Mr. Freeman reported that the nuclei of six
organizing committees had been formed.
The results of the first official visit to South America soon became apparent.
During the year the Sao Paulo, Brazil, organizing committee submitted a
member /industry survey which was approved by the National Board. The
chapter will probably receive its charter during the first half of 1968 -69. Another group, in Colombia, was well on its way as the 1967 -68 year ended.
Spectacular expansion abroad in no way impaired the chapter expansion
program in the United States. Six new chapters were chartered, including
Princeton (N.J.), Augusta (Ga. ), San Joaquin Valley (Calif.), Ohio Mid Eastern Area, Indiana East, North Carolina Southeastern Area, and Reno
(Nev.) Area.
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National Director Contact Program
The first full year of the new national director contact program proved highly
successful. Under this program, first inaugurated in 1967, each national direcMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968
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Ti

President Thomas L. Morison addresses
International Chapter of France after presenting NAA charter to first European
chapter. Later President Morison and
Executive Director Rawn Brinkley presented charter to Milan, Italy, Chapter.

for is assigned to contact one to three chapters in his geographical area. It is
his responsibility to visit each of these chapters at least once during the year.
The objective of the program is to strengthen and augment the channels of
communication between chapter boards and the National Board. Its success
demonstrates that the Association is responsive to the effort.
A total of 590 visits were made by national officers and members of the
Executive Committee, national directors, and members of the national staff.
This is a substantial increase over the 350 visits made during the 1966 -67 year.
Almost all NAA chapters were visited at least once by a representative of the
Association.
As another means of assisting chapters with administrative and operating
problems, the chapter operation workshops again proved effective. Twenty -six
such meetings were held throughout the country during the months of March,
April and May. As a new feature of the program, reports on the work of
several national committees were given by national directors and members of
the staff. Some 1,452 members participated in 65 discussion sessions during
the spring chapter operation workshop program.
Memb er s hip D evelopment
Under the guidance of the Committee on Membership, a comprehensive and
expanded membership development program was organized by the national
staff. As a first step, chapter Membership Directors were asked to send to the
national office a Prospect List and Contact Plan. A follow -up on the prospect
lists submitted was planned in cooperation with the appropriate chapters.
A filmstrip entitled "Growth" was produced to help chapter Membership
Directors structure their committees and plan their activities. It was "premiered" at the spring workshops and received favorably. Prints have been
sent to chapters for local use.
Awa r ds
The motivating force that provides incentives for chapters —the national
chapter competition —was intensively reviewed during the year and action was
taken to assure improved effectiveness. The newly inaugurated Public Relations Recognition Awards and the Membership Round -Up Award were presented for the first time. A new award for the most improved chapter competing for the Warner Trophy was authorized. This trophy will be awarded at
the close of the 1969 -70 competition year.

Gr ou p Life Insu r a nce P la n
The Committee on Membership successfully implemented a group insurance
plan for members. The plan, which became effective on July 1, 1968, enrolled
more than 4,000 NAA members, who were insured for approximately $60,000,000 through the Connecticut General Life Insurance Company, Hartford,
Conn. Enrollment in the insurance plan exceeded all expectations, with members from 47 states, Canada and Puerto Rico represented. About 65% of those
enrolling purchased family coverage. A continuing Committee on the MemPresident Morison (center) makes bers' Group Insurance plan has been formed for 1968 -69.
Stevenson Trophy presentation to
Cedar Rapids President James J.
Finerty. The award is presented by
David W. Rewick, chairman of the
Committee on Chapters.

Education and Research
Innovation and expansion characterized this major area of Association activities. The Continuing Education Program courses and seminars were held
during seven separate weeks in Cleveland, New York, St. Louis, San Francisco
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and Chicago. Attendance in the Fall 1967 and Spring 1968 programs totaled
1,123 registrants. For 1968 -69 an additional week of courses and seminars has
been scheduled.
In May the Association conducted a pioneering education program in cooperation with the University of Michigan Graduate School of Business
Administration. The two -week Advanced Management Program was designed
to broaden and develop the general management skills of a selected group of
accounting and financial executives. The 34 middle managers who participated
in this program rated it as excellent or very good. As a result, at least one
similar two -week program is planned for 1969.

Studies Published

Professor R. Lee Brummet addresses
session of Advanced Management Program conducted by NAA and the University of Michigan School of Business Administration in May 1968.

An important research study and two research monographs were published
during the year. External Reporting for Segments of a Business was released
in April following a press conference. This study which deals with the conglomerate company issue was received with a great deal of interest by other
accounting organizations and by the financial press.
A second report, developed from the same research effort, "Financial
Reporting for Security Investment and Credit Decisions," will be published
early in 1969. A project titled "Computer Based System for Management"
has been reviewed by the Committee on Research Planning and publication
will probably occur in the fall. Preliminary work has begun on two other
research projects, and the Committee authorized three new projects.
Three research monographs were published under the NAA Grants -In -Aid
program during 1967 -68. They are Accounting Information in Managerial
Decision - Making for Small and Medium Manufacturers, Sensitivity Analysis
in Making Capital Investment Decisions, and Major Changes Caused by the
Implementation of a Management Information System.
In a review of the program since it was established in 1962, the Grants -inAid Committee recommended to the Executive Committee that grants for
monograph publications be discontinued due to high editing, production and
distribution costs. The Committee concluded, however, that grants to encourage accounting research are accomplishing the very worthwhile purpose of
stimulating interest in NAA among graduate students. Accordingly, the Committee recommended, and the Executive Committee approved, the continuation of grants for this purpose. It specified that the maximum grant should
not exceed $6,000 and that the total funds for this program should not exceed
$18,000 in any one year.

Regional Conferences
During the year just passed the National Board approved a new policy on
regional conferences which was recommended by an Ad Hoc Committee.
The objectives of the new policy are to supplement the conference program
and offer members additional opportunities for education in the management
accounting field. The policy also permits a chapter or group of chapters to take
the initiative at the local level to up -grade their members' knowledge of
accounting and business techniques.
The policy provides for at least one but not more than three regional conferences in one year with the actual number to be held determined by the
location and schedule of other Association activities. The planning, organization and conduct of regional conferences will be the joint responsibility of the
host chapters and the national office, and subject to the approval of the
Executive Committee.

Accounting Careers Council
The National Association of Accountants assumed an even larger role in the
cooperative effort of the Accounting Careers Council to influence promising
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968
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students to enter the field of accounting. At the end of the year more than
120 chapters were sponsoring or participating in career information projects.
Spearheaded by the Committee on Promotion and Public Relations, the
NAA staff developed and published a new recruiting brochure "Management
Accounting— Opportunities Unlimited" which was made available for ACC
distribution. Copies of the brochure were included in an "educator kit" mailed
earlier this year. The brochure is available to chapters.
Mailings were made to 35,000 high school mathematics teachers, 680 armed
forces librarians, and 50,000 National Merit Scholars. The Council decided to
terminate the 67 regional controls and substitute in their place an unlimited
number of local chapters of ACC. Experience indicates that this type of structure will be more effective. In practice, it should offer further encouragement
to NAA chapters to initiate such activities.
First Treas urer of the Year Award
sponsored by NAA in c ooperation
with Junior Achievement, Inc., is
presented to winner Douglas J.
Moore by President Morison.

Publications
Throughout the Association year, staff and members of the Subcommittee on
Publications were engaged in planning for extensive changes in the Association's principal publication, MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING. Following the advice
of consultants, the National Board approved an increased page size, a new
format and editorial policy, and the acceptance of advertising to help defray
additional printing costs.
The first issue of MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING in its new size and with the
new format was scheduled for September 1968. A permanent Committee on
Publications was established to make policy recommendations for the monthly
magazine as well as for the other publications of the Association. This Committee will constantly review NAA publications with a view to maintaining
their high quality and improving coverage and content.

Financial
Operations (excluding Research)
The operating deficit for the year ended June 30, 1968, was $84,000. With an
operating surplus for prior years of $369,300, the operating surplus as of June
30, 1968, was $285,300. The F i n a n ce a n d Budget Commi t t e e developed a

budget, approved by the National Board, which projects an operating deficit
of $286,200 for the 1968 -69 Association year. If this deficit materializes as
expected, the operating deficit on June 30, 1969, will be $900.

Research
The 1967 -68 research program for the year resulted in a deficit of $60,000.
Because of an expanded program, the research deficit for 1968 -69 is budgeted
at $86,200. The National Board approved the use of the Reserve Fund to
finance 1966 -67 and 1967 -68 research deficits totaling $84,000. Consideration
will be given to financing the 1968 -69 research deficit from the Reserve Fund.

Memorial Education Fund
Since its establishment, a steady flow of contributions has been received by
the Association for the Memorial Education Fund. Contributions now total
more than $10,000. To date 15 individuals and one group, Norwich Chapter
Past Presidents, have been memorialized through donations.
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The Fund was set up in 1966 to allow members of the Association, other
organizations, and other individuals to make donations to further the educational goals of NAA. Some contributions are made as a means of memorializing relatives or colleagues in the field of accounting; others are made in
direct support of the Association and its objectives.
The NAA Memorial Education Fund is administered by a five -man Board
of Trustees. Trustees of the Fund are empowered to invest and administer the
monies in such a manner as in their judgment will best serve the objectives
and purposes of the Fund.
Donors included NAA members and a major public accounting firm. Individual donors included the following:
John E. Vavasour

Clemens A. Erdahl

O. Rav Dawson

Nels C. Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. John Kokos

Kenneth R. Rickey
Colin A. Stillwagen
Mr. and Mrs. Firman H. Hass

David W. Rewick

Myron W. Baker

Paul M. Herring
Robert I. Dickey

E. W. Kelley
Rawn Brinkley

Richard E. Austin

Robert J. Enersen

Donald C. Brabston

Earl A. Matheney

Robert G. Chapman

Robert A. Morgan
Mr. and Mrs. Al Pendleton
Fred J. Sengstatke

R. W. Harwell
Mr. and Mrs. John Hampel
Mr. and Mrs. Ted Meredith
Ettore Barbatelli
Mrs. Paul Tierney
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph L. Brumit

Ernst & Ernst recently made a substantial contribution to the NAA Memorial
Education Fund. On behalf of his firm,
NAA Vice Pres ident and E. & E. Partner
Arthur P. Bartholomew presents a check
to Executive Director Rawn Brinkley.

Raymond E. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Carl G. Orne
Miss Marie M. Flad
Leonard E. Zastrow

Organizations which have donated sums to the Fund include Ernst & Ernst,
Minneapolis Chapter, New Orleans Chapter, Past Presidents of Raritan Valley Chapter, Morristown Chapter and Norwich Chapter. The National Association of Accountants and the Stuart Cameron McLeod Society have also
made significant contributions.

Stuart Cameron McLeod Society
The group of men and women who form the Stuart Cameron McLeod Society
strive to perpetuate the friendships they enjoyed while serving the Association
at the national level. At the same time the Society constitutes a reservoir of
talent and experience in chapter and Association leadership which NAA can
draw upon as the need arises.
The Society had a very active year. Its second mid -year meeting was held
at the Tropicana Hotel in Las Vegas, October 30, 31, and November 1, 1967.
More than 130 members and wives enjoyed the business sessions and recreational activities. The Board of Governors voted to hold the next mid -year
meeting in Miami, Fla., on October 28-30,1968.
At the Annual Meeting in New Orleans, the Society inducted 30 members
and elected new officers and governors. More than 400 members and their
wives participated in activities in New Orleans.
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ OCTOBER, 1968

Stuart Cameron McLeod Society holds
its Annual Meeting in New Orleans during
the NAA Annual International Conference.
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NAT I ONAL ASSOCI AT ION
STATEMENT OF ASSETS,
(Excludi ng funds and acc ounts
JUN E 30

ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

19 68
150, 926

Sh o r t - t e r m i n ve s t m e n t s , a t c o s t w h i c h a p p r oxi m a t e s m a r k e t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

300, 000

Mi s c e l l a n e o u s r e c e i v a b l e s a n d d e p o s i t s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

11, 875

D ue f r o m t he R es e r ve F un d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

.....................................................

84, 555

F ur ni t ur e, equi pm ent , l i b r ar y book s and publ i c at i ons , at n om i na l am o unt s ( N ot e 1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

3

1967
$

184, 649
565, 500
11, 198

D ef er r ed i t em s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

4, 574

$

547, 359

$

4, 7 11

3
$

765, 924

RESERVE
Cash.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Inves tments, at c ost:
Bonds —
U. S. gover nm ent agenc i es ( quot ed m ar ket pr i c e $51, 975 i n 1968 and $102, 425 i n 1967) . . . . . . . . . . . . .

54, 931

C o r p or at e ( q uo t e d m a r k et p r i c e $ 1, 16 8, 16 0 i n 1 96 8 a nd $ 94 5, 89 6 i n 1 96 7 ) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1, 293, 153

C om m on s t o c ks ( qu ot e d m a r ke t p r i c e $1 , 35 3, 1 05 i n 1 968 and $1 , 37 9, 1 22 i n 1 967 ) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

1, 086, 762

1, 148, 001

$2, 439, 557

$2, 279, 604

$2, 986, 916

$3, 045, 528

105, 317
1, 026, 286

T he ac companying notes to financial statements

NOTES TO FIN ANC IAL ST AT EMENTS
(Excluding funds and accounts of chapter treasuries)
J U N E 30, 1968
(1)

Method of accounting:
It i s the policy of the Associ ati on t o charge purchases of furniture,
equipment, library books and publicati ons to expense at the time
of acquisition rather than capitalizing such items as would be
required by generally accepted accounting principles.

(2)

Leasing agreements:
Annual rent expense under leases for office space at 505 Park Avenue expiring in 1970 is $82,000.
Under a leasing agreement dated June 5, 1968 (approved by the
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Executive Committee of the Association), the Association leased
office space at 919 Third Avenue for a period of fifteen years
commencing on May 1, 1970 at an annual rental of $198,290.
Annual basic rental charge under a computer leasing agreement
expiring in 1971 is $30,000. During the term of the lease the
Association has the option to purchase the computer at a price
which declines from $90,000 at June 30, 1968, to $32,000 at
October 31, 1971.
(3)

Reserve Fund:
The Reserve Fund was established for the purpose of providing
through the income therefrom funds which may be utilized to
insure continuous extension and development of activities for the
best interests of members. The pri ncipal of t hi s Re serve Fund is
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OF ACCOUNTANTS
L I A B I L I T I E S A N D F U N D BA L A N C E S
of chapt er treasuries)
1968 and 1967

LIABILIT IES AND FUND BALANCES
OPERAT ING FUND
19 68
A c c o u n t s p a y a b l e a n d a c c r u e d e xp e n s e s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

All owances due chapter s ..................................................... ...............................

120, 971

19 67
$

156, 050

1, 070

981

129, 659

263, 652

Me m o r i a l E d u c a t i o n F u n d b a l a n c e ( N o t e 5 ) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

10, 355

437

Fundbal anc e. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

285, 304

344,804

Defer r ed i nc om e — dues .............................. ...............................

$

547,359

$

84, 555

$

765, 924

—

fund bal anc e:
Ba l a n c e, b e g i nn i n g o f ye a r .. . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
In i t i a t i o nf e es . . .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Net gain (los s) on sales of securities ....................................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Contr ibut ion to Current Operat ing F und (Not e 6) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
...............................
B a l a n c e , e n d o f ye a r . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

(

Payab l e f or s ec ur i ti es p ur ch as ed . ... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

2, 222, 005
103, 190
114, 362
84, 555)

—

57, 599
2, 129, 711
92, 320
(
26)
—

Due to Cur rent Operating F und ............................................... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

FUND (Note 3)

$2, 355, 002

$2, 222, 005

$2, 439, 557

$2, 279, 604

$2, 986, 916

$3, 045, 528

are an int egral par t of thes e st atements.

accepting and holding funds to support and further the educational goals of the Association. All monies or property received
by the Fund will be administered separately from the general
funds of the Association by a five -man Board of Trustees. All
actions of the Trustees shall be subject to approval by the Executive Committee. At June 30, 1968, the Fund consisted of donations in the amount of $10,065 with interest thereon of $290.

accumulat ed through initi ation fe es and gains and losses on sales
of securitie s of the Fund. No appropriat ions may be made from
the Fund except upon affirmative vote of the majority of the
Board of Directors.
(4)

(5)

Pension plan:
In February, 1967, the Association adopted a revised pension plan
effective July 1, 1966, which was approved by the Internal Revenue Service in September, 1967. Total pension expense amounted
to $36,327 in 1968 and $36,000 in 1967, including amortization
of prior service costs over 15 years. It is the Association's policy
to fund pension costs accrued.
Memori al Education Fund:
The Memorial Education Fund was established for t he purpose of
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(6)

Research Deficit:
In accordance with the resolution approved by the Board of Directors on December 9, 1967, an appropriation of $84,555 has been
made from t he Reserve Fund to offset t he research defi cit in the
Current Operating Fund for the fiscal years ended June 30,
1968 and 1967.
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NAT IONAL ASSOCIAT ION OF ACCOUNT ANT S
ST AT E ME NT S OF INCOME AND EXPENSES AND
CHA N G ES I N F U N D BA LA NC E - CURREN T OP ERAT IN G F U N D
(Excl uding funds and acc ounts of c hapt er tr easur ies)
For the Years ended J une 30, 1968 and 1967

1968

1967

$1, 496, 237

$1, 410, 204

381, 402

346, 077

INCOME:
Mem ber shi p dues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Continuing educat ion pr ogram - r egi st rat ion fees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Interest and dividends on Reserve Fund i nvestments, less fiscal agent's fee of $7,272 in 196 8 a nd $7, 281
in1967 ..................................................................... ...............................
In t e r e s t o n s h o r t - t e r m i n ve s t m e n t s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Sales of res earc h reports ..................................................... ...............................
Sal es of publ ic ations ......................................................... ...............................

85, 577

69, 385

44, 511

49, 927

28, 800

40, 422

11, 962

11, 576

22, 963

23, 402

$2, 071, 452

$1, 950, 993

Miscellaneous . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

EXPENSES (Serving 226 chapters and 64,998 members at June 30, 1968 and 216 chapters and 61,319 members at June 30, 1967):

Conti nuing educat ion progr am ( salaries , promoti on and other related expenses) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

592, 357

$

service staff salaries and other expenses) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

Chapter relations and membership development (chapter operating allowances and advisory and technical
532, 986

386, 316

306, 376

227, 293

195, 648

167, 048

176, 105

174, 375

134, 364

Publi cati ons (salaries , paper, composit ion, printing and mail i ng rel at i ng to the NAA "Managem ent Ac c ount i ng") . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Member s hi p (s alari es and other expens es in c onnec ti on wi th comm uni cati on, r ec ords, ac counti ng and
library services for members) . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Research studi es on managem ent accounting (s alari es, contr act paym ents, grants - in - aid and other expenses in connec tion with research activities) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Promotion and publi c relations (salari es, consul ting fees and other expenses) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
General offic e servi ces (s alaries, empl oyee benefit s, spac e rent al, postage, printi ng and suppli es) .. ......

63, 564

47, 868

422, 123

37 5 , 0 3 2

Adm inis trati ve (s al ar ies and tr avel of adm ini st rati ve pers onnel and meet ing expens es of t he Boar d, t he
Exec ut i ve C om m i tt ee an d ot he r c om m i tt e es ). . . . .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .

139, 735
$1, 908, 11_4

EXCESS OF INCOME OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( $
CONT RIBUTION FROM RESERVE FUND (Note 6). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

144, 055)

$

182, 431
$2, 215, 507

42, 879
-

84, 555

$

FUND BALANCE, end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

344, 804

301, 925

285, 304

344, 804

$

FUND BALANCE, beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

T he notes to financial statements on pages 76 and 77 ar e an integral par t of thes e st atem ents
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ARTHUR ANDERSEN & CO.
N E W Y O R K , N. Y.

To t h e B oa r d o f D ir e c t o r s ,
Na t i o n a l A s s oc i a t i o n o f Ac c o u n t a n t s :

We h a v e e x a m i n ed t h e s t a t e m e nt s o f a s s e t s ,
li a b i l i t i e s a n d fu n d b a l a n c e s ( e x cl u d i n g f u n d s a n d
accounts of chapter treasuries) of the National

Association of Accountants as of June 30, 1968 and 1967,
an d t h e r e l a t e d s ta t e m e n t s o f i n c o m e a n d e x p e n s e s a n d
ch a n g e s i n f u n d b a l a n c e o f t h e c u r r e n t o p e r a t i n g f u n d
for the years then ended.
Ou r e x a m i n a t i on w a s m a d e i n
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
and accordingly included such tests of the accounting
re c o r d s a n d s u c h o t h e r a u d i t i n g p r o c e d u r e s a s w e
considered necessary in the circumstances.
Fu r n i t u r e , e q ui p m e n t , l i b r ar y b o o k s a n d
pu b l i c a t i o n s a r e s t a t e d i n th e a c c o m p a n y i n g s t a t e m e n t s
of assets, liabilities and fund balances at a nominal
va l u e o f $3 . 0 0 , a n d t h e c o s ts o f a d d it i o n s a n d
re p l a c e m e n t s a r e c h a r g e d t o t h e c u r r e n t o p e r a t i n g f u n d
wh e n i n c u r r e d .
In o u r o p i n i o n, e x c ep t a s st a t e d i n t h e
pr e c e d i n g p a r a g r a p h, t h e a c c o m p a n y i n g s t a t e m e n t s p r e s e n t
fa i r l y t h e a s s e t s , l i a b i l i t ie s a n d f u n d b a l a n c e s o f t h e

National Association of Accountants as of June 30, 1968
and 1967, and the results of its operations for the years
th e n e n d e d , i n c o n f o r m i t y w i t h g e n e r a l l y a c c e p t e d
ac c o u n t i n g p r i n c i p l e s c o n s is t e n t l y a p p l i e d d u r i n g t h e
pe ri od s.

Ne w Y or k , N. Y . ,

August 12, 1968.

CURRE N T O P E RA T I N G FUN D EXPENSES
CLA SSI FIE D A S T O T HE N A T URE O F T HE E XPE NDIT URE S

Year Ended J une 30, 1968
T o t a l P a ym e n t s t o C h a p t e r s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

Publications (production and mailing costs only) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

223, 360

Pr inti ngand Suppl ies ............................................................................... .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .
Sal a ri e s — Ad m i n i s tra ti ve a nd Cl e ri c al ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

77, 072
659, 287

...............................

C ont r a c t Paym ent s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

68, 856

.

.

.......
..... ......... ..... .....
Travel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
.
.
.
.
.
..........................
Meetings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

94, 387
33, 087

...............................

A d ve r t i s i n g a n d P r o m o t i o n . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

28, 150

Rents and Rel ated Costs ................................... ...............................

.

.

.

.

. . . . . ..
...
C o n f e r e n c e E x p e n s e s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . . . . . . . . .
...............................
General Expense:
Equi pment—Rented ...................................................................

..........................

$86, 401

...............................

32, 926

—Purc has ed ................................................................ ... .. ... .. .. ... .. ... .. .. ... .. ..
Gener al Pos tage .........................................................................
...............................
E m p l o ye e B e n e f i t s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
I

.

.

General Services —Tel. and T el., Delivery, Insurance, etc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Other — auditing, legal, consulting fees, etc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Spec ial Pro ject Expen ses ... ... ... ... .... ... ... ... .... ... ... ... .... ... ... ... .... ... ... ...

404, 806

263, 529

11, 899
35, 796
.

95, 739
30, 525

...............................

31, 737

...............................

37, 950
362, 973
$2. 215. 507

ST AT E ME NT OF T RAN SA C T I ON S AND FUNDS
OF C HAP T E R TREASURIES

Year Ended June 30, 1968
T o ta lPayme nt s to C ha pt er s . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .

$

404, 806

Le s s : P a ym e n t s t o In t e r n a t i o n a l C ha p t e r s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

5, 231

Mi s c e l l a n e ou s r e c ei p t s . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . . .. . .. .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .

399, 575
139, 249

Disburs ements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

538, 824
556, 582

Decrease in Chapter treasur y balances ............................................................. ...............................

$

17, 758

Cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

163, 430

Sa vi n g s a c c o u n t s a nd U . S . S a vi n g s B o nd s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

$

113, 319

COM POS IT I ON OF C HA PT E R FUNDS

NOT E: Inf ormation on this page was pr epar ed by national s taff and is not covered by t he audit or's report.
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National Office
The national staff was strengthened during the year with the creation of the
new position of Managing Director. Robert H. Sommer was named to the new
position on April 1, 1968. A long -time member of NAA, Mr. Sommer has
16 years of experience in financial management. He was most recently corporate controller with Arwood Corporation. He will assist the Executive Director
and assume responsibility for certain areas of staff operation.
Working closely with staff the Long -Range Location Committee chose a
site for location of the national office operations. A five -year lease was signed
for space in a new office building which will be constructed at 919 Third
Avenue in New York City. The move to the new location is planned during
the spring of 1970.
The conversion of manual operations to a magnetic tape drive computer
system was on schedule as the year ended. Chapter competition records were
put on tape, thus assuring more speed and accuracy in reporting. Staff is now
engaged in converting the accounting system to computer applications. The
potential of the NAA computer has still not been exhausted. In another new
application the data processing facility was programmed to provide pressure
sensitive labels for the monthly mailings of individual chapters. Offered at
nominal cost, this service will help chapters to improve mailing service to
individual members.
A special program designed to honor staff members with more than 10 years
of service was inaugurated in 1967. Employees were presented with a "Service
Award" plaque at two staff luncheons.
In summary, the Association year 1967 -68 provided milestones in membership growth, chapter growth and new programs put into effect. National
officers and directors traveled thousands of miles and spent countless hours in
operation reviews and planning. Without their fine cooperation, and the
cooperation of other volunteer members, the year could not have been the
great success it turned out to be.
Much of the planning and conferences in 1967 -68 dealt with preparations
for the 50th Anniversary celebration to be held during 1968 -69. The true
value of the contributions of the national committees should become apparent
as we begin celebrating our 50th year. The names of those who served on the
National Board and on the standing and other committees are listed in this
issue. This report provides an all too brief summary of the yeoman service
rendered by hundreds of people.

BRINKLEY

RAwN BRINKLEY

Executive Director

NAA Committees 1967 -68
Executive Committee
PRESIDENT

Thomas L. Morison, Boston
VICE PRESIDENTS

Robert W. Arnold, Birmingham
M A N A G E M E N T AC CO UN TING / OC TO BE R, 1968

Robert Beyer, New York
William E. Craig, Jamestown.
Robert I. Dickey, Sangamon Valley
R. Leslie Ellis, Lancaster
Lafe P. Fox, Cleveland
George D. Gee, Kansas City
Charles H. Hawkins, Portland

Chris V. Kemendo, Jr., Tulsa
John T. Kokos, Indianapolis
Carl G. Ome, Oakland -East Bay
Bronislaus Zamrok, Jr., Morristown
TREASURER

John E. Vavasour, Westchester
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APPOINTED MEMBERS

AUSTIN

I

Donald J. Guth, North Texas
Paul W. Holt, Bridgeport
Earl A. Matheney, Tulsa
James E. Meredith, Jr., New York
Nels C. Nelson, Cleveland
S. Alden Pendleton, Pittsburgh
PAST NATIONALPRESIDENTS
Joseph L. Brumit, Member -at -Large
Firman H. Hass, Detroit

1W

CHAIRMEN OF STANDING COMMITTEES
Richard E. Austin, Pittsburgh
Ettore Barbatelli, Milwaukee
R. Lee Brummet, Ann Arbor
John E. Hampel, Cincinnati
David W. Rewiek, Cleveland
George H. Wadsworth, Waterbury

r

BARBATELLI

Committee on Chapters
David W. Rewiek, Cleveland,Chairman
Joseph H. Adney, Denver
Fred E. Andersen, Milwaukee
Robert O. Berger, Jr., Cleveland
Committee on Accounting
George Bennett, Westmoreland County
Development
W. Atlee Davis, Jr., Delaware
George H. Wadsworth, Waterbury,
Charles C. Di Maria, West Bergen Chairman
Passaic County
R. James Amsbaugh, North Central
Robert J. Donachie, Dallas
Ohio
Thomas J. Drummy, Joplin Tri -State
Erwin P. Berg, Southern Maine
Robert J. Enersen, Florida West Central
Robert T. Beuek, Lake Erie Central
James Evans, Syracuse
Alfred E. Bosse, Waterbury
Robert O. Feola, Akron
Paul E. Brodriek, North Texas
Richard J. Filer, Ohio - Western Reserve
Robert L. Chaplin, Ft. Wayne
Bernard I. Forester, San Fernando
Chester W. Claypool, North Central
Valley
William J. Fox, Hartford
Edward W. Cleary, Boise
Alby R. Foy, Pomona Valley
Robert W. Conrad, Mid - Hudson
Gerald L. Fuchs, Rockford
Donald H. Cramer, New York
Philip L. Giroir, New Orleans
William F. Crum, San Gabriel Valley
Richard C. Grant, Chattanooga
Emmett B. Day, Houston
Ira G. Grooms, Santa Barbara James A. DeVille, East Bergen - Rockland
Ventura Counties
Francis X. DiLeo, Bridgeport
William C. Hallett, Los Angeles
Frank A. Else, Southern Minnesota
Donald G. Hampton, Northeastern
Clemens A. Erdahl, New York
Michigan
William E. Fergusson, Columbia
Richard D. Heck, Pennsylvania
Jack C. Finnell, Owensboro Area
Northwest
William J. Flanagan, Elmira Area
Walter D. Heidig, Sacramento
William C. Flewellen, Jr., Jackson
Robert M. Husband, Daytona Beach
James Fooskas, Philadelphia
Area
Russell V. Harvey, Jr., Jacksonville
Lewis G. Ifft, Jr., Pittsburgh
Robert F. Holtz, Michiaaa
Carl A. Johnson, Muskegon
Victor M. Illonardo, Jersey City -Hudson Gordon A. Johnson, Rochester
Charles R. Knutson, Saginaw Valley
Frank C. Izard, Jackson
Nicholas A. Lannutti, North Penn.
Edwin P. James, Cedar Rapids
Richard Johnson, Massachusetts -North
Lawrence M. Lindblom, Mass. Central
Route 128
John F. Kasper, Corpus Christi
Raymond Lutien, Des Moines
Charles W. McKown, Tri- Cities
Parker R. Lawson, Johnstown
Francis H. Lightfoot, Wabash Valley
Kenneth E. McMullen, San Jose
Donald G. Perry, San Francisco
Ray E. Longenecker, Lancaster
R. Terry Lyle, Florida West Central
Hugh R. Pingree, Hawaii
Kenneth T. Rudd, Cedar Rapids
Robert K. Mirrielees, Long Island
Michael F. Scanlan, Jr., Charleston
Vincent E. Moore, Wichita
Francis E. Murphy, Northern New York William M. Scully, Calumet
Billy M. Shoekey, San Diego
Joseph V. Newman, Pittsburgh
Indiana

BRUMMET

Fred S. Pattison, Southern West
Virginia
Louis J. Ragsdale, Coosa Valley
Chester K. Reichert, Jr., Erie
George C. Richards, Niagara
George E. Snively, Phoenix
Delbert T. Sorrells, Kansas City
A. Martin Sterling, Atlanta
John S. Swift, Blue Grass Area
Arthur S. Taylor, Boston
Mrs. Beth M. Thompson, Miami
Maurice R. Van Camp, Southwest
Los Angeles
William U. Westerfield, San Juan

HAMPEL

W. DOUGLAS LITTLE
SCM President

REWICK

WADSWORTH
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J. Lamar Stall, Shreveport
J. Marshall Summar, Jr., Nashville
William M. Young, Jr., Philadelphia
Committee on Finance and
Budget
Richard E. Austin, Pittsburgh,
Chairman
Frank J. Church, Newark
Robert A. Morgan, Peoria
Robert E. Newberg, Des Moines
Fred J. Sengstacke, New York
Alexander R. St. Bernard, Cleveland
John E. Vavasour, Westchester
Committee on Mem bership
Ettore Barbatelli, Milwaukee, Chairman
Alfred G. Aldrich, Norwich
W. Vernon Allman, Parkersburg Marietta
Edward W. Arndt, Brooklyn
Harold E. Beck, Ft. Worth
William J. Berglund, Oakland County
John H. Bergstedt, Los Angeles
J. Lynn Crandall, Indianapolis
M. Larne Drake, Williamsport
Jack C. Eads, Harrisburg
Robert R. Elliott, Baltimore
Alexander R. Fusee, Port Huron
William T. Gilmore, Jr., Central
Arkansas
Charles A. Guinta, Greenwich- Stamford
A. Keith Harris, Oklahoma City
Hobart A. Henderson, Northern
Wisconsin
Robert M. Hendry, Trenton
Jerome J. Heinen, Lima
Robert J. Hinz, North Alabama
Lester R. Johnsen, Fox River Valley
Otis L. Johnson, Evansville
Russell P. Jones, Waterbury
Fred T. Kidd, Lynchburg
Delbert L. Kupfer, Battle Creek
William G. Layhe, Lansing
Charles W. Lent, Charlotte
Robert M. McKinley, Nashville
Raymond E. Miles, Richmond
Charles R. Miller, Pittsburgh
F. Donald Mollhagen, Kalamazoo
David A. Olson, Calumet
Robert E. Patterson, Lancaster
Lawrence F. Pieruccioni, St. Paul
Jack W. Robinson, Tulsa
Patrick J. Rudden, Cleveland
Wade B. Salisbury, San Jose
Adolph T. Samuelson, Washington
Joseph S. Stevens, Columbus
Ross S. Tanner, Buffalo
James E. Taylor, Memphis
Gilbert W. Urban, Minneapolis
Malcolm J. Wall, Sabine
William W. Winter, Mobile

Committee on Promotion and
Public Relations
John E. Hampel, Cincinnati, Chairman
Patrick J. Amodeo, Albany
A. P. Bartholomew, New York
William W. Bowen, East Jersey
Daniel F. Collins, Indianapolis
John H. Cox, Bangor - Waterville
Eben C. Cutler, Dayton
Paul W. Demarest, Omaha
John J. Fox, Detroit
Robert J. Freeman, Worcester
Vincent B. Grande, Knoxville
Howard Greene, Boston
C. W. Greenwood, Shreveport
Lawrence E. Hegstrom, Colorado
Springs- Pueblo
Walter Klinger, Southwest Los Angeles
Cary A. Marshall, Los Angeles
John Meyerer, Brooklyn
Gilbert J. Mohr, Palos Verdes - Torrance
Charles S. Myerly, Charlotte
Peter C. Neff, Springfield
Robert B. Oakleaf, Olean-Bradford Area
Wesley N. Peterson, Salt Lake Area
Leslie P. Ralph, Member -at -Large
Cornell E. Seaburg, Jamestown
Raymond E. Smith, Minneapolis
Doren D. Vest, Washington

Committee on Research Planning
R. Lee Brummet, Ann Arbor, Chairman
David R. Arnold, New York
Joseph F. Bond, New York
Paul A. Busch, Cincinnati
Henry L. Clayton, Elmira Area
James D. Edwards, Lansing
Wilber C. Haseman, Mid -Missouri
William R. Irons, Pittsburgh
James L. Kavanagh, Providence
Raymond B. Jordan,
Massachusetts -North Shore
R. Wayne Oates, Pittsburgh
Richard F. Peirce, Member -at -Large
Allan H. Seed, New York
Donald P. Selleck, St. Paul
D. J. Trawieki, Milwaukee
George C. Watt, Morristown
Robert J. Weafer, Boston
Wilmer R. Wright, New York

Investment Committee
William H. Beadle, New York,
Chairman
Richard E. Austin, Pittsburgh
Colin A. Stillwagen, San Diego
Julius G. Underwood, Harrisburg
John E. Vavasour, Westchester
Ottmar A. Waldow, Detroit
Thomas L. Morison (Ex- Officio)

Nominating Committee
Firman H. Hass, Detroit, Chairman
Merwin P. Cass, Newark
Frank J. Church, Newark
Allan C. Crane, Milwaukee
Robert J. Donachie, Dallas
William C. Hallett, Los Angeles
Otis L. Johnson, Evansville
Charles W. Lent, Charlotte
Earl A. Matheney, Tulsa
Charles W. McKown, Tri- Cities
Alexander R. St. Bernard, Cleveland
Colin A. Stillwagen, San Diego
Edward J. Vaia, Buffalo
Maurice R. Van Camp, Southwest
Los Angeles
George H. Wadsworth, Waterbury
Continuing Education Program
Advisory Council
Donald J. Guth, North Texas,
Chairman
Dudley E. Browne, Los Angeles
William H. Franklin, Peoria
Maurice E. Peloubet, New York
John Pugsley, Pittsburgh
Committee on Research
Grants -in-Aid
George C. Watt, Morristown,
Chairman
Willis Leonhardi, Chicago
Kemper Merriam, Tucson
R. E. Schlosser, Buffalo
Arthur H. Smith, Chicago
G. Kenneth Nelson, Williamsport
1968 Annual Conference
Chai rmen
( June 16 -19, 1968, New Orleans, La.)
John L. Favaloro, New Orleans,
Chairman, Operations
Donald C. Brabston, Birmingham,
Chairman, Program
Committee on Long -Range
Objectives
I. Wayne Keller, Lancaster, Chairman
Firman H. Hass, Detroit
E. W. Kelley, Hartford
Stanley A. Pressler, Indianapolis
Kenneth R. Rickey, Peninsula -Palo Alto
James E. Meredith, Jr., New York
Conference Calendar
Continuing Education Program —
Fall 1968

Oct. 14-18
Atlanta
Oct. 28 -Nov. 1 ............................Los Angeles'
.
Chicago
Nov. 18.22

...........................................
........
...........................
Other
Meetings

Nov. 14 -15 ....Mid America Tax Conference,
St. Louis, M.o. For further
information, write Richard
Dinsmore, Lybrand, Ross
Bros. & Montgomery, 411
North & 7th St., St. Louis,
Mo. 63101
• See ad on back cover.
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fut ure requirement s, include
anew high -speed line printer,
punched car d input, aut omatic magnetic striped ledger
reader , and punched t ape or
card output.
In short, the E 6000 has the
ver sat ilit y t o serve yo u as a
single or mult iple job account ing s ys t e m . . . a complet e account ing depart ment
. . . o r a sa t ellit e t o a lar g er
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For details, call our local office
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Detroit, Michigan 48232.
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o ur expanded E Series family. And feat ures internal programing, a 400 -word elect ro nic me mo r y, ma g n e t ic
st riped ledger records, a n d
high - speedprocessing power.
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THE DIRE CT COST ING CONT ROVE RSY, By George T. Logan fr.

9

As in any discipline, the real test of theory is how well it works in practice.
The largest area of accounting practice is internal corporate reporting. Communication with non- accounting managers improves through reports based
on direct costing. This paper describes some of the results obtained by the
author's experimental use of direct costing.
SOME EMPIRICAL DISTRIBUT IONS OF FINANCIAL RATIOS,
13
By Charles D. Meeimore
Though the analysis is based on the ratios exhibited by a few companies
for one year only, the tentative conclusions appear to have significant implications regarding the statistical distributions of certain commonly used
financial ratios. Instead of relying on the assumption that they are normally
distributed the accountant may have to devise new analytical techniques.
Additional research along these lines may also indicate that accounting data
are more comparable than is currently recognized.
ACCOUNT ING FOR ST OCK OWNE RSHIP, By Leslie I. Asher

17

Stock ownership accounting is reviewed here with particular reference to
effective procedures and the resulting cost savings. It also deals with the
improvements that lead to improved relationships with the stockholders and
the general public.
MANAGING AN INFORMATION SYSTEMS AC ;TIVITY, By Richard F. Peirce

23

Information systems activity is gradually becoming a function planned,
organized and performed according to measurable and meaningful goals. The
key factors in a well - managed information systems activity are considered
here both individually and as components of the overall design.
DESIGNING BUSINE SS SYSTEMS FOR T HE T HI RD COMP UT E R
GE NE RAT ION, By Charles R. Chodora

29

A functional approach is presented here. Included are two specific examples
of functionally oriented software packages.
CO 'NIPUI'ERIZED FINANCIAL DATA BANKS: T RANSIT ION FROM
CONCE PT UAL DE SIGN T O RE ALIT Y, By Michael R. Tyran

36

Often, the initial master plan fails to give proper recognition to a number
of computer associated requirements that are of prime importance if we are
to attain the desired reliability of information and effective equipment utilization. Discussed here is an approach to computerized financial data banks
and their integration as adopted by the Pomona Division of General Dynamics.
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1

COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY AND ORGANIZATIONAL CHANGE,
By Doyle Z. Williams and Sexton Adams

44

This paper describes a common application of computer technology —materials and purchasing —and analyzes the resulting effects on management and
organization, thus providing some clues as to the future course of events with
respect to organizational adjustments caused by changes in information
technology.
TECHNOLOGICAL OR ECONOMIC OBSOLESCENCE: COMPUTER
PURCHASE VS. LEASE, By Donald H. Taylor

49

An attempt has been made to add some clarity and a bit of sophistication
to the rather oversimplified assumption that a company cannot afford to buy
EDP equipment because of the danger of obsolescence. The article suggests
a quantitative approach to the thorny question of computer obsolescence.
52
JOB MIGRATION PATTERNS OF ACCOUNTANTS, By Felix P. Kollaritsch
Areas of employment entered after graduation are analyzed and compared
with the jobs held in 1967. The information covers 1,220 holders of Bachelor's
degree obtained from The Ohio State University in the period 1920 -1967.
COLLECTING INVESTMENT CREDIT DATA, By Victor H. Tidwell

55

Emphasis is placed upon real -time accumulation of all necessary information.
Accounting for fixed assets should be modified to generate the required data
as a matter of routine.
PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE .. ...... ..... ...... .... ...... ..... ...... ..... .....

8
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The first 50 years in the history of the
Association, as the oldtimers will tell
you, were exhilarating ones. Those were
the formative years when a young accounting organization was seeking an
identity and building a reputation. T o
many of us the names of the founders
of the Association mean very little now.
But as we list a few of them - -Major J.
Lee Nicholson, Dr. Stuart C. McLeod,
William M. Lybrand , J. P. Jorda n —
we can recapture some of the thrust,
the energy and the enthusiasm that enabled these men to create an entirely
new organization and make it work.
From the vantage point of a half
century of progress it is no little achievement. Thirty -seven accountants met in
Buffalo, N.Y., and visualized an organization that might eventually grow to
10,000 members. Today we have well
over six times that number and ten
times that number of members has been
projected by the Long -Range Objectives
Committee within just another ten
years!
The history of the Association is
something we can all be proud of; the
motto for the 50th Anniversary celebration expresses it well: "Proud of the
Past — Preparing for the Future." When
Del R. Lunde, Peninsula -Palo Alto
Chapter, suggested that theme he was
well aware of the changes occurring in
the Association — changes which reflect
the technological revolution that is the
major characteristic of our times.
Res pons i ve t o Change
That the Association is responsive to
the demands and challenges of the technology of the Sixties is dramatized by
this

iss u e

Of

MANAGEMENT

A C C O UN T-

ING. An enlarged size and revised format
will enable the editors to publish more
manuscripts and increase the coverage
of news and Association affairs. Th e
addition of limited advertising will help
to defray some of the increased costs of
production.
In the 49 years since the Association
began publishing a periodical this magazine represents the major innovation; at

the same time it falls directly within the
continuum of publication that began in
1919. It is especially appropriate that
we commence publishing an expanded
magazine during the 50th Anniversary
year at a natural plateau in the evolution of the organization.
Sp e ci a l F e a t u r e s S c h e d u l e d
Under the theme noted above, the
Association is planning an exciting year
of celebration, climaxed by the 50th
Anniversary Annual International Conference in New York. At the national
level, a memorial history of the Association is being prepared and will be
made available to members as a souvenir of the anniversary year. Articles
and stories concerning the Anniversary
and some of t h e past half century of
activities will be published I n M A N A G E M E N T A C C O U N T I N G and other publications. Many chapters have planned special programs throughout the year to
acquaint members with the event and
the history of the Association.
The year 1968 -69 is by no means the
end of an era of progress and innovation
for the Association: it is only the beginning. If you re ad th e re por t of t he
Long -Range Objectives Committee,
which was published as Section 3 in
August, you will have obtained some
idea of the challenges that the next 50
years will bring. W e have reached a
point now where, as our resources in
membership and finances grow, future
improvements will come more readily
and will be much broader in scope.
It may very well be— considering the
times we live in and the outstanding
leadership the Association has, and always has had —that the next 50 years
will be even more creative than the first.
It is evident from the activity of the
members, officers and directors that
hardening of the arteries is one disease
that doesn't threaten the Association —
even after a half century of growth.
buy
RA WN BR IN K LE Y

Executive Director

Data

S h e e t S E P T E M B E R ,

D. P. M a na g ers O n Way Up
Deploring the gap between operating
management and data processing management,
J. Stanford Smith told the DPMA 1968
International Data Processing Conference
and Business Exposition that "At the
present time, only a handful of the people
who make it to the top management posts
have come up through data processing. I
think this will change. Electronic
information systems will live up to their
enormous potential as generations of data
processing managers think, feel and act as
overall business managers. Men who train
themselves in this direction may well
set the pattern for future executive
management. This, in my opinion, is one
important way in which the frustrating gap
between operating management and data
processing management will ultimately be
closed." Mr. Smith is vice president and
group executive, Information Systems
Group, General Electric Co.

1968

largest salary increases during the
period. Offers increased 8.77o to an
average of $702.

New A ss oc i a t i on O f fi ce rs E le ct ed
Charles L. Davis of Arlington, Texas, was
elected international president of the
Data Processing Management Assn .... Wm.
Berch Pitts has been elected president of
the Institute of Internal Auditors.... Dr.
Marie E. Dubke, NAA Memphis Chapter, was
elected president of the American Woman's
Society of CPA's. Other NAA members named:
Vera B. Coulter, Southwestern Los Angeles ,
treasurer; Patricia R. Stanton, Salt Lake
Area.... Miss Naomi J. Nelson has been
elected president of the American Society
of Women Accountants. Elected to the ASWA
board were NAA members: Elizabeth A. Reid,
Boston ; Madeline Draheim, Queens, and
Miss Maureen L. Cleary, Waterbury.

Memb er H as H eart Tran sp lan t

NAA member Everett C. Thomas of Phoenix
Chapter is one of the nation's first heart
A timely reminder of where the money comes transplant patients. At last report, he
from to support social services was
was doing well and planned to return to
sounded by Charles K. Rudman, president of work as a trust consultant for a Houston
the Klein Institute for Aptitude Testing.
bank.
"Business, itself, is a social service,"
M erge rs & Em p l oy ee C om mu n i ca t i o n s
he noted. "Industrialists and educators
In giving major attention to financial
are missing a great opportunity unless
considerations,
merging companies may be
they point out this fact of life to the
neglecting
their
biggest assets — the
younger generation." The money to support
employees. In a study conducted by the
the Peace Corps, Vista, public education,
National Industrial Conference Board, the
slum clearance and other projects comes
need for employee communications is
from taxes. "Taxes on business profits.
Taxes on products made by business. Taxes pointed up. In many cases, the study
notes, companies frequently direct their
on wages paid primarily by business.
communications during mergers almost
Without these funds, there would be no
exclusively toward investors and the
money for all these worthy causes."
financial world. They should, however,
Acco u n t i n g G rad u at e S ala ri es Ri se
identify a merger for what it is -Average salary offers to accounting
"a blending of two groups of human beings
graduates during 1967 -68 rose 8.2%, the
who have abilities, ambitions, fears
largest increase recorded in the College
and anxieties." The Conference Board
Placement Council's latest survey. The
study, "Communicating With Employees About
average monthly salary offer was $689, as
Mergers," examines in detail nine mergers
compared to $637 during 1966 -67. The
in which employees were kept informed
survey disclosed that, percentage -wise,
and reassured that their interests would
public accounting firms offered the
be considered and safeguarded.

B u s i n e s s I s a S o c i a l S e rv i c e
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International Accountants Society announces

A new course in

for Accountants

EDP
'

This is no t a pr o g ramming course. It t eaches you what yo u must know
abo ut t he who le field o f comput er s and E DP —t o help yo u beco me
mo re valuable t o your client s o r yo ur co mpany.

t o d a y a r e fa c e d wi th a
pr e ssi n g n e w p ro b l em : ho w t o li v e
wi th the ra pi dl y a cc ele ra t ing ch a n ge s
ca u se d b y t h e c o m p u t e r r e v o l u t i o n .
Ju st a fe w y ea r s a go , c om pu t er s wer e
u se d ma i nl y t o ha n dl e rou ti ne jo bs su ch
a s p a y ro ll s. T o d a y t h e y a r e p e r fo r m i n g
co mp le x fu n ct io ns i n a u d it in g , ta x practice, bu sine ss for eca sti ng —in ev ery a rea
of a cc o u nt i n g . T o m o r r o w ? Ac c ou n ti n g
a n d E D P will b e so i n t e r t wi n e d yo u
won 't b e a b le t o te ll o ne fro m th e ot he r.
T h a t ' s why as a n a c co u n ta nt , you
mu st k n o w ho w to ma n a g e the comp u t e r —h o w t o h a n d l e t h e fl o o d o f d a t a
t h e c o m p u t e r c r e a t e s.
Un t i l n o w, le a r ni n g c o m p u t e r techni q u e s a n d a p p l i ca t i o n s wa s a d i ffi c u l t
ta sk for bu sy a c co u nt a nt s a n d C P A's.
Bu t now there is a wa y for you to obta in
th i s k n o wl e d ge q u i c k l y a n d e ffi c i e n t l y
in a s few a s 3 ho u rs a week , a t hom e, a t

COU N T A N T S

A

yo u r o wn p a c e .
H e r e i s y o u r o p p o r t u n i t y to g e t t h e
in fo r m a t i o n y o u n e e d , in la n gu a ge yo u
u n d e r st a n d , in th e ti me you ha ve to
spend.

Com put er Cour se for
Accoun t an t s
IAS, t he wor ld ' s la rgest, mo st r e sp ec te d
h o m e -st u d y sc ho ol te a ch in g a c co u n t in g
a n d a ll ied su bj e ct s, th r ou g h its Bu si .
ne ss E le c tr o n ic s D i vi sio n ha s c r ea t ed a
spe ci a l c o m p u t e r co u rse for a c co u nt .
a nt s. It is d e si g n e d t o tea ch y o u wh a t
th e c o m p u t e r ca n a n d ca n n o t do for
yo u r cl ie nt s or c o m p a n y . T h i s co u rse
gives yo u a pra c tica l k n owledge of compu t er s, e na bl es yo u to t a l k i nt el li ge nt ly
t o p r o g r a m m e r s a n d t e c h n i c i a n s, g i v e s
yo u i n for m a t i o n y o u m u st h a v e t o h e l p
m a n a g e m e n t m a k e i n fo r m e d d e c i si o n s.

Wit h th e h el p of th is ne w IAS c ou rse,
yo u 'l l b e a b l e t o a n swe r q u e st i o n s l i k e
th e se :
" S h o u l d we se t u p a f e a s i b i l i t y
study ?"
" H o w sh o u l d we or ga n iz e for com-

p e r t s gi v e y o u p e r s o n a l a t t e n t i o n w i t h
e ach as s i gnm e n t a n d an s w e r a n y spe-

pute r data p roce ssin g ?"

cific questions you have.

them to the sc hool. Ea ch of the 2 4 work .
sh o p a ssig n m en t s co nsti tu te s " a se m i .
n a r for o n e , " pr o v i d i n g a di r ec t dial o g u e wi t h y o u r i n st r u c t o r s. T h e se e x .

"Should we rent, lease, or purchase

A "must" for accountants
who want to keep pace

th e eq u i pm e n t ? "
" S h o u l d we c o n si d e r c o m p u t e r co n .
tr o ll e d c o mm u n ic a ti o n n o w ? "
"C a n we a u di t t hr ou gh t h e co mp u t er ?
Shou ld we ? "

T h e r e i s st i l l t i m e t o b u i l d y o u r b a c k g r o u n d of k n o wl e d g e of E D P if yo u
beg in no w. Bu t d o n 't wa it too lo ng .
D o n 't risk losing bu si ne ss to a c co u n t.
a nt s who ha ve t he da ta pr oc es si ng
k n o wl e d ge ev e r y c o mp a ny n ee d s t o da y .
S e n d fo r fu l l i n f o r m a t i o n a b o u t t h e
ne w I AS co u rse in El e c t ro n i c Da ta
Pr o ce ssin g . Ju st fill ou t a n d ma i l th e
c o u p o n b e l o w . T h e r e i s n o ob li g a t i on .

"What can we expect from systems
analysis ?"
"What known problems will we encounter when we convert to a computer
system ?"
" W h a t a p p l i c a t i o n s sh o u l d h a v e p r i .
ority?"
"H o w c a n we d e v e lo p a M a n a g e m e n t
Infor ma tio n Sy ste m ? "

Expert per sona l iz ed gui da nce
Ev e r y st e p o f t h e wa y , y o u g e t p e r so n a lized help fr om the sk illed sta ff of IAS.
Y o u d o y o u r l e s so n s a t h o m e a n d se n d

H e r e ' s a p a r t i a l g l i m p s e o f wh a t
you 'll l ear n a bou t comput er s
Scope and impac t of busin e ss a ppli.
cations; punched card and paper
t a p e d a t a pr o c e ss i n g ; d a t a a c q u i s i .
ti on ; da t a co l l e ct i o n a nd co mm u ni .
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A Step in the Right Direction
pe
.�
In the article, "The Impact of the
Suspension of the 7% Investment
Credit" (February 1968), by Mr.
William R. Parker, the author states
in his concluding remarks that the
suspension of the 7% investment tax
credit appears to have had very little
effect as a damper on the economy
and, if anything, incurred much ill will
because of the off - again -on -again method in which it was handled.
We concur completely with the conclusions of the author, however, there The American Institute of Certified
are two other areas of concern:
Public Accountants is identified with

To the Editor:

6o

1. Since most companies close their
books on a monthly basis, we feel
that the selection of the 10th of
October as a cut -off date, undoubtedly
caused
unnecessary
paperwork for many an accountant.
2. Since most companies plan their
capital expenditure budget for
some considerable distance into the
future, we are also much interested
in the effect which the suspension
of the investment tax credit might
have had on the future capital
investment plans.

In conclusion, we would like to see
a marked attempt on the part of management accountants to increase their
study, discussion, and investigation of
the manner in which much of our
current tax legislation influences accounting and its procedures. The article
by Mr. Parker is a step in the right
direction and we only hope it continues.
George W. Crozier
Accounting Supervisor
Pennsylvania Gas Company

Extraordinary Items
Dear Sir:
The article entitled "Reporting the
Results of Foreign Currency Fluctuation" by Bert Tuckerman in the April
1968 issue is an excellent article on
the subject and a worthwhile addition
to any accountant's reference files.
I do believe, however, that one point
in the article requires additional
clarification. The discussion on page
22 of the accounting treatment to be
afforded a major devaluation of a
foreign currency notes that "... some
authorities have advocated" a charge
to retained earnings for such items.

this treatment by footnote reference
to Chapter 12, paragraph 21 of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43.
The discussion continues by saying
that the Accounting Principles Board
of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in its Opinion No.
9 classifies such a major devaluation
as an extraordinary item to be charged
against net income.
Although the author does not imply
a lack of consistency on the part of
the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, I believe that the
reader should be aware that Opinion
No. 9 modified Chapter 12 of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 43 and
that direct charges against retained
earnings for such items are no longer
considered appropriate.
Harold W. Gingery
Senior Cost Accountant
Personal Products Company
Division of Johnson & Johnson

Opportunities and
Accomplishments
Dear Mr. Landekich:
I think it will please you to learn
that, because of an article of mine
which you published in Management
Accounting, I have recently executed
a contract with Prentice -Hall, Inc. to
write a book of some 80,000 words
on the subject of accounting mathematical and statistical techniques.
Prentice -Hall contacted me in January. Their letter reads in part:
"Your article entitled "T h e Slide
Rule to Untangle Depreciation" which
appeared in the December, 1967 issue
of Management Accounting is of professional interest to me because of your
ability to communicate effectively ..."
I am most grateful for this opportu-

nity which springs from your kindness
in publishing the article and a previous
paper "Graphic Control of the Capital
Plan" for which NAA awarded a
Certificate of Merit. I think this is an
illustration of the accomplishment of
your own goal of stimulating creative
thinking and writing by NAA members
which I discovered in my cop y of t h e
Manuscript Director's Manual (I have
been elected to that post in Trenton
Chapter for the current year).
G. Kenneth Dye
RCA Laboratories
David Sarno f f Research Center

The Asset Base Method
To the Editor:
In the February 1968 issue Mr. Victor
J. Stafford in his article "Asset Base for
Performance Evaluation" made a case
for measuring management performance
by use of an asset base rather than an
equity base (ROI) . Th e objection to
the equity base centered around the
impact of leverage on the earnings equity ratio and inconsistencies which
could result. Admittedly, the equity base
measurement has some inherent problems; however, the asset base alternative
poses even greater problems.
Conceptually a problem arises in that
the denominator (asset base) is to be
re- defined to account for current market
values while the numerator (income)
is to be defined in historical values. This
ratio then ignores the impact of many
management decisions of prior periods
which determined the physical asset
base in the first place. As a practical
matter, many subjective factors enter
into the calculation of the asset base
which makes it difficult to draw any
conclusions at all.
My reaction in summary is that
the application of the asset base method
is too subjective to be a useful tool for
the measurement of management performance. The use of the ROI method
is at least consistent from period to
period assuming that the leverage factor
is apparent on the fiinancial statements.
When it comes right down to it, management performance is a difficult factor for any outsider to evaluate, based
on the limited information available
to him.
Philip P. Vanden Berge
Senior on Staff
Touche, Ross, Bailey & Smart
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although fluctuating, true value is provable.
Many factors affect true value. A knowledge of such
factors, provided by experienced counsel, is imperative for
such purposes as: federal, ad valorem and estate taxes;
sales, merger, allocation of purchase price, insurance,
condemnation, and other corporate requirements
involving knowledge of tangible and intangible property.
Consultants in Valuation since 1896.
The American Appraisal Company, Milwaukee, W isconsin 53201
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Proud of the Past
Preparing for the Future
OBSERVANCE OF 50TH ANNIVERSARY PROVIDES PLATFORM FOR LONG -RANGE OBJECTIVES

When its founders first conceived of
the Association, they sought to fulfill a
need then existing within the profession: an extension of the accountant's
image beyond the strictly custodial limits. They succeeded well, for today the
term "management accounting" has
gained widespread acceptance and its
practitioners, accordingly, have earned
a high degree of esteem both within the
profession and among those they serve.
Over the years we have grown to include 65,000 members in 222 chapters.
This makes us the largest accounting
organization which is dedicated to a
continuing education in business.
A great deal of the Association's success is directly attributable to the foresight of our founders. (I am proud to
say that William T. Lybrand of my own
firm was one of this charter group.)
They built an organization that provided the right mixture of professional
education and camaraderie. They sought
a broad -based membership that shared
one common interest: the advancement
of management accounting.
The organization structure of the Association, too, has contributed much to
its achievements. We have full and direct participation at each chapter level,
assuring that each member has a voice
in the Association's development.
Influencing our advancement more
than any other factor is the means
through which we have consistently
augmented the professional capabilities
of our membership: by carefully setting
forth the objectives we are to attain; by

establishing the performance standards
to be met in reaching these goals, and
then by rewarding —both nationally and
at the chapter level —those who distinguish themselves through superior performance. This is the concept of "management by objectives," a positive
approach to planning and control which
the more innovative companies are now
adopting. Our Association has been applying this concept to great advantage
for years.

With a commendable 50 -year record
behind us, we now look to the future.
The Association's Long -Range Objectives Committee has just completed its
three -year study on this subject. Their
report, which was published in August
1968, is challenging and thought -provoking.
By the year 2000, the report predicts,
our ranks will increase to a quarter million members. There will be 1,000
chapters.
The report calls for a continuing
education program in management accounting which will be of a university
level and will include courses leading to
accreditation. It calls for intensifying
our research efforts in management
accounting.
The report also discusses how we will
be continuing and strengthening our
effort to make the voice of NAA heard
by industry, by government and
throughout the accounting profession.
Our success for the future will be—
as it was in the past — determined by
the quality of our professional services,
by the vitality of our individual chapters and by our membership's strong
participation in Association activities.
With your help, we, the national officers, will do our best to make 1968 -69
truly a golden anniversary year for
NAA.
n

JAMES E. MEREDITH, JR.
President, 1968 -69
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The Direct Costing Controversy
THE ANTAGONISTS LIVE IN DIFFERENT WORLDS— DIRECT COSTING HAS TO BE EXPERIENCED TO BE APPRECIATED

By George T. Logan Jr.
A large part of the controversy over direct costing can be attributed to the fact
that the opponents of direct costing have
not been exposed to some of the problems that management accountants deal
with. The management accountant has
a serious problem of communicating
with other managers who are not accountants, who are fully qualified professionals in their own fields, who have
no feeling of reverence for hallowed old
accounting tradition, and who do not
hesitate to say so when they are dissatisfied with the information they get
from accounting. Management accountants who experiment with direct costing
find that it is more acceptable to non accounting managers and that it encourages better business decisions from
non - accounting managers.
This paper will describe some improvements in communication with non accountants that were gained by the
author's experiment with direct costing
while Controller of the Power Shovel
Company during the early nineteen sixties. The company name is disguised, as
are the figures given later. Everything
else in this paper is factual.
I became interested in direct costing
because I found absorption costing impossible to explain satisfactorily to the
Board of Directors at the Power Shovel
Company. The Board of Directors was
a group of reasonably intelligent people,
none of them accountants, all of whom
were confused to some extent by the
results of absorption costing. By changMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

ing to direct costing, I was able to make
accounting more intelligible to them.
My experience, I believe, explains
why it is that management accountants
have been the main promoters of direct
costing. Management accountants see
at first hand the effect cf the statements
they produce. They are elated when
they discover how direct costing can
clear up the misunderstandings created
by absorption costing. They are delighted when their fellow - managers in
sales or production at last come to
understand and accept the operating
results reported by accounting. Accountants in public practice or in the universities do not get this experience and,
therefore, they are less likely to become
converts to direct costing. Management

GEORGE T. LOGAN JR
CPA, Elmira Area Chapter (Paterson
1956), is Treasurer, Merg¢nfhaler Linotype Company, Inc., Wellsboro, Pa.
He holds a BS degree in accounting
from Rutgers University and an MBA
from Syracuse University. Mr. Logan
has been awarded an NAA Certificate
of Merit for this paper in the 1967 -68
chapter competition year.

accountants live in a different world
from public practitioners and teachers.
The story that follows shows a little of
what this different world is like.
The Power Shovel Company
During the period discussed here, the
company had about 400 employees and
a sales volume of $6 million to $8 million. It manufactured two distinct lines
of power shovels, each of which accounted for about 40% of the business.
Another product, air tanks, accounted
for about 15% of the business, and the
remaining 5% consisted of repair work,
sales of parts, and miscellaneous jobs.
The company distributed its power
shovels nationally through some 40 independent manufacturers' representatives, who worked entirely on commissions. Air tanks and repair jobs were
handled by the home office, and carried
no commissions.
The company had been founded in
1881, and by the early nineteen - sixties
ownership had become thoroughly
spread out. Stock ownership was divided
among about sixty persons, with one
family controlling about 30% of the
shares. The Board of Directors was reasonably representative of the shareholders, but weighted slightly in the direction of the board members with sales
backgrounds.
During my first few months with the
company, I became disturbed about the
amount of misunderstanding created by
the monthly income statements. They
were prepared along conventional lines.
Each job was charged with overhead at

the rate of 140% of direct labor dollars.
When the job was shipped, cost of
goods sold was charged with the total
cost of the job order. The monthly
statements showed gross profit by the
four product lines. One of the disturbing things about the product line statement was that air tanks showed a gross
loss. Air tanks were actually a profitable
product, as some of the Board members
understood. However, some members of
the Board wanted to discontinue the
sale of air tanks.
The problem will be easier to understand after examining income statements
prepared on a direct cost basis for assumed sales at the extremes of $6 million and $8 million:

Product
Stationary. power shovels
Self - propelled power shovels
Air tanks
Other

Marginal
income
Sales
rate (in $1,000)
36%
24%
20%
40%

$3,200
3,200
1,200
400
$8,000

Fixed expenses
Profit before taxes

It is easily seen in this presentation
that air tanks made a significant contribution to profit, and that it would
have been a serious mistake to let this
business go. However, on a conventional
statement, burden at the rate of 140%
exceeded the marginal income shown
above, and the product seemed to be
losing money.
Some of the board members understood that losing the burden absorption
on air tanks would be worse than eliminating the apparent gross loss. However, the other board members, as well
as the employees engaged in making and
selling air tanks, were confused. Their
attitudes ranged from outright hostility
to the accounting department and faith
in their air tanks, to hostility to air
tanks and suspicion about the accounting department.
The production manager liked the
product because it was simple to make
and was a convenient fill -in job for men
who were temporarily idle. He felt that
it was good business to have, and was
upset by income statements that showed
it losing money. He was willing to accept assurances from the accounting
department that the product was really
profitable, but he repeatedly asked the
same question the board members asked:
10

"If you think we make money on air
tanks, why do you give me a report that
says we lose money on them ?" Most
accountants probably do not realize that
to the layman, this seeming contradiction is preposterous. In all honesty, we
should admit that the layman is right;
it is preposterous.
The air tanks were not the only
problem created by the accounting reports. The company was occasionally
accepting orders that actually created
an out -of- pocket loss. This loss was not
shown in any of the conventionally
prepared statements —not in the product -line summary and not in the supplements that showed gross profit by
job. This was because sales commissions

Marginal
Sales
income (in $1,000)
$1,152
768
240
160
2,320
1,600
720

$2,400
2,400
800
400
6,000

Marginal
income
$864
576
160
160
1,760
1,600
160

and outgoing freight were included in
selling expenses and deducted at the
very bottom of the income statement,
after general and administrative expenses. After all, commissions and shipping costs are selling expenses, aren't
they? And selling expenses belong at
the bottom of the income statement,
don't they? Isn't this what we all learned
in Introductory Accounting?
The first time I showed the sales
manager and the president a power
shovel order that lost money on a direct
cost basis, they both asked a question
similar to the production manager's:
"If this job lost money, why did your
report show a profit on it ?" They had
both been aware that jobs like this
were doubtful prospects, but they also
knew that the jobs absorbed some burden. The confusion about burden absorption had led them to approve orders
they would have rejected if they had
been given better information to work
with.
The air tanks and the loss orders
were two areas where wrong decisions
could well have meant life or death to
the firm, and accounting information
was guiding management toward wrong
decisions. There was a third area where
the same thing had happened, although

it did not come up as often. Shortly
after I started working there, a decline
in business reached the point where a
substantial layoff of direct labor personnel was required. The layoff was postponed several months beyond the right
time, because the president asked me
what effect it would have on the income
statement, and I told him truthfully
that it would create a large amount of
underabsorbed burden. This was enough
to persuade him to postpone the layoff
and build inventory that we had no
immediate prospects of selling. This was
the wrong decision. The fine's cash
position was too delicate to take it.
Furthermore, work done under these
conditions is always inefficient. When
men can see that business is poor, and
they know they are being given make work projects, they just do not try very
hard.
Changing from Absorption
to Direct Costing
There was nothing in my background,
either in my accounting education —or
my public accounting experience, to
prepare me for problems like these. I
could see that the form of income presentation I had learned in school and in
public accounting was not appropriate
here, but I did not know what to put
in its place. I had been vaguely aware
of the direct costing controversy, but
had not paid much attention to it. I
started looking for alternative presentations, starting with some of the articles
in NAA Bulletins that I had paid little
attention to before. I saw very quickly
that direct costing had arisen because
a lot of other people had problems like
mine. It did not take me very long to
decide that I had little to lose, and a
great deal to gain, by changing from
absorption to direct costing.
The change was not difficult —it took
only a few months. A number of indirect
expenses were changed to direct costs
and worked into the job order system,
and burden absorption was discontinued.
The items changed from indirect to direct were:
Drafting labor. This was a substantial portion of the cost of some jobs.
Other jobs (air tanks for instance)
required no drafting at all, since a
blueprint, once drawn, can be used
over and over again. There was an
immediate gain in income from
making this change, a gain we had
not expected at all. Some of our
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1968

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

work had been taken on a flat hourly
rate and we started to charge for the
drafting time as well as factory labor.
There was no objection to this from
any of our customers, as indeed
there should not have been. This
source of income had been lost in
the past because the draftsmen were
on the office payroll and did not
come under the concept of direct
labor held by whoever it was that
set up the chart of accounts.
Shipping room labor. This, too, was
a substantial portion of the cost of
some jobs. It can take two men a
week to prepare a railroad flat car
to load a 50 -ton stationary power
shovel. On the other hand, an air
tank would be a few minutes work
with the yard crane. Whoever had
prepared the chart of accounts and
set up the timekeeping procedures
had worked on the theory that shipping labor is a "selling expense."
Outgoing freight. This item is
handled easily in many businesses
nierely by shipping collect. However,
the power shovel industry has a
practice of shipping prepaid and
adding a freight calculation to the
customer's bill. The calculation is
not based on actual freight rates, and
sometimes varies considerably from
actual freight charges.
Oxygen, acetylene, and welding rod.
These items could not be charged
directly to job orders, but we found
that allocation based on labor hours
in the welding department was satisfactory.
Payroll fringe benefits. A percentage
of direct labor dollars was used to
"absorb" the payroll taxes, insurance,
pension and other items that varied
directly with labor.
Sales commissions. This needs no
explanation.

The reaction among board members
and company management was highly
favorable from the very beginning. The
income statement behaved the way they
expected it to behave — income rose and
fell with sales, and variations could be
explained by the product mix or by
changes in expenses. The air tanks were
obviously profitable, and efforts were
made to increase the business. No further orders were accepted on the basis
of an out -of- pocket loss. The next layoff
decision was based on more realistic
considerations, such as whether certain
skilled help would be lost permanently.
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

One further change was made to
complete the transfer to direct costing.
At the end of the first month, we had
an item at the bottom of the income
statement representing the income arising from increase in the amount of
absorbed burden in inventory. I had
calculated inventory for balance sheet
presentation on an absorption basis, and
forced the net income figure to be the
same as it would have been on the old
basis. One of the first questions asked
by the board was how to improve that
item at the bottom of the income statement. The answer, of course, was to build
inventory. This was the very kind of
thinking I wanted to prevent, so I
transferred the absorbed burden from
inventory to a deferred charge account,
began writing it off over a period of 10
years, and stopped absorbing burden
altogether.
It was highly satisfying to me to see
accounting reports changing bad decisions into good ones. It was even more
satisfying to gain acceptance for the
things I said, among the board of directors, general management, and sales
and manufacturing people. These people
found that I was talking the same language they were, and that accounting
really did make sense —it is not a mysterious subject practiced by a band of
unintelligible witch doctors.
It is standard procedure now for the
company's sales manager to know, within very narrow limits, the amount of the
monthly fixed expenses. He also knows
that he has to cover this amount with
orders that bring in the same amount
of marginal contribution. In my opinion,
changes like these should be the normal
goals of accounting, and accounting
theory should be modified, if necessary,
wherever it fails to promote these goals.
Some conclusions can be drawn from
my experience at the Power Shovel
Company. Unless both accounting instruction in college and conditions in
public accounting change drastically, a
lot of other men will suffer from the
same sense of shock that I suffered. It
has to be experienced to be appreciated.
The accountant who has had no direct
experience with participation in management cannot appreciate what it is
like to have other professional people,
your equals in competence in their own
fields, tell you that accounting does not
make sense, and to have the awful realization come to you that they are right.
An experience like this would be very
educational for some of the accountants

in the academic and public accounting
fields who have resisted direct costing
so strongly.
Practical Considerations Against
Direct Costing
Many accountants have had experiences
similar to mine with direct costing. I do
not know of any accountant who has
had bad experience with it. I have not
read any article about an unsuccessful
experiment with direct costing. There
must be one somewhere, of course, since
there is no useful tool that has ever been
invented that somebody cannot find a
way to misuse. But in spite of the
multitude of favorable articles by satisfied users of the product and in spite of
the absence of unfavorable reports, direct costing has not swept aside the
traditional absorption costing. I intend
to discuss briefly the authoritative obstacles to direct costing, and then go a
little more deeply into the theoretical
arguments against it.
This discussion probably ought to
start with Accounting Reasearch Bulletin 43, issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
1953. ARB 43 states as follows:
"The primary basis of accounting for
inventories is cost, which has been defined generally as the price paid or
consideration given to acquire an asset.
As applied to inventories, cost means in
principle the sum of applicable expenditures and charges directly or indirectly
incurred in bringing an article to its
condition and location. The exclusion
of all overhead from inventory cost does
not constitute an accepted accounting
procedure."
There are a lot of CPA's who disagree,
of course, but they are required to abide
by ARB 43. This pronouncement effectively ruled out the use of direct
costing in published financial statements, and thereby rendered it less acceptable internally. Since accounting
records must be designed to produce
external reports using absorption costing,
the internal use of direct costing would
impose an additional burden on the
accounting system. ARB 43 became a
serious obstacle to the use of direct
costing.
Another serious obstacle is the Internal Revenue Service. Although there
is at least one case in which the IRS
has approved a change to direct costing,
including permission to write off the
overhead carried in inventory, its attitude toward direct costing has been
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unreceptive. In some cases, it has attempted to force taxpayers to change to
absorption costing even when they had
used direct costing exclusively from the
inception of their business. This means
that the weight of the taxing authorities
is added to the weight of the public
accounting profession in demanding that
accounting records carry absorption
costing information.
Still another serious obstacle to direct
costing is the American Accounting Association. In 1957, its Accounting and
Reporting Standards for Corporate Financial Statements and Preceding Statements and Supplements stated:
"The cost of a manufactured product
is the sum of the acquisition costs
reasonably traceable to that product and
should include both direct and indirect
factors. The omission of any one element of manufacturing cost is not acceptable."
AAA membership includes most of
the accounting teachers in the United
States. They have tremendous influence
over the thinking of each new crop of
accountants. If every graduating class is
indoctrinated with absorption costing
theory it will take a lot of experiences
like mine to unindoctrinate them. Of
course, the AAA is unlike the AICPA
in that it has no discipline over its
members, and there are a lot of AAA
members who do not agree with the
quotation above. However, the quotation is probably representative of the
thinking of AAA members, and they
train their classes accordingly. If they
discuss direct costing with their students, they say some of the things that
appear in the following section.
Theoretical Considerations
Against Direct Costing
To a believer in direct costing who
cares about theoretical justifications, the
theoretical justification for omitting indirect costs from inventory is that they
would have been incurred regardless of
whether the inventory was produced,
and therefore they should not become
attached to the inventory. They are
period costs. The only costs that should
be carried forward in inventory are
costs that would not have been incurred
if the inventory had not been produced.
This seems to me to be a good description of direct costing technique, but
I find myself utterly indifferent to its
value as theory. I do not care whether
12

The last item that I want to discuss
is a criticism of absorption costing that
Regardless of what I think, theory its adherents have done a poor job of
matters very much to a lot of account- defending. Absorption costing causes inants, and it is theory that causes them come to vary with production as well
to reject direct costing. The AICPA and as sales. One of the reasons for the rise
AAA pronouncements quoted in the last of direct costing is that it eliminates
section express the feeling about indirect the profits arising from production. Decosts that seems right to many account- fenders of absorption costing tend to
ing authors. The idea of omitting in- ignore this aspect of absorption costing
direct costs from inventory seems wrong but some of them defend it. Professor
to them. Take depreciation, for example, A. W. Patrick says of those who like
which is omitted from inventory costs himself prefer absorption costing: "For
those who accept the theory of normal
in many direct cost systems. Some critics
burden
as it relates to absorption costpoint out that the direct costing system
ing,
the
inverse fluctuation of profits and
makes no distinction between productive
sales
when
production and sales move
use of fixed assets and their waste. This
in
opposite
directions
is expected. They
is true, and the only answer to it that
believe
such
a
fluctuation
is not absurd,
occurs to me is "so what ?" It has no
as
is
often
charged
by
direct
costing
bearing on any problem we had at the
advocates,
but
that
the
results
portrayed
Power Shovel Company. Such a reasoning is typical of most of the opponents are correct and reflect the theory that
or
of direct costing. The omission of in- profits are a function of production,
"3
the
lack
of
it,
as
well
as
sales.
Dr.
direct costs from inventory is something
they simply cannot accept. Sometimes Patrick proposed to put an item at the
they become emotional about it. Pro- bottom of the income statement called
fessor Philip E. Fess says "If one were "Activity Variation Profit or Loss." I
to say that the used up fixed manu- tried this, and I learned at the end of
facturing costs are not to be charged to the first month that it does not work. I
product he would in effect be saying believe that if Dr. Patrick could be subthat there was no service potential in- jected to my experience at the Power
herent in the fixed production factors Shovel Company, he would agree with
acquired. This, of course, would be an me.
admission that the acquisition of fixed
costs factors is an unwise and non -es- Conclusions
sential spending decision."' Anyone who As I said at the beginning, the antagobelieves in direct costing, therefore, nists in the direct costing controversy
must be opposed to buying fixed assets. live in different worlds. In one world
there is any theory at all to support
direct costing, because I know it works.

Indirect costs not added to inventory
are the most serious area of disagreement over direct costing, but there are
some other criticisms of direct costing,
too. One is that pricing decisions based
on direct costing may result in selling
prices that are too low. I have never
seen any author give a specific example
of this. Professor James M. Fremgen,
in an article generally unfavorable to
direct costing, disposed of this argument
very nicely: "This contention has always
struck me as being particularly weak,
however. To begin with, it seems to
ignore the role of the market in price
setting decisions. Furthermore, it appears to presume that business managers
are not very bright; and this hardly
seems to be a valid generalization." 2
Ph ilip E . Fe ss , " T h e Re le v a n t Co st in g Co n cep t
for In c om e Me a su r em e n t —C a n I t be D e f e n d e d ? ' ,
The Accounting Review, Oc to b e r 19 6 3, p p . 723 -732.
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J a m e s M . F r e m g e n , " T h e D ir e c t Co s tin g C o n t r a
yersy —An Id en tif ic at io n of I s s u e s , " The Accountin g Review, J a n u a r y 1964, p p . 43 -51.

is the management accountant who
tends to accept what is useful to him
and to discard what is not useful, without much concern for doctrine. In the
other world is the public practitioner
or teacher, whose predominant concern
of necessity is theory. The result is that
the theoretical framework of accounting
is built by people who are not necessarily
experienced in the area where the
theories are most likely to break down.
As in any profession, the real test of
theory is how well it works in practice.
The largest area of accounting practice
is internal corporate reporting. Internal
reports go to non - accountants. Non -accountants understand the reports better
when they are based on direct costing.
For the matter, so do accountants. Accounting theories, if they are to serve
any useful purpose, must take this fact
into account.

R

A. W . P a t r ic k , " D i r e c t V e r s u s Ab so rp tio n Co stin g , " The Controller, Ap r il 19 6 1 , p p . 16 7 . 17 3 .
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Some Empirical Distributions of
Financial Ratios
THE RATIOS ANALYZED INDICATE THAT ACCOUNTING DATA MAY REQUIRE DISTRIBUTION -FREE TECHNIQUES

There have been several articles in accounting journals in recent years that
have demonstrated the usefulness of the
normal distribution when performing
various tests or analyses of accounting
data. The underlying and necessary assumption is that data fall into a normal
distribution or approximately so. There
would appear to be some question as to
the validity of this assumption particularly with respect to certain accounting
data.
The objective of this paper is to
examine, by using various statistical
techniques, the dispersions and, consequently, the distributions of selected financial ratios to determine if these are
normal or approximately normal. Chosen because of their widespread acceptance, the ratios include most of those
in common use.
Selection of Ratios
The ratios selected number twenty and
are divided into three groups: safety,
structure and efficiency classifications.
The safety ratios indicate the relative
liquidity of a firm, the structure ratios
the relationship between various subgroups such as fixed assets to total assets, and the efficiency grouping examines the effectiveness of management in
conserving the resources of a business
enterprise. The twenty ratios and the
three classifications are presented as
Table 1, next page.
Selecting at random forty-four companies from the Fortune Directory of 500
Industrial Companies for 1964, data are
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

collected and the chosen ratios computed.'
Tests for Dispersion
Two statistical tests are made to test the
degree of dispersion or variation. Having
the characteristic of an absolute measure, the first statistic is called the average
deviation while the second statistic is a
measure of relative variation and is indicated by the term relative dispersion.
Average deviation. The average deviation is an indicator of the absolute variation around a statistic of central tendency if the dispersion is taken without
regard to sign; it is a minimum value
' Th e list of companies included in the sample is
presented as Appendix.
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when the measure is taken around the
median. Employing the median in the
calculations rather than the mean also
avoids the problem of trying to compute
a valid mean from a series of ratios?
The average deviation of a series may
be expressed by the formula
n

Ix;

AD = E = 1
i

By Charles D. Mecimore

—a

where AD is average deviation
xi is any item in a series
a is a measure of central tendency
n is the number of items in a series and
indicates the absolute value between x; and
a.
Using the median as a measure of
central tendency, the average deviation
is calculated for each series of ratios.
Those ratios falling outside the range of
the median plus or minus x average
deviations are noted and summarized in
Table 2. The maximum number in each
cell is forty-four, the number of companies for which data are collected.
In examining the data in Table 2,
one notices that as the range becomes
greater the number of ratios falling outside this range becomes smaller. When
the median ± three average deviations
is employed as the range, the number of
ratios falling outside is rather small.
To aid in evaluation of the average
deviation of the ratios, the following
"rule of thumb" is appropriate. If a
distribution is normal, approximately
s For a good brief discussion of the problem and
possible solutions, see Frederick E. Coxton and
Dudley j Cowden, Applied General Statistics,
Prentice -hall, Inc., Englewood Cliff, N. J., second
edition, 1955, pp. 149 -152.
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75
73
75
75
73
73
61
71
66
66
66
60
66
77
77
68
64
64
77
64

Relative

deviation.

When one examines the above data,
one fact becomes evident. While it may
be stated with some degree of confidence that the ratios do not appear to
fall into a normal dispersion, it does
seem that the ratios within any one
group have certain similar characteristics
because the difference between the ratios within any one group is not generally significant.
Before any definite conclusions may
be drawn from the information as presented thus far, however, it is desirable
to examine the relative deviation of each
ratio. This statistic should either support
the data given by the average deviation
statistic or provide additional insight into the dispersion of the ratios.
The relative deviation of each ratio is expressed by the
equation
S2
=

RD

R2Z

where RD is the measure of relative
deviation

x

s2 is
2
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the variance and
is the mean squared.

CL /C &MS
AR /C &MS
I /C &MS
C &MS /NW
NWC /C &MS
CA /C &MS
C &MS /TA
FD /NW
NPBT /NW
LTL /NW
FD /TA
NPBT/TA
I /NW
1 /TA
AR /NW
NS/TA
FA /NW
AR /TA
FA /TA
NS /NW

x

.7303
.7114
.6002
.5277
.5027
.4655
.4632
.4316
.3765
.3381
.3186
.3170
.3122
.2601
.2494
.1825
.1753
.1614
.1261
.1118

Distributions of Ratios
G raphic al illus tr ation.

If one plots the
distribution of each of the twenty ratios,
the most noticeable feature of the distributions is the fact that all appear positively skewed. Because of the limitation
of space, only two ratio distributions are
illustrated. However, all of the other

Table 1
CLASSIFICATION OF SELECTED RATIOS
Safety Ratios

Structure Ratios

Efficiency Ratios

CL /C&MS
AR /C &MS
I /C &MS
NWC /C &MS
CA /C&MS

C&MS /TA
FD /TA
NPBT /TA
I /TA
NS /TA
AR /TA
FA /TA

FD /NW
NPBT /NW
LTL /NW
I /NW
AR /NW
FA /NW
NS /NW
C &MS /NW

Legend:
CL— Current liabilities
AR— Accounts receivable
I— Inventory
C &MS —Cash and marketable securities
NPBT —Net profit before taxes
LTL— Long -term liabilities
NW —Net worth

NWC —Net working capital
CA— Current assets
TA —Total assets
FD— Funded debt
NS—Net sales
FA —Fixed assets

Table 2
NUMBER OF RATIOS FALLING OUTSIDE THE LIMITS
OF MEDIAN
X AVERAGE DEVIATIONS
Ratio

Median
1 Av. Dev.

Median
2 Av. Dev.

Median
3 Av. Dev.

CL /C &MS
CA /C &MS
I /C &MS
AR /C &MS
NWC /C &MS
NPBT /TA
C &MS /TA
NS./TA
I /TA
AR /TA
FD /TA
FA /TA
NPBT /NW
C &MS /NW
FD /NW
NS /NW
FA/NW
I /NW
LTL /NW
AR /NW

11
12
11
11
12
17
12
13
15
15
15
18
15
10
10
14
16
16
10
16

7
8
7
5
4
3
5
4
6
3
3
4
4
6
4
4
5
3
4
4

6
2
3
2
3
2
1
2
2
2
1
0
3
4
1
2
1
3
2
1

±

Percentage

2/ 2

s

±

Ratio
CL/C&MS
CA /C &MS
I /C &MS
AR /C &MS
NCW /C &MS
NPBT /C &MS
C &MS /TA
NS /TA
I /TA
AR /TA
FD /TA
FA /TA
NPBT /NW
C &MS /NW
FD /NW
NS /NW
FA /NW
I /NW
LTL /NW
AR /NW

Ratio

Examining the above data, it is obvious that the ratios fall into two groups —
one where the relative deviation is high,
the other where it is low. It is difficult
to visualize all of the ratios falling into
an approximate normal distribution.
Since it may be concluded that ratios
do not appear to fall into a normal distribution or even approximately so, one
may question the type of distributions
that ratios do fall into.

±

±

RATIOS WITHIN MEDIAN
ONE AVERAGE DEVIATION

The relative deviation of each ratio
is calculated and presented below:

±

}

±

p

±

58% of the items are included within
the range of the median
one average
deviation. Even if the distribution is
moderately skewed this approximation
mayY be considered to be reasonable.
From an examination of the listing
given below, one would question
whether the dispersions are even aproximatel normal since all of the p ercentages of ratios falling outside of the
median
one average deviation exceed
58 %:
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eighteen distributions display somewhat
similar characteristics, with some more
positively skewed than others.
The two ratios illustrated are presented as Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2. The
first ratio was selected because it had the
highest relative and average deviations,
while the second ratio was chosen because it had the least relative deviation
and the percentage of average deviation
was low.
Observing that the positively skewed
distributions have an effective lower limit of zero and an indefinite upper limit,
it is interesting to compare these distributions with those found in two other
studies, one relating to public utilities
and the other to the petroleum and steel
industries .3 The distributions for the

Exhibit 1
DISTRIBUTION OF RATIO CL/C &MS

public utilities industry range from those
skewed to the left to one highly skewed
to the right with little similarity noted
between many of the distributions .4 On
the other hand, the frequency distributions of the petroleum and steel industries ratios are approximately normal but
positively skewed .5
The observed distributions of the ratios included in this study would lead
one to question the conclusions concerning the petroleum and steel indusJames O. Horri gan, "Some Empirical Bases of
Financial Ratio Analysis," Accounting Review,
July 1965, pp. 558 -568; and Charles M. Thompson
and A. C. Littleton, Standard Financial Ratios for
the Public Utility Ind ustry. Bureau of Business
Research Bulletin No. 26, University of Illinois,
Urbana, Ill., 1929.

L

Ibid
s Ibid

tries. The frequency distributions as
graphed are all positively skewed, but it
is difficult to try to visualize most of
them as approximately normal. Even
though the petroleum and steel industries may be expected to display distributions different from those of the companies examined because of the differences in populations, the limits of the
two studies are the same, i.e., lower
limits of zero with indefinite upper
limits. Since the limits are the same and
since the companies engage in similar
activities, the distributions of the ratios
of the petroleum and steel companies
and those of the manufacturing companies as examined here would be expected
to display more similarities than they do.
Calculation of ratio distributions. To
determine more exactly the various
types of frequency distributions displayed by the ratios, the system of
curves developed by Karl Pearson is used
to classify each ratio as falling into a
particular type of frequency distribution.6 The proof of the system of curves
presented by Pearson is highly mathematical and is not attempted here; the
interested reader will easily find ample
discussion of Pearson's curves in the statistical literature.
Two main types of curves are described by Pearson and ten transitional
types (the normal curve being described
as a transitional type) . The criteria for
determining which of these types of
curves best describes a particular frequency distribution are found by computing the first four moments around
the mean and then calculating N 1 and R2
where
= 1ra2

Exhibit 2
DISTRIBUTION OF RATIO NS; NW

Ql

A2 3

1142
162 = A2

2

where µ 2 i µ 3 and µ 4 are the second,
third and fourth moments around the
mean; 8 1 is a measure for skewness and
is zero when the curve is symmetrical;
and # 2 is a measure for kurtoses and has
the value three for a normal distribution.
Employing available charts (by Pearson) for determining into which group
a frequency distribution falls, the types
of distributions displayed by the ratios
of 1964 are presented in Table 3.
In examining Table 3, it is apparent
that the ratios are well dispersed as to
type of distribution. The ratios do have
a pattern depending on the classification
Karl Pearson, (ed.), Tables for Statisticians and
Biometricians, University College, London, England, third edition, 1930, p. 66.
MA N A G E M E N T AC CO UN TING / SE PTEM BE R, 1968
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of the ratios. Most of the safety ratios
are in type XII, the structure ratios
Type VII, and the efficiency ratios Type
1.
where':
I —Main type; limited range; skewed;
usually bell shaped, but may be U
shaped or twisted J shaped.
II— Transitional; limited range; symmetrical; usually bell shaped, but
U shaped when P < 1.8.
III — Transitional; unlimited range in
one direction; usually bell shaped,
but may be J shaped.
VII — Transitional; unlimited range;
symmetrical; bell shaped.
IX —Range from x = —a where y = 0
to x = 0 where y = yo.
XII— Twisted J shaped, special case of
Type 1.
Conclusions
Rather than make the assumption that
ratios computed from accounting data
fall into a normal distribution and thus
are susceptible to various statistical tests,
we have attempted to determine the
7

Source of descriptions of distribution types: W.
Palin Elderton, Frequency Curves and Correlation,
The University Press, Cambridge, England, third
edition, 1938.

Table 3
RATIO DISTRIBUTIONS
Type of distribution

Safety

Function
Structure

Efficiency

I
II
III
VII
IX
XII

1
0
0
0
1
3

0
2
1
3
1
0

4
1
0
2
1
0

5

7

g

Totals

types of distributions exhibited by such
ratios. The empirical data analyzed were
for only a few companies for one year
and thus any conclusions may apply
only to the ratios for these companies.
However, the results as noted have important implications.
The first and most important implication is the fact that accounting data
may not be easily adaptable to the application of those statistical techniques
that require a normal distribution for
their use. Hence, accountants may have
to devise new techniques or adopt those
that are distribution free. Many statistical tools are distribution free; however,
these have not gained widespread attention in the accounting literature.

Secondly, if some accounting data
exhibit the same type of distribution for
many companies in many industries, it
would appear that the underlying data
may be more comparable than data
without similar distributions. Additional
research into the distribution exhibited
by data may reduce some of the controversies now existing over comparability
of accounting data. Some data may be
more comparable than many accountants realize.
The area of financial data analysis
has long been ignored by many as not
worthy of research. It is hoped this
paper will interest more accountants in
the application of quantitative methods
for financial data analysis.

APPENDIX
Companies Included in Sample Arrayed by Profitability
1 Gulf Oil Company
2 Eastman Kodak Company
3 The Goodyear Tire and Rubber
Co.
4 Radio Corporation of America
5 National Dairy Products Corp.
6 Deere and Company
7 Sunray DX Oil Company
8 Libbey- Owens -Ford Glass Co.
9 The Borden Company
10 flercules Powder Company
11 Kellogg Company
12 Xerox Corporation
13 The Babcock and Wilcox Company
14. St. Regis Paper Company
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15.
16.
IT
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27
28
29

Abbott Laboratories
Joseph E. Seagram & Sons, Inc.
Federal -Mogul Corporation
The Mead Corporation
Philadelphia and Reading Corp.
Motorola
Ethyl Corp.
West Virginia Pulp and Paper Co
American Enka Corp.
Burroughs Corporation
Pennsalt Chemicals
Pitney- Bowes, Inc.
Amsted Industries
Granite City Steel Company
Anchor Hocking Glass

30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44.

Commercial Solvents Corp.
KVP Sutherland Paper Company
United Shoe Machinery Corp.
Scovill Manufacturing Co.
The Armstrong Rubber Company
Riegel Paper Corporation
American Optical Company
Pittsburgh Steel Company
Continental Motors Corporation
McCall Corporation
Howe Sound Company
American Bakeries
General Baking Company
Sharon Steel Company
Endicott Johnson
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Accounting for Stock Ownership
CHALLENGING OPPORTUNITIES FOR IMPROVEMENTS, SAVINGS AND FAVORABLE STOCKHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

By Leslie I. Asher
Maintaining the necessary records on
the ownership of a company's stock is
different from the usual balance sheet
and profit and loss accounting. Yet
there are precise details required by
corporation laws, tax laws and stock exchanges which make stock ownership
accounting an exacting work.
This writing reviews stock ownership
accounting with particular reference to
procedures and costs but it deals also
with the impact upon the share owners,
the corporation itself and the general
public. It is hoped that the reader,
whether he be accountant or not, will
obtain a greater appreciation for this
kind of work and catch a vision of the
broad opportunity for accomplishment
and for making savings in this important field.
Wh o Does the W or k ?
A corporation can do its own stock
ownership accounting or it can hire a
bank or other company to do this work.
Regardless of where the work is done,
the basic requirements are the same.
The decision as to whether this work
is done by the corporation or it is hired
done, will hinge upon several factors
such as:
1. Number of share owners
2. Turnover or volume of transfers of
the company's stock
3. Relative costs
4. Desirability (or perhaps undesirability) of a company dealing directly
with share owners on stock ownership details
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

Appropriate organization unit already existing or to be created to
handle this work within the company.
Each corporation's circumstances are
different, so that the considerations will
at least differ in degree. Undoubtedly a
prime factor is cost, and this will have
to be carefully evaluated so that a realistic comparison can be made between
"hire -it- done" or "do -it- yourself."
In this cost comparison, due recognition must be given to, those expenses
which a corporation would incur anyway. An example of such expense is a
stock exchange listing fee which must
be paid in any event and it is not a
charge, therefore, to stock ownership
accounting work. In other words, the

cost comparison must reflect all the
costs of the stock ownership accounting
work, but no more, whether that work
is performed by the corporation itself, or
that work is paid for to another on a fee plus- expense basis.
There are three broad classifications
of stock ownership accounting work:
1. Day -to -day records maintenance of
the changes in ownership and addresses
2. Payment of dividends
3. Distribution and tally of proxies and
ballot votes for stockholders' meetings.
Each of these involves its own special
requirements but, of course, is a part of
the total job and so all of the work
must be closely coordinated. Let us
review each of these work classifications.
Stock Ownership Records
A separate record must be maintained
for the ownership of each class of stock
which the corporation has outstanding.
This record must show:

LESLIE I. ASHER
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is Manager - Treasury Operations, General Electric Company, Schenectady,
N.Y. He holds a B.A. degree in Economies from the University of Iowa,
Iowa City, Iowa. Mr. Asher was President of the National Association of
Accountants in 1959 -1960. He is a
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ACCOUNTING.

Name or title of the owner "of record"
Full address of the owner, including zip
code
Certificate number, date of certificate
and number of shares of each certificate
owned
Taxpayer identification number.
In addition to these fundamentals,
there are usually supplementary items of
information in the basic record such as:
Special instructions for payment of
dividends to someone other than the
17

owner, such as to a bank for direct deposit to the owner's account.
A stockholder account number, which
will be different from the taxpayer
identification number. The same taxpayer identification number may apply
to more than one account.
Federal income tax withholding required on stock owned by non - citizens
residing outside the country.
'Stop- transfer' identification where the
stock may not be transferred because -if
disputed ownership or other reason. Special mailing requirement coding.
These basic records can be maintained manually if there are only a few
hundred share - owners. Beyond the
100% manual system there are various
combinations and ways for keeping the
records:
1. Share owner name, address, tax
identification number, and number
of shares owned can be kept on mag=
netic tape for the ready production
of dividends. However, these details
and all other needed details are
maintained on a manual card system
for all other purposes.
2. All the basic data can be maintained
on magnetic tape.
3. The basic data can be maintained
in a random access file, with daily
input and with immediate access.
4. Other possibilities exist, utilizing
different kinds of equipment in varying degree.
Which method to use will depend upon
the number of accounts and the volume
of transactions. The most sophisticated
method is the random access, but this
method, while technically feasible, is
costly.
With the advances in computer
equipment in the last three or four years
and widespread use of such equipment,
many companies are now keeping all the
basic stock ownership data on magnetic
tape and are doing their stock ownership
accounting by computer ( item 2 above) .
This does not mean the total job is
automatic. Far from it! The input to the
computer must be provided accurately
and on time. Of course the output requirements are based upon what management requests and these needs must
be spelled out in computer language.
Probably the most important output
item from the computer, where all share owner account details are included on
the magnetic tape, is the complete
print -out of all the share -owner account
18

Table

1

SHARE-OWNERACCOUNT
(1)

(2)

(3)
1550320
630519

(1)
(2)
(3)
NK595632
00045
640910
00015
NP646181
00018
621211
(4) CHARLES H FARMER RURAL ROUTE 2 DYSART, IOWA 50468
967298001 88 19 23 004 049621 17.55 69.55 517039121 DYS
(5)
(6) (7) (8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(1) Stock certificate number, (2) Number shares in that certificate and (3) date of
certificate
(9) Mail code
(4) Name and address, including ZIP code
(10) Latest dividend check number
(5) Account number
(11) Amount of latest dividend check
(6) Total number of shares owned
(12) Amount of year to date dividend
(7) Type of account
(13) Tax identification number
(8) State
(14) City code

NP192406
NL153062

00010

details in register form. Table 1 shows
an example of the details of a share owner account as it would appear on this
register:
Such a complete register would be
printed quarterly at the time of the
production of each dividend. This register serves as the basic visible record
between dividend record dates . . .
changes in accounts are posted to it
manually. Computer - produced supplementary sheets may be prepared from
time to time during each quarter to
show activity since the last dividend
record date.
A significant advantage of maintaining
complete details on tape is that an upto -date copy of the tape can be stored at
a remote, secure location, thus guaranteeing non - destructibility of this vital
record in case of fire or other disaster.
Personnel work responsibilities are
important. Obviously there must be
qualified personnel to handle all the
details and do the work which the computer cannot do. A listing of some of
these details will serve not only as an
indication of what the requirements are,
but will also suggest the impact which
the "personnel" element can have on
the image of the corporation and the
relations with share - owners and the
public:
1. The basic gist of input to stock
ownership accounting is the daily
supply of surrendered stock certificates received from the company's
transfer agents. All the information
shown on these certificates must be
complete and it must be properly interpreted by records personnel so as
to accomplish the debit for the reduction in the number of shares in
the surrendering account and the
credit for the increased number of

3.

4.

5.

S.

7.

shares in an existing account or for
establishing a new account. The
data must be put in cards or tape
form as input to the computer for
updating the master tape files.
Preparation of and mailing of welcome letter and "verification of account" details form to new shareowners.
Correspondence with share - owners
concerning requirements for replacing lost stock certificates, arranging
bond, and arranging with Transfer
Agent and Registrar for replacement
of such certificates.
Preparation and filing of all required
tax reports of dividends paid, dividend withholding tax and stock ownership to Federal and State Governments and to the share - owners.
Much of the detail for these reports
can be obtained from the computer,
but the editing, summarizing and
actual shipment are accomplished by
the personnel. The Federal Government now permits such reports to
be made to it on magnetic tape, and
this is a substantial saving compared
with sending the information on
paper forms.
From dividend checks and correspondence, obtain change of address
information and prepare the card or
tape input to the computer to accomplish these changes.
Correspondence with share - owners
as to questions relating to their accounts, such as consolidation of accounts, changes in title, history of
the account, "stop transfers," lost
dividend checks, etc.
Preparation of regular and special
statistical reports of share ownership
as required by officers or other authorized individuals of the company.
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Basic data will be obtained from
computer runs but summarization,
interpretation and reporting must be
accomplished by personnel.
Payment of Dividends
Payment of dividends is the second
broad classification of stock ownership
accounting work. Cash dividends paid
quarterly ordinarily represent the most
frequent and regular type of dividend
payment. However, some companies pay
dividends in stock with some degree of
regularity. While a stock split is not considered a "dividend" technically, it is
similar to a stock dividend and the job
of issuing the certificates for the additional shares is the responsibility of the
stock ownership accounting organization
component. The payment of a stock
dividend or the issuance of new certificates in a stock split requires special procedures which will not be reviewed here.
Cash dividends represent the disbursement of a substantial amount of money,
which must be accomplished not only
absolutely accurately but also on time.
The Board of Directors declares the dividend to "owners of record" as of a
specific date, called the "record" date,
with payment to be made as of a subsequent specific date, called the "payable" date.
News of the dividend is publicized
immediately upon declaration by notice
to the stock exchange where the stock
is listed and by release to the public
press. This publicity specifies both the
record date and the payable date so that
investors may be aware of what is coming and be guided accordingly.
Investors also need to know when the
stock is "ex" dividend in trading on the
exchange. For example, the New York
Stock Exchange follows the rule that a
stock is "ex" dividend on the fourth
business day preceding the record date
for the dividend ... th is means th at
stock bought through the Exchange on
the four days preceding the record date
as well as on the record date itself will
not receive that dividend. This five -day
period is necessary for the broker to
get changes of ownership instructions
through to the company transfer agent
by the dividend "record" date.
On a dividend "record" day the volume of certificates surrendered for transfer of ownership is quite often four or
five times the volume on an ordinary
day. This is due to a "clean -up" effort
of brokers and others to get new ownership officially established for the diviMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1968

Exhibit 1
SAMPLE DIVIDEND CHECK

GENERAL

ELECTRIC

05 53216 6
SCHENECTADY, N. Y.
1 -67
210

PAY TO THE ORDER OF
om � e . a

c ex

R A 6 W M I C COMPANY

IRVING TRUST C OMPANY, NEW YORK, N. Y.

RR 53 2 16 6 ER

dend. This last minute volume of transfer work is recorded on cards or tape and
is the last input to the master tape file
before the computer run of the dividend.
Checks required for a cash dividend
must be so designed as to meet processing control requirements, subsequent
reconciliation of the dividend deposit
account, and bank requirements. The
checks can be of card stock or paper.
Certain details relating to the dividend
and to the share - owner's account are
generally shown on the check. See Exhibit 1 for a sample General Electric
Company check. There appears to be a
gradual trend to use of paper checks,
because paper is cheaper than card stock.
More and more companies are making
provision on the check for the share owners to show a change of address ...
this is a convenient no-postage way for
the share -owner to do this, and of
course, it saves the necessity of sending
a separate slip or card solely for change
of address purposes with the dividend
mailing. Important to the use of the
check as a change of address medium is
the sorting out of all the checks showing a change of address from other paid
checks and the subsequent transmission
of the new address by card or tape to
the master share -owner record tape file.
In other words, each change of address
must be made effective, and as promptly
as possible.
With the supply of checks at hand
and the master tape file updated for all
changes of ownership through the dividend record date, the production of the
dividend checks can commence. Obviously there must be adequate controls of
the checks in the computer center.

Spoiled checks have to be replaced. Regular and frequent inspections must be
made of the accuracy and quality of the
printer output of the checks. Detailed
instructions must be issued to and followed by the machine operators. Checks
may be produced in tandem on the
printer and if so, this must be provided
for both in the check design and i n the
computer program.
Once the checks have been completed, the related check registers prepared, and the necessary data produced
for reconciliation of the dividend cash
account, the signing and bursting of the
checks is the next operation. While the
signing (facsimile signature is assumed)
and bursting are performed by machine,
it is necessary to have close scrutiny of
the work to assure a smooth operation
and control of the number of check signatures.
After the dividend checks have been
produced and turned over to the share owner records operation, there are several things that must be done before
the checks can be released for enclosing
in the envelopes to be used in the mailing. A number of the checks produced
by the computer operation will have to
be "pulled" for special handling. Perhaps a late change of address has been
received, a ruling requires that a different rate of Federal withholding tax must
be used, there is a dispute as to ownershi p of the st ock a nd he nce as t o t he
right to receive the dividend, or from
prior experience it is known the shareholder no longer lives at the address of
record and no better address is available.
For these reasons it is necessary to hold
the check, or change the address or
amount of the check and perhaps issue
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a replacing check. The share -owner records organization makes a final comparison of the dividend check register,
produced at the same time as the dividend checks, with the summary by letter (control) groups, the number of
checks used, and the official number of
share - owners of record at the close of
business on the dividend "record date."
In addition, a random sort review of a
number of checks is made to make certain that the details appear to be correct (for example, that the amount of
the check is a multiple of the dividend
rate, if no withholding tax is shown)
and that the quality of printing on the
check is satisfactory. Checks spoiled anywhere along the line have to be replaced,
and special routines must be provided
for actual preparation of the replacing
checks and for fitting them into the
pattern for subsequent reconciliation of
the dividend cash account.
Preparation of dividend checks for
mailing is a substantial amount of work
and involves details which have to be
carefully considered. Dividend checks
may be mailed without any other enclosure, except perhaps a change of address' card, or, the quarterly earnings
statement and related report by management may be sent with the check. Here
is a choice by management which will
affect expenses: if the dividend check
and quarterly earnings report are sent
out in the same envelope, then obviously
there is a saving of the cost of envelopes, the postage and the extra labor
costs which are incurred if there are two
separate mailings. Of course the payable
date for the dividend should be in the
latter part of the month following close
of the earnings report quarter, if the
earnings report and dividend check are
mailed in the same envelope.
A company may wish to make some
other special mailing to share - owners,
such as a special letter or announcement, a product brochure, or some other
advertising. Circumstances may dictate
that this special mailing piece be mailed
separately. However, there is an opportunity to save expense if the special item
is mailed with the dividend check in the
same envelope. Weight of the combined
mailing, of course, governs the amount
ofpostage required. The design of the
material and the weight of the paper
are important in accomplishing the mailing at the lowest possible postage expense.
Internal Revenue Service regulations
require that each company supply its
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share - owners with a statement (Form
1099) of dividends paid during the year.
This is another item which can be included with a dividend check provided
that they are both ready and are mailed
to meet the time requirements. Some
companies combine the Form 1099 with
the dividend check. If separate mailings
are avoided in this manner, there is a
savings in stationery and postage expense, labor costs and, perhaps, in computer equipment operating time. Obviously, care must be exercised to design
and select the right envelope for the
dividend mailing to assure a neat appearing package at lowest expense.
The job of enclosing the dividend
checks and supplementary items in the
envelopes, the application of the postage on the envelopes, and the movement
of the completed mailing to the Post
Office, requires careful planning, properly trained personnel and adequate
equipment. In fact, this overall enclosing job might be referred to as a "financial factory" in the sense that it is
an operation not unlike the application
of materials, machinery and employees
on a factory floor. Time available for this
enclosing work may be limited, and, of
course, there is a deadline date, the
dividend "payable" date. An efficient
smoothly operating "enclosing factory"
is therefore necessary. Important to accomplishing this is making certain that
the materials to be enclosed are of good

quality with uniform folding and packing. This is essential for smooth handling by personnel and uninterrupted
operation of the enclosing machines.
Proxies and Balloting for
Shareholder Meetings
The third broad classification of stock
ownership accounting work is the handling of proxies and ballots, and related
matters for shareholder meetings. There
is normally a regular Annual Meeting
of shareholders as required by state corporation law. Special meetings may be
called for special purposes, such as approval of a merger or an increase in the
number of shares of stock which the
company is authorized to issue. The review in this writing relates to a regular
Annual Meeting of the corporation.
Stockholders "of record" at a date
established by the Board of Directors
are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Date of the Annual Meeting itself
is usually provided in the By -laws of the
corporation. Adequate time between the
"record date" and the Annual Meeting
date must be allowed to accomplish the
necessary mailings to share - owners and
to tally the proxy results, all within
statutory time requirements, of course.
The owners of shares as of the record
date for the Annual Meeting must generally be supplied:
Notice of Annual Meeting
Proxy Statement

Exhibit 2
NOTICE OF STATUTORY MEETING OF SHARE - OWNERS

To the Share Owners:

March 11, 1968

The 1968 Statutory Meeting of Share Owners of the General Electric Company
will be held at Taft Auditorium, Fifth and Sycamore Streets, Cincinnati, Ohio, on
Wednesday, April 24, 1968, at 9:30 a.m., for the following purposes: (l ) election of
directors for the ensuing year; (2) approval of proposed stock option plan; (3)
approval of proposal to amend the by -law provision on indemnification of directors,
officers and employees; (4) approval of the appointment of Independent Public Accountants for 1968; (5) action upon one share owner proposal, as set forth and
commented upon on pages 18 -19 of the Proxy Statement, below; and (6) action upon
such other matters as may properly come before the meeting.
The management's nominees for directors of the Company (all of whom are at
present directors) are named in the accompanying Proxy Statement and have agreed
in writing to be nominated and to serve if elected. Written consents to be nominated
and agreements to serve if elected will also be required for presentation at the meeting
in connection with any additional nominations for directors that may be made at the
meeting.
Share owners of record at the close of business on March 6, 1968 will be entitled
to vote.
Robert M. Estes, Secretary
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Proxy Card
Annual Report of the Corporation.
Exhibit 2 shows the General Electric
Company Notice of Statutory "Meeting
,dated March 11, 1968. The Proxy Statement describes in detail the items to
be voted upon at the Meeting. Exhibit
3 presents both sides of the General
Electric Proxy Card as used for the
1968 Annual Meeting. The Annual Report contains the financial statements
of the corporation for its most recent
fiscal year and Management's report to
the share - owners.
The "record" date for the Annual
Meeting may or may not be the same as
the record date 'for a dividend. There is
some advantage, and .expense saved, if
the record date for the Annual Meeting is the same as the record date for a
dividend, since -the share -owner "register" can be updated in duplicate. As
described earlier, one copy is used as that
quarter's visible record. The other copy
can be used as the official certified list of
share - owners entitled to vote at the
Annual Meeting. This `official" list

must be available at the time the Annual
Meeting is in progress.
Proxy cards are serially numbered for
control and tally purposes. They are in
continuous strip form and the computer
printing on these cards shows:
Share -owner name and address
Account number
Proxy number (in addition to the
original printed number on the
card)
Number of shares
Special mail code if any.
Sometimes the Annual Report is included in the same mailing as the proxy
material. However, it is more general
practice for the Annual Report to be
mailed separate from the proxy materials.
Name and address labels are computer- produced to be used for the mailing of the Annual Report. It may be
addressed and mailed by the printer's
plant, by a professional mail distribution
firm, or by the company itself.
It must be kept in mind that the Securities and Exchange Commission requires that the Annual Report be re-

Exhibit 3
PROXY CARD

Proxy Solicited by Management for the Statutory Meeting of Share Owners April 26, 1%8
'I (we) hereby appoint Fred J. Borch, Gerald L. Phillippe, Henry S. Morgan and Robert M. Estes as proxies,
wi t h f ull powe r o f s ubs ti t ut i o n, t o re pre s e nt me (us ) a nd t o v o t e a ll my (ou r) sto ck i n Ge neral Ele ct ric Compa ny

on all matters which may come before the 1968 Statutory Meeting of the Share Owners of the Company and any
adjournments thereof. The proxies shall vote as specified below, or if a choice is not specified, they shall vote fair the
isoloct6on of management's nominees for directors and on the proposals as recommended by the Board of Directors. The
proxies may act by a majority of those at the meeting (or if only one is present then by that one).
VOTE

00

FOR
FO R
FOR

0DO NOT VOTE

For Management's
Nominees
for Directors

The Board of Directors recommends a vote
FOR the following three proposals
Stock Option
Plan
AGAINST
p
Indemnification
of By -low
0 AGAINST
AGAINST [i

Appointment of Independ.
ent Public Accountants

The Board of Directors recommends a vote
AGAINST the following proposal

FOR

AGAINST

O s
o °

, , n . on
$ a mn
o
"
,

0
o o'

° o v
a
:c

Share Owner
Proposal Described
,n Proxy Statement

< n ° a
n
w
o

Continued, and signed, on the other side

The holes punched in this Proxy Card represent the Serial Number to enable computer count of the vote

000615
Serial Numbo,
Account Numbor

Mail Code

Serial Number

Shore.

016611
n r n is nr
lI I I l l
71:777
777 777
111 fls

555555
666666
177777
Sig na tu re ( s) . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. ... .. . Da te d. .. .. .. .. .. . 19 68 I t t l l l q
Executors, trustees and others signing in a representabve capacity should include their names and the capacity in which they sign,
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ceived by the share -owner at the same
time or before he receives the proxy materials. So lead times must be provided
and consideration given to the mail class
used. Postage expense can be saved by
sending the Annual Report by Third
Class instead of First Class mail but
somewhat more time must be allowed
for delivery of Third Class mail. If this
mail is supplied to the Post Office in
Zip Code sequence, then the lower
Third Class Bulk postage rate would be
applicable and additional savings can be
made.
Another way to save expense is to
send only one Annual Report of the
company to each household. Many individuals and families have more than
one share -owner account 'of record."
There may be an account in the name
of the husband, one.in the name of the
wife, a joint tenant account of husband
and wife, a custodian account for a minor, a second account for the husband
only showing his full first name instead
of initial of his first name, etc. Obviously only one Annual Report is needed
in the household for review in determining how the various accounts are to
be voted. A number of companies have
specifically solicited share - owners to designate to which one of several accounts
in a household a single Annual Report
should be mailed. The expense saved in
the reduced number of reports required,
in the cost of addressing, and in postage
can be substantial. In addition, the company has a better image to the share owner by eliminating extra copies.
Mailing the proxy materials must be
carefully scheduled and planned. Enclosing the Proxy Card, the Notice of
Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement,
and the stamped return addressed envelope should be completed for mailing
"in phase" with the mailing of the
Annual Report. The proxy materials ordinarily go by First Class mail and, accordingly, can be mailed after the Annual Report has been mailed. The
mailings of Annual Report and proxy
materials have to be closely monitored
to assure that copies have in fact been
mailed to all share - owners, and the fact
that this mailing has been made must
be certified at the Annual Meeting.
It is the desire of most corporate managements to have a high percentage of
the number of voting shares voted at the
Annual Meeting. Special arrangements
may be made to follow up the holders of
large blocks of stock to obtain their
executed proxies. These arrangements
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will include personal soliciting of brokers, banks and others for their proxies.
Approximately three weeks before the
Annual Meeting there may be a "second
request" mailing of proxy materials to
the largest accounts which have not returned their executed proxies at that
time. Obviously it is necessary to provide proper identification of these "second request" proxies so that only one
voting is counted in the final tally.
A minor but rather interesting item
is the question of just what the return
addressed envelope should be for the
share -owner to mail his executed proxy
in to the company. Primary factors are
(1) the desire to obtain the greatest
number of proxies returned as possible
and (2) expense. The return addressed
envelope may be:
Business Reply— postage to be paid
by addressee
Postage stamp affixed to the envelope
Metered postage on the envelope.
In the case of the Business Reply
envelope no postage is paid until the
envelope is used and received by the
addressee. For this privilege the
postage is 80 compared with 60 for
the regular First Class mailing. So,
this becomes a comparison of the
number of proxies returned times 80
compared with 6¢ times the number of
proxies for all share - owners. Which of
the three envelopes will the share -owner
be more apt to actually use to return
his executed proxy? There is some evidence that he is more apt to use the
envelope that has the postage stamp on
it. Test mailings using the different
kinds of envelopes can help point the
way for the "largest number returned."
It is slightly less expensive to show me-
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tered postage on these envelopes rather
than to hand -affix stamps.
Returned proxies must first be pulled
from the envelopes and then visually
validated, i.e., see that they are completed properly. A sort is then made between (1) pro- management proxies and
(2) split vote proxies. These proxies
are then properly punched as to vote,
so that electronic processing equipment
may be used to tally the vote. So that
management is aware of the total number of shares being voted and the number of shares voted for and against each
individual proposition, it is advisable to
have tallies made from time to time
right up to the date of the Annual
Meeting to be reported to the Chairman of the Board, the President, and
any others having a prime interest in
the Annual Meeting. These reports are
in terms of number of accounts and
number of shares, since the confidentiality of individual voting must be maintained.
At the Annual Meeting it is necessary
to have available an affidavit by the
corporate secretary or other appropriate
officer certifying that the required documents relating to the Meeting have in
fact been mailed to the share - owners
of record. Since the stock ownership
accounting organization has a substantial part of the responsibility for this
mailing, it is necessary that a record be
maintained of the time, quantity and
method of mailing to support the declaration necessary in the affidavit.
Independent verification of proxy and
ballot counting may be accomplished by
employing a firm which performs this
kind of service. Or, the Board of Directors of the company may appoint
individuals from public life, who are not

employees of the company, such as college professors, to serve as independent
Inspectors of Election. It is the responsibility of these "inspectors" to supervise the processing and tabulation of returned proxies and of ballots voted at
the Annual Meeting. A company may
elect to do this entire work itself, but
there appears to be a trend toward having this work performed by, or supervised by outside, independent individuals.
The stock ownership accounting organization must arrange for the distribution of the ballots on the floor of the
Annual Meeting to the share - owners
wishing to vote in person. After the
polls have been closed by the Chairman
of the meeting, the ballots must be
collected. These ballots are then counted
under the supervision of the Inspectors
of Election (assuming there are Inspectors) . This counting is to be completed
for a final tally. It is important that the
stock ownership accounting organization
have all the voting summarized right to
the time the Annual Meeting commences, so that the tally can be made of
floor ballots and the final vote determined as expeditiously as possible.
Sum m a r y
Stock ownership accounting is a detailed
work involving challenging opportunities
for continual improvement in (1) maintenance of stock ownership records, (2 )
payment of dividends and (3) the management of proxies and ballots for the
meetings of share - owners. The ingenious
"stock ownership accountant" can bring
to these responsibilities improvements in
routines and important expense savings
and, perhaps more important, improved
relationships with the share - owners.
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Managing an
Information Systems Activity
SINCE MUCH OF THIS ACTIVITY IS CONCERNED WITH THE FUTURE, PLANNING IS A KEY FACTOR

By Richard F. Peirce
The increased importance of information systems, the increased level of expenditures and the scarcity of information systems personnel create the need
for an effectively managed information
systems activity. The following factors
are the key to a well managed information systems activity:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Software support
Management support
Design methodology
Planning for information systems
Equipment configuration
Information systems organization
Internal administration within the
information systems activity
8. Development of personnel
Summary Network for Developing an
Advanced Information System shown in
Exhibit 1 indicates the general relationship of the activities needed for an information system organization. Many
activities must be carried out concurrently by an information systems activity. Software development, training,
equipment selection, etc., must be effectively phased. The chart obviously
should not be construed as indicating
that a system cannot be developed until
all the activities indicated are accomplished. For example, if software is not
available, systems development requires
additional programming effort. Nor
should the network imply that, once an
information system is developed, significant system and programming effort is
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

no longer needed. Changes in equipment capability and business requirements require corresponding changes in
information systems.
Software Support
One key to the information systems
organization is an effective software activity. The software activity assists in
both (1) implementation of software
developed by equipment manufacturers
and software firms and (2) development
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and implementation of other software
needed for applied systems. Exhibit 2
indicates software needed in addition to
that generally supplied by equipment
manufacturers.
Software development has progressed
from writing in machine language
through coding in assembly level languages and compilers, such as COBOL
or FORTRAN, to the use of general
purpose software which enables systems
to be developed by compiling parameters that describe the attributes of the
system being developed. The development of generalized software recognizes
that the processing of data requires a
number of basic steps (see Exhibit 2):
(1) editing, auditing and balancing
transactions, (2) updating master files,
(3) interrelating data in master files,
(4) selecting data, (5) sorting data and
(6) reporting data.
For example, a standard requirement
for any system is the editing, auditing
and balancing of input transactions.
There are approximately a dozen factors
which must be established in a general
purpose auditing and balancing program. These include:
Establishing the source of transaction, the route or system to process
the transaction and the priorities of
transactions.
2. Determining the authorization or security code for the transaction.
3. Identifying the type of transaction.
4. Establishing the fields of data for the
transaction with associated edit and
audit rules.
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5. Establishing controls for transactions.
6. Establishing the effective and calendar dates for the transactions.
In past, these parameters have been
specified by detailed programs in either
compiler or assembly level languages. A
generalized edit, audit and balancing
program can accomplish this processing
by compiling the parameters listed
above. A similar procedure can be followed for other types of processing. For
example, the preparation of reports requires establishing:
1. General specification — input file
characteristics, some report characteristics and operations control instructions.
2. Selection criteria by which records
are accepted for the report. Information includes the input location
and length, and Boolean logic capabilities.
3. Report format specifications —report
sequence, control breaks, summary
information and page ejection criteria.
4. Sequence of data.

5. Totals.
6. Spacing and ejection data
The preparation of a simple report
program in COBOL can require significant EDPM test time and many hours
of programming. Generalized software
can reduce this effort by over 80 percent. The benefits of the company software activity in addition to the implementation of software supplied by equipment manufacturers include:

of a specially written applied program.
Management Support
The single most important factor in
the success of information systems activities is the extent of management
support. This is indicated by:

1. The reporting level of the information systems activity.
2. The salary scales of the activity.
3. The recognition that it is as important to improve the administrative
1. Reductions in time and cost to deand decision making activities of a
velop systems, in level of programcompany as it is to effectively deming skill, in effort to maintain prosign, manufacture and market prodgrams and in problems in installing
ucts. One of the primary functions
systems.
of an information systems activity
2. Improvements in quality of systems
is to improve the administrative and
by use of disciplined and methodidecision making processes. However,
cal methods in system design.
a key part of this responsibility rests
with the manufacturing, marketing
A standard criticism of general purand other activities. In addition, a
pose software is that it is less efficient
new system affects several functions.
than tailored programs. This may be
As
a result, top management must
truth in part. However, the generalsee
that these activities participate
ized systems characteristically are proeffectively in the development and
grammed with greater care than applied
administration of new systems.
programs and better programming techniques are used. As a result, a general- 4. The recognition that an information
systems activity incurs strategic costs
ized program may exceed the efficiency
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for development of systems. Top
management should require these
costs to be supported in a manner
similar to strategic costs of engineering or marketing. This includes
an analysis of costs incurred and
benefits expected. Correspondingly,
management should provide resources commensurate with the
benefits.
5. Evidence, to both information systems and general management personnel, of broad interest in information systems by top management.
This can be done in many ways.
One method of doing this is by
both attending and lecturing to some
of the classes which teach information systems.
6. Gaining a sufficient knowledge of
information systems techniques to
recognize points such as: (a) the
concept of a stored program computer, (b) types of software, (c) capabilities of EDPM equipment, (d)
effort required to develop and operate systems, (e) methodology to develop systems and (f) usefulness of
simulation and similar mathematical
techniques.

Design Methodology
Clearly the size and complexity of a
company strongly affect the types of information systems. This discussion is
based upon an organization of sufficient
complexity to have a need to gather,
store, process and report a significant
amount of data. Effective design methodology must:
1. Consider that systems are multifunctional. Since all major systems involve several functions, these functions must jointly participate in system development. For example, a
material system involves the purchasing, accounting, quality control, material administration, etc., functions.
2. Provide direction by top management. Systems must be authorized
and developed by direction of
top management. Top management
must coordinate the functions and
establish priorities for systems effort.
3. Have problem areas identified by
management. The major problem
area or areas of key significance must
be identified prior to systems effort.
For example, control of manufacturing costs may be especially im-

portant in a highly competitive
business. If a business requires large
inventories, inventory management
may be of key importance.
4. Identify important decisions. Management must formally identify the
important decisions they make and
the data which support these decisions. Management of each activity
must identify key areas of control
just as they are identified for information systems activities in this
discussion.
5. Define the method for delegation of
management authority. Management reports must be structured according to the ways management
makes decisions. Reports may show
results. This type of report is suitable
for a management that delegates
responsibility. Reports may show exceptions. This type of report is
suitable for management that participates in operating decisions.
6. Clearly establish action. Both administrative (clerical) and decision
making action should be clearly
identified. Except : r a limited number of listings needed for audit trails
and some activities which have high

GENERALIZED

SOFTWARE

Exhibit 2
REQUIRED FOR INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Transactions including:
1. Material purchases,
receipts and issues
2. Sales orders and
shipments
3. Personnel activity,
such as employment
and llabor distribution
1

Edit, audit
and balance
transactions

Update
master
files

Interrelate
master
files

Overall system
control and scheduling
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Select
ans sort
records

Summarize
and report
transactions
and master
file data

Administrative
reports such as
purchase orders,
cost data,
billings, etc.
Planning and
control reports
such as budget
reports, exception conditions,
etc.
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output data volumes, such as billing
and purchasing, the volume of
printed data should be very limited.
7. Establish a project leader. One individual should have overall responsibility for coordinating system development.
8. Provide a managed system organization. Generally accepted methods to
set schedules and monitor development of systems must be followed.
This may vary from PERT type
analysis, for large systems to oral
status reports for small systems. An
acceptable level of format for documentation, standards and internal
procedures is needed.
Planning for Information Systems
Another key to the success of an information systems activity is the quality of
master plan for development systems.
This includes:
1. A system plan showing the interrelationship of data among activities.
The design, manufacture, distribution and marketing of a product requires the movement of significant

amounts of data and materials
among the functions of the company. A module of the information
systems must recognize these relationships to avoid significant programming revisions as subsequent
system modules are developed.
A plan for development of resource
type systems. Effective systems are
developed around the major resources of the company. One way of
visualizing the information systems
structure of a company is through a
series of planes. One plane consists
of the resources of the company;
Others consist of information flows
to accomplish the activities of the
company. Exhibit 3 provides a summarized illustration of this concept.
Scope of systems. The system scope
includes several elements. Scope
includes the extent of divisional
participation in a multidivisional organization. Scope also includes the
extent of a system. For example, the
extent of vendor rating varies in a
material administration system based
on specific company requirements.
Phases for development. Modules of

systems normally should be installed
in a series of steps. Disruptions are
reduced by establishing phases of
effort. Resources may be too limited
to install a complete system module
at one time.
Requirements. The requirements for
each system module should be established. It is important to clearly
recognize the difference between a
system requirement and system
method. For example, a requirement
of a personnel administration system
may be to pay employees. A method
of meeting this requirement is by
issuing payroll checks.
Problems. Problems are closely associated with requirements in the
existing system. Since changes must
be made to reduce problems, these
areas should be identified. Problems
must be specific rather than general.
For example, a statement that scrap
losses are excessive is not adequate.
Rather, the problem might be defined as excessive scrap losses due to
inadequate interface between engineering changes and material purchases.

Exhibit 3
SUMMARY OF PART OF DATA FLOWS AND RESOURCE FILES FOR A MANUFACTURING ORGANIZATION

TYPICAL
SYSTEM NODULES
E n g i n e e r i n g - Ad mi n i s t r a t i o n
Ma r k s t i n g Ad mi n i s t r a t i o n F o r e c a s t i ng
Ma t e ri a l Admi n i s t r a t i o n Pnrc has ing
Ma n u f a c t u r i n g Ad mi n i s t r a t i o n Sc h e d uli ng
Ma n u f a c t u r i n g Ad mi n i s t r a t i o n Pr o d u c t i o n
Qua li t y Co nt ro l
W arehousi ng a nd D i s t r i b u t i o n
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7. Methods. After requirements are
specified and problems defined, the
methods should be established to
achieve the requirements and solve
the problems.
8. Benefits. The benefits from a new
module of a system should be expressed in terms clearly recognized.
Good examples of benefits are: (a)
lower product cost, (b) increased
market penetration and (c) improved product reliability. The preparation of a report is not a benefit of
a system. It is a method to provide a
benefit.
The preparation of a master systems
plan assists in:
1. Directing the systems, programming
and operations effort to those activities that provide maximum benefit
to the organization.
Assuring that systems developed provide significant benefits.
Supporting the staffing and EDP
equipment acquisition.
Providing management with a perspective of what is accomplished and
what is to be done.
5. Establishing the effort required by
various activities to improve administrative and decision making activities.
6. Providing goals. Every activity needs
targets.
Assuring that a system module being
developed will effectively interface
with present and planned systems.
Effective planning also encompasses
the internal activities of information systems. For example, the planning for information systems operations should:
1. Reduce the cost of operations.
2. Improve the reliability processing.
3. Improve service to users of operation
services.
Typical planning in operations serves
to increase multiprogramming, reduce
keypunch effort, provide automatic
scheduling of file retention, etc. Typical
planning in programming includes the
reduction programming effort by use of
generalized programs, etc.
EDP Equipment Configuration
Another key to the success of an information systems activity is correct equipment configuration. Configuration includes:
1. Adequacy for performance of systems or capability.
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2. The amount of equipment necessary
or capacity.
3. Supplier selection which involves
optimizing capability and capacity.

multiprogramming capability.
3. Running of tests or benchmarks to
evaluate the performance of software
and equipment.

The design level is established to:

Although techniques are being marketed for equipment selection, the most
effective methodology is running benchmarks or tests which fairly represent the
types of• systems being developed. In
addition to establishing cost and software performance, the running of tests
indicates operational ease, operating system performance and many other
factors.

1. Enable systems to be developed with
a minimum number of programs.
2. Permit real time processing when
this is a necessary methodology.
3. Provide adequate disk or other random access storage.
4. Provide sufficient core to enable general purpose software such as generalized select /sort/report writers to be
utilized.
5. Provide backup equipment or graceful degradation in the event of machine failure. Graceful degradation
is the ability to continue processing
after an equipment failure occurs.
The amount of equipment is, of
course, dependent upon the volume of
data to be processed, the size of files
and similar factors. Normally, an installation should not have more than two
computers. Two computers will provide
backup for real time systems. An alternate method to provide backup is by
providing a system which allows for
graceful degradation. As the volume of
work increases, an installation may increase the amount of core, the central
processing speed and the number of
input /output devices. For example, if an
installation has a standard for the design of systems which allows a program
to have a maximum of 100,000 bytes of
core, 350,000 bytes of core may be secured. This would allow 50,000 bytes
for the operating system and 300,000
positions for the simultaneous processing of three programs.
The performance of different EDP
suppliers varies materially. Significant
cost reduction and other benefits can be
secured by careful selection of equipment. The selection of equipment includes:
1. Gaining an understanding of supplier capability. This includes: status
and reputation of the supplier, contract terms, delivery schedules, support, families of computers, hardware characteristics, software, conversion aids, operational aspects,
physical planning, etc.
2. Advising the suppliers of the requirements the equipment must fulfill. This includes requirements for.
factors such as: families of computers, random access capability and

Organization
A consideration of information systems
organization involves:
1. The reporting level of the activity.
2. The proper balance, within a decentralized company, of corporate and
divisional responsibility.
Obviously, the greater the significance
of problems and greater contribution
that an information systems activity
makes to an organization, the higher
should be the reporting level. Since the
information systems activity usually
evolved in the financial organization,
because of payroll and similar factors,
this activity still reports to Finance in
many organizations. In most manufacturing companies the greatest benefit
occurs in nonfinancial areas. Accordingly, the head of any financial organization who does not devote a significant
amount of his time to information systems activities should recognize that he
is not meeting the needs of the company.
In a divisionalized organization, the
responsibilities for marketing, engineering, manufacturing, etc., normally are
assigned to divisions. Since the primary
purpose of an information systems activity is to improve the administrative
and decision making activities of these
functions, the information systems activity should, in general, be divisional ized. Systems and program personnel
function more effectively if they are directly associated with the organization
they are serving.
Information systems operations also
should be under divisional direction
when feasible. Administration of operations requires a proper balance between
services and costs. Having one head for
these activities compels these factors to
be balanced. Of course, multiprogramming and time sharing enable us to
couple the advantages of divisional re27

A system and programming status re- needed for personnel entering the inport. This report is similar to the prior formation systems activity. A full -time
report but sequenced by system and program of approximately eight weeks
programming personnel. This report will supply a foundation knowledge of
identifies personnel performance and information operations, systems and programming. The initial training topics
schedules load.
EDPM utilization. This report indi- include:
1. Coordinate and develop systems cates the amount and type of machine
Computer fundamentals
serving two or more divisions.
utilization. These data serve many pur- System
design techniques
2. Guide equipment selection.
poses. One purpose is to assist in effec- Assembly level programming
3. Develop generalized software.
COBOL
tive utilization.
4. Serve the corporate organization.
Rework. This report indicates the Operating systems
Standards
A third element in organization is to amount and cause of rework.
Procedures
Late delivery of reports by operations. Use of direct access devices
recognize that:
This report indicates the cause reports Formats for documentation of systems
1. All systems responsibility should rest delivered by operations were behind System controls
Operation activities of job setups, console
in one head. Systems responsibility schedule.
operation, etc.
includes manual procedures as well
Various other reports and studies may Mathematical techniques for solution of busias use of EDP equipment. A well be needed for special purposes. Unit ness problems
designed system should have a sig- cost data may help to identify areas
nificant impact on clerical proce- needing system attention. Data may be A training program should recognize
that the technology is rapidly changing
dures.
needed on emulation, multiprogram2. Systems, programming and compu- ming, etc. In all cases these reports are and that education is a continuous
ter operations should be under one very brief and a basis of performance is process.
head. Systems is broadly defined to established.
Conclusion
include techniques such as operaInformation systems activity is graduDevelopment of Personnel
tions research.
ally
becoming a managed activity. Plans
The design and implementation of an
for
systems are being expressed in
Internal Administration
information systems activity require
measurable
and meaningful terms such
The reporting structure is a key element close cooperation of the users of inforin the internal administration within the mation systems and information systems as:
information systems activity. The re- personnel. Accordingly, both the infor- I. Reduced product costs.
porting structure within the information mation systems personnel and the users 2. Improved product reliability.
systems activity should assist in assuring must have technical competence. A se- 3. Increased market penetration.
ries of courses are needed for various 4. More effective response to customthat:
ers.
1. Systems are developed on schedule groups:
1. Management. To provide an underand within budget.
The information systems activity
standing of capability, cost and should be effectively organized. Software
2. The costs of information systems
method for system development, etc. should be secured so that systems can
operations are minimized.
3. Data are processed correctly and on 2. Direct users. To provide an under- be developed and maintained with ministanding of what to expect from mum effort. Management must support
schedule.
systems and programming personnel, the activity and assist in seeing that
4. Systems are performing within exthe effort required to develop, in- effective methodologies are followed in
pectations.
5. Problem areas or areas subject to
stall and operate systems, controls, developing systems. An effective internal
how flexibility is developed, method- reporting structure is needed for meimprovement are identified.
ology for development, system ana- dium and large information systems acIn an organization where the inforlysis techniques, etc.
tivities. Good facilities and salary scales
mation systems manager cannot be per3. Internal control personnel. One of are needed to attract and retain good
sonally familiar with all activities, the
the most serious problems in infor- personnel. An effective training program
following key reports are needed.
mation systems is lack of reliability. is needed for all personnel. Data procA project or system status report. This
Accordingly, internal auditors should essing equipment must be selected to
report indicates the original and current
be taught, in addition to the general provide adequate capacity and system
scheduled completion date, original and
topics, controls for information sys- design level. Much of the systems accurrent cost estimates and similar data.
tems and audit methods.
tivity is concerned with the future, and
The report assists in keeping systems on
A comprehensive training program is planning is correspondingly important.
schedule and within cost.

sponsibility with cost advantages of centralized processing.
A corporate activity also serves an
effective purpose. In addition to normal
functional duties the corporate information systems activity should:
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Designing Business Systems for the
Third Computer Generation
ON -LINE PROGRAMS AND TIME - SHARING POTENTIALS CALL FOR A FUNCTIONALLY ORIENTED SYSTEM DESIGN

By-Charles R. Chodora
The recently released computer components which place emphasis on the
real -time on -line processing of data
have often been referred to as the "third
generation" of computer hardware. The
advantages of this new generation are
manifold. The actual realization of all
potentials of this new era will be the
primary responsibility of the third generation system analysts.
The first giant step forward in the
automatic processing of data was the
punched card and the associated "Electric Accounting Machines" ( EAM) .
The programs for these machines consisted of wired boards for the particular
processing requirement at hand. The
logic "wired" into the board was oriented to the processing of one relatively
small data processing requirement.
Then came the wonders of electronics
and the use of digital computers for
the processing of data. The first computer systems were characterized by use
of the vacuum tube. These "first generation" computers also introduced the
concept of the "stored program" which
substantially increased the computational and logic capabilities as a result of
the capacity to modify the sequence of
processing program instructions in accordance with computed results.
The "second generation" computers
introduced the use of transistors which
resulted in improved speed, reliability
and lower cost. Internal storage was
characterized by the use of magnetic
cores in most computer systems.
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

The technological nature of EAM and
the first two computer generations permitted the batch processing of business
data. That is, "events" (or "transactions") were accumulated for a period
of time (weekly, monthly, etc.) and
then submitted to the computer center
for processing. The appropriate program
was withdrawn from the library,
"plugged" into the computer and processed.
I would like to emphasize at this
point that the systems in these eras were
generally application oriented as a result
of the hardware capabilities available at

a
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the time. There was a natural tendency
on the part of all users to orient their
data processing requirements around
particular application needs.
Now we are in the third computer
generation. Within this generation,
should we take the same approach in
system design as we did in the first two
generations? Let's take a look at a few
characteristics of this new frontier.
Third generation computers are characterized by substantial changes in computer design and system philosophy.
These computers provide a wide variety
of input /output capabilities and place
increased emphasis on communications
and the transmission of data via communication lines. The resulting techniques of real -time' processing and the
availability of on -line2 transmission and
storage devices will certainly spark the
imaginations of the future users and the
system analysts responding to their
needs. As a result, users will be able to
obtain more timely "reporting" of cost
status than previously available in batch
processing techniques.
Although these capabilities will carry
a tremendous impact on the design of
future business data processing applications, they should not completely overReal -time processing concerns the on -line receipt
of data into a computer and applies to that span
of ti me when the dat a remai ns wi thi n and i s processed by the central processing unit. Write -off of
this data to some secondary storage device external
to the cent ral processing unit will mark the e nd of
the real-time processing span.
s The "A D P Glossary" compiled by the U.S. Bure au of t he Budget defi nes online as "descriptive
of a system and of the peripheral equipment or
device s in a syst em in which the operat ion of such
equipment is under control of the central processing
uni t."
1
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shadow another capability of this new
hardware generation. A potential is also
available for the system to rapidly transfer data (and programs) into and out of
the central processing unit, resulting in
a capability to intersperse component
actions within the same overall time
interval —often referred to as time -sharing. In other words, complete flexibility
is available to transfer small computer
programs into and out of the central
processing unit, thus providing a capability to orient system design and program construction to processing functions required in each application program.
Time - sharing should have an equal
effect on the future design of business
data processing applications. As mentioned previously, the first two generations encouraged the design of systems
that were application oriented. As a result of the on -line availability of programs and time-sharing potentials, the
third generation will permit system analysts to functionally orient their systems.
As illustrated in Exhibit 1, it appears
desirable that a second dimension be
considered in the third generation system design, i.e., that of common processing functions. To continue without
considering this new dimension would
result in redundant and wasted programming effort with potential of a non -integrated company system in total.
We have referred to this new concept
of system design as being functionally
oriented. Another possibly more descriptive way of explaining the concept
is, "to approach the problem of systems
design with an objective to isolate, define and develop functionally oriented
computer programs that can be applied
to and used by many business application areas.
Succeeding sections of this article will
elaborate upon one approach to system
design in the third computer generation.
Several examples will also be presented
of functionally oriented processing requirements that cut across several business application program requirements.
A substantial amount of detail will also
be provided regarding two common
processing functions, i.e., (1) editing of
transaction input and (2) validation of
accounting information.
Partitioning the Time -Share
System
In a time-share system, core storage can
be divided into several partitions. Exhibit 2 portrays the total system con30
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figuration of a partitioned time -share
system. In our example, one partition is
devoted to the Queued - Teleprocessing
Access Method (Q -TAM) which provides the system interface to the remote
telecommunication terminals. Another
partition is devoted to the processing
requirements of a Generalized Data
Entry Control System (G- DECS).
There are several real -time partitions
to process the real -time requirements of
each major organizational unit in the
company, i.e., finance, engineering,
manufacturing, procurement, etc. There
is also a batch partition which satisfies
the batch processing requirements of all
organizational units.
As indicated on Exhibit 2 and above,
G -DECS will have its own partition
and, as such, will be available for use
by all time -share data processing systems. Th e Common Audit (C -AUD)
System, on the other hand, is a requirement unique to the financial operations
data processing systems and, therefore,
will be resident in the finance real -time
partition. Review of Exhibit 2 will show
examples of how to use other common
functionally oriented techniques in system design, i.e., Common Balancing and
Control (C -BAC) and Common Inquiry and Response System (CIRS) .
C -BAC, CIRS and other functionally
oriented program packages will not be
covered. The balance of this article will
be devoted to more detailed explanations of the G -DECS and C -AUD real time program packages.
Ge n e r a l i z e d D a t a E n t r y C o n t r o l

System (G -DECS)
Since the concepts of the Generalized
Data Entry Control System (G-DECS)

a
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can be equally applied to all company
computer application programs, it is
portrayed in Exhibit 2 as a separate
partition and, as such, is available to'all
application programs. Its function is to
identify, edit, control and format data
which is "typed" into remote terminals.
To be more specific, the G -DECS program performs the following functions:
a. Identifies the application program
which will process the transaction (s).
b. Checks for proper access authorization.
c. Appends date and time of transaction entry to the record.
d. Edits each field to ensure that data
entered into the field is proper.
e. Reformats the record in accordance
with the needs of the concerned application program.
f. Counts the number of records in a
batch of transactions, and identifies
and accumulates control totals on
certain critical fields of information.
Performance of the above functions is
made possible by reference to "G -DECS
Dictionary Records" available on call by
the G -DECS program. Separate dictionary records are established for each transaction type entering the system, i.e.,
travel expense reports, reproduction requests, computer usage time tickets,
labor timecards, accounting adjustment
entries, etc. The terminal operator transmits an identification code which "calls
forth" the proper G -DECS dictionary
record for the succeeding transaction (s) .
A G -DECS dictionary record is established within the system by preparation
of a "G -DEC Dictionary Worksheet"
( Exhibit 3) which is keypunched and
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1968

processed into the system as a G -DEC
dictionary record available on call as
necessary. Normally, all information
blocks would be filled out by the programmer or system analyst; however, for
purposes of this article, only those portions of the worksheet that will be the
subject matter of subsequent discussion
have been completed.
The previously listed functions of the
G-DEC System are fulfilled as follows:
Identification of Application Program
—The "receiving program ID" portion
of the G -DEC dictionary record identifies the application .program that processes the transaction (s) "covered" by
the G -DEC dictionary record. In the
example on Exhibit 3, "IF280" is the
ID of the concerned application program.
Checks for Proper Access Authorization —Each on -line remote terminal is
uniquely identified within the system.
This system provided terminal ID is
compared to the terminal ID's reflected
in the "Authorized Organizations/Stations" portion of the G -DEC Worksheet (or, more accurately, dictionary
record) . If a "match" is not found, the
terminal operator is immediately advised
that he (or more appropriately, the

terminal) is not an authorized user of
the transactions represented by that dictionary record.
Addition of Date and Time of Transaction Entry—The G -DEC System references a "calendar" (for Julian date)
and a "clock" (for hours- minutes -seconds) available to it in the time -share
system. As a result, date and time of
transaction entry are added to the record.
Edit of Record Fields —Each field of
all transactions would be edited by the
G -DEC System in accordance with the
requirements defined in the dictionary
record. In addition to checks for proper
size ( i.e., maximum number of characters allowed for each field) , type (alphabetic, numeric or alphanumeric) and
excess number of fields for the transaction, certain other more detailed checks
are also available in the G -DEC System.
When a transmitted field of data fails
to meet its edit code requirements, the
terminal operator is immediately notified.
Examples of fifteen different edit
codes are listed in Appendix. A very
powerful processing tool is available as
a result of this edit capability and its
associated "edit code" parameter.

Let's refer to Exhibit 3 for a few
examples. The first field for transactions
represented by this G -DEC dictionary
record is facility. This is a numeric field
( picture type — "9 ") is one character
long (picture size — "O1 ") and is a
"must have" field (edit code 'B ").
Additionally, only a "1" or a "5" may
be "typed" into this field at the terminal
as indicated in the parameter for edit
code 'B ".
The second field (field position in02) is organization number. This is an
alphanumeric field (picture type — "X ")
is four characters long (picture size —
"04") and the field "must have exact
number of characters ", (edit code "C ")
i.e., four characters must always be entered. This field has another edit code
also associated with it, i.e., edit code
"E." ( See Appendix for an explanation
of edit code "E".)
Further review of Exhibit 3 and relating the indicated codes to Appendix
will reveal other edits performed on input fields 3 thru 8. Notice that the last
two fields do not have a "field position
in" number. These are system - provided
data that are automatically added to the
record through use of edit code "F ", insert a constant, i.e., a "4" will auto-
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matically be "emitted" for transaction
code and three blanks for filler (if field
type were numeric, three zero's would
have been emitted as filler).
Reformating of Record Input —
Transactions arc keyed into the terminal
by the operators in "free- form "; that is,
a continuous string of characters as in a
normal typing function. Field separators
( i.e., commas) are used to define the
end of each field in the record. The
fields are transmitteo in a sequence
which is logical (or natural) to the
format of the source document. The
G -DEC System then expands these
fields (by filling with blanks or zeros, as
appropriate) to the required "picture
size" and also resequences them as necessary for application program processing, i.e., field position "in" versus field
position "out."
Record Counts /Control Totals—This
capability of the G -DEC System specifically applies when a series of records is
typed into a remote terminal. Each
record is counted by the G -DEC System. The "total record count" is automatically typed at the terminal, for
control purposes, at the end of the
transmission (EOT).
Through use of edit code "G ", a
capability is also available to accumulate
control totals on any field within each
of the transmitted records. These "system generated" totals are also returned
to the terminal at EOT time for balancing to adding machine tapes that will
have been previously prepared for the
same fields by the originating organization.
The procedures explained above are
pictorially displayed in Exhibit 4. The
first thing typed at the terminal is the
G -DECS ID ( i.e., @ F302) followed
by carriage return, C /R. You will note
that information is typed at the remote
terminal in a natural sequence from the
source document.
After a series of transactions has been
entered the "end of transmission"
(EOT) key is depressed. The G -DEC
System then processes the records using
the particular G -DEC dictionary record
extracted from the disk file.
A message is then sent back to the
terminal (refer to the "terminal response" portion of Exhibit 4) informing
the operator of:
1. The total records entered (5) , accepted (4) and rejected (1) .
2. Identification of the record (s) rejected and reasons for rejection.
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3. Date and time of terminal entry.
Control totals were also accumulated
for input fields 6, 7, and 8 as called
by edit code G associated with these
fields as portrayed in Exhibit 3.
Exhibit 4 also shows what the record
now looks like within the system after
G -DEC processing. You will note that:
1. A constant "4" was inserted into the
first field of each record.
2. Three positions of filler were provided as the next field.
3. Each record is in a fixed ("column arized") format.
4. The fields of each record are in a
sequence required by the application
program (see Exhibit 3 for "in" vs.
"out" sequence) .
5. In record number 5 the third input
field was skipped when typed at the
terminal as evidenced by two successive field separators, i.e., commas.
Input field # 3 has a duplicate edit
code ( "E ") which has caused the
date (10/12/67) of the previous
record to be duplicated into this
field of the record out of G -DECS.
The duplicated field, i.e., 101267, is
highlighted by an arrow in the For mated Records for Application Program section of Exhibit 4.
C om m on A u d i t ( G A UD ) System
The objective of this system is to validate certain accounting information
(i.e., accounting charge number, organization number, etc.) processed over
remote terminals into the Time -Share
System. GAUD also provides a capability to immediately notify the transmitting terminal of any invalid accounting information received. When auditing the transaction(s), GAUD references a Master Audit File which includes all valid (authorized) accounting
charge numbers, organization numbers,
etc., which are established for accounting distribution purposes.
As mentioned previously, the GAUD
Program will be processed in the financial operations real -time partition and,
as such, will be available to any financial
operations application program. If validation by C -AUD is required, the transaction record formatted by the G -DEC
System is passed by G -DECS to the
GAUD System.
The data to be validated by GAUD
must be formatted into a specific portion of the record called the "C -AUD
Prefix" (refer to Exhibit 5) . Within
this prefix, specific positions are pro-

vided for data which is to be compared
to the Master Audit File for validation
purposes. In order for GAUD to validate the information, G -DECS must
place the information in the appropriate
portion of the GAUD prefix. The CAUD prefix also includes certain fields
which provide flexibility in the processing ramifications of GAUD, i.e., audit
by -pass, history by -pass, and notification.
Two "work areas" are also reserved
within the GAUD prefix for use by
GAUD, i.e., invalid rate code and suspense code.
In summary, there are ten distinct
fields of information within the GAUD
prefix. The processing related to each
of these fields is as follows:
Element code defines the nature of
the cost represented by the transaction.
Seven different element codes are available to represent: (1) labor costs, (2 )
travel costs, ( 3) reproduction costs, (4 )
computer usage costs, (5) material
costs, (6) vendor costs and (7) other
costs. The Master Audit File has the
flexibility to "open" any one or all of
these element codes for each accounting
charge number in the file.
Accounting charge number identifies
costs as to their purpose, i.e., a particular task within a contract, construction
of fixed assets, test and check -out activities, etc. The GAUD System will
compare the transaction accounting
charge number to the Master Audit
File. If a match is not made, the charge
number is invalid. If a match is accomplished, GAUD will then check the
status symbol for the particular cost element (element code) in the Master
Audit File. If the status symbol for the
indicated element code is blank, it indicates the effort represented by the
charge number was never "opened" for
the indicated cost element and, therefore, is invalid. If the status symbol is
active (A) for the particular cost element, GAUD will identify this as a
valid charge number. If the status symbol is history (H) it indicates that the
charge number was previously opened
for the particular element code reflected
in the transaction. However, effort has
progressed to a point where the costs
represented by the element code are no
longer appropriate. As a result, GAUD
will identify the transaction as invalid.
Reference should also be made to the
"audit -by- pass" and "history by- pass"
capabilities of GAUD to be explained
later.
Departments —The Master Audit File
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1968
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also includes a listing of all departments
within the company. Each department
includes a status symbol of active (A)
or history (H) . GAUD will validate department numbers as follows:

C -AUD prefix is limited to a seek
and match to the Master Audit File.
Status symbol is not checked; if a
match is found, the department is
identified as valid.

Dept. ## 1—The number included in
this portion of the GAUD prefix will
entail a "match" to the Master Audit
File and a check of its status symbol,
i.e., if active (A) considered valid; if
history (H) considered invalid, subject to the "by- pass" capabilities referred to above and to be explained
later.
The department record in the Master
Audit File has another piece of information used by GAUD, i.e., organization type. Organization type
can be a "1" (which indicates the
department is "direct" and as such,
can perform and charge their labor
to direct requirements) or a "2"
(which indicates an "indirect" department and, as such is not permitted to charge direct accounting
charge numbers) . If GAUD finds
this relationship of charge number/
organization type to be improper
(i.e., an indirect organization charging their labor costs to a direct charge
number), the transaction will be
identified as invalid.
Dept. # 2—C -AUD's check of data
formated into this portion of the

Rate code —C-AUD will attempt to
match the transaction rate code to a rate
code in the Master Audit File. If a
match is not found, the rate code is
invalid. GAUD will also check the dollar rate established for the rate code and
if zero or blank, will identify it as such.
Audit by -pass code provides a capability to by -pass the audit of certain
transactions within a series of records.
This is accomplished by keying in a
by -pass audit code at the time of terminal entry. This provides the capability
to by -pass all GAUD validations of certain transactions entered at the terminal.
This may be required for accounting
adjustments to a charge number which
has been closed and deleted from the
Master Audit File. Normally, this bypass capability should be rigidly controlled and restricted to usage only by
the cost accounting organization.
History by -pass. If a history by -pass
indicator is entered at the terminal,
transactions will be accepted as valid if
the related status symbols for accounting charge number and /or dept. # 1 art
active (A) or history (H) . This is very
similar to the audit by -pass capability but

is more restrictive, i.e., the charge number and /or organization number must
be in the Master Audit File, however, is
accepted as valid even though its status
symbol may be history (H) .
Notification code provides a capability to immediately notify the originating terminal of any transactions
found to be invalid by C -AUD, thus
providing the originator the capacity to
immediately correct any errors. This is a
real -time response returned to the terminal at EOT (End of Transmission)
time. The response is a brief message explaining to the terminal operator which
portion of the transaction was invalid.
(See example on opposite page.)
Invalid rate code is a work area provided in the C -AUD prefix for use by
the GAUD System. GAUD initializes
this area at zero. After GAUD completes processing, this field could be a
zero, 1 or 2 as a result of C AUD's
checks of the rate code in the transaction record:
0 Rate code is valid
1 Transaction's rate code not in Master Audit File
2 The dollar rate for the transaction's
rate code is zero or blank.
Suspense code is a work area provided
for C -HUD's use also and is initialized
at zero by C -AUD. As charge number,
dept. #I and /or dept. # 2 are validated

Exhibit 5
C -AUD PREFIX
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TERMINAL MESSAGE
ELM CODE
DEP -1
DEP -2
IND ORG CHG DIR CL

CHG NO
RT CD
& RT

EXPLANATION
Invalid Element Code
Invalid Dept. #I
Invalid Dept. #2
Invalid because Indirect Organization is charging a Direct Accounting Charge Number
Invalid Accounting Charge Number
Invalid Rate Code
Dollar Rate for Rate Code is zero
or blank
etc.

by C -AUD, this suspense reason code is
revised as a result of any invalid data
located. Any one of several suspense reason codes could result after C -AUD
processing.
The suspense reason code and the invalid rate code remains in the record
when it is forwarded to the application
program. The application program then
has complete flexibility as far as disposition of the records passed to it by CAUD.

C

Conclusion

We have tried to present the functional approach to system design in the
third computer generation. Two specific
examples of functionally oriented software packages were also explained in
significant detail.
There are many other functional
processing requirements that are common to all application program processing requirements. It is incumbent that
the system analyst devote his full resources, talents and ingenuity in identifying these "common" requirements.
If these routines are identified, programmed and made available in the
system, it could prove to be a big step
toward on -line programming by accounting -type personnel.
APPENDIX
EDIT CODE EXPLANATIONS
CODE
EXPLANATION
A No Edit. The field affected will
not be edited except for checks as
to the type of characters keyed
into the field (i.e., numeric vs.
alphabetic) and the number of
characters keyed into the field.
B Must Have. Data must be keyed
into the affected field. Additionally, the parameter for the edit
code can define specific characters
that are acceptable for entry into
the field; all others will not be acM A N A G E M E N T ACC OU NTIN G/ SE PTEM BE R, 1968

D

E

F

G

ceptable for the field.
Must Have Exact Number of
Characters. The exact number of
characters provided for the entire
field must be keyed into the terminal, e.g., if the affected field is
10 characters long, 10 characters
must be entered into the field; 9
would fail this edit requirement.
The edit parameter can also define specific characters that are
acceptable for the field as explained for edit code "B" above.
If Present, Must Have Exact
Number of Characters. Although
the field is not a "Must Have"
field, if data is entered in the field,
it must have the exact number of
characters provided for that field
as explained for edit code "C"
above.
Automatic Field Duplication.This
edit code provides the capability
to duplicate data entered in a field
of a record into the sable field of
subsequent records when a batch
of records will be entered.
Insert Constant. This edit code
provides the capability for the system to insert a specific character
(defined in the edit's parameter)
into the affected field, thus reducing the "typing" burden of the
terminal operator.
Accumulate. This edit code will
cause the accumulation of data in
the affected field (s) of all records
in a batch and is used for control
purposes. Totals for the affected
fields will be typed by the terminal at EOT ( End of Transmission) time. The operator will then
normally balance the total(s)
typed by the terminal to adding
machine tape totals of the same
field (s) previously prepared by fhe
originator.

H Decimal Point Adjuster. This edit
code provides the program the capability to properly locate the
decimal point in numeric fields of
data.
I Sequence Numbering. This edit
causes the emission of a sequential
number in the field indicated. The
parameter for this edit defines the
starting number to be used and
the amount by which it is to be
incremented for each record.
J Dictionary Indexing by Transaction Code. This edit code allows
the user to specify the G -DEC
Dictionary record to be used by
transmission of a two digit transaction code. This provides the capability to enter multiple record
types following a single GDEC
header. The parameter for this
edit relates each transaction code
to a specific G -DEC Dictionary
record.
K Ranging. Data entered into the
affected field must fall within a
specific range for this edit code.
For example, edit code K with a
parameter of 1 -5 would "accept"
any entry from 1 through 5; however, would reject a character outside this range (e.g., 7) as invalid.
M Self Checking Digit. Included in
the field is a "self checking" digit
to ensure accurate entry of data
into the field. The data entered in
a field with this edit code is "computed" to see if the result is in
agreement with the "check digit"
transmitted.

EXAMPLES OF NOTIFICATION CODE

P Validate to Other than Specified.
Data entered in this field must be
characters) other than those
specified in the edit code parameter.
Q Insert Date(s). This edit code will
cause the insertion of a date in the
field affected. The parameter
identifies the date to be inserted,
i.e.,
1— Calendar Date
2— Julian Date
3— Manufacturing Date
4 —Day of Week
R Insert Time. This edit code will
cause the insertion of current time
into the affected field. The parameter identifies the configuration of
time to be inserted, i.e.,
1. Hours — Minutes
2. Hours — Minutes — Seconds
3. Hours — Hundredths of Hours
35

Computerized Financial Data Banks:
Transition from
Conceptual Design to Reality
INCREASED UTILIZATION OF COMPUTERS VIA WELL PLANNED AVAILABILITY OF STORED DATA
By Michael R. Tyran
The major dilemma facing financial
management today is the lack of
planned capability to effectively "harness," interpret and control the volume
of financial data that is generated within a business complex —a necessary requirement for their decision- making,
planning and controlling processes. The
sophisticated generation of equipment
in their possession today has, in many
instances, only compounded this problem. The major cause of this undesirable situation is that insufficient time,
planning and direction were expended
in their initial mechanically oriented
pursuits for developing an overall master
plan to achieve sophisticated information processing in the advanced computer era. Greater consideration of acknowledgement should have been given
to the following computer operation

associated aspects:

flow mechanically which would perform the accumulating, recording,
updating, summarizing and reporting without continual physical surveillance.
g. How should data be organized in the
storage files for instant and specific
retrievals.
The solution of the overall problem is
no small task to achieve but it is of
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computer files.
What compressed identities could be
more effectively used in the input
process.
Wh a t controls were necessary to
police the reliability of data from
source of input to the eventual output.
How could processing be reduced by
multi -file updates and program
streamlining.
How should manual data processing
be integrated with the mechanical
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complete network of information
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data reliability and effective equipment
utilization in generating the type of
financial information processing required to meet financial management
needs. Unfortunately, even today, it is
difficult to find a clearly defined and
universal expression of the objectives,
operation and significance of the direction to take in accomplishing the above
goals. Each organization has its own
peculiarities which must be overcome in
order to follow a common pattern for
attaining the ultimate in computerized
data processing by using advanced technologies.
The author discusses in this article a
concept or process that is being planned
and developed at the Pomona Division
of General Dynamics. It can be readily
adaptable to the needs of most organizations in their transition effort from the
current semi - mechanical environment to
tha t char acter ized by complete au toma-

tion of information processing. The
data bank concept of storage and integration of financial information is not
new in theory, but the mechanical application and practice is still a challenging endeavor which requires and must
reflect proper and specific planning.
Defining the Problem
The prevalent mechanical data processing in most organizations has followed the universal pattern of mechanizing satellite programs of immediate
need rather than to, first, consider the
aggregate requirements. The initial dilemma was further fostered and perpetuated by the continual upgrading of
equipment capability and changes in
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1968

ing"

programming and teleprocessing techniques. Many organizations had barely
achieved a basic understanding of the
initial mechanical ramifications before
they were exposed or faced with the new
equipment and technologies. To, support this opinion, it is noted that many
organizations, even today, are utilizing
their advanced equipment by "emulatprograms from their old environment to the new machines; for example,
7010 equipment programs are being
"emulated" on the latest 360 computers. In essence, this means that in
spite of the added equipment capability,
the computer applications and programs
are "out of step" in reflecting a new
and more scientific approach to the information processing function.
Exhibit 1 illustrates a typical situation
wherein 7010 programs were virtually
transferred from one equipment capability to another without modification
or "streamlining." The chart also demonstrates what could have been done in
the transition process had time and
planning been available.
In summary, updated versions of system procedures and programming tech-

niques have not kept pace with the current "giant strides "' made in computer
technology and capability. There is certainly some justification for an organization's position or attitude under prevail ing circumstances. Immediate needs
have to be satisfied and time is of the
essence in their change -over process. In
addition, it is difficult to find qualified
technicians of the type required to. assist
the organizations in "bridging the gap"
in the state of the art progression. However, all this does not negate or excuse
the fact, that, in many instances, the
transition progress has been exceedingly
slow, neglected and occasionally prohibitive in some organizations who may
still be using modified EAM oriented
processes on their advanced computers.
Determining the Needs
In order to portray what is needed to
effect a completely automated information system using the latest techniques
or aids, let us refer to Exhibit 2 which
is an overview flowchart of the requirements and processing involved. This is
a generalized chart which embodies the
major characteristics of a sophisticated

information processing system. A "Property, Plant and Equipment" model is
used in demonstrating the operation of
this system.
The on -line activity commences with
the extraction of data directly from the
source document and its input into the
system via a mechanical input /output
device. This is done by the organization
concerned with specific data development or use. As data is entered into the
computer's teleprocessing control system, it is first tested for input validity
and then transferred to the program's
data collection system.
The initial processing consists of updating the master file records with the
daily transactions' input. This index file
contains the detailed item records pertinent to specific subsystem banks of cost
accumulation and reporting such as
labor, material, property, oveihead, etc.
The basic use of the file record is then
to update the subsystem involved which,
in turn, is the source of the information
used for other data banks which contain
related summary information.
In order to provide organizations with
advice as to the computer- accepted rec-

Exhibit 1
TYPICAL EXAMPLE OF CURRENT INFORMATION PROCESSING PROBLEMS
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direct access capability to and from
the computer.
The transaction rules should be carefully formulated in order that varied
data manipulation criteria can be
met. The instruction indicators must
represent the action required.
The audit check ensures that invalid
data will not enter the system. All
input data are audited for record
content and the proper transaction
code. The data will be further audited as to other approriate and related associations — journal voucher
number, general ledger account, contract number and organization, etc.
Exhibit 3 indicates examples of the
type of audit criteria considered in
this model.
Another audit will be performed at
the terminal station by the operator.
As the information is "keyboarded"
into the system, a print -out of the
input data can be visually checked
on the terminal device printer. Pre planned precautions in the form of
auditing parameters will definitely
pay dividends in data reliability assurance.

ords for subsequent processing, a daily
listing of the transactions is mechanically prepared and relayed back to the
organization via their station printer. It
is noted that daily input will be held in
auxiliary storage until processing time is
available on the computer. The actual
processing and the listing of the input
will probably occur "after working
hours" in order to provide timely online inquiry capability during "shift
hours."
Exhibit 2 also indicates that specific
on -line information can be retrieved directly from the various banks through
the remote terminal inquiry procedure.
The response is practically instantaneous, in spite of other inquiries that can
be occurring at the same time.
Basic Considerations
In the design and development of the
model shown on Exhibit 2 to exploit
this program, there are certain governing criteria which must be considered
in each processing phase. Exhibit 3 indicates the considerations involved
which are highlighted as follows:
1. The input /output device must have

4. Processing commands control data
manipulation within the system and
should encompass the gamut of
what must be done by the teleprocessing unit when it receives the
instruction to perform the required
functions of adding, deleting, changing and retrieving records.
5. Accumulated work order information is translated into journal voucher entries which, in turn, govern
the flow of costs to various summary records. These files are then
used to update the subsystem banks.
The subsystem "property" records
are used in the model depicted in
Exhibit 3.
6. Subsystem records are utilized for
updating various and pertinent summary files. As shown on this exhibit,
the summary banks are used for
various reporting requirements and
also are available for direct access
inquiries.
7. A definite characteristic of this overall information processing system is
that all pertinent records are updated simultaneously and are available "on call."
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Significance of Data Entry
The basic ingredient in any information
system is the data which is to be used
in the various records. In the past, there
was little emphasis placed on establishing an effective and timely means of obtaining information mechanically and
directly from its source. In today's environment, however, this has become a
significant need . Irrespective of the
speed of your computer processing, if
there is a long lead time or an inefficient
means of entering data into the system,
the timeliness of the whole reporting
system is affected.
Using an on -line input /output device
makes it possible for the organization to
extract the initial or raw data directly
from the source document and enter it
on your "keying" device which, in turn,
transmits it to the computer. This eliminates the need for transcribing this
information into various summary registers and transmittal forms for eventual
keypunching into the system. It also
precludes the need for the physical
movement of documents to and from
the data processing center as well as the

steps involved in transfering information from cards to tape and disc file
records.
In today's environment, as individual
items of information are developed,
they are often entered on consolidating
worksheets before the keypunch activity
can occur. In the completely automated
system, it is necessary that a clear definition or rules be established, detailing
the specific information required in the
system and the sequence of its entry.
The data are entered singly into the
program through the on -line device,
merged and integrated with the other
associated information through the program manipulating process. Program file
locations are assigned to the input record in order that the computer program
can process this information in the pre planned manner. The teleprocessing
monitor governs the placement of the
information in its appropriate location.
The immediate and major advantage of
the input device is that the information
is transmitted into the system mechanically and, at the same time, this data is
listed on your printer for visual check
and file reference.

Da t a Id e n t i fi e r s
In order to control effectively the flow of
cost data from its source through its
processing needs and storage, it is necessary that a table of identifiers be constructed. All of the pertinent and related identification to the data element
would be stored in the master file record
for reference. As an example data entered with a work order number could
be identified in the file record to its
associated task, contract, work performing organization, type of customer
(commercial or military), type of product (missiles or shells), etc.
The greatest benefit of this coding is
that it allows for immediate mechanical
identification and processing needs. The
identifiers also provide for "compression " of input data flow required into
the system. An account number input
inquiry, for example, could identify and
retrieve a complete record with all the
pertinent data required. As noted on
Exhibit 4, identifiers have been indicated for transactions and data file banks.
Mas t er Fi le Recor d
This file contains the basic record for
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Exhibit 4
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any program in the system. It stores all
the detail required for updating the intermediate (subsystem) and summary
data banks. The information is manipulated in various ways in order to "feed"
the other files; however, it also serves the
purpose of maintaining the accumulated
detail of each transaction and the status
of the item record.
Exhibit 5 illustrates the composition
of a "property" file record. It is noted
on this exhibit that all pertinent data
relative to identifying and reporting
property information is contained in this
file. The number for each designation
indicates the order of storage and allows
for its immediate specific access.
The establishment of this record provides the means for flexibility in reporting in that property information
can be summarized and printed by account number, purchase order, location,
facility designation, etc. The information contained in this file is updated
daily, weekly, monthly, etc., based on
the individual record requirement need.
Similar type master records will be developed for the detailed labor distribu40

PURCHASE
ORDERS

tion by work order, status of individual
pay and travel advances, vendor detail,
purchase orders, etc.
Defining Data Integration
This process includes the organization
of all financial data into a composite
and accessible overall computer file
which can be used for multi - purpose
summations and reporting. All levels
of data detail, irrespective of its individual significance, must be considered
in order to effect their integration into
the total information collection and reporting system.
Computer processing programs must
be designed which will properly direct
the flow of each data item to its appropriate location and other data collection banks for its planned ultimate
use. All related information must be
logically associated in the detail and
summary files for ease in on -line retrieval or batch (scheduled) reporting.
The identification and establishment of
related systems using the same source
data is a must if the "composite whole"

RECORD
LOCATIONS

SCHEDULE
LOCATIONS

concept is to succeed in achieving complete data automation.
Data Integration Considerations
The development of the data integration requirements follows basically the
same pattern as the design of any computerized system. The specifics of multi information usage must be determined,
the record sources identified, the appropriate means of data entry into the
system resolved and the manipulation
needs for processing the data defined.
The predetermined output is the major
determinant of the type and degree of
data integration required.
To achieve integrated financial data
in the sense of today's computer advances necessitates the utilization of terminal input /output devices in order to
capture the information at its source, as
discussed previously. The file information must be merged and combined
with extreme caution so that proper association and location will be compatible
in the integrating process.
Exhibit 6 indicates the data flow in
the integrated process. As you will note,
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/SEPTEMBER, 1968
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various accounting organizations will input information from the source documents as shown to the master file records. Here, through a series of identities,
the information will be sorted into subsystem data banks. As indicated previously, this information will then be
sorted into intermediate and final summary banks. This exhibit also indicates
that various other ledger type reports
and special summaries will result as the
information flows between the various
file records.
The associated programming effort to
code the requirements for information
integration should give emphasis to establishing common routines for editing,
auditing, sorting, file processing and report generating. A standard transaction
format would be designed to facilitate
the input of data from the various terminal locations so that the proper records can be serviced.
The major objective of the format is
to establish uniformity in "calling" for
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTI VG /SEPTEMBER, 1988

DATA INTEGRATION FILE UPDATES

the appropriate manipulation or reporting routines. Compatible file record
fields must be assigned to the data record header (type of information to be
selected) , the edit /audit process need,
the batch or real time action required,
the priority code designation and the
transaction code.
T h e In t e g r a t e d D a t a F i l e R e co r d
The integrated record contains all of
the pertinent information associated
with its ultimate use. It is at varying
levels of summary and time span. This
record would hold a combination of
labor, material and other costs as would
be pertinent to the retrieval of the
record complete with all elements of
cost as in the case of contract status
reporting or generating a profit and loss
schedule.
The accumulation of information in
the computerized integrated file yields
multi - purpose results to t h e user. Tile
extent of the capability is dependent

upon the programmed needs. This record will provide the following capabilities:
1. Status of records in the detailed
master and summary files is available
on call with respect to both the
actuals and budget.
2. Online audit of all transactions
processed into the system can be accomplished— visual checks at the terminal station and through internal
computer audit programs will be
based on predetermined parameters.
3. The file records can be adjusted, deleted or added, based on a transaction code input which directs the
action to be performed.
4. Varying summaries of the detail records are available on a time element
basis (daily, weekly, monthly, etc.) .
5. Automatic exception reporting is
available through programmed parameters signifying the limits which
govern the reporting.
6. Budget comparisons with the calcu41

lated variances are available at all
levels of reporting.
The complete "audit trail" is available for each input item from its
document source entry to its final
inclusion in various detailed and
summary record files.
The Role of Data Banks
A data bank is defined as a predetermined file record location which serves
as a depository for information. There
are various levels of data banks, dependent upon their need and usage.
For example, a detailed or incremental
labor bank would contain current data
such as hours and dollars relative to an
employee, organization, contract, product line, etc., and associated possibly to
similar budget and /or forecast data.
The data banks can be constructed
in terms of individual or collective elements (as in the case of data integration) in order to achieve minimal extraction requirements. The banks must
contain sufficient flexibility so that
changes can be readily made to the data

contained therein. The banks are the
source for multi- reporting purposes and
should be tailored to reflect the needs
of reporting. Periodically, a "purging"
process is required to delete from the
file records that information which was
initially indicated as temporary or which
has served its current reporting needs.
This data can then be transferred to
auxiliary files for predetermined storage
periods and possible future reference or
audit.
The data banks are updated through
the sort processing of the detailed input. The value of the incoming record
is added to each data bank level signified
in its identity. Some records do not
contain all levels of activity (contract,
work order, class, function, segment,
etc.). The vaules are also added to control totals for summary reporting.
The time span accumulations are also
considered in the update process. Totals
would be derived for the week (in the
case of daily activity), month, year -todate and inception -to -date. Incremental
values used in the update process would

generally be temporary and then transferred to microfilm for permanent storage and reference.
The "cumulative processing" activity
for the different data bank levels would
be programmed to accept detailed incremental input from the terminal operation source and convert it to its
computer designated table identifications in the master file record (work
order number assigned to a contract
number, type of product, etc.).
Communication On -line
Exhibit 7 indicates examples of the
communication between the terminal
station and the computer in terms of
inquiry and response. As indicated on
the chart, to establish the initial record,
the transaction message would be
"016A" and then followed by the specifics. "01" designates initial record, "6"
is for a partial input and "A" identifies
the file record concerned. Also entered
in this input will be the specific item
locations and other appropriate information such as description, cost, etc.

Exhibit 6
INTEGRATED ONLINE DATAFLOW
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The computer's response to this transaction will be that the "record has been
entered." If invalid data is used, the
computer will reject the input and output a message "data invalid—reenter."
In order to retrieve a master file
record, the only data identifiers required
would be the corporate asset number
and general ledger account number. The
output is shown in Example II on Exhibit 7.
To change a master record will, again,
require the data identifiers for corporate asset and account numbers, along
with the specific item of information to
be changed. This is illustrated by Example III.
To retrieve the total property record
which resides in the subsystem bank,
the only data identifiers required would
be the general ledger account number
and file assignment.
If the complete record is retrieved, it
will indicate by time span —gross costs,
depreciation and book value by time
periods as shown in Example IV.

It is also possible to go directly -to
the summary bank files in order to obtain a single item of information. The
identification to the information required will be through a record location
assignment. In essence, this means that
the information will be identified to a
specific financial report, and then further
by line and column numbers. In the
example, the identifier S200704 signifies
the following: "S200" stands for Standard Report 200; "70" is the line number
on the schedule and "4" is the column
location of the information. Every item
of data on the schedule is identified in
this manner for ease in file access. Data
input as illustrated in Example 7 provide
the capability to reject invalid data and
identify this information specifically to
the specific item of rejection —for example, account, facility code, organization, etc.
The major task in on -line communication is the appropriate construction
of locater tables which will allow you to

retrieve specific information directly
from its file location.

Sum ma r y
Establishing the various criteria discussed in this article will give you the
capability to monitor your input at the
source of entrance, decrease the time
span of data submission and processing,
provide you with computer controls
throughout the system, and make possible the organization of your data for
on -line retrieval or scheduled reporting.
This mode of operation will decrease the
amount of paper handling and voluminous output thorugh the data exception processing. It will provide you the
details or summaries as required. Properly programmed, it will decrease the
amount of physical control required to
monitor information from its source to
the final usage output.
A carefully planned and systematic
approach to computerized financial data
banks and their integration will yield
you the benefits of a sophisticated management reporting system and will be
the basis for adequate justification of
effective utilization of your equipment
capabilities.

Exhibit 7
COMMUNICATION ONLINE WITH COMPUTER

INPUT
RESPONSE

Oil 6A

001 - 6 7 8 2 9

1. ESTABLISH INITIAL RECORD
-52110
003

002 - 2 6 0 0 3

0 0 7 —D ESK

0 1 1 - 0 2 0 0 . SO

►ETC

RECORD ENTERED
II. RETRIEVE MASTER RECORD

MESSAGE
RESPONSE

045A

61829

CORP ASSET NO.
67829

26003
G/L ACCT
26003

WORK ORDER
5210

ITEM
DESK

GROSS COST
0200.50

III. CHANGE MASTER RECORD
6 7 8 2 9 ' 2 6 0 0 3

MESSAGE

036A

RESPONSE

GROSS COST FOR CORP ASSET NO. 67829 NOW READS 0190.2(i

011

0190 .25

IV. RETRIEVE PROPERTY TOTAL RECORD FOR EQUIPMENT A/C
MESSAGE

0 4 5 I l l 21510 0 0
ACCT 25000 EQUIPMENT
WEEK
MONTH
YEAR TO DATE

RESPONSE

GROSS COST
00600.00
05050.25
32000.10

DEPREC
000.00
050.50
680.20

BOOK VALUE
00600.00
04999.15
31320.50

V. RETRIEVE TOTAL PROPERTY OWNED FROM BALANCE SHEET
MESSAGE
RESPONSE

046 10

5 2 0 0 1 04

ACTUAL OWNED PROPERTY VALUE 3,202 (ROUNDED TO 000'S IN SKED RECORD)
VI. RETRIEVES
� BUDGET VS TOTAL EXPENDITURES FROM RECORD

MESSAGE
RESPONSE

046D

5410144

S410745

ANNUAL BUOGETTHIS DATE 2,460 EXPENDITURES 1,220
VII. DATA INPUT AUDIT

INPUT
RESPONSE

04 bB

3 60 00

(NOTE IV ABOVE ENTRY)

ACCOUNT�INVALID�—�RE�-ENTER
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Computer Technology and
Organizational Change
ORGANIZATIONAL ADJUSTMENTS DEMAND GREATER ATTENTION THAN THEY NORMALLY RECEIVE

By Doyle Z. Williams
and Sexton Adams
The computer explosion on business
has hit with breath - taking impact. Indeed, few companies are exempt from
this wave of innovation. Not only does
the computer revolutionize such functions as accounting, manufacturing,
inventory, control, purchasing, and
management information systems; but
of equal significance is the impact upon
traditional organization design, managerial responsibilities and job content, and personnel attitudes toward
the computer.
Systems design and installation, particularly changes accompanying a
computerized system, invariably result
in some degree of organizational adjustment. Changes, both subtle and
otherwise, occur throughout the company when data processing or "information technology" is introduced. In short,
information technology results in a
revamping of organizational relationships.
Resistance to change, both from
managers and employees, will likely
occur unless careful attention is given
to the introduction of the computer.
The ultimate success of any such endeavor is often determined by personnel attitudes toward the change.
Because of the importance of the
human aspects, perhaps the computer
revolution should be viewed with increased caution, as William J. McLaughlin observed:
"People, not machines, make your
systems work, or, if you will, fail.
There has been a tendency to overemphasize hardware and underempha44

size people in the design of these
systems." 1
As the third generation of computers
matures, management must be prepared to deal with all of the resulting
human problems intelligently and
William J. McLaughlin, "D at a Processing in a
Manufacturing Industry —A Case St udy," Management Accoxnting, Jul y, 1966, p. 51.
I
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effectively. Although there has been
much written about the impact of information technology on organizational
structure, little empirical evidence has
been offered detailing the type of
system introduced and the resulting
adjustments.
The purpose of this article is to
describe one phase of an integrated
data processing system and its resulting
influence on management and organization. Specifically, an in -depth case
analysis is made of a common application of computer technology, i.e.,
purchasing and stores.2 The perspective offered by this analysis should
provide some clues as to the future
course of events in information technology in organizational adustment
and may merit the attention of
thoughtful managers concerned with
the effects on the human organization.
Background of the Company
The organization investigated is a plant
facility of a large nationally known
company employing several thousand
workers. As a part of the analysis of
computers' effects on management and
organization, company operations employing various components of electronic
data processing and computer operations
were studied in order to gain a perspective of any changes occurring since the
introduction of this new technology.
Extensive interviews were conducted
over a period of several months with
operating personnel at top, middle and
supervisory levels of management and
with other personnel closely associated
Of rel at ed i nt erest to t he reade r may be Wil li am
S. Price Jr, and Edward J. Neppl, "Automated
Inventory Control," Management Accounting, October, 1966, pp. 52 -58.
7
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with computer technology. Personnel
records, organizational charts, and
other company sources also furnished
much useful information concerning
changes within the organization.
The major emphasis of this investigation was placed on organizational
change within the organization. When
possible, "before" and "after" analyses
were made beginning with the inception of EDP in the organization up
until the conclusion of the study.
Department organization structures
were particularly useful with this type
investigation.
The changes described in this article,
both in organization structure and job
content, were observed in the purchasing and stores departments although
other minor changes occurred within
other departments.
In attempting to keep in step with
technological improvements, gradual
mechanization of data processing
methods has taken place over the years
by the company. The first move to
mechanical data processing occurred

as the company acquired punched card
equipment which was devoted entirely
to the accounting operations.
Immediately following World War
II, the company continued its acquisition of new equipment as more and
more of the accounting work was
mechanized. A swift expansion of the
application of punched card equipment
accompanied increased mechanization
of accounting work during the early
1950's.
A feasibility study launched in the
mid- 1950's concluded, however, that
the conventional punched card equipment lacked the speed and flexibility
which would be required to handle
non- accounting work. A broadly conceived integrated data processing system
was believed to be the answer to company needs. As a result of the recommendations of this study, three computers —two IBM 650 computers and
one IBM 705 computer —were acquired
in 1955 and 1956 which were utilized
in introducing the new integrated data
processing system. This system con-

sisted of seven data processing projects,
called "Automated Information Development Systems" or AIDS.3
One of the first projects to become
operational was the data processing for
purchases and stores. This project was
originally programmed in 1956 for the
IBM 705. In 1958, however, a conversion was made to the IBM 7074, a
machine of much greater sophistication. The 7074 was placed in operation
on two shifts a day processing not only
the AIDS EDP system for purchases
and stores but also serviced five data
processing projects which had been
added with the installation of the
7074. Introduction of computer technology into the purchasing and stores
function caused significant changes in
both organizational structure and managerial job content. Before considering
the nature of these changes, the information processing flows affecting
these activities should first be reviewed.
5 For a descript ion of the AI DS program, se e Sexton Adams and Doyle Z. Williams, "Informat ion
Technology and the Accounting Organizati on,"
Management Services, September - October, 1966,
pp. 1i -23.

PURCHASING AND STORES INFORMATION SYSTEM
The company storehouse contains
some 30,000 items of maintenance and
operating supplies and is maintained by
the Stores Department. In addition to
controlling this inventory, the IBM
7074 is utilized for reordering, follow up, checking, and paying invoices on
these 30,000 stock items.
Inventory Control
Inventory is controlled by daily furnishing the computer all material
receipts and all stock issues for each
stock item. By adding to the starting
inventory all quantities received and
subtracting all quantities withdrawn
from stock, the computer maintains a
current inventory of each item. Then,
by establishing in memory a reorder
point for each item, the machine is
programmed to signal when the inventory of each item reaches reordering status. Reorder point is a function
of lead quantity and safety stock.
This system effectively controls the
inventory of 30,000 stock items and
automatically reorders 95 percent of
these items. The remaining 5 percent
represents emergency situations that
will inevitably arise due to failure on
the part of a supplier to deliver on time
or due to unexpected demands on stock
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

when consumption of an item temporarily exceeds the average rate. In these
instances, the computer is programmed
to indicate the emergency, and the
situation is handled manually either
by expediting an open order or by
placing an emergency order to supplement stock until the next delivery
against an open order is made.
Reorder Point
The end result of the inventory control
phase of the operation is the "reorder
point." When this point is reached, a
purchase order can be written since the
master tape contains all constant information needed in ordering. The
program is written so that all items to
be ordered from the same supplier within the same main class of material will
be combined on one purchase order.
Another feature of this program is
the "can -order point." If an item is approaching the ordering point and another item in the same class of material
must be ordered from the same supplier,
it also will be ordered.
Purchase Orders
Purchase orders are printed automatically after first establishing in the master
record tape all the data to be incorpo-

rated in the order. Information to be
included on the purchase order includes
the supplier's name and address, the
order number, a complete ordering
specification, order quantity, and a requested delivery date. In starting the
run, the machine operator inserts the
current date, and to this the computer
automatically adds lead time to establish a delivery date. Lead time had
already been introduced into the data
for inventory control purposes.
Such additional data as price, f.o.b.
terms, and cash terms are optional. If
automation is not to be carried beyond
the order writing stage, and if there is
no objection to releasing purchase
orders without showing price and terms,
these factors need not be included in
the basic data. On the other hand, if
price and terms must appear on the
order, or if automation is to be carried
through a subsequent invoice checking
phase, it is necessary to introduce price
and terms at this point.
Buyers may have some concern about
automatic writing of purchase orders
for items for which they are not prepared to designate a specific source of
supply, or which cannot always be tagged with a specific price. Provision is
made for this situation by coding such
45

items for "no supplier" or "supplier to
be determined," in which case the 7074
prints out an order omitting the vendor's
name. This paper is then used as a
requisition; price inquiries may be issued
or the proper supplier is determined by
other means. Thereafter the item can be
returned to the system for automatic
print -out of an order to the supplier
then designated, or the purchase order
may be written manually and introduced
to the system for handling through the
subsequent phases.
Purchase Order Follow -Up
Routine tracing of open purchase orders
is a part of the program. This tracing
procedure is accomplished by pre- establishing in the program a pattern of
practical follow -up intervals and the text
of several tracer letters appropriate to
the different situations which may arise.
Having both an order date and a due
date for each open order, and guided
by the follow -up intervals, the program
works forward from the order date in
tracing for an acknowledgement and
a shipping promise, as well as backward
from the due date in asking "Will you
deliver on the date requested ?" Receipt
of material or receipt of an invoice
automatically stops follow -up.
In the case of long lead time items,
where the delivery promise is three
months or more, the computer is programmed to trace the supply by form
letter, 30 or 60 days ahead of the due
date for reaffirmation of the promise. If
the order is not received within three
to seven days of the expected delivery
date, a notice is printed out to initiate
Purchasing Department action.
Under the principle of "management
by exception," the Purchasing Department acts only on the problem cases
which are called to its attention. No
time or effort is wasted on the items
which will be delivered on time.

Invoice Processing

system has always been subjected to
modifications, refinements and expanChecking, verifying and paying of suppliers' invoices, formerly done by the sions in order to make it more efficient.
While there have been substantial manPurchasing and Accounting Departments, are the next steps in the program power savings from the Purchases and
and are now accomplished by the new Stores project, the people directly involved believe that noteworthy strides
automated data processing system. The
have been made in the realm of the
computer is programmed to compare the
application of the theory of good pprquantities received and quantities inchasing and materials management.
voiced with the quantity ordered. It
The Assistant Purchasing Agent as
accepts the invoice if these quantities
well as the Head of the Stores Departagree and rejects if they do not agree.
ment believe that the principal advanThe computer then compares invoice
prices, f.o.b. terms, cash discount, and tage of the computer operation is to free
them from much routine clerical work,
payment terms with prices and terms
leaving
more time to devote to actual
previously recorded from the purchase
supervision.
In particular, the buyers
order.
within
the
Purchasing
Department have
If an invoice is rejected at any stage
gained
a
freedom
from
clerical work
of the checking operation, a print -out
which
enables
them
to
concentrate
on
is produced identifying the source of
their
buying
function.
The
computer
the error. This print -out is then hand
matched with the invoice by the Ac- gives them time to determine the source
of supply, to establish prices and to
counting Department. If the error is
determine
lead times. Moreover, through
arithmetical, the correct amount due is
the
computer,
better analysis of venverified manually and the transaction is
dors'
performance
can be made so that
then returned to the system for autolead times are met as promised. This
matic writing of the check. In some
performance analysis also serves to
cases, checks in the correct amounts
establish more realistic lead times resultmay be written manually. If the invoice
has been rejected for unit price or terms, ing in better planned purchases.
The Head of the Stores Department
the machine print -out is matched with
is "extremely pleased with the applicaa copy of the invoice retained in the
Purchasing Department, which handles tions of this project." Not only is the
function of inventory control easier and
the necessary adjustments manually by
the entire system of record keeping more
communication with the vendor.
Here again the principle of "manage- accurate, but important information for
decision making is easily obtainable by
ment by exception" is noticeable in that
several
levels of management. For inthe system processes automatically the
stance, information heretofore difficult
correct invoices and reverts to manual
handling only when an invoice does not to compile is being obtained that will
help in value analysis, appraisal of
agree with the data which has been
vendor performance (as previously menplaced in memory.
tioned) , reports to management, and
studies
of stock obsolescence.
Benefits of System
This EDP project contributed to a
Many advantages have accrued from the gradual evolution of the organization
installation of this advanced information structures of the Stores, Purchasing, and
system to Purchasing and Stores. The Traffic Departments.

ORG ANIZATIONAL CH ANG ES AND ADJUSTM ENTS
Organizational adjustments resulting
from sophisticated computer applications demand greater attention than
they normally receive. Therefore, an
examination of the structural changes
of this company should focus attention
on what may occur in other companies
employing information technology.4
4
For a more complete description of company -wide
organization structural changes accompanying information technology, see Sexton Adams, "EDP's
Effect on Organization Structure,' Houston Busi.
ness Review, winter, 1966.1967, pp. 16 -27.
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The organization of this company has
undergone numerous changes which
have accompanied the growing pains of
information technology. Since the
1940's, the company's organizational
structure has experienced a certain "flattening" where organizational segments
such as divisions, departments and functions have gradually been rearranged to
attain maximum operational efficiency
from the evolving informational system.
The Stores, Purchasing, and Traffic

functions of this company all have experienced this type of change.
Stores Department
Prior to the introduction of a computerized information processing system
in the 1950's, the Stores Department's
organization was a tall, hierarchical
structure. It consisted of a department
head, two assistants, two section foremen, and eight first -line supervisors at
this time. Approximately 150 persons
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1968

were employed in this department.
Exhibit 1
The first change in organizational
ORGANIZATION
CHART OF THE STORES DEPARTMENT
structure of the Stores Department occurred in 1959 after the retirement of
the Assistant Department Head in
charge of materials handling section. At
this time, the two assistant positions
were combined —it was believed that the
duties and responsibilities of both jobs
could be carried effectively by one individual. In 1962, two section foremen
positions were eliminated. Thus, the department head was placed in direct
charge of the first -line supervisors. The
present organizational structure is
depicted in Exhibit 1. The department's
work force has been cut by more than
fifty percent since 1956, yet it processes
twice the volume of work.
It is anticipated that the next orExhibit 2
ganizational adjustment will result in
ORGANIZATION CHART OF THE PURCHASING AND TRAFFIC DEPARTMENT
elimination of the manager's position in
the Stores Department with the Assistant Head being given full authority
and responsibility to direct the departAs s i s t a n t Head
As s i s t a n t I:ead
ment.
Traffic
Purchasing
This change is directly related to the
fact that the operations of the DepartSup e r v i s o ry Buye r
ment have been streamlined through
Ope ra t i o ns
!t;� [cs
Su pe rv i s o r
tiu� .e�raiser
information technology and material
Buyer
I
I
I
Buyer
handling. As a result, managerial funcc he mi c a l
I
I
Ai r
tions and job contents have changed,
Pro duc t s
supervision has improved and proBuyer I
I I
Buyer
ductivity has increased. The elimination
Pe tr oleu m
I
I
Rai lr oad
of the manager's position in the organiPr o d u c t s
Buyer
I
I
I
Buyer
zational structure is one of several
indications that the company is using
Incoming
I
Truc ks
computer information to further a phiBuy er
I
I
Buy er
Pro d uc t s
I
losophy of decentralized decision -making at operational levels.
Pur cha s ing De par t me nt
Th e Purchasing Department also experienced organizational realignment as
a result of the computerized system. As
a consequence of the follow -up and
invoice- checking clerical operations being
assumed by the computer system, these
two largely clerical sections were reduced
in importance and personnel. Accompanying this change was a reorganization of the buyers' section to provide
an assistant for each buyer. This move
was designed to enable the buyers'
section to make maximum use of th e
computer material run in planning and
controlling. Also, a major plant expansion program was in effect at this time,
increasing the activity of the buyers'
section.
The assistant buyers were added to
the Purchasing Department in early
1956 to assist in the transition from
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

manual operations to the computerized
system. After their main responsibility
of assisting data - processing personnel in
the "de- bugging" of the inventory control and material phases of the system
was completed, the assistant buyers were
transferred to another area of the company.
Late in 1960, there was a merger of
the two Supervisory Buyer positions into
one position with one Supervisory Buyer
being transferred to another department.
This position merger became feasible
once the information system became
fully operational and the actual purchasing of commodities had been delegated downward.
T r a ffi c De p a r t me n t
The Traffic Department was also affected by the installation of the advanced information system. This
department, responsible for the co-

ordination of the movement of products out of the plant, has as a major
objective the minimizing of transportation rates in order to improve
profitability. In 1960, this department's
organization consisted of a manager,
an assistant, and two section supervisors in charge of operations and rates.
In late 1961, the Traffic Department was merged with the Purchasing
Department. While this move was
timed to coincide with the Traffic
Manager's transfer from the plant level,
it was instigated by the improved
coordinated information system. Exhibit 2 reflects the merged organization. During the period of time in
which the system has been functioning,
the number of persons in the combined Traffic and Purchasing Departments has decreased from approximately
35 to 23, excluding the elimination of
the assistant buyers.
47

CO PING W IT H RE SISTANCE TO CH ANG E
The introduction of the automated
information system and the resulting
organizational realignments had, of
course, a serious impact on personnel.
Often the departmental managers and
supervisory personnel as well as the
clerical staff saw their own positions
being threatened when some phase
of the EDP programs were installed
within their departments. The Data
Processing Manager, for example, cited
several instances of reactions of department managers to the realization
that the number of personnel in
their departments would be reduced
as a result of installation of some part
of the new technology. Put mildly,
department managers were less than
enthusiastic to computers when the
importance of their supervisory position was judged on the number of
personnel supervised —a common yardstick used by their peers. These men
often exhibited hostility and suspicion
toward any phase of information technology which would tend to affect
them.
Management resistance also stemmed from feelings of inadequacies or
lack of understanding of operations
research, applied mathematics, electronic data processing and computer
techniques. These techniques are somewhat complicated for many managers
to follow. Middle managers were not
expected to be competent in these
areas. Where they had no particular
training in the programs, however, a
feeling of inadequacy sometimes arose.
Resistance to new ideas, either consciously or subconsciously, consequently
followed.
Recognizing these potential human
problems early, the company developed methods of combating management resistance to change. Among the
most successful of these methods has
been the management training and
development program. One part of
this program is a rotation system for
future managers. The men chosen to
participate in this program receive a
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year or more of programming ex- These personnel were constantly adperience within the company. Oc- vised that positions in certain departcasionally these trainess are selected ments and in certain sections would
from departments which share a part be eliminated but people would not.
of the central information processing That is, although certain positions may
system. The task force of trainees from be eliminated, combined or rearranged,
different departments which share no one would be terminated or "decommon information is constituted in moted." This promise of openness and
this manner for two reasons. First, top forthrightness by management conmanagement believes that the success- tributed greatly to the general acceptful use of the integrated information ance of the integrated automated
system is dependent upon the direct system.
participation or "involvement" of
personnel from the departments in Conclusion
question. Second, top management believes that future managers must have Many important benefits have aca "hands -on" working knowledge of crued to the company from its comdata processing and computer tech- puterized information system. There
has been a substantial reduction in the
niques.
A second part of the company's manual effort necessary for the maintotal development program was de- tenance of inventory stock balances,
signed for managers and other person- up- dating for issues and receipts, and
nel who do not have the opportunity ordering decisions. Of even greater
or inclination to spend one or two significance are improved performance,
years as programmers. To compensate, cost savings from the reduction of
several programs for management inventories, and improved management
indoctrination have been developed. reports. More timely infonhation is
Some of these programs have been available for decision - making and congeneral, designed to communicate the trol purposes to all levels of managebroad concepts of computer applica- ment. The practice of "management
tions to heterogeneous groups of man- by exception" has become a hallmark
agers and employees. Others have been of the system.
Such gains do not come without a
much more specific, designed to accompany the development of systems price — organizational change or, in
in the participant's particular depart- many cases, upheaval. As this analysis
ment or function. These training pro- indicates, departments may be comgrams are designed to create support bined, functions become obsolete, and
and acceptance of new applications in positions eliminated; all resulting in a
the existing system and to stimulate change in managerial philosophy
the imagination of managers and per- toward organizational relationships.
Management must gear itself to coping
sonnel in the system's potential uses.
In addition to middle management, effectively and efficiently with this fact
concrete action was also taken to of business life. Failure to recognize
minimize the anxieties of the clerical the importance and the extent of such
personnel. Clerical personnel were con- changes will jeopardize the best techstantly advised as to the status of the nically designed system. In short, the
system and the resulting effects on their question is: Will it be orderly organidepartmental operations and positions. zational transition or organizational
Each department conducted periodic upheaval?
meetings where all new developments
The loss of key personnel and sabowere thoroughly discussed for the bene- tage of the system may be significant
fit of the personnel irr order to allay any enough to bury any technical informafears of being replaced by the system. tion processing gains.
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Technological or
Economic Obsolescence:
Computer Purchase vs. Lease
INSTEAD OF AN UNALTERABLE GUIDELINE, A QUANTITATIVE APPROACH IS SUGGESTED AS ILLUSTRATED

By Donald H. Taylor
There is a strong tendency on the part
of management to rent computer facilities due to the rapid changes taking
place in that field. As a matter of fact,
it is not uncommon to hear the opinion
expressed that the company cannot afford to buy because the asset may have
to be updated in a few years.
Before a full discussion of this factor
can be made, it seems desirable to place
it in the right perspective by reviewing
the distinction between economic and
technological obsolescence. The former
occurs when, all things considered, it is
deemed best from a cost and profit
standpoint to replace the facility. The
latter occurs when a new asset comes
along that can perform operations with
more technical proficiency.
Regarding the first distinction, it
seems to be accepted practice throughout much of the business world to assume that simply because new equipment is built, replacement of the old
equipment must follow. This is particularly true with regard to computers.
The computer illustration is symbolic
of the overgeneralized use of the term
obsolescence to encompass both technological and economic factors.
The Uniqueness of the Computer
There is one particular factor that is almost overbearing in its effect on computer financing plans. This factor is obsolescence. Despite the existence of cost
studies that show the interest rates on
leasing to be relatively high, businessmen are still reluctant to buy. In many

cases, it is the threat of technological evaluate critically its own system at a
time when the asset is in the process of
obsolescence that causes the fear.
The use of a computer does present a being fully paid for through rentals.
special situation that tends to reinforce The changeover causes no financial unbusinessmen's reluctance to buy. Since certainties because a new lease is merely
the manufacturers do most of the leas- substituted for the old one. The coming and selling of the equipment, they pany need not worry about the disposal
are in a position to determine when eco- of an owned asset because there is none.
Here, once again, the manufacturer
nomic obsolescence will occur.
Computer manufacturers who act as carries something of a whip hand. The
lessors design the rentals so that the market for used computers is not as firm
price of the equipment will be recovered and predictable as it is for something
within 3 to 5 years. With technical in- like automobiles. The safest thing for
novations occurring at such a rapid rate, management to do if it owns the equipit is conceivable and even probable that ment is to trade it in on the new model.
important changes in the hardware will Any potential tax loss would then have
to be deferred and added to the base
take place during these periods.
These changes cause management to of the new asset. Thus, the manufacturer, through his trade -in policy,
lease payment schedule, and hardware
changes, can indirectly steer the user of
the equipment toward one particular
financing method.
A representative of one firm, for example, stated that, despite the "consent" decree of several years ago, 90 percent of their customers still lease their
equipment. A member of a professional
accounting firm also indicated that unDR. DONALD H. TAYLOR
less the anticipated usage time for their
clients was fairly well known, they adCPA, is Assistant Professor of Acvised against purchasing.
counting, Georgia State College, Atlanta, Georgia. Previously, he was
Uncertainty breeds caution; there is
with Touehe, Ross, Bailey err Smart in
little question about that. Nor is it necHouston, Texas. Professor Taylor
essarily irrational for management to let
holds Ph.D. and M.B.A. degrees from
intangible factors and a sense of uncerLouisiana State University, and a B.S.
tainty override, the result of cost analdegree from Louisiana Polytechnic Inyses. What does seem irrational, howstitute. He has authored articles which
ever, is to let generalized non- quantihave appeared in accounting journals.
tative elements form the basis for a
decision without first comparing the
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Types of Computer Leases
One of the reasons why the computer
is a good model for discussion is that
most of the rental contracts written on
this type of equipment contain provisions contained in a typical operating
lease agreement. As a matter of fact,
most of the alleged advantages that
accrue to a company as a result of using
operating leases are supposedly available
to the lessee of computer equipment.
The contract can be cancelled upon
short notice, usually thirty, sixty or
ninety days. The rentals include the
very important element of maintenance
which is considered so essential to users
of the equipment. In addition to this,
there are other ownership costs, such as
taxes and insurance, that are "packaged"
by the lessor and presented to the lessee
as part of the periodic monetary outlays.
Since the lease payments on computer equipment include maintenance
services, some element of cost relating
to these services should be subtracted
from the lease payments when a comparison is made between renting and
buying. Any other incremental ownership costs that are specifically covered
in the rentals should also be deducted.
Although the practices may vary
slightly among the different lessors of

computer equipment, the general policy
of these lessors is to provide the lessee
with packaged, predictable costs. There
are some exceptions to this. One manufacturer does not include such supplies
as paper tape in the rental charges.
Other lessors charge the freight and
transportation costs separately to the
customer.
The monthly rental payments are set
at an amount that fixes their percentage
of the total price somewhere between
2.8 percent, as a high, and 1.7 percent,
as a low. The percentage range in a
solicited sample is 2 percent to 2.5 percent. In other words, these particular
computer lessors charge their customers
a monthly rental that averages between
1 /40th and 1 /50th of the purchase price.
Illustrative Computations
The following common assumptions apply to all of the illustrations below:
1. The purchase price is 40 times the
amount of the monthly rental.
2. A maintenance factor equal to 15
percent of the monthly lease charge
is subtracted from the rentals. This
is approximately equal to the cost
that is avoided by leasing. There are
also certain ownership overhead
items that are often absorbed in the
lease contract, such as taxes and in-

will

probable costs involved. For example, a
company, through judgment and experience, could project the relative costs of
leasing and purchasing under several
assumed circumstances. The variables
could be such things as the estimated
economic life, the depreciation policy,
the opportunity rate, and the estimated
residual market value.
If management wished to be exceptionally cautious, it could set extreme
limits on the variables. An estimated
life of three or four years could be used;
a high present value opportunity rate
and a low trade -in or resale value could
be assumed. There are virtually dozens
of different variations, each producing
its own unique set of present value costs.
Little benefit could be gained here by
arraying a great number of these combinations.
In situations where the computer
market and technological factors are uncertain, it would seem that the burden
is on the purchasing advocate to prove
that his alternative is best. This seems
especially true in the case of computers
where leases are relatively easy to write
up and to cancel. However, the decision
to lease should be based on a careful
study, and not just on the general observation that purchasing carries a risk
of obsolescence.
The rental contract on computers usually includes a provision that the lessor
service the equipment at no extra
cost to the lessee. This factor, plus depreciation on the machine, is taken into
consideration when the periodic payments are set. Most of the time a separate maintenance agreement must be
negotiated and paid for if the asset is
bought.
Even though most users realize that
they are paying for repair services provided through leases, there is still the
feeling that the firm is being "taken
care of" when the lessor handles breakdowns on this expensive and mysterious
equipment owned by someone else. One
computer manufacturer offers a service
contract and charges the owners of the
machines a monthly rate which ranges
between ten and fifteen percent of the
lease cost.
Because of the complexity of the
asset, owners are often reluctant to have
their own personnel perform maintenance and, therefore, they usually buy
the service. Here again, the situation is
such that the computer manufacturer is
in a position to encourage leasing
through his own policy.
50

Illustration 1
CASHPURCHASE
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+
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35,000

- $100,000
8,573
7,241
6,109
29,236
+

+
+

Present
value 6%

+

35, 000

9,091
8,136
7,273

After -tax
cash flows

- $100,000
9,091
8,136
7,273
+

3

50%

+

- $100,000
18,182
16,272
14,546
+

0
1
2
3

+

Purchase cost
Depreciation
Depreciation
Depreciation
Residual value

Tax
savings

Cash flows

$

Year

-$ 4 8 , 8 4 1

LEASE
@ 50%

After -tax
cash flows

Present
value @ 6%

1

- $ 25,000

$12,750

- $ 12,750

- $ 12,008

2

25,500

12,750

-

12,750

-

11,308

25,500

12,750

-

12,750

-

10,650

3

-

Cash flows

-

Net lease
payments*
Net lease
payments*
Net lease
payments*

Tax
savings

Year

- $ 33,966

* The lease payments result from the following computations: $100,000 cost x 1 / 4 0 =
$2,500, the monthly rental; $2,500 x 12 = $30,000, total rent for the year; $30,000 $4,500 for maintenance factor = $ 25,500. The direct tax savings are $15,000
a year.
Subtract from this the tax savings of $2,250 that will not accrue to the lessee because he
does not have to pay $4,500 a year for a separate service contract. Thus, this after -tax savings on maintenance is $2,250.
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Illustration 2
CASHPURCHASE

- $100,000
9,091
8,136
7,273
6,363
5,454
20,000

- $100,000
8,573
7,241
6,109
5,040
4,074
14,816
+

+

+

+

+
+

+

+
+

+

+

@

9,091
8,136
7,273
6,363
5,454

+

Present
value 6%

+

+
+

9

+

After -tax
cash flows

@

- $100,000
18,182
16,272
14,546
12 726
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1
2
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Depreciation
Depreciation
Depreciation
Residual value

Year

$ 54,147
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$12,750

- $ 12,750

- $ 12,008
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12,750

11,308

25,500

12,750

25,500

12,750
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10,029

-

-

-

12,750
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9,445

-

5

12,750

-

4

-

3

-
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- $ 25,500

1

-

Present
value 6%

@

After -tax
cash flows

Cash flows

-

Net lease
payments
Net lease
payments
Net lease
payments
Net lease
payments
Net lease
payments

Tax
savings
50%

Year

- $ 53,440

CASHPURCHASE
Tax

years.
Given the assumptions listed above,
it appears that the preferred method
would probably be leasing. It is not at
all certain that the residual value of
some computers would be as high as the
book value after three years. The decision to abandon or replace the equipment after such a short time might
have been caused by a technological
breakthrough. This innovation, in turn,
could depress the trade -in value. In addition to this, the present value cost of
purchasing is higher even when a 35
percent residual value is assumed.
Illustration 2 is formulated on the
assumption that the use of the equipment will be terminated after five and
ten years, respectively.
The analysis shows that if the computer is used for a period of five years,
the cost comparison still tends to favor
leasing. However, the present value dollar amounts are relatively close and a
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

37,599
5,488

@

50,000
10,000

+

50,000

+

100,000
10,000

- $100,000

+

1 -10
10

- $100,000

+

- $100,000

Present
value 6%

50%

@

0

After -tax
cash flows

savings
$

Cash flows

+

Purchase cost
Cash flow savings
from tax
deduction of
depreciation
Residual value

Year

+

surance. However, in order to keep
the illustrations as simple as possible, only a 15 percent maintenance
factor is subtracted. We could very
easily assume that this 15 percent
includes all of the relevant ownership costs that are avoided by leasing.
3. The rentals are treated as if they are
paid in a lump sum at the end of
the period. The tax benefit associated with these payments is assumed to be available at the time
the payments are made. Both of
these assumptions are, of course, unrealistic. Rental outlays are usually
paid in advance every month, while
the tax savings associated with these
outlays are not realized until the
following fiscal year. The difference
in present value costs is not material, however. The treatment of rentals as yearly payments has precedent
in the literature.
4. The depreciation method is the sum of -the- years' - digits. The assumed life
of the asset, for depreciation purposes, is ten years. The residual
trade -in value at the end of three
and five years is assumed to be equal
to 35 percent and 20 percent of the
selling price, respectively. A 10 percent residual value is assumed to
exist at the end of ten years. Any
gain or loss on the trade is assumed
to be deferred.
Illustration 1 is formulated on the
assumption that the use of the equipment will be terminated after three

$ 56,913

LEASE
Year
Net lease
payments of
$25,500 a yr.

1 -10

Tax
savings
@ 50%

After -tax
cash flows

Present
value @ 6%

- $127,500

- $127,500

- $ 95,877

Cash flows
- $255,500

slight change in one or two variables
could change the results. Thus, it is
quite possible that the financing decision would be based on "intangible"
considerations.
On the other hand, the ten -year
comparison clearly shows that the present value cost of owning the computer
is less than the present value cost of
leasing the asset. If management were
fairly certain that the facilities would be
used that long, it would be wise to purchase instead of rent.
A large number of " intangible" considerations might cause management to
ignore the quantitative results, but it

would undoubtedly take a lot of these
factors to negate the effect of a $40,000
present value cost. Even if no salvage
value existed at the end of ten years,
the cost difference would still be substantial.
The immediate counter - argument that
leasing advocates would probably apply
to this analysis is that in today's technological state of affairs it is not very
likely that a company would keep its
computer installation intact for a period
of time much longer than five years.
There is some truth in this argument.
The rapid changes that are taking place
in the field of data processing are ere51

ating an air of uncertainty. Most of the
computer manufacturers offer cancellable contracts, thus allowing the user
of the equipment the option -of making
an easy change -over any time during
the life of the asset. 'These two factors,
when added to a liberal purchase- option
clause, cause the lessee to feel somewhat more "comfortable" with this particular type of financing arrangement.
It would seem, however, on the basis
of the cost analysis presented above,
that a company is putting itself in a
position of "repurchasing" the computer
after leasing it for a period of about five
or six years. If we assume, for example,
that the manufacturer required an 8
percent return on his negotiated leases,
then a contract written on the basis of

the above provisions would enable the
lessor to recover the purchase price of
the computer in approximately four.and
three quarter years. A representative of
one particular computer manufacturer
indicated that his company normally
expected to recover the purchase price
of the asset, plus interest, in four years
and ten months.
Sum ma r y
The above analysis is based on several
assumptions. In view of the empirical
evidence obtained, however, these assumptions appear reasonable. A company's estimate of its cost of capital
would, of course, be made on the basis
of what it considered its best alternative
investment opportunity to be, consider-

ing the appropriate risk involved. This
is the yardstick that must be used to
measure all financing possibilities. It is
likely to be the most subjective variable.
The existence of a .purchase option could
also make a difference, particularly in
the critical 4 to 6 year period.
The illustrations in the article are intended to suggest a quantitative approach to the thorny question of computer obsolescence, not lay down an unalterable guideline as to when these
computers should be leased or purchased. An attempt has been made to
add some clarity and a bit of sophistication to the rather oversimplified statement that a company cannot afford to
buy EDP equipment because of the
danger of obsolescence.

Job Migration Pattern of Accounting
JOB CHANGES FREQUENTLY INVOLVE CHANGES IN THE AREA OF ACCOUNTING FROM
A CPA FIRM TO INDUSTRY AND GOVERNMENT

By Felix P. Kollaritsch
The scope of this paper is limited to
an analysis of and comparison between
the areas of employment which the
accounting graduates entered directly
after graduation and the areas of their
employment during 1967. It was felt
that such an analysis would indicate
overall trends in the migration patterns
of accountants, since the overall turnover ratio (job - changes from one kind
of employment to another) was a low
1.5. The source for all information
presented here is 1,220 questionnaires
which were completed and returned by
persons who received Bachelor's degrees with a major in Accounting from
The Ohio State University in the
period 1920 to 1967.1 The information
is presented in the belief that it may
be of special interest to such groups as
the following: employers of accountants, graduates now working in accounting, accounting faculty members,
graduating seniors who must choose
their area of employment, and uniFelix P. Kollaritsch, Opinions, Scholastic Rankand Professional Progress of Accounting
Graduates, Department of Accounting, The Ohio
State University, Summer, 1968.
1
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versity undergraduates who must make
a career choice.
Table 1 ( next page) indicates past
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and present areas of employment as
well as changes expressed as a percent
sample.
From the time of graduation to the
present, as can be observed in Table 1,
considerable shifting among the areas
of employment has taken place. For
example, 42.3% presently work in industry, a gain of 54% over the initial
hiring of only 27.3% of the graduating
students by industry. This puts industry far ahead of any other group as a
demand source for accountants. Public
accounting, on the other hand, presently employs only 22.4% of the graduates, which represents a loss of approximately 41% from the starting
point, when they had 37.9 %. This
places public accounting in second
place as an employer of accountants,
far behind industrial accounting. The
most remarkable gains over time have
been made by the service industry,
with an increase of 121 %, and the
government, with an increase of little
over 100 %.
The pattern of job changes of accountants gives rise to several important questions. First, there is the question as to whether or not his pattern
or movement will continue. An examMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1968
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Table 1
AREA OF EMPLOYMENT
Changes

22.4
42.3
14.4
10.4
3.5
7.0

15.5
15.0
7.9
-i- 5.3
2.0
10.7

+

+

-

Present

**

**

*

100

-

100

0

-

-

37.9
27.3
6.5
5. 1
5.5
17.7

-

Started
Public Accounting
Industrial Accounting
Service Industry Accounting*
Governmental Acc ounti ng
Education* *
Other* **

*

Includes banking, insurance, retail, transportation, hotels, etc.
Includes those graduates going on to graduate schools.
Inc ludes mil itary services, lawyers, and other work outside the field of accounting.

Table 2
ACCOUNTING

Table 3

Public
-029.3
39.7
34.2
43.9

Industrial
16.7
29.4
25.4
28.6
27.8

Government
0
1.0
5.9
3.1
8. 1

Education
33.3
3.0
3.6
5.5
8.1

Other
50.0
31.3
17.6
21.9
7.4

SIZE OF FIRM AND HIRING SUCCESS
INDUST RIAL ACCOUNTING

PUBLIC ACCOUNTING
Decade
20's
30's
40's
50's
60's

Service
0
6.0
7.8
6.7
4.7

-

Percent
.5
8. 1
31.7
34.1
25.6

-

Total
Num ber
6
99
387
416
312

-

Decade
20's
30's
40's
50's
60's

-

ination of the initial employment areas
of accounting graduates over the years,
as revealed by information from the
questionnaires, may help to determine
trends of hiring policies. This information is given in Table 2, where the
areas of employment entered after
graduation are arranged by decades
and expressed as percents of the
sample.
Assuming that the present distribution of all graduates, as given in Table
1, is a fair approximation of present
and near future demands (needs) for
accountants in the various areas, the
present hiring pattern of new graduates and the pattern changes over the
years would strongly support the statement that the frequency of job changes
may not only continue as in the past,
but, in certain areas, may show substantial increases. Public accounting,
for instance, the user of only 22% of
the graduates, (see Table 1) proceeded
during the sixties to hire nearly 44%
of the graduates. Educational institutions have also continued to hire considerably more graduates than they retain. Here, however, it should be recognized that many of these people are
graduate students who enter the job
market after completion of higher
degrees.
Very interesting to observe in these
statistics is the fact that governmental
agencies have increased their share of
graduates to 8.1%. Although this was
a step in the right direction, this number still falls short of the apparent
need for accountants by governmental
agencies.
In contrast to government, the service industry's share decreased. With a
need of approximately 14.4% of all the
graduates in accounting (as based on
present percentage of employment
shown in Table 1) services hired 7.8%
during the forties, with this percentage
decreasing to 4.7% during the sixties.
Therefore, services were forced to find
a great number of employees from
among experienced accountants first
hired by other employers.
Industry is the only area which has
not significantly changed its practice of
hiring new accounting graduates over
the last 37 years. The hiring rate of
27.8% of newly graduated accountants
in industry during the sixties is very
close to the area's overall average of
27.3% and far short of the apparently
needed, 42.3 %. Industry, then, will
probably remain the most active seeker
of accountants with experience.

Total
Sample
6
99
387
416
312

Total
-029.3
39.7
34.2
43.9

Bi g
Eight
-023.2
24.7
24.3
36.4

Small
-06. 1
15.0
9.9
7.4

The above analysis, however, does
not reveal the complete hiring pattern
of the two groups in which we are most
interested, the public accounting fines
and the industrial firms. Table 3, above,
details the statistics for those two
groups according to size of firm- public
accounting firms and industrial firms
hiring graduates of time of graduation
are arranged by size of firm and time of
graduation as percent of the sample:
Although public accounting firms
have steadily increased the percentage
of graduating students hired, this increase is attributable exclusively to the
"big eight" companies. The smaller
firms had been hiring fewer and fewer
until, during the 60's, their percentage
was about half that of the 40's (7.4%
versus 15%). This trend must be
viewed with some alarm.
A similar and just as alarming trend
can be observed in industry. Although
the overall percentage of students hired
after graduation does not show any
marked fluctuation over the various
decades for this group of employers,
hiring patterns of firms of various sizes
show definite trends. Large industrial

Total
16.7
29.4
25.4
28.6
27.8

Large
-016.2
14.0
20.7
22.4

Medi um
-04.0
5.2
3.6
3.2

Small
16.7
9.2
6.2
4.3
2.2

firms hire a considerably larger percentage of accounting graduates now
than they did 20 to 25 years ago. At the
same time, medium -size and small industrial firms hire smaller percentages.
The claim that the computer has reduced the demand for accountants in
large industrial companies is not borne
our by this study.
Another question of interest concerns
the number of accountants remaining
in the areas in which they were originally employed. The retention ratios of
the sample are presented, in Table 4.
Industry has the highest retention
ratio, with 72 %, while public accounting and education have the lowest
ratios, 43% and 42%, respectively.
"Other" does, in fact, show the lowest
ratio, but, as has been mentioned, this
is due to the fact that many students
enter military service after graduation,
and therefore no significance can be
attached to this rate. The same applies
to the low retention ratio in the area
of education, since graduate students
move later back into accounting practice or some other area of employment.
The 43% retention rate for public
53
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Table 4

RETENTIONRATIO
AREA OF EMPLOYMENT

Public Accounting
Industrial Accounting
Service Accounting
Governmental Accounting
Education
Other
TOTAL

Table

Started
in

Remaining
in

462
334
79
62
67
216
1,220

199
242
52
41
28
38
600

Retention
ratio
(percent)
43
72
66
66
42
17
49%
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MIGRATION PATTERN
AREA OF EMPLOYMENT ENTERED AFTERGRADUATION

Public Accounting
Industrial Accounting
Service Accounting
Governmental Accounting
Education
Other

Table

6

Sources of
Employees
Sample Size 1220
Public Accounting
Industrial Accounting
Service Accounting
Governmental Accounting
Education
Other

Public
Acc.

Ind.
Acc.

462

334

43.1
35.4
11.5
5.0
1.3
3.7
100

6.6
72.4
8.7
8.4
0.9
3.0
100

Service
Acc.

Govern.
Acc.
62

67

6.3
20.3
65.9
6.3
0
1.2
100

8.1
16.1
6.5
66.1
1.6
1.6
100

14.9
10.4
1.5
3.0
41.8
28.4
100

SOURCES OF ACCOUNTANTS
PRESENT AREA OF EMPLOYMENT
Public Indust. Service Govern.
Acc.
Acc.
Acc.
Acc.
274

517

177

123

72.7
8.1
1.8
1.8
3.6
12.0
100

31.8
46.7
3.1
1.9
1.4
15.1
100

29.8
16.4
29.4
2.3
0.6
21.5
100

18.7
22.9
4.0
33.3
1.6
19.5
100

fession. The demand for students with
degrees above the Bachelor's degree by
public accounting firms and by industry
is demonstrated by the fact that these
areas hired 14.9 % and 10.4% of these
graduates with higher degrees, respectively.
Table 6 shows sources supplying presently employed graduates. It has been
prepared to demonstrate the significant
difference between the present distribution of graduates among the various
areas of accounting and that at the time
of graduation. This information on the
areas from which the present employees
came helps to explain some earlier
points. For instance, although the retention rate for public accounting firms is
very low, the graduates retained consti-

Educ.

79

-

Area of
present
Employment
Sample size 1220

-

accounting firms may be the cause for
some concern. Public accounting has
long been considered to be a good providing and training ground for accountants, and the statistics in this sample
certainly support this contention. In
fact, the extent to which public accounting has lost accounting graduates
to the other areas is almost astounding
when one considers the great expense of
hiring and training accountants. Public
accounting firms might be well advised
to review their policies concerning this
matter.
Incidentally, the retention rate of
public accounting firms is not influenced
by the sizes of the firm; whereas the
retention rate of industry is very much
influenced by the size of the firm -with
the largest firms having the highest retention rate and the small industrial
firm having the lowest. Hence, it may
be that it is the small industrial firm
that is in an intolerable situation, since
one can see from the statistics presented
that small industrial firms have decreased their hiring of graduating students and that they are apparently unable to keep the few they did hire.
The third question raised by the job
changes depicted in Table 1, and also
by the information presented in Table
4, is: to which area of employment do
graduates move from their original area
of employment? This information is
presented in Table 5, which shows
migration patterns- moving from the
area of original employment to area of
present employment.
Most of the graduates who started in
public accounting but decided to change
their area of employment, moved into
industrial accounting. Thirty -five percent of all the graduates hired by public
accounting firms ended up in industry.
The service area lost to industry over
one -fifth of the new graduates originally
hired. Apparently, graduates who begin
their accounting careers with a governmental agency and who decide to
change their area of employment are
also very likely to move into industry,
as over 16% of the sample group have
done.
Graduates who decided to go on with
their education are evidently likely to
move out of accounting practice altogether; 28.4% of this group are completely outside the accounting area.
Many of them go into the legal profession. About 42% remain in education
as a professional choice and, therefore,
are not available to the accounting pro-

Educ.

Other
216
15.3
36.1
17.6
11.1
2.3
17.6
100

Other

43

86

14.0
22.9
4.0
33.3
1.6
19.5
100

19.8
11.7
1.2
1.2
22.1
44.0
100

tute 72.7% of the total graduates presently employed in public accounting. If,
for instance, public accounting firms
deliberately choose to hire many graduates in order to screen them for the
best potential, then public accounting
must have some of the best accountants. Also, it is interesting to note that
8.1% have moved from industrial accounting to public accounting.
On the other hand, although industry has a high retention rate, this rate
still amounts to only 46.7% of all
the accountants they apparently need.
Nearly one -third of all industrial accountants are trained and supplied by
the public accounting firm.
Service accounting is in an even
worse situation according to this samMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1969

ple, being able to supply only 29.4% of
its accountants from its own ranks:
29.8% (notice that this figure is higher
than the internal supply figure) of the
accountants in the services area come
from public accounting firms and
16.4% from industry. The governmental agencies also show a very interesting
pattern. They train one -third of their
accountants themselves and hire 22.9%
of what they need from industry. The
public accounting firms are also a large
supplier of accountants for government
agencies, supplying 18.7 %. In all the
categories mentioned, "Others" are
large suppliers.
Conclusion
The 1,220 graduates included in the
present sample reported an average of
1.6 job changes to date. The migration
ratio, a job change not just from one
firm to another firm but from one area
of accounting into another area of accounting, was 1.5. These data support
the conclusion that job changes of ac-

countants, in a majority of cases, also
involve changes in the area of accounting.
Public accounting firms are the largest source for experienced accountants.
These firms hire absolutely and relatively more accounting graduates than
any other area of accounting. They retain only 43% of these graduates, but
this amount is sufficient to satisfy 73%
of their permanent staffing requirements.
Industry employs by far the most accountants. Surprisingly, it hires, relatively and absolutely, fewer graduating
students from college than does public
accounting. Industry has the highest retention ratio of any of the accounting
areas investigated, but still must rely
upon hiring experienced accountants to
satisfy over 50% of their accounting
staff. Services and government supply
fewer than one -third of the accountants
they need from their own ranks.
A look at the changes which have
taken place in the hiring of graduating

students indicates that the migration
pattern discussed here will not only be
continued but will be even more pronounced. The only exception to this
pattern must be for government, which,
in recent years has been able to hire
more graduates directly from college,
but not enough to fill its needs.
The size of a business, regardless of
whether it is public accounting or industry, apparently is an important factor as to the source for obtaining an
accounting staff. Small businesses must
secure accountants from sources other
than colleges. They evidently must pay
a premium to attract or retain young,
experienced accountants. For instance,
information from the questionnaires revealed that the average annual salary of
students who graduated between four
and six years ago and who are presently
employed by small industrial firms is
approximately $1,400 higher than that
of their classmates now in industry, and
$1,700 higher than the average salary of
classmates now in public accounting.

Collecting Investment Credit Data
DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS SHOULD COINCIDE WITH THE CONSIDERATION OF OTHER INVESTMENT CRITERIA

By Victor T. Tidwell
Reestablishment of the investment
credit again calls attention to the importance of the collection of data to
substantiate deductions in federal income tax liability for investments made
during the year.
This article will focus attention upon
the wisdom and method of collecting
investment credit property cost data as
a part of the routine of cost collection
and analysis rather than at some later
date, such as just prior to filing the tax
return. Cost data available at the time
of planning, billing or payment may become so entangled in voluminous historical data that retrieval and segregation of investment credit property costs
from paper or computer files may be
unreliable or too costly, or both. Further, there exists now the need to consult source documents other than those
which are typically a part of the accounting system. Appropriate identificaMANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

tion and cross- referencing to such information should be made before they
become `buried" in files, and before
memories fade. Also, the attempt to re-

trieve investment credit property information may result in some "qualified investment" expenditures being overlooked, with the resulting loss of federal
income tax credit equal to seven percent
of the overlooked expenditures.
Basic Rules

DR. VICTOR H. TIDWELL

Cedar Rapids Chapter 1967, is Associate Professor of Accounting, University of Iowa's College of Business
Administration, Iowa City, Iowa. Professor Tidwell holds a B.S. degree
from Illinois College, and M.B.A. and
D.B.A. degrees from Indiana University.

The investment credit is a reduction in
the federal income tax liability equal to
seven percent of the cost of "qualified
investment" in "Section 38 property."
Qualified investment is defined as the
first $ 50,000 of cost of used Section 38
property and 100 percent of the cost of
new Section 38 property, both of which
have an estimated useful life of at least
8 years. For any property which has a
useful life of less than 4 years, no part
of the cost is qualified investment. The
cost of property which has a useful life
of 4 to 6 years must be multiplied by
33V3 percent to determine the qualified
investment and the cost of property
which has a useful life between 6 and 8
55

years is multiplied by 66 2A percent to
arrive at qualified investment.'
The qualified investment is less in
the case of certain public utility property
and for certain organizations, such as
those subject to Section 593, regulated
investment companies, certain real estate investment trusts, and cooperative
organizations subject to Section 1381
(a) 2
Section 38 property must be property
which is subject to depreciation deductions by the taxpayer and must be either
tangible personal property or "other"
tangible property except a building and
its structural components. Other property qualifies as Section 38 property only
if it "is used as an integral part of manufacturing, production, or extraction, or
as an integral part of furnishing transportation, communications, electrical energy, gas, water, or sewage disposal
services by a person engaged in a trade
or business of furnishing any such service, or is a research or storage facility
used in connection with any of the foregoing activities." 3 Certain elevators and
escalators also specifically qualify.
No investment credit is available for
assets acquired, constructed, reconstructed or erected during the suspension period, which began 10 October
1966, and ended 9 March 1967.4 Also,
if property was ordered during the aforementioned period and construction began or the property was delivered before
24 May 1967, no investment credit is
available.', Since the suspension period
is now history, the problems created by
it and the resulting transition back into
operation, although very real, will not
be recurring and are not further considered here.6 This article is concerned
with the recurring need for investment
credit data and the need to "stay on top"
of the problem by generating current
useful information as investment takes
place.
Where the tax liability exceeds $25,000, the investment credit is limited to
$25,000 plus 50 percent of the tax lia1
9

Internal Revenue Code, Sec 46( c).
Internal Revenue Code, Se c 46(c) and 46( d) .
Tress Reg 1.48 -1(a).

I

Internal Revenue Code, Se c 48 0) .

s There are a couple of important exceptions to
these general rules. One permits the investment
credit on $20,000 of i nve stment wi thout regard to
the suspension period. Another permits certain
equipment, such as air pollution control equipment,
to be qualified without regard to the suspension
period. See Internal Revenue Code, Sec 48(h).
For an excellent article dealing with the transition
period, see Durwood L. Al kire, "Planning Property
Acqui sit ions in Vi ew of t he Re turn of the Investment Credit," The Journal of Taxation, August
1967, p. 66.
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the account have an estimated life of
less than 4 years.e It may be interesting
to see just how far the IRS will permit
a taxpayer to go in this direction, however, since the statute is clear in denying
the credit to property having a useful
life of less than 4 years.10
Where the depreciation method is
not based upon an estimated useful life
measured in years, an estimate must be
made in terms of years."
Taxpayers should be aware of the
option and aware of the possible disadvantage from the wrong choice. For
Need for Adequate Data
example, a taxpayer has established an
It is obvious that a seven - percent effec- asset account with an average life of 7
tive reduction in the cost of qualified years. Therefore, only two- thirds of the
purchases can be significant. It is even cost of all additions to that group is
more significant when we consider that qualified investment. If an asset with an
the reduction comes without disturbing estimated useful life of at least 8 years
the basis which is used for computation is added to the account, V3 of its cost
will not be subject to the credit, whereof depreciation.
as
segregation of that asset would perIn an accounting system which does
mit
the full cost to be qualified. On the
not provide for the routine accumulation
other
hand, use of the average life of 7
of Section 38 property costs contemporary with the acquisition of the prop- years might mean that some assets with
erty, some form of archive retrieval is a 5 -year life are receiving credit on two required to compute and support the thirds of cost rather than one - third. A
tax credit. However, even a tax savings safe prediction is that the IRS will not
equal to seven percent of the cost of let a taxpayer have the best of both.
qualified expenditures may be too small Advantageous choice can still be made.
There is one area of judgment which
to justify the cost of a special search
is
related to depreciation but which is
to uncover data related to the acquisition. Moreover, such a search and seg- unique to the investment credit. The
regation attempt may result in oversight credit is allowed only for the year in
which depreciation is first taken or for
of some purchases.
Although in some cases the credit the year "in which the property is placed
might be computed as seven percent of in a condition or state of readiness and
the gross additions to a given asset ac- availability for a specifically assigned
count, the attempt to take this approach function," whichever year comes first.12
What constitutes a state of readiness
overlooks several potential problems.
Not all of the cost of acquired property and availability may be a very subjective
charged to an asset account is neces- judgment whereas the year in which desarily fully qualified for the investment preciation is first taken is more objeccredit, that is, where the expected life is tive. The point to be made here is that
less than 8 years. The regulations do not the timing of the credit may not coinrequire, however, that each separate cide with the invoice date or payment
property acquisition be accounted for date or any other objectively deterseparately for purposes of the credit. If mined date. This could be troublesome
multiple asset accounts are used for de- for property acquired close to year -end.
preciation purposes, or if single asset Perhaps a rule of thumb should be
accounts are used with an average life "when in doubt, claim the credit."
Another problem area concerns propfor assets in each account, the same
may be done for investment credit pur- erty acquisitions which may represent a
combination of qualified and nonqualiposes.8 The only requirement seems to
be that an individually estimated useful fied investment credit property. Neither
life must be consistent with a group, the statute nor the regulations hint in
classified, or composite rate used for a any way other than that already mentioned that nonqualified property can be
multiple asset account.
An average life may be used even Y See illustration at Treas Reg 1.46 -3 (e) (3) (ii).
though some of the assets charged to 30 Internal Revenue Code, Sec 46(c).

bility in excess of $25,000.7 Again, the
transition period results in some exceptions to this rule because of modification
of the statute when the suspension period was ended. For the calendar year
1967, for example, the limit is $25,000
plus 45.3425 percent of tax liability
over $25,000. Application of the limitation and any resulting carrybacks or carryovers of unused investment credit is
primarily a problem which must be
faced by the firm's tax department rather
than the daily accounting function.

r Internal Revenue Code, Sec 46(d)
6

Tress Reg 1.46.3(e) (3).

Tress Reg 1.46.3(e) (S).
v Tress Reg 1.46.3( d).

It
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combined with qualified property with
the investment credit computed on the
total. Where total cost of a property
acquisition represents expenditures for
both qualified and nonqualified property (for example, purchase or construction of a manufacturing building containing built -in facilities which are not a
structural part of the building) separation of the costs can be a monumental
task. The IRS has made it clear that
no single property can be considered to
be Section 38 property in part. In order
to qualify a portion of the cost of an
investment it will be necessary for the
taxpayer to allocate the cost to separate
properties, some of which may be Section 38 property and some of which may
not be Section 38 property.13
Definitional Problems
In the past any property acquisition was
either capitalized and subject to depreciation, capitalized and not subject to
depreciation, or not capitalized. The
investment credit presents a new and
unique requirement. For example, the
cost of a building or any structural component of a building does not qualify
for the credit, but important (and expensive) nonstructural parts may qualify.
As is so often the case when working
with the Internal Revenue Code, serious
problems of definition exist. Recent revenue rulings have been added to previous rulings and to the regulations, but
there is still much doubt. For example,
the IRS has stated that air - conditioning
units, even those installed on the roof
of a building, are structural components
of the building.14 However, if the purpose of the air conditioning is primarily
related to the production process, rather
than for human comfort, the cost is
subject to the investment credit.15 It
appears that certain heating units, water
coolers, hot water systems, and additional plumbing are to be excluded, unless directly related to a manufacturing
process.16 There will undoubtedly be
some very interesting future questions
raised concerning what is "directly related" to a manufacturing process.
In addition, the cost of tangible per-8 It is beyond t he scope of this article to fully exami ne the types of property which will qualify or
the methods of allocating total cost between qualified and nonqualified exQenditures. The purpose
here is to argue for t he inclusion of provision to
accumulate investment credit property costs as a
part of the routine accounting data system.
11

Rev Rul 67.359.

15

Tress Reg 1.48.1(e).

16

Rev Rul 67.417.
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sonal property qualifies as Section 38
property. Previously, little need has ever
been felt to have the accountant separate tangible personal property from intangible property or from nonpersonal
property. To be sure, the depreciation
rates may vary for such properties and
the account to be charged is usually
different, but the specific identification
of tangible personal property, as such,
was not necessary. Adequate support
for the credit must include identification of all property by the statutory
definition.
The cost of other tangible property
will qualify for the investment credit, if
it is used as an "integral part" of manufacturing, etc.17 It has never before been
a requirement for capitalizing an asset
to determine if that asset were in fact
an "integral part" of a manufacturing
process, as that term is used for investment credit purposes, which is not at
all clear at this point in time.
The segregation of Section 38 property information requires that a decision
be made about which information is to
be accumulated and reported. For example, included in the cost of equipment, for investment credit purposes
even if not for general accounting purposes, are any special footings required
to support machinery, any special ventilating, plumbing, or electrical fixtures
and connections. The cost of such
items is likely to be charged to the
building account, particularly in the case
of new construction.
The major burden of preparing the
tax return must rest with the firm's tax
department. Most decisions will have to
be made by the tax men or at least with
their cooperation. Very significant problems of applying the investment credit
rules will center around the definition
of Section 38 property. Practicing industrial accountants will not normally
be expected to answer these legal questions but their responsibility is clear —
to cooperate with the tax department
by being aware of the problems, asking
the proper questions of themselves and
others, and generating timely and pertinent information to assist in acceptable
solutions to tax problems. Emphasis
here is placed upon the routine generation of the necessary data to permit intelligent judgments. The generation of
the right information is itself a matter
of judgment.
The accountant should make investSee pre ceding quotat ion of the st atute. See also
Treas Reg 1.48 -1(c) and (d).

17

ment credit data a part of the daily routine. While the problems surrounding
the investment credit may be everything
but routine, the acquisition of Section
38 property is a daily occurrence; provision for the routine handling of such
required information is a necessity.
There appears to be no efficient alternative, in many firms, to that of modifying the accounting information system
to provide for the data requirements of
the investment credit.
Coding for Section 38 Property
Because Section 38 property must be
depreciable property used in a trade or
business, the answer to proper and
timely identification of Section 38 property lies with fixed asset accounting.
Making the segregation tof Section 38
property costs a part of the system adds
some problems which must be solved.
Who identifies Section 38 property?
When? How?
One answer lies in cost coding, especially adaptable to a computerized system. Since all invoices must be examined at least once, segregation at that
point seems logical. By adding a cost
code to identify all capitalized items
which are thought to have investment
credit potential, and segregating those
invoices currently, much subsequent
digging to uncover Section 38 property
data can be eliminated.
The person or persons responsible for
coding would require indoctrination on
which items to identify. This will require extra time, effort, and cost and
the cooperation of the legal or tax staff
to answer many initial questions. But
the benefit to the tax department of
having a subsidiary comprehensive list
of Section 38 property acquisitions, with
supporting evidence and source documents, will return the cost many times
over.
Coding Section 38 property acquisitions at the time the charge is made to
an asset account will permit easy and
efficient retrieval. Codes can be used for
each of the three categories of estimated
life where individual items rather than
group, multiple or composite accounts
are to be used. Property identification
codes should have sufficient capacity to
permit tracing of Section 38 property
cost data back to source documents,
which may include more than the traditional purchase orders and invoices.
Engineers, cost estimators, contractors,
construction personnel (in the case of
self- construction) and many others, in57

Planning Ahead
In accounting for fixed assets, the number and kind of source documents appear limited. For example: invoices,
purchase requisitions, payment evidence, engineering reports and specifications. Many useful items can be added
for purposes of substantiating the Section 38 property cost, such as construction or bid estimates, allocation worksheets, vendor letters, tax department
memos, photographs, blueprints, legal
opinions, appraisal estimates, and contracts.
Much pertinent data can be obtained
if sufficient foresight is used. Vendors
and contractors will be fruitful sources
of usable data. Put on current or advance notice that they will be asked for
such data for purposes of determining
Section 38 property costs, they are more
likely to be able and willing to supply
such data.
Requests should be made to vendors
to fully explain and itemize all charges
in order to permit the vendee to make
an intelligent analysis of the costs with
the objective of identifying Section 38
property costs. Contractors can be required, as a part of the agreement, to
separate costs in such a way as to assist
the builder. The contract might even
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provide for two separate price structures, one for Section 38 items and one
for non - Section 38 property. It seems
reasonable that a taxpayer's argument
for including costs in the Section 38
category would be strengthened where
they were bargained for separately
rather than allocated after the contract
is awarded. An example here will help
to illustrate the possibilities for obtaining a contractor's assistance in separating, identifying or allocating costs of
Section 38 property.
A contractor is adding an escalator or
elevator to an existing building for the
taxpayer. An escalator or elevator is
specifically Section 38 property, and the
costs of installation are included as a
part of the cost. The regulations state
that for purposes of determining the
cost of an elevator or escalator installation, "the cost of any structural alterations to the building, such as the cost
of constructing a shaft or of making
alterations to the floor, walls, or ceiling,
even though such alterations may be
necessary in order to install or modernize the elevator or escalator," is not
to be included in that portion of the
cost of installation which is considered
Section 38 property cost.18 Therefore,
where any such alteration or modificaincluded as a part of the total
tion
job, the contractor can supply the necessary information from his bid worksheets, construction estimates, or blueprints, but may not be willing to do
is

cluding the legal and tax staff, must be
available to assist.
An important reminder: the necessary data must be gathered sooner or
later. Time and effort can be saved by
doing it while intelligence is fresh.

18

Treas Reg 1.48 -1(m) (H) (2).

so after the contract is awarded. To
require him to do so as a part of the
contract provides data not otherwise
available, and has the added probable
advantage of being less vulnerable to
IRS disallowance. Substantial dollars of
savings are likely to be available both in
tax reduction and in mitigation of disputes with IRS.
Summ ar y
The investment credit is still a relatively new wrinkle in tax law, requiring
new and possibly unusual data for an
accounting system. To properly fulfill
his role of data supplier, the accountant
must collect and report Section 38 property cost data routinely. This may require alteration of the accounting system. The cost of gathering necessary
information for the tax return can be
minimized if the accounting data processing system is modified to provide for
appropriate real -time accumulation of
the data and if the persons processing
the data are aware of Section 38 implications.
The objective should be to generate
meaningful questions and satisfactory
answers while the information is "fresh"
in the minds of the participants. The
investment credit rules require judgments concerning the nature and size
of qualified expenditures. To make such
judgments contemporary with the unfolding of the facts can be less expensive and more reliable than to do so at
some subsequent date.
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Evolution of a Magazine
GROWTH OF THE OFFICIAL NAA PUBLICATION OVER A HALF - CENTURY REFLECTS GROWTH OF THE ASSOCIATION

This first issue of the new MANAGE-

printed, reprinted, translated, and re-

departments devoted to the work of

MENT

p u b l i sh e d i n c o m p i l a t i o n s.

t h e di ffer en t C o m m i t t e e s . "

Foun der s For esa w Needs
In 1920, when the Association was
still in its organizing stages, three types
of publications were outlined. The Official Publications would deal "with a
single, definite phase of cost work" and
would be "more or less technical" and
"aim to make a definite contribution to
the literature of cost accounting." The
second type�—the Bulletins —would be
designed to keep members up with
Association activities. The Association's
early leaders also conceived of a magazine which would "contain articles of
a more popular and a more general
nature than those contained in the
Publications and which will also have

ommended deferring the publication of
a magazine because of printing costs
and the lack of a publication staff. In
effect, however, the Association began
publishing a periodical, if not a magazine, in the form of the "Official Publications" and the bulletins.

AC C O UN TIN G

is

on ly t h e la test

link in a chain of developments that
began 49 years ago when the newly formed Association called for "suitable
articles on Cost Accounting for the
Official Publications and also for the
Association Magazine."
There is a straight -line progression
from the one or two articles published
twice a month in the early 1920's in
the Official Publications and slim bulletins to the varied and comprehensive
fare in the standard publication you
hold in your hands today. Printed in
different formats and under several
names, the Association publication has
an uninterrupted record of publication
dating back to 1919. During the last 49
years, many articles of note have been
60

The Committee on Publications rec-

Vol u nt e er Con t r i but or s
Like today's publication, the Official
Publications were dependent upon voluntary contributions. An early source
of manuscripts were speeches given at
chapter meetings. The first technical
article was published in the April 1920
issue of Official Publications. It was
titled "Calculation and Application of
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING /SEPTEMBER, 1968

Departmental Burden Rates," by Gould
L. Harris. Mr. Harris also wrote the
second article, published in May 1920.
Some attempt was made even then
to offer incentives for manuscript writers, foreshadowing the current chapter
manuscript competition. A thesis competition was announced in the May 15,
1920 Bulletin. A. H. Barrett of Boston
won with his contribution, "Cost Accounting, for Brass and Bronze Foundries."
Meanwhile, in a separate publication,
the Association was printing a booklet
titled Bulletin Service. Bulletin Service
contained chapter news, items of organizational and administrative matters,
and references to accounting literature
published elsewhere.
Beginning with Volume 7 (1925/
26) , the Official Publications were
merged with the nontechnical material
and became Section 1 of the N.A.C.A.
BULLETIN. Sections 2 and 3 included
news and the references to cost accounting literature. This change was instituted in order for the Association to
qualify under the second class postal
regulations. The N.A.C.A. BULLETIN
was issued, in two or more sections, on
the first and fifteenth of the month.
The incentives for chapter contributions of manuscripts were increased
when the inter- chapter competition was
inaugurated in 1924. The number of
manuscripts sent to the national office
for consideration grew as the number of
chapters grew. In 1939 -40, for example,
331 manuscripts were received; in 194950, 456 manuscripts were sent through
the chapters. During 1967 -68, a total
of almost 1,000 manuscripts were submitted. The desire to publish more of
these manuscripts was one of the reasons for the latest change in format
and size.
Pioneering Articles
The quality of the papers published in
the NAA BULLETIN and later, MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING, has generally been
high. A pioneering article on direct costing "What Did We Earn Last Month ?"
by Jonathan N. Hams was published
on January 15, 1936. A similar article
a year later, "What's Wrong with Most
Profit and Loss Statements ?" by Clem
N. Kohl broke additional ground on the
same topic. In a compilation of NAA
articles published in 1965, NAA on Direct Costing, Dr. Raymond P. Marple
calls the Harris article an "accounting
classic."
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

These original articles led to the production of the first NAA research report
on direct costing. Eventually industry
began to adopt the new accounting
technique first publicized in the Association's literature. Elaborations and
case studies on the same topic continue
to be published In MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING.
War Years No Deterrent
Despite a paper shortage during
World War II, the N.A.C.A. BULLETIN
was still published on a regular basis.
As might be expected, many of the articles reflected the problems of a war
economy. In 1943 appeared the article,
"Do Standard Costs Aid War Production?" "Cost Determination in Aircraft
Production" and "Motion and Time
Study for Postwar Profits," were two of
the papers published in 1944.
Four years after the end of the war,
the N.A.C.A. BULLETIN became a
monthly publication, with all the technical material combined in Section 1
and the nontechnical material in Section 2. The number of pages was increased to 96 for Section 1; Section 2
consisted of 24 pages. The Lybrand
Gold and Silver Medals were established
at this time to encourage the writing of
manuscripts and recognition of their
authors.
In the early 1950's the emergence of
electronic data processing could clearly
be traced in the indexes of articles pub-

lished by the Association. Before 1952
the topic heading, Electronic Data Processing, does not appear in the index;
beginning with the September 1952 August 1960 topical index, the heading
stood at the top of a respectable list of
titles. One of the first was "How Does
Accounting Stand with Electronics" by
J. S. Warshauer published in April
1953. Another published a year later
was titled "Automation Is 'In the Cards'
— Prepare for It," by A. E. Puutio.
In July 1957, the publication became
the N.A.A. BULLETIN to reflect the
dropping of the word "Cost" from the
Association's name. To better characterize the type of material featured in
the magazine, its name was changed to
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING In September 1965. The publication continued to
be printed in two or more sections.
In the new, larger format all sections
have been combined in one publication.
The Association will be able to publish
more articles and at the same time continue to feature the other material formerly carried in Sections 2 and 3. The
addition of advertising will help to defray some of the production costs of the
new magazine. Increased resources resulting from membership growth will
enable the editors to make further improvements in the future. In the Association's history each new development
in the magazine has represented a step
forward. The "new" magazine symbolizes a giant step.

Member Group Life Insurance Plan
Enrolls More Than 4,000
More than 4,000 NAA members have enrolled in the Members'
Group Insurance Plan which became effective on July 1. They were
insured for more than $60,000,000, by the Connecticut General
Life Insurance Company, Hartford, Conn., which is carrying the insurance.
Mr. Ettore Barbatelli, chairman of the Committee on Membership for 1967 -68, said he was delighted at the response to the
program. The enrollment in the insurance plan exceeded all expectations, with members from 47 states, Canada and Puerto Rico represented. About 65% of those enrolling purchased family coverage.
Julius G. Underwood, Harrisburg, is the chairman of the 1968 -69
Members' Group Insurance Plan Committee. The other members
are listed elsewhere in this issue.
Any inquiries on the insurance plan should be addressed to: NAA
Insurance Trust, Connecticut General Life Insurance Co., Hartford,
Conn. 06115.
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It's not `Greek' to Lybrand Award Winner
TOP MANUSCRIPT AWARD WINNER HUMBLYACKNOWLEDGES HONOR PAID HIM
In this busy, sophisticated world we live
in, it's not too often that we're privileged
to hear, or read, a really sincere and
humble acknowledgement of gratitude
from a person who is honored by his
peers. That privilege was accorded us
recently in connection with the awarding of the Lybrand Gold Medal. The
recipient was William Kallimanis, Portland. Although he did not deliver a
"thank you" speech, he wrote the following, which we feel richly deserves
publication:
Dr. McFadden ( James A. McFadden,
Chairman of the Lybrand Awards Committee) outgoing President Morison,
incoming President Meredith, distinguished members of the Lybrand Committee, members of the Executive
Board, ladies and gentlemen:
When I received Mr. Rawn Brink ley's telegram informing me of the
award, I let out a cry of joy. It is truly
the greatest honor my family and I have
ever received!
My wife was very surprised when I
told her because she knows that I am a
notorious speller, unless of course the
words happen to be Greek ... then I
am really in trouble.
I conceived the idea for the paper
about two- and -a -half years ago while
working on an assignment on another
subject. Shortly after I had completed
my assignment I attempted to sell the
idea to my superiors, but I was not too
successful so I tossed the proposal in a
folder marked "interesting but not useful" and forgot about it.
Last summer during one of our board
meetings I heard Dr. R. L. Boyd ( our
manuscript director) and Dave Martin
(our president) plead for leads to manu62

scripts so I dug up the paper and sent
it to Dr. Boyd with a note to the effect
"If you get desperate you may use this."
A couple days later Dr. Boyd called and
said he wanted to use it, providing I
would make a few changes. Yes! You
guessed it! I had to correct the spelling
of English and Greek words alike. Well,
with his patience, guidance and a good
eraser, I finished the paper and mailed
it into the national office in time to earn
full credit points for our chapter. As far
as I was concerned that was the end.
But it was not.
A few days passed and I was pleasantly surprised by the letter from Stephen Landekich, editor Of MANAGEMENT
ACCOUNTING, informing me that the
paper was selected for publication. I

was happy, grateful, and resigned myself to humbly accept this high honor.
Once again I thought that was the end
but it was not.
When I received word of this award
I was flabbergasted! My first thoughts
were "'maybe the Lybrand Committee
has made a mistake." So I quickly reread the wire to make sure. It wasn't
until I received Dr. James Lanham's
letter confirming the wire that I began
to believe it.
Occasionally when I feel low, I think
I should have taken the advice of my
college counselor who told me, after returning from the service, that I was too
old to be an accountant, and that accounting was not my cup of tea. Of
course I didn't listen to him. We ac-

William Kallimanis (left) is awarded Lybrand Gold Medal by Dr. James A. McFadden,
Lybrand Awards Committee chairman. Author's thank you note is printed above.
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countants don't take advice, we give it.
Right? This is especially true of a stubborn Greek accountant like myself.
But when I look back on my accounting fellowship, I think of the nice people I met and the nice things that have
happened, and chuckle with delight, because I'm proud to be a member of this
honorable profession.
I must confess I don't know what
made my paper a winner. I am surprised
it even got as far as national, considering

it was thought up in Greek, translated
into English, and originally proofread
and typed by my German wife!
Seriously though, this is truly a land
of opportunity where someone like myself—a common individual — living in a
free society can express his opinions as
a peer to distinguished men in all echelons of management with the sole purpose of constructively improving our
profession and society. I am therefore
grateful to the giants who preceded us,

who had the faith, foresight, fortitude
and dedication to establish and perpetuate such a free society.
I accept this award as a tribute, not
to myself, but to the countless people
who have over the years unselfishly aided me, gave me confidence, and showed
me the true meaning of freedom, the
duties of a free citizen and how to constructively contribute toward the improvement and perpetuation of this society.

NAA Committees for 1968 -69
NATIONAL COMMITTEES WILL HAVE MANY PROBLEMS TO CONSIDER DURING UPCOMING YEAR

As provided in the Constitution, the
Association is managed by a Board of
Directors. To assist the Board in its
task a number of committees are appointed each year to discuss Association
matters and report their conclusions and
recommendations for action.
The various committee memberships
include current national directors, national officers and other NAA members
who have served in the past as chapter
president or national director.
The Constitution requires that six
standing committees be named and
gives the option to the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee to establish other committees as the need
arises. This year a number of changes
are apparent in the committees. Three
subcommittees of the Committee on
Accounting Development have been
formed to allow intensive concentration
on important areas of the Association's
technical activities.
Several new committees reflect a
broadening of the Association's services.
For example, the Members' Group Insurance Plan Committee was established
to supervise a group insurance plan for
members made available for the first
time during 1967 -68. The Publications
Committee was established with responsibility for policy recommendations for
the expanded publications program, including MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING.
The Planning Committee is an outgrowth of the Committee on Long Range Objectives.
Those who volunteer to serve on a
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national committee often make sacrifices to attend meetings but the drawbacks are outweighed by the satisfactions involved in helping the Association grow and develop. Because committee members reflect a broad spectrum of Association membership they
are able to give NAA the benefit of diverse experiences and backgrounds. Although relatively unpublicized, their
work on the committees is essential to
the development of NAA.
Following are the members who have
volunteered to serve on NAA committees during 1968 -69.

Paul W. Holt, Bridgeport
Earl A. Matheney, Tulsa
Nels C. Nelson, Cleveland
S. Alden Pendleton, Pittsburgh

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
President
James E. Meredith, Jr., New York
Vice Presidents
Fred Andersen, Milwaukee
Leo J. Barnecut, Jr., Mass. Route 128
Arthur P. Bartholomew, New York
Paul A. Busch, Cincinnati
Floyd F. Cravens, San Diego
Paul W. Demarest, Omaha
Robert J. Hinz, North Alabama
J. Will Lewis, Salt Lake Area
R. Terry Lyle, Florida West Central
Charles R. Miller, Pittsburgh
Jack W. Robinson, Tulsa
William M. Young, Jr., Washington

COMMITTEE ON
ACCO UNTING
DEVELOPMENT
George H. Wadsworth, Chicago, Chairman
Chapter Education
David W. Rewick, Chicago, Chairman
Charles B. Allen, Waterbury
Robert D. Bradshaw, Waterloo
Donald D. Gunning, Oklahoma City
Robert A. Lineberger, Orange County
Robert A. Morgan, Peoria
Paul E. Myers, Toledo
Kenneth W. Perry, Sangamon Valley
James H. Pohl, Akron
Emil Scharff, San Diego
James C. Stephenson, Lake Erie Central
Arthur S. Taylor, Boston
J. Richard Troester, Dayton
Maurice R. Van Camp, Southwest Los
Angeles
William U. Westerfield, New York
Thomas M. Wise, Savannah

Treasurer
John E. Vavasour, Westchester
Appoint ed Members
Ettore Barbatelli, Milwaukee
Robert G. Chapman, Los Angeles

Past National Presidents
Firman H. Hass, Detroit
Thomas L. Morison, Boston
Chairmen of Standing Committees
Richard E. Austin, Pittsburgh
R. Lee Brummet, Ann Arbor
Lafe P. Fox, Cleveland
Chris V. Kemendo, Jr., Tulsa
John T. Kokos, Indianapolis
George H. Wadsworth, Chicago
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Continuing Education Program
Ray E. Longenecker, Lancaster, Chairman
Richard Bieganski, Milwaukee
John H. Boland, Jr., New Hampshire
Gerald A. Bryan, Louisville
James Bulloch, Ann Arbor
Paul B. Cate, New York
Robert L. Chaplin, Ft. Wayne
John J. Fox, Detroit
Lewis G. Ifft, Jr., Pittsburgh
Edwin P. James, Chicago
E. W. Kelley, Hartford
A. W. Patrick, Knoxville
Robert E. Patterson, Lancaster
Carl G. Pohlman, Minneapolis
Herbert H. Seiffert, Raritan Valley
Robert L. Shultis, Morristown
Arthur H. Smith, Los Angeles
A. Lawrence Sweitzer, Madison
James T. Tucker, East Tennessee
William W. Wright, Orange County
Education Planning
Donald H. Cramer, New York, Chairman
Arthur E. Carlson, St. Louis
Robert I. Dickey, Sangamon Valley
Francis X. Di Leo, Bridgeport
Clemens A. Erdahl, New York
Donald J. Guth, North Texas
John F. Kasper, Corpus Christi
Joseph V. Newman, Pittsburgh
A. Richard Perry, New York
Bernard H. Semler, Orange County
George E. Snively, Phoenix
COMMITTEE ON
CH APTERS
Chris V. Kemendo, Jr., Tulsa, Chairman
Homer N. Beakley, Houston
George Bennett, Westmoreland County
Robert O. Berger, Cleveland
David P. Blake, Westchester
L. Dean Carpenter, Chicago
John H. Cox, Bangor- Waterville
Frank E. Doeler, Indianapolis
William H. Dudley, San Fernando
Valley
James Evans, Syracuse
Robert O. Feola, Akron
Richard J. Filer, Ohio - Western Reserve
Bernard I. Forester, San Fernando
Valley
William J. Fox, Hartford
Gerald L. Fuchs, Rockford
Charles H. Hawkins, Portland
Robert M. Hendry, Princeton
Robert M. Husband, Daytona Beach
Area
Carl A. Johnson, Muskegon
Gordon A. Johnson, Rochester
Charles R. Knutson, Saginaw Valley
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Nicholas A. Lannutti, North Penn
Harold E. Little, Washington Tri- Cities
Raymond J. Lutien, Des Moines
Kenneth E. McMullen, San Jose
Francis J. Mejstrick, Morristown
Edward L. O'Brien, Hagerstown
David A. Olson, Calumet
Robert M. Osborne, Beaver Valley
S. Alden Pendleton, Pittsburgh
Donald G. Perry, San Francisco
George C. Richards, New York
Clyde H. Roberts, Muscle Shoals
John H. Roberts, St. Louis
J. Joel Rusk, Oakland -East Bay
Michael F. Scanlan, Jr., Charleston
John F. Shea, Mohawk Valley
Billy M. Shoekey, San Diego
J. Lamar Stall, Shreveport
J. Marshall Summar, Jr., Nashville
Jason M. Terry, Palos Verdes- Torrance
Ralph L. Trosclair, New Orleans
COMM ITTEE ON
FIN AN CE A ND BUDGET
Richard E. Austin, Pittsburgh, Chairman
Robert W. Arnold, Birmingham
William H. Beadle, New York
R. Lee Brummet, Ann Arbor
Frank J. Church, Newark
George D. Gee, Kansas City
I. Wayne Keller, Lancaster
Alexander R. St. Bernard, Cleveland
Colin A. Stillwagen, San Diego
Julius G. Underwood, Harrisburg
John E. Vavasour, Westchester
George H. Wadsworth, Chicago
Bronislaus Zamrok, Jr., Morristown
COMMITTEE ON
M E M B E RS H I P
John T. Kokos, Indianapolis, Chairman
W. Vernon Allman, Parkersburg-Marietta
Harold E. Beck, Ft. Worth
William J. Berglund, Oakland County
John H. Bergstedt, Los Angeles
Robert D. Bolinder, Boise
Robert Bradshaw, Waterloo
Robert Burdette, Lubbock Area
Chester W. Claypool, Florida West
Central
Robert R. Elliott, Baltimore
Jack C. Finnell, Owensboro Area
William J. Flanagan, Elmira Area
Ray Hernandez, San Juan
Clark Johnson, Raritan Valley
Otis L. Johnson, Tucson
Paul C. Kolves, San Gabriel Valley
Billy W. Lassiter, Raleigh- Durham Area
Charles W. Lent, Charlotte
Robert Moody, Eugene
William O'Donnell, East Bergen-Rockland

Donald L. Perlroth, New Haven
Lawrence F. Pieruccioni, St. Paul
David Robertson, Dallas
Wade B. Salisbury, San Jose
Adolph T. Samuelson, Washington
Ross S. Tanner, Buffalo
James E. Taylor, Memphis
Malcolm J. Wall, Sabine
Mark E. Whitaker, Joplin Tri -State
William W. Winter, Mobile
COM MITTEE ON
PROM O TION AND PUB LIC
RELATIONS
Lafe P. Fox, Cleveland, Chairman
Irving R. August, East Jersey
Ed Barrington, Los Angeles
William J. Bonner, South Jersey
Ernest L. Brioza, Peninsula -Palo Alto
Russell M. Bruce, Cape Canaveral
Eben C. Cutler, Dayton
Marshall E. Dunn, Orange County
Robert Freeman, Ann Arbor
Vincent Grande, Knoxville
Lawrence Hegstrom, Colorado Springs Pueblo
Paul Imler, Washington
William R. McCamy, Longview -East
Texas
Ben R. Murphy, Nashville
Charles Myerly, Charlotte
Peter Neff, Springfield
Robert Oakleaf, Olean- Bradford Area
Thomas C. Ottey, Philadelphia
George B. Owens, Canton
Cyril E. Portugill, Montgomery
COM MITTEE ON
RESEARCH PL ANNING
R. Lee Brummet, Ann Arbor, Chairman
David R. Arnold, New York
Joseph F. Bond, New York
Henry L. Clayton, Elmira Area
Edward W. Cleary, Boise
William F. Colan, Peoria
Allan C. Crane, Milwaukee
James Don Edwards, Lansing - Jackson
Wilber C. Haseman, Mid -Missouri
William R. Irons, Pittsburgh
R. Wayne Oates, Pittsburgh
Richard F. Peirce, Chicago
Allen H. Seed, New York
Donald J. Trawieki, Milwaukee
John Van Pelt III, Birmingham
George C. Watt, Morristown
Robert J. Weafer, Boston
E. A. Williams, Dallas
BUDGET COMM ITTEE
R. E. Austin, Pittsburgh, Chairman
Alexander R. St. Bernard, Cleveland
Julius G. Underwood, Harrisburg
John E. Vavasour, Westchester
Continued on Page 68
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Time Off

You can tell
about
a company
by the people
it keeps
A business can be no better than
the combined abilities of its personnel.
When a company hires the wrong
person .... when an employee
selects the wrong position ....
both are harmed.

Those who urge a shorter work
week may be surprised to learn that
it's already here, according to a top
management consultant firm. The
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Mail resume to your nearest R -H office.

ROBERT
H AL F

O

PERSONNEL
AG E N C I E S

__

_

_

_

_

_

_

.

__

_

__

_

_

_

_

__

_.

_

_

_

Atlanta: 235 Peachtree St., NE _.. (404) 688 -2300
.. (301) 837 -0313
Baltimore: One Charles Center
... (617) 423 -6440
Boston: 140 Federal St.
__
Chicago: 333 N. Michigan Ave.
(312) 782 -6930
Cincinnati: 606 Terrace Hilton
(513) 621 -7711
__(216)621 -0670
Cleveland:1367 East 6th St.
(214) 742 -9171
Dallas: 1170 Hartford Bldg.
(313) 961 -5430
Detroit: 1114 Guardian Bldg.
BardenCity, N.Y.585 Stewart Ave. .(516)248-1234
Los Angeles: 3600 Wilshire Blvd. (213) 381.7974
Miami: 1107 Northeast Airlines Bldg. (305) 377.8728
(212) 986.1300
NewYork: 330 Madison Ave.
(201) 623.3661
Newark: 570 Broad St
(215) 5684580
Philadelphia: 2 Penn Center
(412) 471 -5946
Pittsburgh: 429 Forbes Ave
Portland, Ore: 610 S.W. Alder St. (503) 222 -9778
(314) 231 -0114
St.Louis: 1015 Locust St.
(415) 434 -1900
SanFrancisco: 111 Pine St.
Stamford, Conn: One Atlantic St. (203) 3254158
__

20 -Hour Work Week

For the most efficient service in
the Financial and EDP field ....
contact your Robert Half specialist.

_.

A survey of 372 members of the
Administrative Management Society
showed members were split right
down. the middle over the propriety
of miniskirts in the office. Some 52%
said miniskirts were permitted and
48% said they were not. Microskirts,
it seemed, were completely out. Of
those approving minis, most put the
acceptable length at two or three
inches above the knee.
As for men's fashion styles in the
office, 95% responded with a loud no
as to whether long hair was permitted. A smaller percentage -77 %—
turned thumbs down on turtleneck
shirts. Only 26% of the managers
were willing to permit beards, but
73% said they would permit mustaches. Beatnik -style mustaches, however, were verboten.

average clerk or stenographer actually works only 20 of the 37.5 hours
he or she is at the desk, reports the
Serge A. Birn Co., Louisville, Ky.
Using a method called "master
clerical data" (MCD), the Birn
Company claims to be able to measure the efficiency of any clerk. In a
survey of ten companies Birn found
that clerical performance averaged
55 %, or about 20 hours. After cost
controls were instituted, performance
rose to about 81 %, or almost 30
hours of work in the 371/ 2 -hour week.
MCD studies show that 46% of
clerical time lost in most offices is
eaten up by anything from nervous
habits and girdle adjustments to personal phone calls. One accountant
stumped the experts. He seemed to
be working all the time and yet his
reproduction record indicated lie was
doing only about half the work of
employees around him. Further investigation revealed he had a 50 -volume library of paperbacks in his desk.
He had developed the knack of seeming to post figures in the ledger with
his right hand while reading a paperback held inside the ledger with his
left hand.

._

Dim View Taken of Micros

_

"You realize of course, Fenwick, that this automatically cuts you out of the company's fringe benefits."

We can assist you in avoiding
misfit situations in the Financial
and EDP fields. We concentrate
all of our energies in this specialization. We believe that the R -H
System makes the most placements of Financial and EDP
personnel. It's the largest source
of its kind in the world.

World's Largest Fi nanc i al &
E D P Personnel Specialists.
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Chapter /Member News
Emeritus Life Associates
FRANK H. BEILL,
J.

DOWD,

Indianapolis past

president.

EDWARD

Detroit.

R O B ER T H . D U LA N E Y,

Chattanooga past

president.
GEO RG E T. EW EL L,

Hampton Roads past

president.
WILLIAM

W.

K IL C O YN E,

Greenwich -

Stamford past president.
W I L L I A M H . K R O M L I N G , Chicago past
president. Stuart C. McLeod Society.
BR UN O

LAWSON,

Baltimore past presi-

dent.
W. RANDLE MITCHELL,

Philadelphia.

Washington. Boston past president. Stuart Cameron McLeod Society.
C H A R L E S W . TUC K E R ,

HAROLD

E.

WELLS,

Indianapolis past

has been elected secretary- treasurer of
Sullivan, Long & Hagerty.

president - financial of Citizens Financial
Corp.

Two Boise members have been named
by Boise Cascade Corp. E D W A R D W .
C L E A R Y , past president, was promoted
to vice president and treasurer; E U G E N E
H . I R M I N G E R is now comptroller.

Two Columbus members have been
named by Price Waterhouse & Co.
R O B E R T P . B A B I N E A U was promoted to
senior accountant, and D A V I D L . T H O M A S ,
manager . . . D O N A L D F . C A M P B E L L Was
named controller, W. W. Williams Co.

Brooklyn, is now vice president- business & finance, Pratt Institute.
V. E. LIN D ,

Two Buffalo
RICHARD W .
P A R K E R and M A R Y B . S O M M E R , have
been named assistant vice presidents at
Marine Midland Trust Co.
members,

Three Calumet members were promoted
to assistant manager of the accounting
department at Inland Steel Co. They
are N . R . L I N D S K O G , M I C H A E L R . SAKSA,
and R O B E R T F . W A L K E R . . . J A M E S W .
Cox has been appointed staff accountant
in Harvey Division accounting department, Wyman - Gordon Co.
Central Arkansas, has been
promoted to manager in the Little Rock
office of Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co.
. . . J O H N K I R S H was named financial
analyst, A.O. Smith Co.

president.

G A R Y B UR R I S ,

Promotions and New Positions
FARMER,
Albuquerque, is now
comptroller and office manager at N.C.
Ribble Co.
PAUL

Ann Arbor,
was promoted to comptroller of Economy Baler Co.
TER R EN C E

J.

MCG OV ER N,

A U S T I N S T R A N D , Charlotte, is now assistant treasurer of Belk Brothers Co.

H EN R Y L.

Baltimore, Was recently named assistant treasurer of McCormick & Co., Inc.
ALAN P .

MED ING ER ,

Bangor - Waterville,
was promoted to controller and R O B E R T
F . B A R T L E T T to assistant controller at
Great Northern Paper Co.
P E T E R F . YA C A V O N E ,

Birmingham, I s now
inventory cost analyst with U.S. Steel
Supply Division ... H I R A M Y . M C K I N N E Y
GEORGE LA R IMER ,
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Ir

COLE

UNDERWOOD

and S T U A R T
East Bergen - Rockland,
have been promoted to managers at
Arthur Andersen & Co.... J O H N M A N U M and W I L L I A M J . M C N A M A R A
are
now managers at Arthur Young & Co.
J A M E S R O D G E R S has been promoted
...
to assistant to the administrative partner
of the New Haven office of Arthur
Young & Co.
RIC HA R D W .
L.

C UTH BER TS O N

SC HW ER IN,

JOSEPH J .
C A R R O L L , East jersey, has
been elected assistant controller of
C.I.T. Financial Corp. . . . B R U C E
S T E E L E was recently promoted to accounting manager for Chevron Oil Co.

Asheville, has formed a
new company called Business Machines
Sales and Service.
F R A N K HAGG AR,

H I L L S , Atlanta, was recently
promoted to secretary- treasurer of Retail
Credit Co. . . . A L C . W A R R I N G T O N Was
recently promoted to partner at Arthur
Andersen & Co.

W . D O H R M A N N , Des Moines, has
joined Frye Mfg. Co. as a financial
analyst.
R.

BA R N ETT,
Fort Wayne, has
been named chief accountant at Bow mar Instrument Corp.
WARREN

HILLS

YACAVONE

W . C A R D I N , Chattanooga, has
been admitted to partnership in Arthur
Andersen & Co.
RIC HA R D

R E I D C A R R , Cincinnati, was promoted to
controller of Korb Lithographing . . .
A U B R E Y L . C O L E has been promoted to
vice president, management information
services of the U.S. Plywood- Champion
Papers . . . L O U I S P . S P A E T H is comptroller for St. Elizabeth Hospital.
FR ED J .

Cox, Cleveland, was named vice

J O H N N E W T O N , Greenwich-Stamford,has
been elected vice president, financial
planning, Chestnutt Corp. . . . R O B E R T
H . T H O M P S O N I s now comptroller of
Pepperidge Farm.
J U L I U S G . U N D E R W O O D , Harrisburg, and
past national vice president, has been
named president of Harsco Co.
J O H N R . A B R A H A M S , J R . , Hartford, has
been named assistant comptroller of
North & Judd Mfg. Co.... W I L L I A M J .
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F o x was appointed comptroller of Lewis
Engineering.

to senior vice president in charge of
First National Bank's credit department.

vice president and treasurer of Norton
Simon, Inc.

FRANK IZARD, Jackson, has been appointed general accounting manager for
South Central Telephone Co.

CHARLES SUNDSTROM, Morristown, has
joined Becton, Dickinson & Co. as
budget manager.

RALPH E. GILBERT, Kalamazoo, was recently elected secretary- treasurer of Miller Lumber CO. . . . JAMES WILLETTE
has joined Battle Creek Equipment Co.
as controller.

RICHARD J. CANTWELL, Newark, has
been given a temporary appointment as
chief accountant of Bloomfield. He is
currently town clerk . . . PATRICK M.
MELLILO has Joined Blyth & Co. as controller . . . JAMES R. REARDON has been
appointed vice president of finance,
Electronic Assistance Corp. ... MARSHALL B. SAYRE was named assistant controller, accounting services, Schering
Corp.... KENNETH N. SCHEUT'L has been
appointed accounting systems; manager
at Schering.

Three Owensboro Area members have
been named by Texas Gas Transmission
CO. MELVIN H. RATTRAY was named director, rates; R. T. ROBINSON is now manager, rates, and J. RICHARD WOLFE was
promoted to assistant to the treasurer.

ARTHURGILLUM, Kansas City, has joined
the First National Bank of Kansas City
as controller . . . ROBERT J. QUADE has
joined Huxtable- Hammond, Inc., as
comptroller ... FRANK RHODES Was promoted to product costing supervisor at
Folger Coffee CO.... DONALD R. SLOAN
was promoted to managing partner for
Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co., Des
Moines, Iowa.
LAWRENCE W. WHALEN, JR., and KENNETH L. STUCKWISH, Knoxville, have
been appointed executive vice president
and controller, respectively, of The
Berkline Corp.

C. ROBERT BRUCKMAN, New Haven, has
been appointed an assistant director of
Yale -New Haven Hospital ... THOMAS
B. GROVES was named materials manager
at Cerro Wire & Cable Co.

JOHN F . NAVIKAS, Lancaster, has been
promoted to office manager at Herrmidifier Co.
JAY E. HUMMER, Lehigh Valley, was
promoted to vice president and treasurer
of General Crushed Stone Co.
JOHN W. MASON, Los Angeles, has been
named vice president of finance and administration for Century City, Inc.
. . . ROBERT VAN METER has joined
Thomas Organ Co. of Sepulveda as cost
accountant.
F. L. SUNDSTROM, JR., Louisville, has
been named comptroller of Mobil
Chemical Co.
L. JAMES FITZPATRICK, Madison, Is now
a partner of Gunkel, Morton, Selberg,
Fitzpatrick & Pope, CPA's.
DONALD E. BENSON, Minneapolis, was
appointed vice president for finance and
treasurer of Minnesota Enterprises, Inc.
. . . LEONARD E. BROWN has joined La
Crosse Federal Savings & Loan Assn. as
treasure'( . . . NORMAN P. FOSTER Was
recently promoted to audit manager,
Peat, Marwick, Mitchell & Co.... BEN
D. STROH is now comptroller of Towns
Edge Oldsmobile . . . FRANK D. TRESTMAN has been named executive vice
president of Napco Industries, Inc....
JOSEPH M. WALKER was named assistant controller with the Pepsi -Cola Bottling Co. of Minneapoils.
CLARENCEDAVIS, Mobile, was promoted
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DONALD J. MAST, Pennsylvania Northeast, has been promoted to controller of
Hendrick Mfg.
HAROLD G. FORD, Pennsylvania Northwest, was promoted to supervisor, general accounting and reporting, Dresser
Industries.
J. C. MCLELLAN, Pensacola, is now secretary- treasurer of Jack Lee Buick Co.
LEONARDA.COLAVITA, Philadelphia, has
been named controller and assistant secretary- treasurer of Piasecki Aircraft
Corp.
GILBERT SCHERZINGER, Portland, was
named assistant vice president in the
corporate finance department, First National Bank of Oregon.
DENNIS FRETZ, Princeton, Was recently
promoted to general manager of accounting operations for the publications
division of McGraw -Hill, Inc.

SEMLER

TRESTMAN

RAYMOND J. CISNEROS, New York, is
now assistant director for fiscal affairs at
the new Mercy Catholic Medical Center
. . . EUGENE S. DOMBROWSKI was appointed assistant director, business division of the Medical Society of the
State of New York . . . RAYMONDG.
HACKMAN has been promoted to audit
manager 'of Lybrand, Ross Bros. &
Montgomery . . . JOHN LABIAK has
joined Perfect Film & Chemical Corp.
as assistant controller.
RICHARDF. NELSON, Oakland County, is
now corporate controller of Towne Robinson Fastener CO.... DONALD M. WILLS
has been appointed manager, control
and finance, for American Standard's Industrial Products Dept.
JAMES BURKE, Oklahoma City, IS now
assistant controller of Liberty National
Bank & Trust CO.... D. O. BAINTER has
been named cost accounting supervisor
at Black, Sivalls & Bryson, Inc.... D. L.
WAGGONERwas named director of accounting, Hudgins-Thompson -Ball & Associates.
BERNARD H. SEMLER, Orange County,
past national vice president, was named

MARVINDICK,Quincy Area, has been appointed controller of Gates Radio Co.
Two Richmond members were recently
named by Virginia Commonwealth
Bankshares, Inc. WILLIAM S. HUNTER
was promoted to comptroller, and ROBERT W. NORMAN to assistant treasurer.
... W. NORWOOD CLEMONS is now secIetary of the C. F. Sauer Co.... R. K.
GREGORY has been promoted to treasurer
and a director of Smith - Courtney.
OLNEY F. OTTO, St. Louis, has been admitted as a member of the public accounting firm, Haskins & Sells.
Two St. Paul members were named by
Minnesota Mining & Mfg. CO. WILLIAM
E. WINN was named division controller
of the Microfilm Products Div., and
PAUL D. TRITSCHLER, dlvlson controller
of the Medical Products Div.... DEAN
WIGSTROM, past chapter president, was
promoted to comptroller, and KENNETH
T. WOODRUFF, assistant comptroller, of
Northern Pacific Railway Co. . . .
ARNOLD DORHOUT has been promoted to general accounting manager of
Toni Co. . . . ROBERT A. HOODECHECK
was elected vice president of American
National Bank & Trust Co.... ROGER
f7

was elected vice president -planning at First National Bank of St. Paul.
PALMER

promoted to manager in the firm Of
Price Waterhouse & Co.

Two San Diego members were named D A V I D B . B R E N N A N , Worcester past naby Cubic Corp. J . H . C A R T E R , J R . , I S now tional director, is now controller of Fiassistant to the vice president, and R O B - nancial Services Corp. of America, AtE R T C A TE S was named supervisor Of cost
lanta.
accounting.... D A L E D . BA K E R has been
admitted to partnership in Haskins & Organization Service
Sells. . . . G E N E M U R R A Y has joined D A V I D W . R E W I C K , national director from
Grossmont College as assistant business Cleveland, has been appointed campaign
manager.
chairman for Metropolitan Chicago of
Three San Francisco members have been the United Republican Fund, Illinois.
named by Levi Strauss & CO. R O B E R T L . C H A U N C E Y A . N O R T O N , Detroit, was
G R E G O R Y was promoted to administraelected president of the Michigan Assn.
tive assistant, general accounting; W I L - of CPA's. He is a past president of the
L I A M B . R O M K E S was named auxiliary acDetroit Chapter and a past national
counting supervisor, and L A R R Y E . Q U E N - director.
Z E R , accounts payable supervisor.
J O H N O G L E , Grand Rapids, was elected
D . Y . M A E K A W A , Seattle, 1S
now senior president of the National Assn. of Credaccountant at Explosives Corp. of Amer- it Management.
ica, a subsidiary of Rocket Research
J A M E S R . E V A N S , Lancaster, was named
Corp.
international secretary of the Institute of
Three Southern Maine members were Internal Auditors.
named branch managers by the Portland
office of Peat, Marwick & Mitchell. They P E T E R YO N A V I C K , Reading, is running
for a seat in Congress from the 6th Conare R O G E R L A B R A N C H E , R I C H A R D K R U G E R
gressional District of Pennsylvania.
and R I C H A R D B R O O K S .
G . A C K E R M A N , Southwest Los
Angeles, was named treasurer of Bubble
Up CO. . . . G E O R G E D A V I D S O N is now the
controller of United Air Conditioning
CO. . . . G L E N N G E S S F O R D has Joined Bixby Ranch Co. as controller and assistant
to the vice president. . . . J A Y R . G U E R E NA has been named controller of Bayly,
Martin, and Fay.
W A L L A C E M . S C O T T , Springfield past
president, was recently appointed president and chief operating officer of United Elastic Co., a division of J. P. Stevens
& CO. . . . J A M E S F . S H E A has joined
Arrow - Hegeman Electric Co. as chief
accountant. . . . J A M E S E . T R A F T O N was
appointed vice president of finance at
General Offset Printing Co.
RONALD

J O H N A . M A R K E R T , Syracuse, has been
named treasurer of Will & Baumer Candle Co.
S A N T I N I , Trenton, has been promoted to assistant comptroller of Trenton Trust Co.
BEN

Tri- Cities, has been
elected treasurer and chief financial officer of the Alter CO. . . . W I L L I A M
H U G H E S was appointed controller of
French & Hecht Div., Kelsey -Hayes Co.
D O N A L D D . P E T T I T Was elected comp...
troller, and A . W . W U R B S was re- elected
secretary of Servus Rubber Co.
HA R O LD

DANIEL,

K E N N E TH M . JO NES,
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Wheeling, has been

Author
R O B E R T S . W A S L E Y , Denver past
president, is co- author, with Dr. C. Orville Elliott of Western Illinois University, of Business Information Processing
Systems. He is on the faculty of the University of Colorado School of Business.
DR.

In Memoriam
CEC IL

G.

AN DERS ON ,

83, Columbus,

1937.
56, Cedar Rapids,1946.
R O B E R T W . B I T Z , 68, Birmingham, 1937.
Ross
G. B o A z ,
43, Member -at- Large,
1963.
A N G E L O C A R L E V A R I N I , 55, Long Island,
1957.
S T E P H E N E . C O F F E Y , 58, Minneapolis,
1944.
G A R O L D F . C O N Z E L M A N , 58, Chicago,
1947.
A N D R E W J . C O T H R A N , 67, Member -atLarge, 1947.
C H A R L E S A l . D O Y L E , 59, Boston, 1945.
G E O R G E P . E I S W I R T H , 74, St. Louis, 1952.
J O H N C . F R Y E , 28, Lehigh Valley, 1966.
R O B E R T N . C O R D O N , 46, Boston, 1948.
M A L C O L M R . G R I F F I T H S , 45, Cincinnati,
1956.
C H A R L E S A . J I N K S , 53, Toledo, 1945.
J O S E P H G . K E A R N S , 61, Providence,1961
JOHN BABILLUs ,

SHAFFIE J. MAL LE N,

43, Merrimack Val -

ley, 1957.
CHARLES A. MA TTIS O N , JR .,

Binghamton,

1944.
TH O M A S

J.

N A YLO R ,

JR.,

54, Philadel-

phia,1957.
52, Indianapolis, 1958.
69, Indianapolis,1934.
Emeritus Life Associate.
M I L F O R D H . S A UN D E R S , 32, Grand Rapids, 1960.
J A M E S S . S E E G E R S , 49, Member -at- Large,
1962.
L O U I S P . S H R Y N E , 64, Member -at- Large,
1962.
T H O M A S J . S M I T H , 64, Cleveland, 1944.
B R U C E D . SN O DG R AS S , 66, Pittsburgh,
1946.
T H O M A S A . W I L S O N , 43, Atlanta, 1960.
S A M U E L J . TO D D , 78, Hawaii past president, 1922. Emeritus Life Associate.

R O BE R T G . P R A TT ,

HENR Y F . R EIN KE,

Continued from Page 64
COMMITTEE ON
M E M B ER S' G RO UP
INSURANCE PLAN
Julius G. Underwood, Harrisburg,
Chairman
George D. Gee, Kansas City
Alexander R. St. Bernard, Cleveland
John E. Vavasour, Westchester
Bronislaus Zamrok, Jr., Morristown
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
William H. Beadle, New York, Chairman
Robert W. Arnold, Birmingham
Richard E. Austin, Pittsburgh
Colin A. Stillwagen, San Diego
Julius G. Underwood, Harrisburg
John E. Vavasour, Westchester
M EM O RIAL E D U C A T I O N
FUND TRUSTEES
John E. Vavasour, Westchester, Chairman
William H. Beadle, New York
R. Lee Brummet, Ann Arbor
Frank J. Church, Newark
George H. Wadsworth, Chicago
PENSION TRUST EES
I. Wayne Keller, Lancaster, Chairman
William H. Beadle, New York
John Pugsley, Pittsburgh
COMM ITTEE ON
GRANTS -IN -AID
George C. Watt, Morristown, Chairman
Willis Leonhardi, Chicago
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Conference Calendar
CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGIRAM -FALL 1968

Oswald Nielsen, San Francisco
G. Kenneth Nelson, Williamsport
R. E. Schlosser, Buffalo
Arthur H. Smith, Orange County

LO NG -RANG E LO CATIO N
CO M M IT TE E
Robert Beyer, New York, Chairman
L. Dean Carpenter, Chicago
John E. Vavasour, Westchester
PLANNING COMMIT T E E
Ettore Barbatelli, Milwaukee, Chairman
Robert Beyer, New York
William E. Craig, Jamestown
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Mon. thru Fri.

Mon. thru Fri.
Mon. thm Fri.
Mon. thru Fri.
Mon. thru Fri.

---

—

--

-

-

--

CHICAGO
Nov. 18 -22

-

LOS ANGELES
Oct. 28 -Nov. 1

Thurs. /Fri.
---

-

-

Thurs. /Fri.
Mon. /Tues.
Wed. thru Fri.

—

--

-

—

Thurs. /Fri.

- -Thurs. /Fri.

Mon. /Tues.

Thurs. /Fri.
Mon. /Tues.
-

--

Mon. /Tues.

—

Thurs. /Fri.
Thurs. /Fri.

Mon. /Tues.

---

—

Thurs. /Fri.

-

—

-

Mon. /Tues.

Wed. thru Fri.
Thurs. /Fri.

-

Mon. /Tues.

Wed. thru Fri.

-

--

-

Wed. thru Fri.
Thurs. /Fri.

-

Mon. /Tues.

Wed. thru Fri.

Mon. /Tues.

Mon. thru Wed.
Mon. thru Wed.
Mon. /Tues.

—

—

Wed. thm Fri.
Thurs. /Fri.

Mon. thru Wed.

--

Mon. /Tues.

Mon. thru Wed.
Mon. thru Wed.
Mon. /Tues.

-

—

Mon. thru Wed.

—

—

--

Mon. thru Fri.

-

Mon. thru Fri.

ATLANTA
Oct. 14 -18

-

Mon. thru Fri.
Mon. thru Fri.
Mon. thru Fri.
Mon. thru Fri.

—

SENIINARS
Administration of the Division & Plant
Controller's Job . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Corporate Financial Reporting to
Shareholders & the SEC . . . . . . . . . . . . .
The Accountant's Role in Government
Cont r act i ng . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .
Integrating Business Information Systems..
Modern Standard Costing Practices . . . . . .
Experience with Direct Costing &
Contribution Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Optimizing Marketing & Distribution Costs
Current Developments in Corporate
Pensions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Accounting Applications of EDP . . . . . . . .
Appraising & Financing Corporate
Acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

NEW YORK
Sept. 23 -27

-

COLIRSES
Mathematics for Business Management
Basic Mathematics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Advanced Methods & Models . . . . . . . .
Statistical Inference . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Probabilistic Models . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Sampling Techniques & Regression
Analysis for Accounting & Auditing
Information . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Methodology of Operations Research —
An Accounting Emphasis . . . . . . . . . . . .
Basic Data Processing Concepts &
Techniques . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Scientific Inventory Management . . . . . . . .
Developing & Using Standard Costs ......
Flexible Budgeting & Performance
Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Direct Costing & Contribution Accounting.
Economic Evaluation of Capital
Expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Costs for Decision Making . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Report Writing & Communications . . . . . .
Accounting for Foreign Operations .......

Mon. /Tues.
—
—
Thurs. /Fri.

William C. Hallett, Los Angeles,
John E. Hampel, Cincinnati
Firman H. Hass, Detroit
Paul W. Holt, Bridgeport
Kenneth R. Rickey, Peninsula -l'alo Alto

James A. McFadden, Washington
Willis W. Shenk, Lancaster

PU B L IC AT IO NS
CO M M IT TE E
R. Leslie Ellis, Lancaster, Chainnan
George L. Battista, Trenton
Donald C. Brabston, Birmingham
Robert G. Chapman, Los Angeles
W. Atlee Davis, Jr., Delaware
Elwyn E. Failor, Dayton
William L. Ferrara, Williamsport
Kenneth W. Hill, Des Moines

( June 22 -2 5, 1969, New York, N.Y.)
Fred J. Sengstacke, New York, Chairman, Operations
Grant U. Meyers, North Texas, Chairman, Program

196 9 A NNU AL
INTERNATIONAL
CO NFE RENCE CHAIRM E N

AC C O UNT I N G CAREERS
COUNCIL
Carl G. Orne, Oakland -East Bay, Volunteer Representative
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P RO D UC T I O N A N D
INVENTORY CONTROL

Recent Publications
G U I D E T O CONT E M PORARY
T HE O RY O F A C C O UN T S
John Coughlan
Prentice -Hall, Englewood Cliffs, N. J
07632, 1965, 563 pp., $16.00.
This textbook in accounting theory
takes a fresh approach to organization
of materials and a clear explanation of
chosen topics. Emphasis is placed on
knowledge needed by the CPA examination candidate, although the book
should be useful to anyone interested in
financial reports.

AC CO UN T IN G T RE ND S &
T E CHN IQ UE S
American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, 666 Fifth Ave., New York,
N.Y. 10019,1967, paperbound,314 pp.,
$21.00.
This 21st edition of the AICPA annual
survey of published financial reports
provides a comprehendium of reporting
practices followed by 600 companies.

AC C O UN T IN G F O R
EX T RAO R DIN ARY G AIN S

AND LOSSES
Leopold A. Bernstein
The Ronald Press Co., 15 E. 26th St.,
New York, N.Y. 10010, 1967, 331 pp.,
$10.00.
An extensive compilation of practice
complements this author's inquiry into
theoretical aspects of his subject.

N. J. 07632, 1967, 203 pp., $17.50.
While the existing literature on direct
costing is voluminous, this book adds a
clear and understandable presentation
which will be useful to non - accountants
as well as to accountants.

READINGS IN MANAGERIAL
AC CO UNT IN G

70

This book, subtitled "Principles and
Techniques," aims to present an integrated systems view of the numerous
inventory management techniques that
have been developed as more or less independent tools. It is readable and relatively non - technical.

UT ILIZING R &D
BY- PRODUCTS
American Management Association, Inc.,
135 West 50th St., New York, N. Y.
10020, 1967, paperbound, 127 pp.,
$7.50.

Western Canadian Chartered Accountants Course, 530 Burrard St., Vancouver Edited by Jerome W. Blood, this pub1, British Columbia, 1967, paperbound, lication comprises a collection of sixteen short articles on utilizing research
$5.50.
output from both company and outside
As noted in the preface, readings in this
sources.
collection have been chosen to supplement textbooks. The academic avant
garde is heavily represented in the selections, perhaps with the intent of both
expanding outlook and developing dissemination among accounting students.

NE W T E C HN I Q UE S FOR
BUSINESS PLANNING
SYSTE MS AND CO N T RO L
American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, 666 Fifth Ave., New York,
N. Y. 10019, 1967, paperbound, 95 pp.,
$2.50.

AP P RA I S I N G T HE M A RK E T
F O R N E W I N D US T RI A L
PROD UCT S
National Industrial Conference Board,
845 Third Ave., New York, N.Y.
10022, 1967, paperbound, 112 pp.,
$17.50.
Subtitled, "Studies in Business Policy,
No. 123," this study presents practices
of some 100 industrial products companies for appraising the markets for
their new products.

A dozen articles reprinted from Management Services constitute this book.
SYSTEMS E NGINE E RING
M E T HO D S
MA NA GE ME NT P RO GRAM
PL A N N I N G A N D C O N T RO L
W I T H PE RT MO S T A N D L O B
Anthony L. Iannone
Prentice -Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs,
N.J. 07362, 1967, 202 pp., $17.95.

DI RE CT CO ST IN G
T E C HN I Q UE FOR INDUST RY
Samuel M. Woolsey
Prentice -Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs,

G. W. Plossl and O. W. Wight
Prentice -Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs,
N. J. 07632, 1967, 432 pp., $10.50.

This book presents three techniques for
planning, scheduling, and control of activities. Emphasis is placed upon the
"how -to" aspects of the subject.

Harold Chestnut
John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 605 Third
Ave., New York, N. Y. 10016, 1967,
392 pp., $11.95.
This book gives a broad view of its subject with minimum attention to techniques. While intended for engineers,
many sections will be of interest to and
readable by those interested in management systems.
M A N A G E M E N T AC CO UN TIN G / SE PTE MB ER , 1968

UNDE RST AND ING L INE AR
PRO GRAM MI NG
James P. Fourre

American Management Association, 135
W. 50th St., New York, N. Y. 10020,
1967, paperbound, 23 pp., $3.00.
Published as Management Bulletin 94,
this volume is a brief and simple explanation of linear programming designed for the uninitiated reader.

HA ND BOO K O F N UM E RI CA L
M E T HO D S A N D
APPLICAT IONS
Louis G. Kelly
Addison- Wesley Publishing Co., Reading, Mass. 01867, 1967, 354 pp., $14.50.
This volume is a handbook and reference source for computer programmers
in industry and science.

of

SNOBOL 3 PRIME R
Allen Forte
The MIT Press, Massachusetts InstiTechnology, Cambridge, Mass.
tute
02142, 1967, 107 pp., $3.95.
As indicated by the title, this primer is
designed to help scholars learn the high level computer programming language
entitled SNOBOL 3.
MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTING/ SEPTEMBER, 1968

CO M PUT E RS A N D SMALL
MANUFACT URE RS
Alexander M. Blanton, Joseph Traut,
and Associates
Computer Research & Publications Associates, P.O. Box 480, Lenox Hill Station, 217 E. 70th St., New York, N.Y.
10021, 1967, 159 pp., $17.50.
This book is a report on computer developments based on field study work
done by a research group of the Harvard
Graduate School of Business Administration. Included are a non - technical
discussion of accounting and non -accounting applications now implemented,
tabulations of reported benefits and
costs, and a thorough write -up of systems development planning. The company size range considered was $20 million sales or less but more than 150
employees.

AN E VAL UAT ION OF
FINANCE LE ASING
James F. Jackson, Jr.
Bureau
Business Research, Graduate
School
Business, The University of
Texas, Austin, Tex. 78712, 1967, 139
pp., $2.50.
The study considers leasing versus purchase in terms of cost, cash, flow, and
flexibility.

in the preface, the authors blend both
academic and business experience to
produce a clearly written book on data
processing systems.

T HE A C C O UN T I N G
SAMPLER: AN
IN T RO D UC T I O N
Thomas J. Burns and
Harvey S. Hendrickson
McGraw -Hill Book Co., Inc., 330 W.
42nd St., New York, N.Y. 10036, 1967,
paperbound, 326 pp., $3.95 (hard cover,
$5.95).
While designed to supplement procedural textbooks by exposing students to
some of the controversial and exciting
aspects of accounting, this collection of
articles contains interesting reading for
anyone involved with accountants' work.

COST

ACCOUNTING

ANALYSI S AND C ONT ROL
Gordon Shillinglaw
Richard D. Irwin, Inc., 1818 Ridge Rd.,
Homewood, Ill. 60430, 1967, 913pp.,
$13.35.
While titles of many accounting textbooks include the word management,
this is one of relatively few in which the
contents give primary emphasis to
managerial uses of cost accounting information. It is highly recommended for
inclusion in the management accountants collection of professional reference
books.

of

T H I N K I N G W I T H FIGURES
IN BUSINESS
Roger A. Golde
Addison Wesley Publishing Co., Inc.,
Reading, Mass. 01867, 1967, 212pp.,
$6.95.
In the author's words, "This is a book
on how to improve your horse sense
with numbers." It is written for users of
numbers rather than for mathematicians.

THE FUT URE OF T HE
COMPUTE R UTI LI TY
C. C. Barnett, Jr. and "Associates
American Management Association, 135
W. 50th St., New York, N. Y. 10020,
1967, 158 pp., $9.00.
As stated by the authors, this book was
written to provide businessmen with a
nontechnical report on one phase of
developments occurring in the world of
computers.

of

IDE AS F OR MA NA GE ME NT
Systems and Procedures Association,
24587 Bagley Rd., Cleveland, Ohio
44138, 1967, 229 pp., $10.00.
A wide variety of practical ideas will be
found in this compilation of materials
from the 1967 International Systems
Meeting.

INT E G RA T E D DA T A
PROCESSING SYSTEMS
E. Jerome McCarthy and
J. A. McCarthy
John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 605 Third
Ave., New York, N. Y. 10016, 1966,
565 pp., $8.95.
Edited by Durward Humes. As stated

PLANNING NEXT YEAR' S
PROFITS
Dale D. McConkey
American Management Association, 135
W. 50th St., New York, N.Y. 10020,
1968, 155pp., $4.50 (nonmembers
$6.75).
Designed as a guide to annual profit
planning for the operating executive rather than for the staff specialist, this
book stresses such planning requisites as
managerial leadership and organizational clarity rather than assembly of
numbers.
71

THE ORY OF MANAGERIAL
FINANCE
Selected Readings
Richard E. Ball and Z. Lew Melnyk
Allyn and Bacon, Inc., 150 Tremont St.,
Boston, Mass. 02111, 1967, paperbound,
618pp., $9.25.
Selections from the voluminous literature on financial management may be
found in this book.

FINANCE COMPANIES —
THEIR ACCOUNTING,
FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESE NTAT ION, AND
AUDITING
St. Elmo V. Smith
The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants, 69 Bloor St., East, 5, Toronto, Canada, 1967, paperbound, 71
pp., $2.00.
While presenting Canadian practice,
this booklet will be found useful to accountants in the U.S. who are concerned with finance companies.

CRITICAL PATH
SCHEDULING
A Practical Appraisal of PERT
fames P. Fourre
American Management Association, 135
W. 50th St., New York, N.Y. 10020,
1968, paperbound, 16pp., $2.00 (nonmembers $3.00).
A brief and nontechnical exposition of
CPS is contained in this pamphlet.

PRINCIPLES OF STATISTICS
M. G. Bulmer
The M.I.T. Press, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Cambridge, Mass.
02142, 1967, 252pp., $7.50.
This is a compact, but not elementary
textbook. In some instances its British
terminology differs from that customary
in the United States.

ACCOUNTING SIMPLIFIE D
Clifford M. Masheb and
Robert B. Lebowitz
Barnes & Noble, Inc., 105 Fifth Ave.,
72

New York, N.Y. 10003, 1967, paperbound, 116pp., $2.25.
This publication is designed for Self studv and review of accounting procedures at an elementary level.

J. K. LASSER'S BUSINESS
MANAGEMENT HANDBOOK
McGraw -Hill Book Co., 330 W. 42nd
St., New York, N.Y. 10036, 770pp.,
$16.50.
Edited by Bernard Greisman. The objective of this reference work is to provide the manager who is a generalist
with assistance in understanding the
work of specialists in various areas of
business.

RECENT PUBLICATIONS

LEASING STANDARDS
AND PROCEDURE S
Donald H. Metz
Thomas Printing & Publishing Co.,
Ltd., P.O. Box 208, Kaukauna, Wis.
54130, 1968, 422pp., $27.00.
Comprehensive coverage of leasing
techniques and problems recommends
this manual to the manager contemplating leasing of assets.

T HE PROGRAMMER'S ALGOL
Charles Philip Leeht
McGraw -Hill Book Co., 330 W. 42nd
St., New York, N.Y. 10036, 1967, 251
pp., $8.95.
As indicated by the title this book constitutes a reference guide to ALGOL
for the computer programmer.

UNCERT AINTY IN RE SEARCH,
MANAGE ME NT AND NE W
PRODUCT DE VE LOPMENT
Raymond M. Hamer, Sherman Kingsbury and David B. Gleieher
Reinhold Book Corp., 430 Park Ave.,
New York, N.Y. 10022, 1967, 234pp.
$9.75.
Reading of this book will help the accountant to better understand the research function and the problems which
research managers encounter.

MANAGERIAL BUDGE TING
FOR PROF IT IMPROVE M E NT
Walter R. Brunge
McGraw -Hill Book Co., 330 W. 42nd
St., New York, N.Y. 10036, 1968,
225pp. $9.95.
As a readable exposition of good budgeting practice, this book should be useful in encouraging more effective applications.

OPE RAT ING AND FINANCIAL
RATIOS OF OHIO HIGHWAY
CONTRACTORS
Felix P. Kollaritsch
Bureau of Business Research, The Ohio
State University, 1775 S. College Rd.,
Columbus, Ohio 43210, 1966, paperbound, 95pp. $4.00.
This study provides much data for the
contractor who wishes to compare his
own figures with those reported by participants in this study.

TAX -FREE REORGANIZATIONS
Robert S. Holzman
Farnsworth Publishing Co., Inc., 381
Sunrise Highway, Lynbrook, N.Y.
11563, 1967, 4160¢., $10.50.
This book provides information highly
important to the accountant and manager involved in mergers, liquidations,
or spinoffs.

INTRODUCT ION T O
DATA PROCESSING
F. R. Crawford
Prentice -Hall, Inc., Englewood Cliffs,
N. f. 07632, 1968, 402pp., $9.00.
This textbook covers basic information
about modern computer -based data
processing systems. It assumes no prior
knowledge of the subject.

AUDITS OF BANKS
American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Inc., 666 Fifth Ave., New
York, N.Y. 10019, 1968, paperbound,
171pp., $2.00.
Accountants concerned with auditing
and financial reporting for banks will
find this booklet both useful and authoritative.
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ATLANTA
Oct.14-18
COURSES
MathematicsforBusinessManagement
BasicMathematics
BasicDataProcessingConcepts&Techniques
Scientific InventoryManagement
Developing&UsingStandardCosts
FlexibleBudgeting&Performance Reporting
DirectCosting& ContributionAccounting
EconomicEvaluationofCapitalExpenditures
CostsforDecisionMaking
ReportWriting&Communications
SEMINARS
TheAccountant's Role inGovernmentContracting
ModernStandardCostingPractices
ExperienceWithDirectCosting& ContributionReporting
AccountingApplicationsofEDP

Mon.thru Wed.
Mon.thru Wed.
Mon.-Tues.
Wed. thru Fri.

LOSANGELES
Oct.28-Nov.1

Mon.thru Fri.
Mon.thru Wed.
Mon.-Tues.
Wed. thru Fri.
Thurs. -Fri.

Thurs. -Fri.
Mon.-Tues.
Wed. thru Fri.
Mon.-Tues.
Mon.-Tues.
Thurs. -Fri.
Thurs. -Fri.

